KINGSBURY

GENERAL IMPROVEMERT BISTRICT

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC HEARING & MEETING NOTICE
AGENDA
TUESDAY, May 21, 2024

A meeting of the Kingsbury General Improvement District Board of Trustees shall be held Tuesday
May 21, 2024, at the district office (160 Pine Ridge Drive, Stateline, NV, 89449), commencing at 5:00
p.m. The agenda and supporting material are available on the district website (www.kgid.org), News
& Notices. Copies of this agenda were posted 3 business days prior to the meeting at: The District
Office, Stateline Post Office, Zephyr Cove Post Office, and Douglas County Lake Tahoe
Administration Building.

Remote attendance is welcomed. To offer public comment prior to the meeting, individuals may
submit comments using the drop box located at the district office entrance, or email to mitch@kaid.org.

e To provide public comment or attend the meeting by phone, (669) 900-9128 - ID code 775-
588-3548 passcode 906347. Although the phone line accommodates multiple callers, should
you receive a busy signal, please call back.

e Public comment is limited to three minutes and occurs at the beginning and end of the meeting
and also invited during the Board’s consideration of each action item, as well as before action

is taken.

Join the meeting using the link below via Zoom:

https://usOZweb.zoom.us/j/7755883548?pwd=UnF2Yszb05YaOijjRCNUNEMUFVZzOQ
Meeting ID: 775 588 3548 Passcode: 5883548

MISSION STATEMENT
As a team, our employees and Board of Trustees provide water and sewer service, maintain roads
and drainage systems for the benefit of our customers using modern business systems in an efficient
courteous, and accountable manner which surpass standards set for public health, safety, and the
environment.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the district by calling 775-588-
3548 at least one day in advance of the meeting.

ALL MATTERS ON THE BOARD AGENDA ARE SCHEDULED WITH POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION



AGENDA

5:00 P.M.

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

Public Comment

This is the public’s opportunity to speak on any topic pertinent to the district and not listed on this
agenda. Public comment will also be invited during the Board’s consideration of each action item, and
before action is taken. Please limit your comments to three minutes. Nevada Open Meeting Law (NRS
241.034) prohibits action on items not listed on the agenda.

Approval of Agenda: For Possible Action: ltems on the agenda may be taken out of order; two or
more agenda items may be combined for consideration; and items may be removed from the agenda or
discussion relating thereto delayed at any time.

Approval of Minutes: For Possible Action: Approval of the minutes for the Board of Trustees
meeting held on April 9, 2024 (Tentative Budget Meeting) and April 16, 2024.

NEW BUSINESS

7.
8.
9.

10.

11.

12.

For Information and Possible Action: Approval of list of Claims, April 2024

For Information: Receive and review Financial Statements, February & March 2024

For Information and Possible Action: Approve revisions for Personnel Policy Manual relating to Use
of District provided Employee Lockers Section 2.4.

For Information and Possible Action: Approve revisions to the Personnel Policy Manual relating to
Temporary Personnel Section 3.1.1

For information and Possible Action: Approve On-call services agreement with Jacobs Engineering
for Technical Services

For information and Possible Action: PUBLIC HEARING on Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget
including discussion and approval of FY 2024/2025 Budget

Time Certain — 6:45 pm Closed session — Update for labor negotiation

13.

For Information and Possible Action: Approve July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2026 Collective Bargaining
Agreement between Kingsbury GID and International Union of Operating Engineers Stationary Local
39, AFL-CIO

ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN ON ANY REPORTS OR CORRESPONDENCE:

M

Board Member Reports
Management Report
Attorney Report
Correspondence

Announcements and Final Public Comment

For Possible Action; Adjournment



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE
KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES
TUESDAY APRIL 16, 2024

CALL TO ORDER - The meeting was called to order at the Kingsbury General Improvement District office located
at 160 Pine Ridge, Stateline, Nevada at 5:01 p.m. by Natalie Yanish.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL — In attendance were Trustees Yanish, Nelson, Trigg and Schorr. Also present were General
Manager Mitch Dion, Administration & Human Resource Supervisor Judy Brewer and General Counsel Chuck

Zumpft. Public present included Charles Hancock, Greg Felton, and Colin West of Clean Up the Lake. Trustee
Parks was not in attendance.

PUBLIC COMMENT — Charles Hancock suggested reviewing snow removal techniques.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA -

M-4/16/2024-1 -
Motion by Trigg, seconded by Yanish to approve the Agenda as presented. This motion was retracted.

The closed session is no longer time certain and will occur at the end of the meeting. Trustee Nelson suggested
deleting item #9 as the financials were not provided.

M-4/16/2024-2 -
Motion by Trigg, seconded by Yanish, and passed to approve the Agenda as amended to remove ltem #9
and the time certain for the closed session which will occur at the end of the meeting.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES — Nelson noted her absence at the meeting on March 19, 2024, and therefore should
not be referenced in the Motion 3/19/2024-1. Zumpft noted the motion was irrelevant as it was retracted. Trigg
stated that she believed she made the motion.

M-4/16/2024-3 - Motion by Schorr, seconded by Trigg, and passed to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes
dated February 20, 2024 and March 19, 2024, as amended. Nelson abstained due to her absence on March
19, 2024.

Greg Felton stated his appreciation for the consideration having minutes corrected and concurred with the
adjustment in the minutes dated February 20, 2024.

NO ACTION TOOK PLACE ON THE FOLLOWING ITEMS:

Clean Up the Lake
Colin West of Clean Up the Lake detailed beach and water cleanup in Lake Tahoe. Upcoming projects include

youth outreach, dive classes, clean-up with dive propulsion vehicles, and additional dives in 35-55 feet depths
along with various collaborations and research tasks.

Greg Felton suggested location specific dives at the water intake locations. Trigg requested contact information
for private donation referrals. Yanish verified they are a 501(c)3 non-profit organization and funding was briefly
discussed.

NEW BUSINESS

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

LIST OF CLAIMS — Nelson questioned check #63928 lien release for $2,050. It was explained; due to overdue
payment liens were filed on one of the multi-unit projects and subsequently were removed as the accounts were
brought current. Nelson commented that there are more credit card payments and suggested referencing
purchaser, if possible. Nelson also noted loader repair to Zack Good for $4,204 as equipment repairs.

KGID Board Meeting Minutes 4/16/2024



M-4/16/2024-4 - Motion by Nelson, seconded by Trigg, and unanimously passed to approve the List of
Claims in the amount of $1,079,008.40 as represented by check humbers 63825 through 63928.

Authorization General Manager to award window and door replacement for buildirig 160 Pine Ridge Drive
to Group West Construction.

A written report was provided. The corrected amount of $72,508.93 was noted. The report concluded that it was
beneficial to the district for Group West to purchase the windows and do the installation as a single procurement
verse the original intent seeking best price on the windows and installed by another contractor.

Nelson commented that the project supervision and installation fees seem high for the work even considering the
complication of 2™ story work.

M-4/16/2024-5 - Motion by Schorr, seconded by Trigg, and passed to approve the combined window and
door replacement not to exceed the revised sum of $72,508.93 and authorize the General Manager to
execute appropriate contracts. Nelson opposed.

Policy Update — Temporary Laborer
A written policy was provided for review.

Schorr commented regarding the source of temporary laborers such as an agency or local advertisement. It was
explained that local ads were the preferred method, however agencies had been used in the past for difficult to fill
positions.

Nelson indicated her support for the policy and the use of temporary labor. She expressed a request for updates
regarding the use of temporary employees with the monthly reports as part of the policy. The board discussed
options and determined an amendment would be added to the policy. The allowable hours of a temporary
employee were discussed.

Yanish questioned verbiage regarding untrained labor and questioned specifics to project work which were
included as examples. She stated her concern regarding reference to wages comparable to the local economy
and it was agreed to delete this section.

The revised policy will be amended and presented at the next meeting.

Approve modification to the General Manager contract regarding vacation time.

A written report was provided. Due to the absence of various key positions at the district, using vacation time is
proving to be challenging and changes to the contract are requested to be consistent with the provisions provided
for all other employees.

After clarification regarding 3 years or paid out at retirement, Nelson supported the item. Schorr clarified that the
item is for 3 years of vacation accrual, and it was explained that payout is undesirable. The intention will be to
utilize the time regularly, if possible. Zumpft suggested an amendment to include “At no time should employee
accrue more than 9 weeks of vacation time.” Effects on the budget were deemed negligible.

Yanish questioned the effects of PERS and Worker's Compensation. Nelson noted there are benefits to the
district for vacation time to be used and avoid the large pay out. The board supported the amendment with the
additional verbiage suggested by Zumpft.

M-4/16/2024-6 - Motion by Nelson, seconded by Trigg, and passed to modify (Employee benefits paragraph
F.) to the following: "Employee shall accrue three (3) week of vacation time each fiscal year (July JS1
through June 30th). The employee may continue to accrue this time to be used in accordance policy or opt
to be paid for this time annually or consistent with the personnel manual for separation or use at the time of
retirement. In no event shall the employee accrue more than 9 weeks of vacation time.” Schorr opposed.

Greg Felton opposed the recommendation stating the General Manager should use the vacation time because it
is less expensive than a payout. Charles Hancock supported the amendment to the contract indicating that there
are times as an executive when vacation cannot be used.

Board Reports
Nelson stated that the public attending the Sewer Authority meeting expressed dissatisfaction with the removal of

the beaver dam near the lift station.
KGID Board Meeting Minutes 4/16/2024



Schorr stated that he will not seek re-election. Commending other board members, he felt his time working with
the other board members and the district was fulfilling.

Yanish stated that the Nevada League of Cities and Municipalities luncheon was focused on the metropolitan
areas. They amended the Bylaws to include a dues structure change which will benefit KGID. They will begin
working on Bill Draft Requests and she offered to take requests from the board.

Management Report

General Manager’s Report

A presentation on district matters was presented. Nelson commented regarding the sewer flow rate the resolution
of the matter. Nelson sought an update regarding the customer’s claims related to the fire hydrant damage
caused by the Snow removal contractor. It was explained that determination is pending from the contractor’s
insurance and customer calls are fielded with empathy.

Administrative and Human Resources Report

Directions were requested from the board regarding the final invoice for the Market Street building. Nelson
questioned expenses. Yanish questioned if the item should be included in the agenda. It was suggested to have
legal counsel review the lease.

Schorr opposed having legal counsel review this item. Nelson supported having legal counsel review the lease to
reconcile the charges. Trigg supported having this item reviewed.

Yanish suggested having the contract reviewed by counsel and adding the item to the agenda if warranted. She
disagreed with paying any further expenses.

Attorney’s Report
There was nothing to report.

Engineer’s Report
There were no questions.

CORRESPONDENCE — There were no comments.

FINAL PUBLIC COMMENT — There were no public present.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

CLOSED SESSION

M-4/16/2024-7 - Motion by Nelson seconded by Trigg unanimously passed to enter closed session for
purposes of labor negotiations update at 7:30 p.m.

Board of Trustees exited closed session at 8:10 p.m. no action was taken.

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND FINAL PUBLIC COMMENT — None, no public present.

ADJOURNMENT

M-4/16/2024-8 - Motion by Nelson seconded by Trigg and unanimously passed to adjourn the meeting at
8:14 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Natalie Yanish, Chair

KGID Board Meeting Minutes 4/16/2024



Attest:

Sandra Parks, Secretary

KGID Board Meeting Minutes 4/16/2024



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING & BUDGET WORKSHOP OF THE
KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES
TUESDAY APRIL 9, 2024

CALL TO ORDER - The meeting was called to order at the Kingsbury General Improvement District office located
at 160 Pine Ridge, Stateline, Nevada at 5:02 p.m. by Natalie Yanish.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL — In attendance were Trustees Yanish, Nelson and Schorr. Also present were General Manager
Mitch Dion, Administration & Human Resource Supervisor Judy Brewer, and Travis Marshall of Dowl Engineering.

Public present via zoom included Travis Cardenas. Trustees Parks and Trigg were not in attendance.

PUBLIC COMMENT — None.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA —

M-4/9/2024-1 - Motion by Nelson, seconded by Schorr, and unanimously passed to approve the Agenda.

NO ACTION TOOK PLACE ON THE FOLLOWING ITEMS:

NEW BUSINESS

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Award FY24 Waterline & Road Repairs and Restoration Project Construction Services Contract.

A written report and presentation were provided. Characterized as two projects in a single construction service
contract: the normal annual project (Tramway & Tina) and the Ponderosa Mobile Home Park distribution system
replacement. The bid results were low enough that the district costs related to the Ponderosa project will be
recovered for the funding of the State Revolving Fund grant.

The trustees recalled the prior experience with the vendor was not favorable. The grant and NDEP contract
details were reviewed. Trustee Schorr requested clarification regarding indemnification. Trustee Nelson verified
the budget information. The project bid results reflected the initiatives taken by the district, such as prepurchase
of material, making the contract larger, and providing two construction seasons for completion provide the
contractor less risk and more flexibility highlights for better results.

M-4/9/2024-2 - Motion by Nelson, seconded by Schorr, and unanimously passed to approve awarding the
2024 Waterline and Road Repairs and Restoration & Ponderosa Mobile Home Park Distribution System
Replacement Construction Services Contract to Aspen Developers Corp. for the amount not to exceed
$4,195,665.00 and authorize the General Manager to approve the contract documents as necessary
provided that the Ponderosa Mobile Home Park accept responsibility and indemnify the district from damage
or fines resulting from snow or other obstructions to fire hydrants.

Travis Marshall exited the meeting.

FOR DISCUSSION ONLY:

Budget Workshop - Review tentative budget and provide direction for the FY 25 Budget.
A written report and presentation were provided for discussion purposes only.

Sewer maintenance costs have increased, and labor negotiations are in process with increases anticipated.
Vacant district positions were noted, and increases were recommended for specific positions. Discussion
regarding the use of Temporary personnel. It was noted that training is needed and especially for street
maintenance workers to build up the knowledge base of the Public Works activities of the district.

Discussion continued the Capital program and need for Road projects and equipment shelter.

Activities were discussed including potential community outreach and the service line determination project.
Revenues include the Ponderosa grant while interest income reflects the higher yielding accounts.

Payroll estimate included the 3/2 provision in current contract. Estimated payroll increases were included.

KGID Board Meeting Minutes 4/9/2024
1



Discussion regarding Accounting expenses as audit fees. Nelson advised adding a potential fee increase of
approximately $20K for a single audit per grant requirements. She suggested increasing the budget by $450K for
the Sewer Authority increased costs.

Nelson noted that administrative costs allocated to the Snow Fund were high and suggested reviewing the
allocation. The snow removal budget was discussed. Yanish reviewed sanding expenses and commented
relating to the potential to use General fund to augment Snow efforts.

Engineering costs were reviewed. Surveying costs are included for the upcoming road maintenance project.

ANNOUNCEMENTS — There were no comments.

FINAL PUBLIC COMMENT - There were no comments.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

ADJOURNMENT
M-4/9/2024-3 - Motion by Nelson seconded by Schorr, and unanimously passed to adjourn the meeting at
717 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,
Natalie Yanish, Chair
Attest:

Sandra Parks, Secretary

KGID Board Meeting Minutes 4/9/2024



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #07

TITLE: APPROVAL OF LIST OF CLAIMS (APRIL 13 - MAY 16)

For Discussion and Possible Action. Review and approve the monthly claims which
were paid by the district in April/May 2024

MEETING DATE: 21 May 2024

PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees review and approve the list of claims for December
from check number 63929 to 64019

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Each month the district is billed from vendors for a variety of goods and services which are

necessary and appropriate for the district operations and administration. In exercising fiduciary
duties, these are reviewed and approved monthly by the Board of Trustees.

INCLUDED:

e List of Claims for April/May 2024

Fund impacted by above action:

(X) All Funds () Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending'






Check Number

63929
63930
63931
63932
63933
63934
63934

63935

63936

63937
63938
63939
63940
63940
63940
63940
63940
63940
63941
63942
63942

63942
63942

Check Date

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 4/13/2024 Through 5/16/2024

Payee

Transaction
Description

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024
4/16/2024

Date: 5/16/24 01:57:47 PM

JODIE NELSON

SANDRA D. PARKS

CRAIG B. SCHORR

CYNTHIA M. TRIGG

NATALIE YANISH

AIRGAS USA, LLC

AIRGAS USA, LLC

ALLISON MACKENZIE, LTD

AT & T MOBILITY

BURGARELLO ALARM

AMY C. CARAMAZZA

HENRY JAMES COMMAGER

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

DOWL, LLC

MICHAEL EDWARDS JR.

FLYERS ENERGY LLC

FLYERS ENERGY LLC

FLYERS ENERGY LLC
FLYERS ENERGY LLC

Employee: NELSON; Pay
Date: 4/16/2024

Employee: PARKS; Pay
Date: 4/16/2024

Employee: SCHORR; Pay
Date: 4/16/2024

Employee: TRIGG; Pay
Date: 4/16/2024

Employee: YANISH; Pay
Date: 4/16/2024

NITROGEN LIQ FG
265LTRS 350 PSI

RENT LIQUID IND LG
190-300 LT NITRO

LEGAL LABOR
NEGOTIATIONS 2/20 -
2/22/24

ACCT. 287301170124
CELL PHONES

160 PINERIDGE DR FIRE
MONITORING 4/1 -
5/31/24

BOARD MEETING AND
MINUTES 3/19/24
10.75HRS

REFUND ACCT. 1943
OVERPAID/CLOSED
ESCROW 4/5/24

ENGINEERING SERVICES
2024 WATERLINE IMPROV
PROJECT 3/30/24

ENGINEERING SERVICES
FY23 ANDRIA & BARRETT
WATER PROJECT

ENGINEERING SERVICES
FY24 GENERAL SERVICES
& FY23 ANDRIA WAT

ENGINEERING SERVICES
PAVER UPDATE PROJECT
3/30/24

ENGINEERING SERVICES
PONDEROSA MHP
WATERLINE REPLACEMENT

TAHOE BEACH CLUB
INSPECTION SERVICES
3/30/24

REIMBURSE RECEIPT
KENETREK FOR BOOT
PUCHASED FULL AMOUNT

FUEL REGULAR 106 GAL
DIESEL 100.2 GAL

FUEL REGULAR 107.1 GAL
FUEL REGULAR 80 GAL
FUEL REGULAR 87.1 GAL

Check Amount

692.

689.

739.

739.

739.

4%0.

768.

1,050.

562.

70.

290.

347.

7,002.

487

7,600.

1,930.

5,205.

2,972.

70.

938.

541.

385.
392.

62

12

12

12

12

85

16

00

79

00

25

46

50

.50

00

00

00

50

00

79

94

02
34

Page:

1



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 4/13/2024 Through 5/16/2024

Transaction

Check Number Check Date Payee Description

63843 4/16/2024 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 775-150-0119-103174-5
EASY

63943 4/16/2024 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 775-150-0120-092376-5
DCLTSA

63943 4/16/2024 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 775-586-8471-100215-5
97 BEACH CLUB

63943 4/16/2024 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 775-588-1065-022924-5
PINERIDGE

63943 4/16/2024 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 775-588-2401-060791-5
PALISADES

63943 4/16/2024 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 775-588-2410-111700-5
EASY

63943 4/16/2024 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 775-588-2419-091195-5
PALISADES

63943 4/16/2024 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 775-588-2705-042476-5
TERRACE VIEW

63943 4/16/2024 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 775-588-4482-052798-5
MARKET

63943 4/16/2024 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 775-588-7495-061182-5
MARKET

63943 4/16/2024 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 775-588-8311-081082-5
GALAXY

63944 4/16/2024 ZACHRY GQOD TRUCK #0609 (VACTOR)
REPATR RADIATOR,
RESEAL WATER PUMP, REP

63944 4/16/2024 ZACHRY GOOD TRUCK #0610 DUMP
TRUCK REPAIR/REPLACE
GLOW PLUGS & CONTROLER

63945 4/16/2024 KINGSBURY AUTOMOTIVE & SUPPLY TRUCK #1020 LUBE, OIL
& FILTER

63946 4/16/2024 KONICA MINOLTA PREMIER FINANCE ACCT. 3691777720
COPIER LEASE 4/30/24

63947 4/16/2024 LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC. INDUSTRIAL ACETYLENE
IND HIGH PRESSURE

63948 4/16/2024 MINDEN LAWYERS, LILC LEGAL FEES HYDRANT
CLEARING, 206 ORION,
BOARD MEETING 3/24

635849 4/16/2024 PAMELA JOANNE NANCE 298 KINGSBURY GRADE 4
CLEANINGS

63850 4/16/2024 SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES COLIFORMS~P/A &
COLIFORM-QT

639850 4/16/2024 5GS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES COLIFORMS-P/A &
COLIFORMS-QT

63950 4/16/2024 SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES COLIFORMS-QT

63950 4/16/2024 SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES HAAS5, HALOACETIC
ACIDS & TTHM, TOTAL
TRIHALOMETHANES

63951 4/16/2024 SOUTH TAHOE REFUSE ACCT. 10534153 169
TERRACE VIEW DR

63851 4/16/2024 SOUTH TAHOE REFUSE ACCT. 12276400 801
KINGSBURY GRADE

63951 4/16/2024 SOUTH TAHOE REFUSE ACCT. 13186400 160

Date: 5/16/24 01:57:47 EM

PINERIDGE/298
KINGSBURY COMM BIN

Check Amount

50.

50

172.

173.

41.

100.

97.

325.

52.

43.

58.

7,609.

2,451

921

370.

170.

2,501

800.

162

27.
.00

1,030

74.

74

445

76

.76

62

23

52

09

27

10

68

11

14

50

.20

.23

00

08

.50

00

.00

.00

00

20

.20

.20

Page: 2



Check Number

63952

63952

63952

63952

63952

63952

63952

63952

63952

63953

63953

63954

63955

63955

63956

63957

63958

63958

63858

63960

63961

63962

Check Date

4/16/2024
4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024
4/16/2024
4/16/2024
4/16/2024
4/16/2024
4/16/2024

4/16/2024
4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/16/2024

4/19/2024
4/19/2024
4/19/2024

4/19/2024

Date: 5/16/24 01:57:47 PM

Payee

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST COF CLAIMS
From 4/13/2024 Through 5/16/2024

SOUTHWEST

SOUTHWEST

SOUTHWEST

SOUTHWEST

SOUTHWEST

SOUTHWEST

SOUTHWEST

SOUTHWEST

SOUTHWEST

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT PROG

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFIT PROG

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

GAS

CORPORATION

CORPORATION

CORPORATICN

CORPORATION

CORPORATION

CORPORATION

CORPORATION

CORPORATICN

CORPORATION

SUMMIT PLUMBING LLC

TAHOE BASIN CONTAINER

TAHOE BASIN CONTAINER

THUNDERBIRD COMMUNICATIONS INC

VERIZON WIRELESS

WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY CO

WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY CO

DAVID MCKINSEY

CARRIE BAUWENS

JUDITH BREWER

MITCHELL

S. DION

Transaction
Description

910000322763 3
BUCHANAN RD PUMP

910000561117 698
KINGSBURY GRADE

910000561180 5
KIMBERLY BROOKE LN
PUMP

910000561274 4 ANDRIA
DR (384) PUMP

910000561387 2
TERRACE VIEW DR PUMP

910000799713 160 PINE
RIDGE DR I

8910000799716 295
KINGSBURY CIR

910000799717 298
KINGSBURY CIR UP

910000799718 298
KINGSBURY CIR DOWN

ACCT. 360 MEDICAL
INSURANCE BREWER,
HAVARD, MOSS

ACCT. 841 MEDICAL INS
MCK2aY, ROHR, RUNTZEL,
SCHRAUBEN, VOSBU

DUG OUT ALL STATIONS
FROM BLIZZARD

ACCT. 54345000 801
KINGSBURY GRADE BEAR
PROOF RENTAL 3/31/24

ACCT. 54591700 160
PINERIDGE/298
KINGSBURY BEAR PROOF
RENTAL

REMOTE. PROGRAMMING
STATION 4 RTU
IMPROVEMENT TO GIVE
MORE RE

MONTHLY GPS & MEI
SNOW EQUIPMENT 3/31/24

IN FRONT OF 448
QUAKING ASPEN 27X18
FRAME PIT 18 NON LOCK
LI

KIMBERLY BROOK FIRE
HYDRANT EXTENSION
MUEL A320-016

Employee: MCKINS; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024

Employee: BAUWEN; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024
Employee: BREWER; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024

Employee: DION; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024

Check Amount

152.35

224.86

275.71

241.91

789.18

664.53

180.31

35.59

486.24

4,104.61

1,496.32

1,035.00

30.00

65.00

296.00

227.40

474.12

1,043.62

1,185.14

1,641.90

1,975.29

2,975.10

Page:

3



Check Number

63963
63964
63965
63966
63967
63968
63969
63970
63971
63972
63973

63974

63975

63975

63976

63976

633876

63977
63977

63977
63978

63978

63979

63980

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 4/13/2024 Through 5/16/2024

Transaction
Check Date Payee Description
4/19/2024 COREY E. DOAN Employee: DOAN; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024
4/19/2024 MICHAEL E. EDWARDS, JR Employee: EDWARD; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024
4/19/2024 JOSEPH ESENARRO Employee: ESENAR; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024
4/19/2024 DON HAVARD Employee: HAVARD; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024
4/19/2024 BRANDY JOHNS Employee: JOHNS; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024
4/19/2024 SHANE T. MORTENSEN Employee: MORTEN; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024
4/19/2024 BYRAN D. MOSS Employee: MOSS; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024
4/19/2024 JOSEPH S. PETERSON Employee: PETER; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024
4/19/2024 LEIGH C. STANTON Employee: STANTO; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024
4/19/2024 JEFF T. WOOD Employee: WOOD; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024
4/19/2024 DON HAVARD Employee: HAVARD; Pay
Date: 4/19/2024
4/30/2024 AFLAC ACCT. FAS35 LIFE
INSURANCE EDWARDS,
JOHNS, MOSS, LEIGH
4/30/2024 CASHMAN EQUIPMENT ANNUATL GENERATOR
SERVICE AGREEMENT
2/1/24 TO 7/31/24
4/30/2024 CASHMAN EQUIPMENT ANNUAL GENERATCR
SERVICE AGREEMENT
8/1/23 TO 1/31/24
4/30/2024 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS ACCT.
8411100140031448 169
TERRACE VIEW DR
4/30/2024 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS ACCT.
8411100140028488 97
BEACH CLUB DR
4/30/2024 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS ACCT.
8411100140191184 160
PINE RIDGE DR
4/30/2024 FLYERS ENERGY LLC FUEL DIESEL 35 GAL
REGULAR 65 GAL
4/30/2024 FLYERS ENERGY LLC FUEL DIESEL 51 GAL
REGULAR 117 GAL
4/30/2024 FLYERS ENERGY LLC FUEL REGULAR 55 GAL
4/30/2024 HOMESERVE USA LOSS & LINE INSURANCE
2/29/24
4/30/2024 HOMESERVE USA LOSS & LINE INSURANCE
3/31/24
4/30/2024 STATIONARY ENGINEERS LOCAL 39 LOCAL 39 EMPLOYEES
HEALTH/LIFE PREMIUMS
6/1/24
4/30/2024 BETH LUCE REFUND ACCT. 1014

Date: 5/16/24 01:57:47 PM

OVERPARID/CLOSED
ESCROW 4/12/24

Check Amount

1,072.

2,269

3,388

1,107

1,842

3,518.

1,626.

1,072.

1,338

1,445.

758.

419.

6,557.

6,557

154.

164.

134.

491.

700.

287
1,458

1,458

17,360.

175

65

.94

.72

.01

.34

80

05

65

.78

39

34

49

50

.50

98

98

97

10

70

.76
.00

.00

00

.44

Page:

4



Check Number Check Date

63981 4/30/2024
63982 4/30/2024
63983 4/30/2024
63939 voX0O

63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024
63985 4/30/2024

Date: 5/16/24 01:57:47 PM

Payee

MANCHESTER ENTERPRISES

SHANE MORTENSEN

NAPA AUTO PARTS

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 4/13/2024 Through 5/16/2024

Transaction
Description

Check Amount

SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES
3/24 TO 3/31/24

TRAVEL 4/18 & 4/16/24
BACKFLOW
RECERTIFICATION
CARSON CITY

STATION #2 FURNACE

NV éEn oy V-BELT

NV

NV

NV

NV

NV

NV

NV

NV

NV

NV

NV

NV

NV

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

ENERGY

1000044046907329692
399 EUGENE DR

1000044086803274204
GALAXY LN PUMP

1000044086803294236
160 PINERIDGE DR UNIT
LIGHTS

1000044086803297452
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
APT ADOWN

1000044086803297460
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
APT B-UP

1000044086803297478
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
APT CDOWN

1000044086803297486
298 KINGSBURY GRADE
APT DDOWN

1000044086803301502
504 LAUREL LN UNIT
PMPSTA

1000044086803301940
EASY ST UNIT N/T134

1000044086803305073
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
PMPPLS

1000044086803320205
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
PMPHS2

1000044086803320221
314 ANDRIA WAY UNIT
BARDBU

1000044086803320239
698 KINGSBURY GRADE
UNIT NTFRS

1000044086803320247
176 BUCHANAN RD UNIT
PMPHS3

1000044086804563795
255 KINGSBURY GRADE
UNIT D

1000044086804621577
801 KINGSBURY GRADE
UNIT B

1000044086807006297
97 BEACH CLUB DR

38,827.

105.

15.

600.

114

14

7.

171.

78

102.

33.

36.

43.

3,172

1,139.

1,707.

2,004.

330.

37.

6,000.

16

86

49

57

.35

.23

10

86

.79

41

11

59

25

.29

44

65

06

02

02

38

Page:

5



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 4/13/2024 Through 5/16/2024

Transaction )

Check Number Check Date Payee Description Check Amount

63985 4/30/2024 NV ENERGY 1000044086808604306 245.92
160 PINERIDGE DR

63985 4/30/2024 NV ENERGY 1000044087003270836 33.11
801 KINGSBURY GRADE

63985 4/30/2024 NV ENERGY 1000044771003320176 1,374.19
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
DISPMP

63986 4/30/2024 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES EMPLOYEE AND 23,564.80
EMPLOYERS PERS
CONTRIBUTION 4/24

63287 4/30/2024 KATHYRN RICHARDSON REFUND ACCOQUNT 1377 64,22
OVERPAID/CLOSED
ESCROW 4/19/24

63988 4/30/2024 ROUND HILIL GENERAL IMPR DIST COMMERCIAL 192.25
CONSUMPTION DORLA CT.
3/18 TO 4/18/24

63989 4/30/2024 SHRED-IT OFFICE SHRED 37.00

63990 5/3/2024 DAVID MCKINSEY Employee: MCKINS; Pay 1,297.63
Date: 5/3/2024

63991 5/3/2024 CARRIE BAUWENS Employee: BAUWEN; Pay 1,641.90
Date: 5/3/2024

63992 5/3/2024 JUDITH BREWER Employee: BREWER; Pay 1,975.29
Date: 5/3/2024

63993 5/3/2024 MITCHELL S. DION Employee: DION; Pay 2,975.10
Date: 5/3/2024

63994 5/3/2024 COREY E. DOAN Employee: DOAN; Pay 1,217.28
Date: 5/3/2024

63995 5/3/2024 MICHAEL E. EDWARDS, JR Employee: EDWARD; Pay 2,772.90
Date: 5/3/2024

63996 5/3/2024 JOSEPH ESENARRO Employee: ESENAR; Pay 3,815.05
Date: 5/3/2024

63397 5/3/2024 BRANDY JOHNS Employee: JOHNS; Pay 1,842.34
Date: 5/3/2024

63998 5/3/2024 SHANE T. MORTENSEN Employee: MORTEN; Pay 2,412.57
Date: 5/3/2024

63999 5/3/2024 BYRAN D. MOSS Employee: MOSS; Pay 1,626.05
Date: 5/3/2024

64000 5/3/2024 JOSEPH S. PETERSON Employee: PETER; Pay 1,217.28
Date: 5/3/2024

64001 5/3/2024 LEIGH C. STANTON Employee: STANTO; Pay 1,338.78
Date: 5/3/2024

64002 5/3/2024 JEFF T. WOOD Employee: WOOD; Pay 1,724.36
Date: 5/3/2024

64003 5/10/2024 AMY C. CARAMAZZA MEETING & MINTES 4/9 337.50
& 4/16/24 12.5 HRS

64004 5/10/2024 GROQUP WEST CONSTRUCTION, INC 160 PINERIDGE BLDG 89,668.50
IMPROVEMENT PAY APP
10 4/30/24

64005 5/10/2024 BEATRIZ HERNANDEZ 160 PINERIDGE 4 2,000.00
CLEANING 1 DEEP
CLEANING

64006 5/10/2024 IUOE STATIONARY ENGINEERS LO39 EMPLOYEE UNION DUES 556.39
5/2024

64007 5/10/2024 KINGSBURY HARDWARE SINGLE KEY CUT & 8.76

Date: 5/16/24 01:57:47 PM

CLEAR TAPE

Page:

6



Check Number Check Date

64008

64009

64010

64011

64011

64011

64012

64012

64012

64013
64014
64014
64014

64014
64015

64016
L9017- GHOLT

64019

64019

64019

64019

64019

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

5/10/2024
5/10/2024
5/10/2024
5/10/2024

5/10/2024
5/10/2024

5/10/2024

voId

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

Date: 5/16/24 01:57:47 PM

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 4/13/2024 Through 5/16/2024

Payee

SHANE MORTENSEN

PAMELA JOANNE NANCE

NEXTIVA, INC.

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

NV ENERGY

PACIFIC STATES COMMUNICATIONS

PACIFIC STATES COMMUNICATIONS

PACIFIC STATES COMMUNICATIONS

SAFEGUARD BUSINESS SYSTEMS

SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES
$GS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES
$GS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES

SGS SILVER STATE LABORATORIES
SPRINGBROOK SOFTWARE COMPANY

TAHOE SUPPLY COMPANY, LLC

WS Boak Nisa Lewords

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

Transaction
Description

REIMBURSE B&L
BACKLFOW RECEIPT
BACKFLOW
RECERTIFICATION

289 KINGSBURY GRADE
JANITORIAL

ACCT. 3680856
DISTRICT OFFICE PHONE
LINES 5/25/24

1000044086803221187
180 LAKE PKWY UNIT
PUMP

1000044086803270814
801 KINGSBURY GRADE
UNIT LIGHTS

1000044086803304290
KINGSBURY GRADE UNIT
Fl

160 PRINERIDGE
SPECTRUM INTERNET MOVE

MONTHLY NETWORK
MONITORING SERVICES
4/2024

MONTHLY NETWORKING
MONITORING SERVCIES
5/2024

US BANK DEPOSIT
TICKETS

BROMATE
COLIFORM-QT

COLIFORMS-P/A &
COLIFORMS-QT

COLIFORMS-QT

COMPUTER EXP/ACH & CC
CHARGES APRIL 2024

298 KINGSBURY GRADE
ROLL TOWELS & TOILET
TISSUEW

160 PINERIDGE
1/2INX3/8INX1/4IN ,
1/2INX3/8IN COMP
DUAL, STA

160 PINERIDGE
BATTERIES FOR
BOARDROOM DIVICE

160 PINERIDGE BLDG
CONTAINER RENTAL 4/9
- 5/6/24

160 PINERIDGE CHARTER
INVOICE 0191184021624
INSTALL & MONTHL

160 PINERIDGE CHARTER
INVOICE 0191184031624

Check Amount

285.00

800.00

208.52

880.54

42.59

17.38

1,567.50

1,222.50
1,222.50
151.83
175.00

27.00
270.00

270.00
1,562.00

161.69

87.17

90.87

135.33

223.98

138.93

Page:

7



Check Number Check Date

64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024
64019 5/10/2024

Date: 5/16/24 01:57:47 PM

Payee

Us

Us

us

Us

Us

Us

Us

us

Us

Us

us

us

Us

Us

us
Us

us

Us

us

Us

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS
From 4/13/2024 Through 5/16/2024

Transaction
Description

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK
BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

BANK

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

Visa
VIsSa

VISA

VISA

VISA

VISA

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS
REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

REWARDS

160 PINERIDGE MANUAL
PAPER TOWEL
DISPENSER, PAPER ROLL
TOWES

160 PINERIDGE WHRL
DISHWASHER

AWWA ANNUAL DUES
7/1/24 TO 6/30/25

BOARD MEETING
NAPKINS, DIXIE CUPS,
SANDWICHES

BOARD MEETING
SANDWICHES & STATION
1 RUBBING ALCOHOL

CONTAINER RENTAL
CLEAN OUT 160
PINERIDGE BAY

EMPLOYEE LUNCH SODA &
COOKIES

ESPSON 502 MULTI
COLOR INK BOTTLES

EXXON EMERALD BAY
CHARGE DISPUTE 3/5/24

JB BOARD MEETNG
SANDWICHES

MD 160 PINERIDGE
MIRROR, PIPE
FITTINGS, MICROWAVE,
ICE CONNE

MD 160 PINERIDGE
THERMOS FOR BAY
HEATERS

MD 160 PINERIDGE
TOILET SEAT COVERS,
BL TRASH BAGS, LIQUID
S

MD COFFEE
BREWER/HOTWATER
DISPENSOR

MD COFFEE POTS

MD GSR DEPOSIT ON
ROOM POOL PACT BOARD
MEETING 4/17/24

MD LOCKERS & BENCH
MENS & WOMENS
DRESSING ROOM ULINE

MD RETURNED
DISHWASHER NON ADA

PAPER TOWELS &
DISINFECTANT CLEANER
STATION 2

STATION 1 MORTON SALT
40 LBS. QTY 63

Check Amount

816.

483.

501.

61.

59.

574.

20.

41

(9.

66.

299.

54.

282.

793.

33.
89.

8,627.

(483.

53.

476.

71

12

00

85

40

00

97

.72

98)

00

15

24

97

46

55
94

84

12)

53

71

Page: 8



Check Number

64019

64019

64019

64019

Report Total

Check Date

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Check/Voucher Register - LIST OF CLAIMS

From 4/13/2024 Through 5/16/2024

Payee

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

5/10/2024

Date: 5/16/24 01:57:47 FM

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

US BANK VISA REWARDS

Transaction
Description

TOILET PLUNGER/BRUSH
COMBO, TOILETWAND

STORAGE CADDY

TRANSENE STATION 1
ACETATE BUFFER
SOLUTION, PH4.00

TRUCK #1827 CREDIT
BATTERY CORE DEPOSIT

TRUCK 1827 BATTERY

LAPA LEGEND

Check Amount

69.52

663.67

(18.00)

195.40

348,643.74

Page:

9






MISSING OR VOIDED CHECKS

DATE CHECKS PAYEE MISSING/VOIDED
04/30/24 63984 NV ENERGY VOIDED
05/10/24 64017 US BANK VISA REWARDS VOIDED

05/10/24 64018 US BANK VISA REWARDS VOIDED






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM # 08

TITLE: REVIEW AND RECEIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FEBRUARY/MARCH
2024

For Discussion and Possible Action. Review of Financial Statements
MEETING DATE: 21 May 2024
PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Review and file financial statements of February/March 2024
(not an action item)

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: District financial statements are prepared for each month of
the year. Although monthly statements will lag a month or two due to pending processing time,
these provide the Trustees with insights into the financial well-being of the agency.

INCLUDED:

¢ Financial Statements February/March 2024

Fund impacted by above action:

() All Funds (X) Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending

1






133HS FONV1IVE ANV
NOILISOd HSVYO
¥C0¢ AdvNnda3d



B KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT GENERAL 45%
o B CASH POSITION WATER 32%
- SEWER 20%
February-24 SNOW 3%
S BEGINNING i ENDING
FUND BALANCE | TRANSFERS ADJUST. | RECEIPTS CHECKS BALANCE
GENERAL FUND $ 7,841,200.77 | (9,971.56)| $(409.96)| $ 280,960.96 | $ (64,270.64)| $ 8,047,509.57
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $  204,420.30 | $ 997156 |$ - |9 - |$ - |$ 214,391.86
| GENERAL INVESTMENT $ 46742540 |5 - $ - $ 1991 [ $ - $ 467,445.31
B GF TOTAL $ 8,729,346.74
|WATER FUND $ 5,749,062.23 | $ (206,570.47)| $ 479.38 | $ 505,744.92 $ (344,386.37)| $ 5,704,329.69
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | §  339,939.60|$  11,919.31 $ - % - |8 - |$ 351,858.91
(WATER INVESTMENT $ 51793517 % - |8 - |8 22.06 | $ - |$ 517,957.23
KGID/TRPA REST RICTED (STATION 4 BMPS) $ 45430.00 | $ - |8 - |$ - |8 - |$ 4543000
DIST DEBT RESERVE $ 69,363.99 | $ 69,676.76 | $ - $ - $ - $  139,040.75
TREAT DEBT RESERVE $ 10530414 |$ 105778.98 | § - 18 = $ - $ 211,083.12
CAP IMPROV. RESERVE $ (542,523.19) $ 1919542 | $§ - $ - $ - $ (523,327.77)
WF TOTAL . $ 6,446,371.93
SEWER FUND ) $ 3,863,950.78 (301.68)|$ 8498 |$ 178,588.71 % (108,133.01)| $ 3,934,189.78 |
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | § 681180 % 30168 | $ - $ - $ - $ 7,113.48 |
SEWER INVESTMENT $ 26530748 | % - $ 11.30 | $ - | $ 265,318.78
e SF TOTAL $ 4,206,622.04
SNOW REV. FUND $ 87,461.17 | § (4,500.85)| $(154.40)| § 67,04559 | § (31,210.20){ $  118,641.31
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) $ 104707.26 | $ 450085 (%8 - |$ - |8 - |$ 109,208.11
SNOW INVESTMENT $ 1265144 |8 - |18 - | 053 |$ - |$  12,651.97
SNOW TOTAL $  240,501.39
298 KINGSBURY GRADE RENTAL $ 21712172 | $ - $ - $ 1595332 | % (2623.57)| $  230,451.47
B 80 RENTAL TOTAL $ 23045147
GRAND TOTALS $ 19,355,570.06 | $ (000)|$ - $ 1,048,347.30 | $ (550,623.79)| $ 19,853,293.57
CHECKING |
- US BANK $ 45,436.68 | § = $ ] $ 955979.85 | $ (550,248.79)| S  451,167.74
US BANK MMA $ 112.25 | $ - $ - $ - $ 112.25
3 -
MORTON CAPITAL MMA $ 13,207.24 B $ 53.80 [ $ == S 13,261.04
_ 5.2% ZIONS BANCORPORATION $  250,000.00 | $ - $ - $ - |S 250,000.00 |
5.15% CROSS RIVER BK $  250,000.00 | $ - $ - $ - |$ 250,000.00
5.45% BMO BANK NATIONAL $ 250,000.00 | $ - $  250,000.00
4.80% BLUE RIDGE BANK $ 250,000.00 | $ - S 250,000.00
4.70% FLAGSTAR BANK $ 250,000.00 | $ - - $  250,000.00
LOCAL GOVT POOLED $ 18,046,813.89 | $ - $ 9193865 (% - $ 18,138,752.54
GRAND TOTALS $ 19,355,570.06 | $ - $ - $ 1,047,972.30 | $ {550,248.79)| $ 19,853,293.57

PagE 1



1 :abey

Wd 80:0T:5 ¥20Z/0E/t :33eq

11vdd

10141S1A INJFWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNGSONDI

06°LZP'6 00'0 00'€09 £0700Z'Z 0S'TLY'9 LETST S3ASN3dX3 AIVdIud [e1oL
06'/2v'6 000 00°€09 £0°002°C 0STZ%9 [€TST S3ASNIdX3 AIVdTdd
S3aSN3dX3 aIvd3ud
11'8TT'SHT 00'0 00°0 £5°9£8 8S'TSEYYT 000 AYOLNIANI TVIHILYMW |30
11822 ST 000 000 £5°9/8 8STSEbYT 000 AYOLNIANI WIHILYIW
AYOLNIANI TVINILVIN
60'S85'0S8 SV LLLY €S TIV'TY 18'PZ6°CET £5'000°86% 0" 09t'TLT J19VAIIOTY SLNNOJDV [230L
000 000 000 000 000 000 SIDONVAQY JIA0TdINA
09°1EH'y 000 85°'12¢C 8b'62€'T 96'859'C 85'122 J1aVAIIDIY S11S0d3d
SE'00€'8 00°0 000 000 00°0 SE00€'8 AIZD3Y SIXVL ALdAdOUd “ONITAA
26'691°26 00°0 96'S69'T T4°185'8T S8'69E°ZE 0£77T5'6€ *1SIANI - FTEVAIIOTY 1STAILNI
96'pEL 000 00°0 000 96'bEL 000 "0D 1M AOOMIDAI-U/NY
W'STH'beT 000 0070 000 00°0 W STHFCT F1AVAIIOTY “1SIA XYL ILVLS
[AWAT4: 3! 00°0 000 00°0 TAWZIN: A 000 F1AVAIZDTY INVID
000 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 00'0 SINIWNYIACD WIHLO WO¥L ana
8T'LLL'Y 8T'2LLY 0070 00°0 000 00°0 I1GVAIIOTY INTY
S5'800°/9% 000 66405°0 Z6'ETO'ETT #9'68K'STE 0070 31aVAIZDIY SINNODDV
J1EVAIIOTY SINNOJIY
S9'S/E'T66'T 00'0 80°098'TZT 9T TEY'TLT YT9tZ'sT6 LT'LE8'189 SINIWISIANI [230L
S9°G/E'T66'T 000 80°098'TCT 9zTEr LT y19vC ST16 [T££87189 SINIWLISIANI
SINIWLSIANI
94°7S8'896°LT LY TSP0ET TETH9’STT 8£°68T'VE6'E 64'STT'TES’S IT'vrb'vST's HSVD [e10L
b HEF'90T 000 000 000 000 PSHEF 90T ALNNOD SY19N0A A9 dT3H HSYD
00°0 000 000 000 JAYISTY INTWIAOUWI TVLIdYD
T'€80'TTZ 000 00°0 00°0 ZT'E80'TTZ 0070 IDIANSS 1930 INAWLIVIAL
S/°0b0’6ET 0070 000 00°0 SZ°0b0'6€ET 00°0 IDIAY3S 1830 NOLLNGIYLSIA
78 TTT'SE0'8T b TSH0ET 1€ TH9'81T 8/°681'bE6'E 69°6T£+0L'S L5°605'£b0'8 SNVE NI HSVD
00°002 00°0 000 000 000 00002 GNVH NO HSYD
00°00€ 00°0 000 000 00°0 00°00€ HSYD ALL3d
HSYD
S1ISSY LNIWHND
$13SSY
ANNIATY
lej0L MM —.__.M_MM,N__M_A‘MMH 1VIDAdS dNNd ¥IM3S | aNNd ¥3LVM | ANNA TVY3INTD
IVAOWIY MONS
¥202/62/C Jo SY
133HS IONVIVE




7 :abeq

Id 80:01:S £20¢/0€/t 310

06°9TL'SYL'T9 $9°'8ZT'SET $ |26'975'€8T $ |SL'€80'PS0’9 $ [68°€86'99T'Lb$ |69°£68'800'6 $ $13SSV jej01
6L LV6'IEL'TY 00°0 000 PE OV TTLT st Zsv'ozo‘or  |00°0 S13SSY d3xXId [0l
6L V6 TELTE 000 000 E09L TTL T SH'£8¥'020°0F 000 (13N) INTFWAINDI B LNVId ALNIJONUd [er01
vLZTE0EST 000 000 0562y 14 ¥C'E88'8ST T 00°0 $S3490Ud NI NOLLDMILSNOD
000 000 000 dINd3a B SIDIHIA ¥dIA "WNIIV
64°09%'9/S 00'0 00°0 8T'EIT'S 1§°'£E'895 000 AINAWAIND3 B STTOIHIA
000 000 000 000 ALTTIOV4 ANOZO "d4d3d WNJJY
9Z'£21'508 00'0 00°0 000 92'/21'508 0070 S135SV ¥3IH10
00'0 000 00°0 FANLONYLSYHANI "dd3IA "WNIIV
£5'998'£8b'0¢ 00'0 00'0 9€'bTE 98, T2°TPS' 10462 000 FANLONYLSVIANI
00'0 00'0 00°0 ANVTd ALTILLN "¥d3Q "WNIJV
TL0TT'v29' LT 000 00'0 LE'8V9'95T'9 SE'TOV /91T 00°0 3DIAY3S NI LNV ALTIELN
000 000 00°0 INTWAINDA “¥d3A "WNIDV
8£°600'0T6'Y 000 00'0 £4'189'£8¢C 19°£2€'229'y 00°0 ANIWAIND3
000 000 00°0 *dINOI ID1440 “UdIA "WNIDV
8+'8L6'TC1 000 000 65'+80'0F 68°€68'18 000 ANIFWAINOI D140
(13N) INIWdINO3 B LNY1d ALY3dOUd
S13SSV aaxid
11°69£9T0°1C S9°8ZT'SET T6°9TS'€8T TV ET9'TPEY o6t 'obT L 69°€68'800'6 $13SSY LNIHUND 2101
06'662'1S 00'0 00°0 000 06'66C°1S 000 (13N) S1S00 FTUNSSI ANOYG SANUVHD AFuU343aA [e30L
¥9'66£7867) 000 000 000 $9°66£786C. 000 S1502 ANSSI ANOE 40 *LYOWY
¥5'669'6¥€ 00'0 000 000 #5°669°6HE 000 150D 3NnssI anog
(13N) S1S0D UNSSI ANOSY SIDNUVHD da¥yI43a
I dNN3IAIA
[eiol MMMM_MMMM_Q%N WIDAdS aNNd ¥3Mm3s | ANNd ¥3LYM | ANNd TVYINTD
TVAOKWIY MONS
¥2¢0Z/6¢C/C Jo sy
133HS IONV1VvE

14Vdd

10141S1Ad LNJWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNGSONI




¢ abed

Wd 80:01:5 £20Z/0€/b ‘=1Bq

16'868'691 000 000 00°0 16°868'691 00°0 SANOd NO INNODJSIA
69°S59'cZE 000 00°0 000 69'559'€€ 000 "OHD ONIANNATY 40 NOLLYZLLIOWY
000 000 00°0 00°0 S3IDUVHD ONIANNITYH +66T
11dvAVYd SANOE
S3TLTIIAVIT WYal DNO1
85°920'LYL'T £0°862°6 8599781 T1'8P6'862 SE'S96'TST'T 9T"8PS’€0T SILITIIAVIT INTHUND [eI0L
87°8€9700E 00°9LT°Z L6'VZT'L €£'99T'88 86°0£0'86T 000 S11S0d3A 318VANNITY [e0L
8768718 000 [6VETL £€8'695'TC 8b'H6F TS 000 $334 ¥3SN AIvdIdd
00°6+£'61C 00°9£1'L 000 05'965'99 0S°9/5'SkT 00°0 511S0d3a I1avaNN4 T
S11S0d3a F1dvannday
YETTT’Z08 00'0 0£'500'0S 1T T9T'90T S9'9TL'v8S 81'82Z'19 $318VAVd QILVITY TIOUAVd I230L
000 000 000 000 000 000 19VAYd DV Y
000 00°0 000 00°0 000 000 319vAVd FONVINSNI TWOIdaw
00'0 00°0 000 (6£TL9'F) 000 I1dYAYd SIIS
9€'0ZT'bL9 00°0 1T Lob o £9°5£9'/8 L¥'8L1'S6¥ 50°655'05 319VAVd 9340
000 00°0 000 000 00°0 00°0 I19vAvd 53NA NOINN
TLTLTE 00°0 £+'560'C 01°899'v 6£°096'TC 06'266'C MIIS/IVA SAXVL A3NUDIV
ST'9%6'66 000 99°79b'L 8b°/S8'ET 826v6'0L £2°949'L AVd MDIS/NOLLYOVA @aNy¥dov
000 000 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 I1avAvd Sd3d
000 000 00°0 000 000 000 s|qeAed dwo) pa.iaeg
000 000 000 00°0 000 00°0 T1aVAVd VdI HLOW/d3S
000 000 00°0 00°0 000 000 I19VAVd SIXVL TIOUAVd
S319VAVd G3LVIIY TI0UAVd
96'9LZ'v9 £0'CTTT 1E9€0'92T 88'0Z9'v0T TLLLT'69E 86°6TE'TY 319VAVd SLNNODJDV ej0L
95°€C 000 000 000 95'€T 000 319VAVd 3NT
000 000 000 000 318VAVd NOLLDILOYd SSO1
000 TTTEY' 3SNIdSNS - I1aVAVd SINNOJOY
PE'SHT'6V9 L0TTT'T $6°557°92T 99°886'Z0T 90'6££SLE 19°6£5TH 30wl - I19VAVd SLNNOJDV
J19VAVd SLNNOJDY
SITLITIAVIT LNTHRIND
s3rLIavIl
INNIATY
je30L nnq._..umw_,m__m_ﬁmw VID3dS aNNd ¥3M3S | aNNd ¥ALVM | aNnd TvaanNao
TVAOWIY MONS

14vd

10141514 INJWIA0OHdWI TVHINTO AHNESONDI

vcozc/6c/c o sy
133HS JONVIVE




p :abed

Wd 80:0T:S +Z02/0E/Y @1ed

14vdd

LO141S1Ad LNFJWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI

TTLPH0ST 000 00°0 000 TP 05T 000 LNYD ¥d3 304N0S INIOd NON 6T€
9E'€1£'92S 000 00°0 000 000 9E'€14'92S NOLLNGTYLSIA XYL 3LVIS
90°'786'0¢h 000 000 00'0 000 90°286'0€t dN-DIVIW WIHOTYAQY
9£ 158"y 000 000 00°0 000 9€' 158 XV.L ALY3dO¥d TYNOSH3d
STTIE VS 000 000 000 000 ST TTE bHS SIXV.L WRAOTVAQY
STUNLIANIX UIAO INNIATY SSFDXI
6L'T9L'6LS'T 00'0 00'0 +6°200'888 S8'6SL'169 0070 $13SSV @axXId TYUINID NI LINIWISIANI €301
6£°79L°6/5'T 000 000 #6'200'888 §8'65/'T69 000 135SV @3xXI4 "N3D NI LNIWLSIANI
S13SSY @3XId TvYINID NI LNIWLSIANI
1Z'p9S°90€’S 000 000 YV b60'shb'T T1°88828Z' 89'185'SLS Q3AYISTUNN - IONVIVE ANNA Je30L
1Z'H95'90€°S 000 000 608 T 17°888°¢8CC 89°T85°S/S Q3AY3STUNN - IDNVIVE ANN4
a3IAY3STANN - IDNVIVE ANNS
98°785'096'ZP Y6bZ8'L8T TL9E6'TTT 8L°S0T'¥19°T 95°859'8Pb'ZE  |98'950°£SS'L SONINYYI AINIV1IY [e30L
98'785'096'Ch b6 428 '/8T 7L986'TCT 8/°S0T'HH9'C 95°859'8bb'CE 98'950°/SS"/ SONINYYI AaNIVLITY
SONINYVYI dINIViI™
Ob'SLE'TSE'T 000 000 8T°Z0S‘9€S ZTEL8'STS 00'0 IV1IdVYD aILNATHINGD [e30L
0F'SLETSET 000 000 81°20579€S 7TEL8’S18 000 WLIdYD QILNAGR3INOD
1YLIdVD Q3LNGI¥LNOD
ALINO3 ANN4d
Y ELS'TIE'ET £0"86Z°6 $ |85°99Z’cST $ |zt'8t6'86Z $ |T9ZTS'LTL'TT$ |9T'SYPS'EOT $ SATITTIAVIT [e30l
97 L¥8'S9S’TT 000 00'0 000 9Z'L¥8'S9S'IT 000 SATLTIAVIT W33L DNOT [ej0l
9T’ L¥8'S9S'TT 00°0 000 000 9T’ [V8'S9S'TT  |00°0 316VAVd SANOA Ie10L
TTEEEYT 000 000 000 TTEEEPT 000 I19YAVd LSTUILNI S# NVOT RS
95°668'142'E 000 00°0 000 99'668'1/L'E 000 J19VAVd S# NVO1 S
07°£26'7C 000 00°0 00°0 07'£26'TT 00°0 t# Sl0eAed 15949]UT UROT JYS
£4°€82'S52°S 000 00°0 00°0 £b'€8/S52°S 000 b# slqeded ueo 4ys
88'052'S 000 000 00°0 88'05/'S 000 £# 9|geARd 1S249)U] UROT 1S
LEOTL'0TT'T 000 000 000 LE0TL0TT'T 000 £# vlqeAed U0 4US
76°058'S 00°0 000 0070 76'058°E 000 ajgeAed 159J9)u] UROT YIS
89'165'08/ 00°0 00°0 000 89°'165'08/ 000 7# s|qeAed ueoq S
000 00°0 00°0 000 ANNODSIA ANOS NOLLYZLLYOWY
INNIATY
230l MM ___.MMM,N__M_QMA 1vID3dS aNNd ¥3m3as | ANNd Y3LVM | NN TVYINTD
TYAOWIY MONS
¥202/62/C 40 SY
133HS AONVYIVE




g :afieqd

Wd 80:0T:S $20Z/0¢/t 21eq

(8z'8es'cs) 000 (T$'9€9°0) (6+'878ST) (£6'9€9'1€) (1+'9£9°D) ONLLNNOJDV
15P+8'C 000 00'0 o' ¥8e HEET'T 89°9CF FSNIdX3 FIONYMOTIV ¥vD
(99'64+'2) 000 (0'6£5) (85°9£%) (96°8¢8) (60°SS4) S3SNAdX3 TI0FAVd HIHLO
86'0629 00°0 (¥59¢9'T) (86°099) SZ'TCT'8 ST'99% 3ASNIdX3 IAVAT aNAIOV
(9£'688°9€) 000 (og'c12'0) (09°s62't) (89'€TT'LD) (229940 3ISN3dX3 9340
(£8'895°¢) 000 (8z'982) (£1'86) (v6°295'7) (H+'919) SIWHOAHINN
(8+°006'€) 000 (1£°669) (€z'1£8) (1£°0£S'T) (£9°66£'T) SIIS - S1133N39 3TA0TdIWT
(01°682'65T) 000 (9v"909°€T) (¥6'296'50) (99°869°201) (F0°125"2T) SY¥3d - S1143IN39 FIA0TdIWA
(€ 10€'66T) 000 (06°€12'61) (8T Trr'0g) (8T'819'vCT) (16'92£'v0) SNI ‘@3 - SLI33INIE 3IA0TdINT
(€9'€82'01T) 00'0 (60°£68) (8£°799'T) (I8 74%)] (L6°6+8'T) DIGIW/WIIH - SLI4ANAA 3IA0TdWI
(9£°64+'2TT) 00'0 (st 298'9T) (b6'1EL'EE) (z6'6/6'vY) (b £98'9T) ID1440 - TI0UAVd
(££'652'692) 000 (80'81/’€T) 00'0 (¥6'559'£22) (1€°98€'80) FONYNILNIVI - TI0¥AVd
(50°£99'€52) 00'0 (60795'92) (£8782'09) (b6'1LT'8CT) (61°050°8€) YADOYNVI - TI0UAVd
TT°156'62 16'ST OV H0'T 19'%22'C £8'795'SC 7£°€50°T INNIATY ¥IHLO
6/°€£6'99 6£'€£6'99 000 000 000 000 JWOINI TVINTY
O’ 1C6'T 000 00'0 00'0 o' 126'T 000 FONVANSNI INIT INTIAYNIS
81°1€L'6 00'0 000 000 81'1€L'6 000 IONVANSNI $SO1 ANITAAIS
88'222'1 000 000 000 88°7CC'T 000 INNIATY NIWAY INITAYIS
00°000°S 000 000 00'052 00°0Sp 00'0 334 MIIA3Y NY1d
Tv'£9€'9 000 0S'€9% SLSEE'T 91'895p 00'0 JNNIATY 334 YIASNVIL
98'49b'769 00°0 ££'92T'TT 69°618'cH1 81'+0/'65C 9T'v18'44T SINIWISIANI NO 1SI4LNI
00°008'901 000 00'0 00°00%'S 00°00+'10T 000 $334 NOLLDANNOD
S0'05¢ 000 000 000 S0°0S¢ 00'0 5334 HD3IHD NANLTY
(IR 74: 44 000 000 00'0 (74 W4 000 SADYYHD ADIAYAS
£5°8€2°59 00°0 $1°85£'9 85'866'8T 19'188'£E 00'0 5334 ¥3ISN NO SALLIVNId
98'8/6'6TT 00'0 00°0 £€'666'TC £5°€86'/6 000 NOLLAIWNSNOD TVIDHAWWOD
¥'862'29 000 000 00°0 vT'854'79 000 NOLLDALOUd FUIH WIDUIWWOD
16'26£'CTE 00'0 00°8Z8'9¢€ 09°520'82 TE'6£52bC 000 IVIDHIWIWOD - $334 ¥3sn
78°£59'95 000 000 00'0 78°£59'95 000 NOLLD3LOYd JHI4 TVILNIAISTY
96'€16°6€ 000 000 000 96°€T6'6€ 000 NOLLAWNSNOD € YILL TVILNIAISTY
S0°€02°6E 000 000 000 S0'€07'6€ 00°0 NOLLAIWNSNOD Z ¥3LL WLLNIAISTY
75°166'62¢ 000 000 0£'89+'8T 78'7TS'T1C 000 NOLLJWNSNOD T ¥3LL TYLLNIQISIY
LT'Z86'T16'S 000 96°97H'66€ 61°0S2'09T°T 20°S08'T1SE'T 00'0 TYLLNIQISTY - S334 ¥3AsSn
ANNIATY
lelol MMMMMMMM_“MM IVID3dS adNNd ¥33M3S | ANNd YILVM | ANND TVHINTD
TYAOWIY MONS
¥20C/6T/T J0 SY
133HS IONVYIVE

14vdd

10141S1A INFWIAOUAWI TVHINIO AHNASONDI




g9 :abed

Wd 80:01:S +Z0Z/0E/Y :81eq

(o0'zes'm) 000 (sv'912) (58°26¢€) (s152s) (s5/61) SYVYNIWIS ANV ONINIVYL
(95°597°01) 000 (ev'¥0T1) (8/°¢v6) (z6'c11'6) (ev$0T) INOHdI13L
(0z'z80'D) 000 00'0 00'0 (0z°780'0) 000 S700L TIVIWS/S3ATIddNS dOHS
(21°€v9'T) (05°28) (01'v22) (81°5/%) (92°199) (85°661) S39YVHD NOLLYOIENd
(61°650'8) 00°0 (££800'T) (80°008'2) (v£°052'p) 000 I9V1S0d
(£2'H€0'9) 000 (98°¢9) (b1°€8¢€) (T¥'154°) (98°'s€T1) 5334 ANV S1IWd3d
(#6'9£7'S) (P6'vbT) (15°00€) (¥'625'T) (£0'5¥6'7) (86'912) S3AITddNS 321440
(0z'tec’er) 000 (95°991°7) (9£°666'21) (z4°866'S0) (95'991°2) LINIY SILLNIDVH ANV 301440
(00°15221) (00°000'2) (55°/82) (0g'szL'D) (09°05¥°€) (55°£80) IVIIOLINVE 321440
(5890+'6) (60°T15"%) (91°c€8'T) (2e'1v8) (+8°266'T) (b¥£20) SUNLIANIAX3 SNOINVTIZISIW
00°206'T 00°0 000 000 00°206'T 000 $334 N3N
(00°00%'S) 00'0 00'0 00'0 (00°00%'S) 000 INIVIA B ¥IVdaY ¥313W
(z6'08¢'£1) 000 00'0 00'0 (z6'08€"LT) 000 S1d¥d AYOLNIANI
(98'5£2) 00'0 000 00°0 (98'5€0) 000 INTFWAINOT AL34VS
(S €LT'EET) (15°£65'€) (0£'Zer'y) (85°02592) (S8°0TEv6) (oczev'y) SANOG ANV JONVHNSNI
(ov's62'0T) 00'0 00'0 (£8°180°S) (g5°€12'9) 000 IASNIdXI ALRINDIS
(€+'65€'9) 00'0 (99's22's) 00'0 000 (£2g€1'n) SNOIS B S100L ‘sarddns a13rd
(88°/18'8) (00°0€T) (£1°€59) (1895+'2) (£T8er’s) (€9°6£T) TVLINTY LINFWCIND3
(18'02£'28) (00°sZT) (sed) (19'55£'89) (+8'€69°CT) (TT'+H5) SAIVdIY/ LNIVIN/SAT NS "dIND3
(95°569°1T) 000 (67°96S) (65°'s¥T'E) (6€°252'0) (67°965) SNOLL4TYDSaNs B sand
(99'999°T) 00'0 000 (99999°1) 000 000 MOTd ¥IMIS - NOLLYAYISNOD
(09°992'8t) 000 (bt'£219°€) (££'%09'1T) (¥6's#8'1€) (s8'861'1) 3SN3dX3 ¥ALNdIWOD
(c8'209'6) (cv'86¥'7) (e Lee) (ze'€96'1) ($9°'98b"p) (zztes) "LNIVIW ONV SdIvd3¥ ONIQTINg
(€8'921'19) 000 (62°959°L) (s8°'€€2'10) (69'9€7°2€) 00°0 S3DUVHD JNvE
(S£°120'99€) 00'0 000 (6£°120'59¢€) 000 00°0 SINIWSSIASSY V¥S110a
(S£°6£2'PbS) 000 000 (S£°6€T'¥HS) 000 0070 0 2 W V.Lvd-0ud vsL10d
(10'1€6'1€) 00'0 (10°1€6'1€) 000 000 00°0 ONIANVYS - TYAOWIY MONS
(c17eL1'16T) 000 (€1°¢L1'16T) 00°0 000 00°0 ONIMOTd - TYAOWIY MONS
(00°808’c55) 000 000 000 000 (00°808'€SS) SAMddNS 8 IONYNIINIVIN QvOd
(09825'T) 00°0 000 00°0 000 (09°825'T) JOVNIVIA ANY NOISO43
(TS°Sh¥'12T) 00°0 (zcozee) (96°8€2'T) (00'889°€) (€5'+81°9TT) ONIAIAYNS B ONIYIINIONT
(00°050'T) 00°0 (00°50T) (05°841) (00°0£9) (05°9€T) SNOLLVILOS3AN d04V1 - 1voI1
(6£ THT¥T) 000 (6"96+'T) (28°591') (56°/88'91) (€1°169'T) LRE]
ANN3IAIY
|ejoL MM—.__.M_MMMM_WQW TVIOadS aNNd 4Im3as ANNd Y31VM | ANNd TVYINTD
TVAOWIY MONS
¥€02/6¢/¢C J0 SY
133HS 3ONVIvVE

14V dd

1O141S1d LNJWIA0OHdIWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




[ abeq

IWd 80:0T:S ¥20Z/0€/Y *23ea

14vid

L1O141S1d INJWIAN0OHdWI TVHINTO AHNESONDI

90'EP8'SEY'6Y $ |8S'0E6'STT $ |vE'09Z'00T $ |ee'SET’'ssL’s  $ |BTILV'6VY'PES |ES'SPE'S06'S $ ALINO3 ANNA lej0L
(0T zHb’'e9L'T) +9'S0T'8E (8£'9£9'22) (66°695°192) (ot'200°064'T) |66'90LTLL STUNLIANIdXI YIAO INNIAIY SSIOX3 [EI0L
(Zb'0¥0'TY6) 000 000 (65°809°0F) (86'TEF 106) 000 3SNAdX3 NOLLYIDIddaa
(26'556'9) 00'0 00'0 000 (26°556'9) 000 SANOE 40 NOLLYZLLYOWY
(LE0SY Lve'y) 000 (6£°6£2'91T) (89'192°cH8) (68°£00'601°€) (T0°T0V'84T) AVILNO TWAIdVD
(65'506'S6T) 000 00'0 000 (65°506'S61) 000 3SNAX3 1STIALNI
(82745'80) 000 000 00'0 (8/7225'82) 000 dX3 WILSAS INIWLYIYL ¥ALVM
(89°082'11) 000 00°0 000 (89'082'11T) 000 ISNIdXT WALSAS LSIQ dILYM
(£9°9/8'91) 00°0 000 000 (£99£8'9T) 00'0 ANTFWOYNYIN AFHS YIMIAS HILYM
(00°€ep'0T) 000 0070 000 (00°£€'0T) 000 ONITdWYS/ONTHOLINOW dILYM
(1+°026'92) 000 (6£°€20'E) 00'0 (1+'686'ST) (19°206'2) Wgd dX3 HIA
(6£££9'v5) 000 (52'925°€) 000 (¢£°522'90) (z6'+88'%) ddNS/110/1and dxa ITDIHIA
(60"+0z'902) (65°%59°01) (90°8T1€) (85°7€9'ST) (0808Z'6/1) (90°81€) JIY1D313 8 SVO - SN
{(00'000°0¢) 000 (00°005'T) (00'000'6) (00"000°8T) (00°008'T) S33d 33USNAUL
(61°£81°7) 000 (88'912) (8£°004) (b£°€81°T) (6/'18) TAAVIL
ANNIAIY
jejol MMMM_MM,M__M_“M%N VIDAdS AdNNd ¥aM3s | ANNd Y3LYM | ANNd TVHINED
TVAOWIY MONS
Y20c/62C/C o sy
133HS FIONV1VE



g :abed

Wd 80:01:S #20Z/0E/b :23eq

TL'8GG'9GT9T $ - $ - $ 09'99v'ce $ TI'E60°€CT'OT $ SANNS TYLNIWNY3IA09 TVIOL
IEET6°9LLYT & S $ o $ - $ 0959r€ce $ Ivioians
00Z6262ST $ E $ - $ it $ ooccec'ezs't $ INIWINOI ® ST12IHIA
ZLLSO0‘TE $ " $ g $ = $ Zr/Z50°TS $ INIWdINDI 391440
§Z'28p‘92L $ - $ 5 $ = ¢ czzgv'ozr ¢ anv1
rr°09c96vcr $ - $ = $ % $ vro9co6rcr $ JUNLONYLSYHANI
96'692°£9 $ : $ z $ = $ 96°69L49 $ INIWdIND3
v8°166°62S $ = $ = $ 09°S95°€E $ peosyeer $ SSIHI0Yd NI NOILONYLSNOD
TVINIWNHIN0D
00'S8Z9ET'T % - $ - $ - $ 00'S8Z'9€T‘T $ TVLIOLANS
00'58/9€1'T 5 - 5§ - s - § 00°98£'9€TT $ FANLONYLSYYANI
10V ANOE JOHVL
SSOPT'Z60'T $ - $ - $ SOVIS'TT ¢ O0S<TEE'S80'T $ 1TvlioLdNS
6£'v£2'979 $ - $ - $ - $  6EVLL'979 $ INIWAIND3 B SIDIHIA
7£'08b'SL $ - $ - $ - $ zeosb'ss $ INVId ALTILLN
L9ETH'6 $ - $ - $ - $ /9€er'6 $ INAWCINGA 321440
6T'+C6'€6 $ - $ - $ - $ 6116’6 $ anv
¥8'028'6t $ - $ - $ - $ v8'078'6P $ TANLMAYLSVUANI
8/'278S' v $ - ¢ - ¢ - $ 8LT85'k $ AINIWAIND3
9" 0bT 261 $ - $ - $ SOvIS'TI $ 1€9CL'S8T $ SSFUO0Yd NI NOLLONILSNOD
dNNd MONS
LT°IT9'TL6'ET $ - $ - $ SS'IS9'TZ  $ T9'SZ6'006'CT $ 1viOl4NS
19°£15'206 3 - 3 - $ - $ 19715206 $ INIWAINDI 8 STDIHIA
180808 $ - $ - $ - $ 1840808 $ INVId ALTILLN
87°09¢€'€TT’T $ - $ - $ - $ 8r09g'cTT'T $ 9019 AJNGSONI 867
SH'EE9'TT ¢ - $ . $ . $ SPEL9'TC $ 1IN3WLINDI 301440
90'855°CE $ - $ - $ : $ 90'855'CE $ anwv
0E'pSL'60E€' T $ - $ - $ - $ 0CPSL'60ETT  § FUNLONYLSYHANI
8T1'/81'€e $ - $ - $ - ¢ 81°/8T'¢T $ 1NIWAINO3
8K'118'82¢ ¢ - $ - $ SS'T159'TC $ £665T'£0€ $ SSAYO0Ud NI NOLLINYLSNOD
yeoc/6cie suonedlIsse|dsy sjesodsia suomppy y2C0C/TE/T aNNd TYA3INTO
aauejeg $531 asuejeg
Suipu3y Suluuideg

SINNOJIV 13SSY

‘WUaLWale)S 199YS dauR)Rg U0 SPUNJ |RIUBWIBA0S
oy} u1 payiodal Jou a1e ‘310jaidY) ‘PUE SBIIN0SAI 1eIoURUIY JOU 91B SIIINIIL 1RIUBLILIBACS Ul PAsSh S1aSSe pased] 9sn-0)-1ysu pue syasse jenden,

¥20¢c/6¢/C Jo SY
133HS JONVIVY
LO1d1SIA INJWIAOHAIWI TVHIANIO AHNISONDI




6 /:abed

Wd 80:01:5 ¥#20¢/0E/Y :31eq

61°CT6'LE0°0T $ - $ - $ €8'/¢8‘t€ ¢ 99'V60'900°0T $ SANNd TVINTIWNY3A09 TV1O0L
G£°700°002°IT § - (3F e $ - $ 80°sZEve ¢ Tviol8ns
988089t ¢ = $ = $ SZTTLL9 $ T9ZL0LI9I'T § INTWAINOT B STTIIHAA
98'8Z0°89T°T § o $ - $ 6961 $ IS'ISEST $ INYId ALITILN
0Z'T£9°GT $ = $ 2 $ szL6vT $ vzzeosrr § ‘9079 AYNGSONIN 862
28°LL262T $ z $ - $ 90855C $ orerszozr ¢ IN3IWdINDI 301440
§9°20£°6T $ z $ c $ 6495 $ 98'SyZ'6I $ anNv1
LSYILPYI'8 § c $ - $ I£8902Z § 96'669729°8 $ JHNIONYLSYHAINI
66'228°09 $ z $ - $ gL€s $ 92¥LL09 $ ININdINDI
: ( B c g - $ - $ - $ $STYO0Yd NI NOILONYISNOD
TYINIWNHYIA0D
TT'8LT 49 $ - $ - $ - $ TU'SLTvv9 $ 1violdns
11'81%b9 $ - $ - 3 - S IT8/Ivb9 $ FUNIONYLSVIANI
10V aNOg 30HVL
76'08.'88t [3 - $ - $ bLYYSY $ S8T9ETP8y ¢ 1vioLANS
0t'9/4'26€ $ - $ - $ 109/1'% $  6£00£'88€ $ INIWAIND3I B STIOIHIA
A4 $ - $ - $ €0bST $ 07865, $ INVId ALTILLN
£0'8kTL ¢ - $ : $ 1809 $ zr/80'2 $ 1INIWAIND3 321440
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ anvi
LT'0£8'6€ $ - $ - $ 89'T€T $ 65'869°6€ $ FANLONYLSVIANI
604 Y $ - $ - $ 1€ $ 8LISL'Th $ ANIWAINDA
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ SS3UO0Ud NI NOLLOMILSNOD
dNNd MONS
9P'E96't06'8 - $ - $ 60'€8T'LC $ L£'089'Z/8'8 $ 1vioLaANS
9v209'64L $ - $ - $ $T'S6S'C $ TTL00'€LL $ 1NIWAIND3 B8 STTOIHIA
168118 $ - $ - $ 99991 $ 1£€S6L $ AINVId ALTILLN
6b621'TeT $ - $ : $ sT/eb'T $ T'TE9'61T $ 979 AYNASOND 862
§9'20¢’61 $ - $ - $ 6799 $ 98'sy6el $ INJWDINDI 301440
66'652'096L $ . $ - $ ££9¢6'1C $ 97'618'856'L ¢ TANLONYLSYIANI
06'£50°6T $ - $ - $ wig $ sp'zeo'sl $ INIWAINO3
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ SSTUDOUd NI NOLLONYLSNOD
veoz/e6T/T Suonesyisse|I3y siesodsiqg suoppyY ¥20C/1E/T aNNnd Tv¥INID
aosuejeg sS97 ajuejeq
9
Buipu3 Buiuuizag SINNODIY "¥dIad WNIIY
¥20¢2/6¢/C J0 SY
J33HS JONVIvVd

14vdd

10141S1d INFWIAOHAWI TYHINIO AdNGSONDI







A3dNIgGINOD ANN4 11V

S3dNLIAN3dX3
ANV 3NN3dA3Y 40 LINJWALVIS

¥¢0¢ AdvNnd4a3id






Wd 90:€€F $Z0T/0E/ Y 918

AITAY) ) 00'9v22£6'6 15°896°855 00'12£°€98°9 15°688°12b°L £978V'€0Z 00'999°09. £9°081°796 SANNIATY lej0L
(80ze) ) 00E9'8IEL 02°980°1L 00°8v}668Y 0LVET0I6Y 82'602°€S 00'71E268 82625089 $334 ¥3sn ieloL
(l9ze) 00’18 ovze 00668} or'izel 8¢ 00'8E7 91'5ET JONVHNSNI 3NITINITANIS

00'L08'S} 00'€ES'0L 8L'IELE 00°LLE') TAA IDONVHNSNI SSOT INITAYIS
00'8€8'} 00922 88722 'k 00°€S1 WPS) ANNIAZY NINGY INITAY3S

%16 LL \¥'296 00°00t'S 18922 00'665°€ W' 29€6'9 00061 00'0SY 00'009 3NNIATY 334 YI4SNVHL

%G T 00°008'G. 00°000'LE 00'002°28 00'009'%2 00°008'904 00'009'28 00'009 00'002'€S $334 NOILOANNOD

00'08Y 00028 50'052 000 00'0F 0007 §334 MOIHO NuNLIY
00°00v'¥L 00'009'6 2928t 00'002°} 00°051 SIOUYHO FOINEIS
00'926'7L £S5 VSTl 00'¥86'6% £€6'862'€9 16106°) 00'842'9 166%2'L $334 ¥3SN NO SAILTYNId
00'200'€Z} 98EL6'1T 00'590'86 98'9/6'61} 6L L¥9' 00'262'9 6266521 NOLLAANSNOD TVIDNIWNOD
00176 A 00'6.29 ¥2'861'79 00'¥8'2 8L vhe'L NOILO3LOYd Fl4 WIOHIWNOD
0018699 TX7A 00'671'80€ V6ZBETIE 00'802°6€ €L761'68 TYIDYINNOD - $334 H¥3SN
00'222'€8 Z807L'L 00°215'SG 78/59'95 98'85¢ 00'0¥6'9 98'867'L NOILOFLO¥d F4i4 TVILNIQISTY
00'006'69 00'Z}'eS 96°€16'6¢ 00260 I8¢ NOILJWNSNOD € ¥3IL TYIINIAISTY
00'000'89 00'08Z'8Y 60'02'6€ 00'0v0° 1’958 NOILJWNSNOOD Z ¥3IL TYLINIaIS T
00'00v'19€ 00'829'€62 75166622 00'726'72 1596812 NOILAWNSNOD 1+ ¥3IL TYILNIAISTY
00'612'906'S 00'L98'L16'€ 11Z86'LL6'E G8'650' 007Z42'L6¥ 58’1286y TVILNIAISTYH - $334 ¥3SN
$334 ¥3sn

%E0'TL 89'186'56¢ 00SLT6VS 88'€28'815 00°EL6'S9E 88'96.'v¥6 79'899'56 00'589'SY YOESE LYL SNOANYTIIOSIN 18301

%E0'L) 116167 009692 [rgoeLl 00'€86°Z1 i1156'62 GOV98Y 0022 SO JNNIATY Y3HLO

00'€SE'E0L 00'106'89 62°€€6'99 99'19} 00°€19'8 991218 INOONI TYINTY

%0000} 00006 000082 00'005'€ 00°005' 00'000'S 0058 00'sZ} 00'000' 334 MIIATY NYd

%0899 98'820'0/2 00'98€°9Ly 98'G/8'YIY 00'685'242 98'¥9v'269 85'908'2Y 00°00L'%€ 8590528 SINIWLSIANI NO 1STHILNI

%000 ANL ) 000 rANA LAV 00'0 TV LPY'05) G2096'Ly 000 L0961y LNVH9 Yda 30UN0S INIOd NON 61€

SNOINYTIIOSIN
00'898'790'2 00°00Z°965°) £6'258°906°} LL'909'FS 00°99°211 LUELTTIL S3XVL 18101
[ - 00'020'06. 980 00€LZ92S 9IRS 0o 00’6686 116§8'G9 NOILNSLSIA XYL 3LVLS
00'625'196 00'789'LLY 90'Z86'0¢ £0'996'%2 00'19¥'Z2 10220y AN IV NFHOTYAQY
%Lz '8l 9g L 00'F0L'Y 9¢'LyL 0070y 9¢'198'y 00°000° 8evl X¥.L ALYIdOYd TYNOSYAd
00591602 00'669'665 SLLIEPYS 60'920' 1€ 00°'29€'8Z B0'E6€'65 S3XYLWIHOWAQY
saxvl
SANNIATY
Bujulewsy
Jebpng Mu__m_._m> 1oBpng (oL 3Jueuep 10Bpng AL |enjoy aouepe Jobpng 1ebpng fenjoy
€104 Jua013g jabpng jejol ucmvsm alA Jea) Jusung poLIdd Juaung poudd juaiind poudd Juaing

| 47

$202/62/2 Usnoiyl ¥2oe/L/C wold
sain)puadxg pue SanUaAaY JO JUSWARIS

10141S1A INFJWIAOUdWI TVHINIO AHNISONDA




7 o8eg

Wd 90:€€:¥ $T0T/0t/v oA

%000 000 000 99999t 000 000 000 MOTd J3M3S - NOILYAYISNOD
% v9 0r'cie’ L8 00'6€9'G€L 0t'986'vy 00'€52'€6 09'99Z'ay 66'828'G 00'122°0} 10'268'y ASN3dX3 ¥31NdNOD
%1588 L1°966'€L 00'666'€8 219719 00'622'6S €8'209'6 008519 00996'9 00808 "LNIVIA NV SHIvd3d ONId1INg
%0¢ e FAN YIRS 0096826 21°008 00°226'+9 €8'921°19 00°CrLL 6.cov's S3IOUVHI XNV
%0000} 00966 00'96.'6Y 00'96.'6 009626 000 000 000 000 S143aava
%06't7¢ GT'L00'1el 00'620'98¥ 00'225'¥9¢ 6/'120'69¢ 000 00'000' SINIWSSISSY vSL10a
%00'6C STEII8L 00'€59°62L 6z'0 00°0¥C ¥¥S GL'6ET'YS 000 000 000 0¥ WYLYH-0dd ¥SL12a
%0000} 00009'9 00'009'9 00°00t'¥ 00°00¥'% 000 000 000 000 ONIDI 3Q/ILNY TYAONIH MONS
%Y LG 66'890'ch 0000062 66'895'6) 0000545 L0°1€6°1E 74966 00°000°G1 92'€00'vL ONIANYS - TYAOW3H MONS
%ELC'GL 19'978'€8S 00'000'G22 /8'928'C0V 00°000'665 eLeLl'LBl G299 00°000°69) G/'€8Z'e0L ONIMOTd - TYAON3Y MONS
00°000°0¢€ 00'005'2} 00'808'¢5S 000 000 000 S3ITddNS ¥ IONYNILNIVIN Qv¥0d
%68'¢6 oFlLr'ee 00°000°6e oF'LLY'GL 00000'LL 09°825°) 000 000 000 JOYNIVHA ANV NOISOH3
0000589 00ZE8'SYy LSevr'Lel 00°28% 00°299'G 00°08L'S ONIAIAYNS B ONIYIINIONT
%000 000 000 00°050°} 000 00°050°L SNOILYILOD3N ¥08Y1 - Tvo31
%0285 19'862'¢e 00'000'8S L9°ger'yL 00799'8¢ 6E° LY 00°€ES'y ¥9¥8€9 VoI
00°000'6y 00°000'G 80'92.TS 000 000 000 ONILNNODOY
S3SNIdXT ONILVYEIAAO
%ELES 26'G08'c9l’} 00'622'202'2 26928°LiY 00'05Z'sat’} 80°€ZY'E0’} 08’1816 00'986'08} 0Z'v084€1 S3SNIAX3 G31V13H T10HAVd [Bj0L
%EE Y 000 ISNIXT IONYMOTIV ¥VD
%9ETY €008l 00'05¢'y YE'8bY'L 00968°¢ 99'6vt'C 08’2y 00'g8 0z 0b SASNIAXI TI0HAYd ¥3HLO
%9622l 86'06.'8C 00'006'¢¢ 86'882'12 00'866'vL 62°929'C 00'%28'} ASNIdX3 IAVIT ANV
%4508 ¥9'786°C5L 00'728'681 79'889'68 00'825'921 9£'688'9¢ €e'11ZL) 00'€28'GL FANNR: Y 3ISNIJX3 9340
%4819 FANYTAY 0009¢'6 LVIBLS 00'09¢'6 £8'896'¢ 000 000 000 SWHO4INN
%¥e0L 76'2ee'8 00'8€TEL 756967 000288 8Y'006'c 00'685'} 11°€89') SIIS - SLI4INIE 33A0TdNT
%E6'9% 06°9.2°1¥1 00990°L0€ 06'916°0F 00904002 01682651 GlL'GeLL 0068062 G8'eGe Ll S¥3d - SLI43IN3g IIA0TdNT
%€0'1S £9'189'202 00°€86'90% £9°2/5°18 00'6/8°08¢ 2£'10€'66) L0°680°9 009Z5°1¢ £6'07b'SC SNI @3N - SLI43NTE 330143
%90t LEV6Y'8 008261 2€'990'C 00°058°cH £9°¢82°01 00°209'} 65'898'} OlQ3W/v3ld - SLI4IN3F IFA0TdN3T
%86'GE ¥2'602°¢9 00°659'G/l vZ'159'7 00'10L'2L1L 9L'6¥vThL 19'202 00°869°%1 6E0EY YL 301440 - TT0HAVd
% LG 297762682 00'Z15'68S 19'6.5'00L 00'6€€°02¢€ €€'652'692 G8'G16'T 002629y Glosg'ey JONVNILNIVIA - TIOHAYd
%EL'0G G6'SPL19C 00'€L8')LS G6'0VS'68 00°802°cYe G0°299'¢5C OF'opi'gl 00'106'2¥ 09v8L'vT HIDOYNYIN - TI0HAVd
S3SNIdX3 3LV138 T10HAVd
SIANLIANIdX3
Bulureway
JoBpng aoueLiep 1oBpng (e101 aduelep o — |lenjoy aoueuep 1abpng 3obpng |enjoy
(€101 018 3o6png [ej01 3obpng @14 JB3A JUAMN) | pouadjualny  poudd usungy  pouad Jussng

¥202/62/Z Ysnolyl +20z/1/Z woid
saJn)ipuadxg pue SaNUaASY JO JUBWIALIS

10141S1d LNIWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNGSONDI




¢ ofed

Nd 907 €€+ ¥T0Z/0¢/P 21Bd

%ELEE £€029°7¢8°L 00°ELI'LES'S €€'E5E'eLT 00'906°126°C 19°755°869°C ST’ 191101 006ZL°€EY GL'195T¢€ S$3SNadX3 ONILYHIO 18j0l
%82'CE £6°910'67Y 00'260°16€"} 00'69¢/¢6 Ly Ov0TY6 0L'/81'C 00Zz6'SLL 0S'VELELL ASNIdX3 NOILYIDIH43d
%EE'EE 80°8.1'c 00'vEY'0L 800 00'956'9 76'656'9 00698 617'698 SANOE 40 NOILVZILIONY
%1809 [AATA% S 4 ) 00016'2L 7T€L0'02 00'909'8¥ 8.°2.6'9C £8°65CY 009209 21ee8') dX3 WALSAS INFWLYIHL HI1VM
%70'C8 ZE'6EC'SS 00025°99 2€'690'eE 00'9FE'v 89°08¢'L} 09'¢L5'y 00°€YS'S 05'696 ASNIdX3 WILSAS L1SIA ¥ILYM

00'005'S} 00'005'G} 199/8'9L 000 000 000 LINIWOVYNYIN QIHS HIMIS/HILYM
%06'6€ 00'926'9 00'65¢"2) 00'6€1°} 00Z.5°) 00°¢Er'0} 00'¢i8 00'9%¥'L 00'v€9 ONITdNYS/ONIYOLINOW HILYM
%68'LS 65'8€0'62 00'656'GS 65'68€0} 00'90€".€ L¥'026'9C 00'799'y 00'799'y 000 A% dX3 HIA
%C0€L 19°02.'¢6 0085¢£'82) 19°2€6'05 00025'68 6€°/€9YE 16°€96'9 00'269'0} eYEEL's ddnSI0MN3aNd dX3 310IH3A
%9Y'CE 1676066 00'662'60¢ 009.9'261 60402'90¢ 00'7¥5°1C 01'709'CZ JRLDFTI B SYD - SALMILN
%EL'EE 00°000°G} 00'000'GY 000 00°000'0¢ 00°000'0€ 000 00'05.'¢ 00°05.°¢ $334 331SNdL
%5968 18'916'8L 00°00L°12 18'088°L1L 00¥90'v1 6L€8LT 9L'yeL'L 00'662'L ¥8've T3AVHL
%0.LG6 00'880'%€ 00°0¢9'se 00'€12'ce Qo'syL'ee 00'Z€5') 00'288'C 00'696'Z 0028 SHVYNINTS ANV ONINIVYL
%89°8E yLr'9 00707291 €68 006511 95°592°01 9,60 00'G6E"} A A INOHdFAL
%8¢0.L 08'L16'Y 00000'2 08'€85'C 00'999't 02'280°C SL'ely 00°€8S 68°201 S700L TIYNS/SATddNS dOHS
%6V’ LL 88'959°'G 000082 889¢Y 000£0'C AR 1] 000 chell SIOUYHI NOILYOI8Nd
%129 18'0v6'9 00'000°G} 18681 oo6veLl 61'650'8 07'289'L 00152 09'€90'C A9V1S0d
%ci 6L €19/8'¢ 00°}16'6 €2°60¢€°) 00°0%€"2 LTE09 oLl 00002 ¥9'68S $334 ANV SLINY3d
%1106 90'vSE'6F 00'165'YS 90'681°LE 00°9Z¥'9¢ ¥6'9€C'S 16'€58°¢ 00119 60°262 $S3ddNS 301440

00'82e'Sy 00'8ze'ey 0z Lec'er 00'9L¥'S oroLy's LIN3Y S3ILTOV4 ANV 301440
%¥6'CY 00'965'6 00°1E'2 00'6¥L'T 00'968'v1 00’1622} 00°€0S 00'€98'l 00'09€'} TVIMOLINYT 301430
%15°CL Gl'188'vZ 00'88Z'v€ GL'es'el 00°098'2C G8'90v'6 06'16L} 00'/68°C 01501t SIYNLIANIIXI SNOANYTIIISIN
%08'098 00°25LT 00052 00CSL'T 00°05¢ 000 000 000 S334 N3
%008 00'009'%Z 00'000'0¢ 00°009'6 00'000°S} 00°00%'S 000 000 000 LNIYIA 8 HIvd3d ¥3.13aN

00°00G'GL 00'005°GL 76'08¢'LL 000 01'166'S S1HYd AHOLNIANI
%968 ¥1'198 00004} ¥1'6£9 00648 98'6¢C 000 000 000 LIN3WINOT AL34VS
%SGL'G 9v'zZeL's 00°90¥1 7L XAV 00986'GE} y9'€/2'ee) 00'65€"} ov'8Ly'L SANOE ANV IONYANSNI
%VE e 09'6.8°2 00'L2L'81L 09¥EY'T 000££2L 0¥'s62°01 79161 000¢L 9€'8¢S ASNIdX3 ALMNO3S
%¥C 6. 16'0/2'vC 00'0£9°0¢ 15°0Y0'%2 00°00¢'0¢ £7'65€°9 0008 00204} SNOIS B ST00L ‘S3AddNS a13id
%168 21'ees's 00°0¥E'Y VLl 00'666'8 88'/18'8 00909 0eCL9 TYLNIH INFWIND3
%S¥'¥9 61'LL6'6Y) 00'869'2€2 61°190°GL 00782'261 1802228 €.'902°¢ 00'%59°81 LTSt SYIVdIY/ INIVINISTNdNS "diND3
%L9°02 ¥ Lv0'E 00'ErLvl yr'29'} 00°12e'cl 95'669'} | 000 00'8€¢ SNOILAIYDSENS B S3Nd

Bupeway 2oUBRMEA daueLiep {enjoy aoueuep 396png 196png [enjoy
126png uam_:_m. [e101 16png (301 uomu__m. alA 196png 1A B9 JuaLINg uo_h.on_ JUSLND  poudd JuaLNg  POLad JuaLn)
[ej0] Juddssg
¥202/6¢/C Usnolyy +2oe/L/c woid
I B%d \I /1 salmyipuadx3 pue SanuaAay JO JudWaeIS
pw. - V QU\J 19141S1d INTWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




 e8eg

Wd 90-£€°¥ +TOT/OL/y 21

08°01Z°20b°L 08'b26'6€29 06'826'791 STUNLIANIIXI HIAO INNIATY $S30X3
%€6° LS 6C°195°216°6 00'668'201'61 62°90%°L29'S 00'8£2'299'1 LL1Ee's8L’s £L'122'66L STUNLIANIdXT Bj0)
%06°09 $0°111°126°0 00°26+'v9E°LL $0°922'296'y 0028650+ 96'GSEEVFY 81°668'vee S3SN3dX3 ¥3IHILO [ejoL
%64°L9 £9'615°018°9 00°000'850't £9'008'€56'Y 00'192°10Z'6 1€08Y' 14Ty 9TV LIE AYILNO TVLIdYD
%80°9¢ Ly 16S0LL 00°26¥'90¢€ l¥'5er's 00°LEEY0T 65'506'G61L LULEY'EE ISNIX3 LSTHUALNI
S3ISNIdXI ¥IHLO
Buureway aaueLRA aguepep [enjoy aouepep Jofipng [enjoy
! B 1 1
_Shw.m””msn_ j0bpng [ej0L 106png jeroL j19Bpng aLA 196png LA Jeap Juainy | pousdjuaung  pousad JusLngy  pouad Jusuny

¥202/62/Z UsnoJyl +20ozg/L/Z wold
sainpuadx3 pue SeNuUaAay JO JuUdWAeIS

LO141SIA INFWIAOHdIWI TVHIANIO AHNASONDI




(GNN4d A9)

S3dNLIANddXd
ANV 3NN3A3YH 40 LINJW31VIS

v¢c0¢ AdvNd4d34






1 :28eg

Wd 8¥:81:¢€ ¥Z0T/0L/y 212

00'000'GE 00'PES'ET €581 1L 00216 £9EY'Y ONIAZAYNS B ONIYIANION
%00°0 000 000 05°9€1 000 05'9€1 SNOILYILOD3N ¥ogv1- o1
%69 LY 18'80C'1 00'006'Z 18062 00Z€6' €1169'L 8L'esl l\¥4 74 7986 oI
000522 000522 W'9E9'T 00'0 000 000 ONILNNODOV
SIASNIAXI ONILYYIALO
%G'ES 91°E90VS1 00'601°982 911809 00°£€5Z61 Y8'SPO'ZEL 00'69Y'€Z 7561092 $3SNIdX3 G31V13H TIOUAVd [E10L
%999 0099 00'99) 000 3SNIdXT AONYMOTIV HYD
00'085 00'99€ 60'552 6666 00'9% 10'9 S3SNIdX3 TIOHAYd ¥3HLO
%ZEELL 52'996' 00'005'€ $T66L'T 00'€EE'T 18'vze 00262 3SN3dX3 AV AINYOOY
%6118 8TELH'TI 00'064'S) 82°6€'2 00'924'01 70°991T 91026 00'992' v8SYe 3SNIdX3 9340
%60'95 9528/ 000Y | 95281 0070V vr9L9 00'0 000 000 SWHO4INN
%EL'6Z 18545 00'526'} 00'zze'} £9'66¢') 00'£€2 96'607 SIS - SLI43N3d 3FA0TINT
%99'¥S 96'6L4'12 00'L¥9'8€ 96'867'8 00'09.2'62 POLES L) 9674 00'02Z'€ Y0'Lh0'C SY3d - SLI4IN3E FFA0 TN
%GY09 60°108'2€ 00'826'29 6019’81 00'800°CY 1692272 147806 00'088'Y €29/ SNI "GN - SLI43N3E 33A0TdING
%9972 £0'TYS 00'Z6£Z 00'566'} 16678’ 00'002 WwzeL 21GINYOIA - SLIJINIE FTA0 TN
%86'GE £5'181'6 00'67£'92 £5'969 00'995'Z} 17 198'9L s 00961 9GoL'T 301440 - TIOHAVd
%V 0G 6974282 00'854'26 696126 00'501'8¢ 1£°G8E'6T 00'€9.'% 080T JONVYNILNIVA - TIOHAVd
%EL0G 18'11'6€ 002242 18 0EVE 00'L8Y'1G 61°060'8¢ 08'12L'7 00'5e4'9 0ZELLE YIOVNYIN - TIOHAVd
S3SNIAX3 03LV1TY TIOUAVd
SIUNLANIAXT
%(81°81) (6v°0£2°96E) 00'957°Z81C ISYELBOL 00'165°929°) 1S'S2LS8L) 80'S6208 00'99¥°721 80122202 SANNIATN [BJ0)L
%91 LE) 85612191 00'885°Z1L 85'927°00Z 00'16€'8L 95198812 IE8Y19T 00'661%6 IETESE SNOANVTTAOSIA [e10L
%EES Zees 000007 798¢ 00299 €€ 00°€8 00'€ 000 INNIATY HIHLO
%6286} 92'922'191 00'885'91) 92'060'002 00'veL L 9T VI8 LLT LE1ET9T 00'9LL'6 L€ 1¥6'SE SINIWLSIANI NO LSTHALNI
SNOINVTTIISIN
00'898'¥90°Z 00°002°865°) £6'/68'906°} LL'909'YS 00'299'Z1) (FXAra 1] S3xXVL 101
000006 9€0 0042528 9€EL292S Vo 00'6£8'G9 [1'6€8'69 NOILNGMLSIA XYL 3LVLS
00'625'195 00'¥89'LLY 90'Z86'0¢% £0'996'¥2 00'L9¥'22 20°220' LY ANV WFHOTYAQY
%128l 9L 00'%0L'Y 9 1yl 00'70L 'y 9g'168'y 00°000°} ) XVL ALYIO¥d TYNOSH3d
00'694'602 00'669'565 SLLIEPYS 60'920'LE 00°29€'82 60°€6€'66 SaXVLWIHOTYAQY
saxvl
SINNIATY
Buueway aoueLep pasinay aoueleA lemoy aoueuep J96png 19bpng [enjoy
_SMMJ””M_OQ ummvzm jejol - umm—u_._m jejo] awm—u:m ari uﬁmu-_m aiA Jea\ juaun) poldd jualng polIdd Jusing poliad Jualing ﬂQh» Qzahn d§mzmm

11V dd

$202/62/¢ Usnoayl yzoec/L/z wold
sain)puadx3 pue SaNUSBASY JO JudWBILIS

10141S1d INJFWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




7 :o%eg

W 8t-81:¢ ¥20T/0E/Y 2%

10141S1d LNJIWIA0HdIWI TYHINIO AYNGSONDI

66°£56'CH0°L 66'218'SEL'L 66'902°22L 80'8£0'€9 0026206 80'SL2'€S) SIUNLIANIX3 ¥IA0 ANNIATY SSI0XT
%G1'95 8Y'889°ZhY’l 00'20£'S5+'2 81°819'020°) 00°£69'6£0°2 76°810°E10°) 00'622°92 009745 SIUNLIANIAX3 =301
%1016 66'85€'008"} 0009786} 66'309£6°1 00°0L1S1LL 10'10¥'8L1 00'7E0S 0794 SISNIAXT ¥IAHLO [ej0L
%1016 66°85€°908'F 00'09. 786} 66'892'9€5"T 00021GH) 10107821 007€0'S 029€ T AY1LNO TYLIdYD
S3ISNIdX3 ¥IAHLO
00'828°¥81 00'%66°1€} 19'125°204 vS'I61'L 00'92Z'8 9'vE0°L SISNIdX3 ONILVHIO leoL
%812 BEEITT 00'lz1 0l 00'8v2'9 192067 00Yr8 00vv8 000 WBY dX3 HIA
%¥9€9 80'155'8 00°'9€¥'El 80'€L0'y 00'856' 26%88'y 59'9p. 0002} Geese ddNSMI0Man4 dx3 I10HIA
%E9'89 16'569 00FH0'} 6.2l 00'9pY 90°81E £9'/ 0018 181 OIMLOTT3 % SYO - SILIILN
%EC'ES 00'062 000522 00'0 00°005° 00°005'} 0028} 05281 $334 331SNYL
%98 96 17894 00'052° 1Z6LL 00'L05') 6218 00'88) 00884 00'0 TaAVHL
%2856 Sr'8es'y 00'92L'Y Gres6' DO'LSH'E 55261 0.'18€ 00'v6¢ 0£T) SHYNIWIS ONY ONINIVYL
%P5 GE 1518 0029} 157 00204 ol 00°€l 60°El aNOHdITAL
%6972 rse 00'592 00°00} 85661 00'0 00'0 000 S$IOUYHI NOILYOITENd
0029 0029 98'Gel 00'0 00'0 000 $334 ANV SLINY3d
%80'€6 208162 00°SEL'e Z0EL8') 00'080' 86912 G8/€T 00192 R $31ddNS 301440
%(€0'0) 00'991'Z 00991 95991 810 00'122 2802 LNT¥ SAILMOY4 ANV 301440
%0829 gsey 00'€LL Sv'822 00'9LS 56267 00'2€ 00'59 0082 VIMOLINYF 301440
%896 96°6€8' 00°L50°2 95'18%'y 00'50Ly vreee 19'865 00'886 6562 SIUNLIANIdXT SNOINVTIZOSIN
%0000} 00°006 00'005 00005 00'008 000 000 00'0 000 INIWAINDI ALIHVS
%G.'GY 0282L°€ 00'LS1'8 0482.'¢ 00'151'8 0sTTY'Y 000 0ge SANOg ONY JONVHENSNI
%00°004 00Zk 00y 00ZY 00Zy 000 00'0 00'0 000 I9NIdX3 ALNNOIS
%05 76 €2'96¢'6L 00'0£9'0Z £2'992'6} 00'00t'0Z LI6EV) 000§ 00'204') SN9IS 3 $T1001 ‘S3NddNS 13l4
%ES'SS i1 00v1E 1669 00'602 £9'6€} 6L'G 00'92 1802 TVINIY INFWdIND3
%1628 68'556'C 00'00'% 68'55+'Z 00'000'¢ R 0058 00'5/€ 000 SUIVAIY LNIVIWISITdANS "dino3
%8511 VAL 00149 00295 62'966 000 02°6¢ SNOILI¥0$ENs 2 S3na
%07°8L 51768y 00'L5S'S 619952 00'59.' 58'861'1 99'%5Z 00'9%b vE'L6) 3SN3dX3 ¥ILNANOD
%1978 82°9.5' 00'%06'} 8L L6 00'69Z'} PV AN 191zl 00851 BE'EE "LNIVIN ONY SHIVd3d ONIaTing
00°000°0€ 00'005'24 00'808'€5S 000 000 000 S3NddNS ? IONYNILNIVW AvON
%69'€6 OV LLY'EE 00'000'6Z 0¥ LLV'S) 000002} 09'825' 000 000 000 IDYNIVHA ANY NOISOH3
bujujeway adsuellep pasinay ERTTLTTTY |enjay asueuep 1abpng 1ebpng lenjoy
_mwouwmu““”_mm uamv__m |ejol = uumu=m jejoL «omt:m ala ummu_._m aLA Jeaj Juaun) pouad jualn) poliad jualing pollad juaung NQF» QZ:--\ dqtmzmm
¥202/62/Z ysnoiyl ¥20g/L/C woid
saln}ipuadx3g pue SaNUAAY JO JUBLLBEIS
= |




¢ 28eq

N 8%'81:¢ pTOT/0E/Y 2ied

%ly Y

182ES'S 00'£06' 1 18795' 00'6€6'L 6L /9 61692 00266 1822L 3103WYDI4 - SLI43NTE ITA0TAWI
%86'GE 8078252 0029202 80'798' 00'Zv8'9¥ 76'6.6'7Y 878 00'558' 9L'ZLLS 301440 - TI0HAVd
%208 90°0.8'622 00°925'L5¥ 90'79¢' L2 00'810'G08 ¥6'659' 22 0r'7L6'6 0022} '8¢ 0971282 JONYNILNIVI - TIOHAYd
%LT L 90'966'v1L1 00'892'€4Z 90'806'CE 00'081'291 v6'12'82) 91°02€'01 002/2'02 ¥8°106'6 YIOVYNYIN - TIOHAVd
S3SNIdX3 AILYTIH TIONAYd
SIUNLIGNIdX3
%(88°%2) 00'625ZV6'Y ZVv0'18e 00'L091EE'E ZV8r9ZILE 1’89811 00°'602°6€ SLLLOLIS SINNIATY (0L
{cg'0c) ) 00'6LECELY 66'€1908 0001161 $6'€81'2L2C §9'118°95 00'162°SLE 69209V §334 ¥3SN 1el0L
_ B 00'158C ovee 00'668"1 ov'izet 8z 00'8€C RTA JONVANSNI INIT INNANIS
00°108'GL 00°€€5°0} 81'LELG 00'Z4E'L At A JONVHNSNI SSOT INIMAYIS
00'8€8°} 00'922'1 88727 ! 00'€S1 LO'VSL 3NNIATY NINQY INITAYIS
%90'6¢ 91'€82'} 00'S82'C 9L'6/£'T 00'681' 918957 008l 00722 00'95% 3NNIATY 334 HIISNVHL
%09'S0E 00'00%'92 00'000'2 00'007'08 00'000'12 00°00¢'LOI 00°002°€S 000 00'002'€S §334 NOILOINNOD
00'08% 00'02¢ $0'062 00'0 00°0% 0007 $334403HO NHNL3Y
0000V} 00'009'6 7Uves'L 00'00Z'} 00051 SIONVHO FOINYTS
00'96Z' 2 18°48'9 00'705'1€ 18'188'2¢ £0'€29 00'8€6'€ £0°'196'Y $334 ¥ISN NO SAILTYNId
%110} £5'966' 00'/86'88 €569 00°064'12 £5'€86'L6 $8'919'9 00029 89876 NOILJWNSNOD TIQHIWNOD
00'£4'v6 Al 0045229 ¥2'85.°29 00'¥8'2 8L 7Y8'L NOILOILO¥d Tl TYIOHIWNOD
00'85'79E LEE8Y'y 00'950'€¥2 LE'6ES' 2T 00'Z8€0¢ €6 6€'0¢ TYIDHINNOD - $334 ¥39N
00'2£2'€8 80Pl 00'215'S6 28'/69'96 98'85¢ 00'076'9 988672 NOILDILOHd 314 TVILNIQISTY
00°006'69 00'%ZH'€S 96'€16'6¢ 00260 I61€ NOILJINNSNOD € ¥3IL TVILNIQISTY
00°000'89 00°082'8Y G0'€0Z'6E 00070 1958 NOILAWNSNOD Z ¥3IL TYILN3AISTY
00000'62€ 00°00€°0€2 287G 1IT 00'0£0'€Z 6585012 NOILAWNSNOO | ¥3IL TYILNIAIS3Y
00'€25'€2S'E Z0'062° 00'5LO'GYEZ 20'508'45€'C 8TENTT 00'£29'€62 82°0/8'S6¢ TVILNIQISTY - $334 ¥3sN
$334 ¥3sn
%6v'601 LUP0Z082 00°092'012 11°€1£'00¢ 00'L60°0VL LLvov'ovy 06°950°49 00°8L¥°LL 0S'viv'8L SNOANVTTIOSIW [BI0L
%(26°0) 00'008'SZ I879¢€s 000022t I8796'SC 965567 000517 965012 3NNIATY HIHLO
%00°082 00°005°€ 00'05Z'} 00°000'F 00052 00°0SL'Y 00'000' 000 00'000°} 334 MIIAZY NYTd
%SL Ly 81 6’9z 00'0L2'€8) 81'£95' /€1 00'LYL'Z2l 8704662 6°6EL'E 00'892'} 62°L0v'82 SINIWLSIANI NO LSTHILNI
%000 ZV oSt 000 AN A1) 000 TV Lrv'0s) 20961y 000 SL096'LY LNVY9O ¥d3 308N0S LNIOd NON 61€
SNOANVTIIISIN
SINNIATY
m:__.__mva_ duelep PasiAgy QdUelLIBA {enjoy dduelep uomv-_m eam—u:m |enjoy
_B“Hmu””m._mn_ 136png |ejo1 -1ebpng jej01 19bpng Q1A 196png QLA Jea) JuaLng poudd JUaLINg  poudd Jualng  poudd Jusun) AONV ANNJ YILVM

r
=

b
¥,

=
(-

v

Li

v202/62Z/Z usnolyl y2oz/L/Z woid
sainypuadx3 pue SsNUaASY JO JUBLISYIRIS

10141S1d INJWIANOYdIWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




b o8eq

Wd 8b-81-¢ YTOT/0E/Y 2®A

%ES'9Y 97'669'¢ 000562 9z 00296 Y2087y E6716 00°886'} L0€20't 39Y1S0d
%582 6S6IEE 00°+LL8 69'9YL 00°002'9 WSS % v 00002 79685 $334 ONV SLINY3d
%9206 £6°716'8 00°068'1€ £621E'8l 0085212 1066 829127 008592 2L18e $31ddNS 301440
0086652 00°866'52 2L'866'52 910 00052 YR6ICE LN S3LLITIOVA ONY 01440
%6229 0r'Ez8's 00%22'8 or'iELT 002849 09°05%' 0028} 00°€LL 00°96¢ TVIMOLINVF 301440
%2008 91°200'8 00°000'01 91 0L9'y 00°899'9 ye'L66'L ee 08y 00°¢€8 89°25¢ STWNLIANIAX3 SNOINVTTIISIN
%08°098 002542 00°052 002842 00°052 000 00°0 000 $334 N3N
%0028 0000972 00°000'0€ 000096 00°000'5} 00°00%'S 000 00°0 00°0 NIV 8 HIVdTd ¥3L3N
000001 000005} Z6'08E'2L 000 0L'166'S S14Yd AOLNIANI
%E825 71T 00005 7149 00°00€ 99°GE2 000 000 00°0 INJWAINO3 AL3SYS
%09'G 51265 00°806'66 shzl 00'88t'76 SEOIEYS 00'SSE'L 0259’} SANOS ONY JONVHNSNI
%0E'SY ULy 00°1E5' 119 00'658'9 ESEIZS L0ty 000¢} £6'98 3ISNIdX3 ALIENO3S
%HS 0¥ €210 009t ELHE 00052'S 1T8EY'S sree 009y ss'6zy TYINZY INFWAIND3
%94, 91°950'} 000827} 000852} PEEBoEl 00085 o0 SUIVAIY INIWWISITddNS ‘dIND3
%0261 19082} 00'8E0'6 l9'9z8 00+80'8 6¢°L52'L 000 0256 SNOILAI¥0S8NS # $3Na
%8969 90°€€€'9G 00'62}'88 Q0°EEE'0E 0062188 pESY8'LE 16835 000052 €946 3SN3dX3 ¥3LNdWOD
%b0'58 96EIS'GE 00°000'0€ 9E'ELS'S) 0000002 v998Y'y 21520 000057 8evLY "LNIVW NV SHIVd3d ONIQTINg
%hIVE 1E180'L) 00'81E'6Y 1E'H9 00'8.8'2€ 69°962'2€ 0004y LVIOY'Y S394YHO NVE
%00°00} 00°€8E'EE 00°€8E°eE 00°€8E'eE 00°€8€°eE 000 000 00°0 000 s183a ava
%6L°€8 002906} 00052'22 00'8Lt'L 0099451 00'889' 05°92¢'} 00968} 05°69¢ ONIAIAUNS 3 ONINIANIONS
%00°0 000 000 000£9 00°0 00°0£9 SNOLLYILO93N ¥O8Y1- 931
%L} S0216'21 00'008'%E S0ZIED 00°002°€2 56'/88'9) 000062 06 WO
00000'22 00°000'22 L6%Y'LE 000 00°0 000 ONLLNNOOOY
S3SN3dX3 ONILVHIO
%9228 98'}ESBHL 00'9Z6'%LE" 98'16V'692 00°988'626 PHY6E'959 LSOy 00°065Z1 1 95'820'2! $3SNIdX3 GILYTIY TIOAVd [E10L
%999 000 ISNIdX3 JONVMOTIV ¥Y0
%8LEL YO'L9ET 00002 Y0196 00°002° 96'€8 000 8091 $3SNIdX TIOHAV HIHLO
%829t eI 00°000€} 62062'9) 00°899' rELLET 00°€80' 3SN3dX3 3AYZT Q3NROOY
%ty 08 EVBY LI 00°809'8€1 2€062'59 0040126 89°EHLL2 61918 00'155'} ) 1Z688°E 3ISN3dX3 830
%h1'€9 90'V6E'y 002969 90'¥6E'y 002969 16°195 000 000 00°0 SWHOAINN
%E9Z8 69187, 002188 69°ELE"Y 00°+06's LE0ES'} 6918 00°50'} 1E'526 SIIS - SLI43N38 3IA0TINI
%86y ¥£06'E8 00°6v9'981 YEVEL'LZ 00'EEYFTL 99'869'201 51°690'g 00°¥55's} 58'88Y°0} $¥3d - SL143N38 JIAOTANE
%08 Ly LTI 00°ZEL 82 2L'S8E 0y 00'¥00'g91 82819'721 9GEVSy 00ZEY'8} 70'888°€} SNI ‘3 - SLI33N38 FTA0TANS
Buuiewiay Q0UBHEA pasiasy saueyep [enjoy aoueuep Jobpng 1ebpng [enjoy
_s“ﬂ““mam wopngieiol  -wbprapol | wbpngas P8 UA  wojueuny | pousqiueuny  pousdiueuny  pouadwewnd (02) aNN4 ¥31vM

R

¥202/62/T Usnolyl ¥20z/1/Z woid
sain)ipuadx3 pue sanuaAsy JO USRS

1O141SId LNFWIAOHdIWI TYHINIO AHNISONIDI




¢ :ofeq

A 8-81-€ vT0T/0E/P 2rea

10141S1a INFWIAOUdWI TVHINIO AHNGSONDI

%(rh'GL) ¥5°65¢'660'S (00'89¢'682'2) ¥ 06 LYE'Y (00'66+°1€19) (9¥'800°06L°1) VHS'eL (00°z90'8e) 12'zsr'se SIYUNLIANIAXT Y3A0 INNIATY $530X3
%10°SS Zr062'62L'9 00°'L16'1€2'7) V096 00°001'€9Y'6 86°969°206°G (v6czery) 00 LLZIEY ¥6'766'SLY STUNLIANIdX3 ieoL
%7109 26'£76'986'Y 00°L£8°162°8 25866 L6¥'E 00°Z15T9L'9 SYEI6P0EE (2v'296'%01) 00°€95°sZL 066082 S3SNAdX3 ¥IHLO [el0)
%.0'19 LLZEC'9.8'Y 000v£'686L Liesl'ebb'e 001818559 68'200'601'C (1€260°201) 00220001 1£611°202 AVILNO TVLIdYD
%80°9¢ L' 165'0LL 00°L6¥'90¢ LrSey's 00°LEE¥0T 65'G06'G61 68'601'Z 00°1¥5'62 LLIEr'ee JSNIdXI LSTHALNI
S3ISNIdX3 ¥3HLO

%16°6¢ #0'5€8'€20°) 00'¥81'695'C PO'ESEEET 00°Z0L'vLL) 96'8VE°1¥5°L $0'761°0Z 00°8L1'e61 96'696'2L1 $3SNIdX3 DNILYYAO leol
%8¢ 20209°sEY 00¥£0'6EE") 00720068 96'LEY' 106 $5°0997 A G'765'801 ISNIdXT NOILYIDIMAIa
%EE°EE 80'8L1'C 00'VEV'0L 800 00°956'9 266669 00698 61698 SANOE 40 NOILYZILHOWY
%18'09 2T LEE' Y 0001622 22€£0°02 009098t 8L7.5'8C £8°€5Z'y 009209 11228’ dX3 WILSAS INIWLYIHL ¥ALYM
%08 2£'6€2'55 0002699 7£'690'¢E 00'9YE by 89°08¢°L} 06°¢/S"y 00°EYS's 05696 ISNIdXT WALSAS LSIA HALYM

00'006'G} 0000561 19°9/8'9L 000 000 000 INIFWOYNYIN QTHS d3IMISAIILYM
%06'6€ 00'926'9 00'65€'Z) 00'6E}°1 002L8'LL 00°€EY'0L 00718 00'9vY'L 00'7£9 ONITdNYS/ONIHOLINOW ¥ILYM
%6195 66'4L1'0C 00°/9%'9¢ 6512 001112 L'686'GL 00°'6€0°€ 00'6£0'C 000 W8y dX3 HIA
%Y9EL 82:092°¢. 00'98v'66 82'860'0F 00'72£'99 715229 LTY0E'S 001628 £1°986'C ddNSI0N3AN4 dX3 310IH3A
%6862 0Z'1Z¥'oL 00'204'652 00%92'891 08'082'6.1 00'668'Z) G8'ces'sl 214103713 % SY9 - SALNILN
%EEEE 000006 0000022 000 00°000'8} 00'000'8) 000 000522 000522 $334 331SNYL
%116 9202224 00 ¥0¥'El 92'26L'L 009268 pLeslt 917801 0011} ¥8've T3AVHL
%¥8'96 XA AL 00'896'2C 6898671 00ZLE'SL §1'62L 07'188'L 00116’ 08Z¢ SHYNINIS ANY ONINIVAL
%GE8E 80°0£9'G 0078l 80ZhL 00958'6 Z6CLL'6 16001 00°2¢T'} £9'LEL'L INOHdA1AL
%62 0L 08°216'y 00'000'2 08'¢86'2 009997 02'280' LS.y 00°€8S 68201 $100L TIVWS/S3ITddNS dOHS
%61 6. v2815°2 0008)'¢ ¥Z815 00°081'} 9199 000 90°L6 $IDUVHD NOILYDITENd

Buiueuwizy aoueMep pasiaay goueMep fenjoy adjuepep j3bpng yobpng lenjoy
_B“Mmun“w._mn_ uamuzm lejol - aomusm |ejoL «amv:ﬂ aila “—amv_..m aLA Jeaj jua.ung poliad jua.ung poliad jualngd poliad yuaund AONV h_ Z Du_ M_m._.<\$
¥202/62/Z ysnoiyl ¥2oc/1L/C wold
WA\ YAN T salnypuadx3 pue $aNUaARY JO JUSLIA)EIS
4V d




9 :08eg

Nd 8+°81:¢ vTOT/0E/F oRd

%1805 Ly 067'E91 00'P6L'12€ LV L126°LS 00'LET9NT £6°€0€'351 (T:T ] 00'8Z+'92 68'6.8'81 $ASNAdX3 Q31V13Y TI0HAYd [BjoL
%L ey 09'15 0027 00ZY 000 3SNIdX3 JONYMOTIV HYD
00002 00'ZE1 85'9.2 56'Y 00°2L S0zl $3ISNIdX3 TIOUAYd ¥IHLO
%8r'e8 Z0'6EE'E 00'000'% 20'€00°2 00'799'2 86'099 26'169 00°€EE JSNIdX3 IAVI1A3INU00Y
%4608 0v'888'61 0078972 009911 00'957°91 09'66.4'Y 66261’} 00°250'2 5’665 ISNIdXT 93d0
%6091 £8'8l 00241 £8'81 00°2L1 1196 000 000 000 SWHOAINA
%4979 1119 00'6v0' 11788 00902 AN 00°221 A SIIS - S1I43N3E IIA0T1dNI
%84Sy 90'942'02 00'6LL'9y 90'128'f 0078208 ¥6'296'G2 75'988 00'8¥8°¢ 8¥'196' SY3d - SLI4IN3E FIA0TAW3
%l Ly 2L196'02 00°0L2'28 24196 00'0L8'6E TAATAVS 15608 00°05¢'y £y v’ SNI "GaW - SLI4ANIE TIA0 TN
%09'SY 29'86¢) 00°950'C 7968 00980'C 8E'799'} E'Pe 00552 99°02Z DIaINYIIA - SLI4INIE 3TA0TANE
%86'GE 90°096'1 0066928 90'¢6€"} 00'821°GE v pEL'eE 98'19 00'16EY AN AN 301440 - TIOMAYd
%EE'PS LIEEeL 00°70L'EEL L1'656'22 00'952'88 £8'78.2'09 29'699°c 00'260'4 869V, HIDVYNVIN - TIOMAVd
$3ISNIdX3 Q3LV13Y TI0UAVd
STUNLIANIdXI
{ 00'889'8.16°L S'86/91 00°096%2€) SYSIE 1OV} £220V'C 00°€05°G9) £2°506°0L1 SANNIATY 1e30L
{65°ce) 00° 28688} 00°ZLY'G9Z°) SIPL6YST) 00'620°35} 68'8YE TS $334 ¥3sn (e10L
0065 GLG8T 00'050°F SIGEET 00’62 00l 00201 JNNIATY 334 HI4SNYHL
000009 00°008°1 00009 00°00t'S 00°009 000 $334 NOILOANNOD
00'09102 86'955'S 00'0k'El 5'866'81 61°249 00'089°} 612682 $334 ¥3SN NO SAILTYNId
00°020'v¢ 00'6/8'92 £6'G66'LZ 002807 YAIN) NOILJHNSNOD TYIDHIANOD
00'L0v'ey 00'592'82 09'520'8Z 00'PES'E 02'€06' TYIOHANNOD - S334 ¥3sN
00'00v'2€ 00'82¢8°6Z 0L'89t'8) 00'7Y6's 86°2.2 NOILJINNSNOD | ¥3IL VILNIAISTY
00°162°€5.') 00'658'891'1 61°062°094°} 00°801°9¢L 84°G66'PY1 TWILNIAISIY - §334 ¥3SN
$334 ¥asn
%EL'YY 0£'€06°28 00'118'g8 0¢'102'28 00°€YL'65 ocpreopl PETEL'G 00'vZK'L £'966°9) SNOANYTTAISIN [el0L
%L oLy I9%zhT 00051 19T 00001 19T 817 00zl 43 INNIATY ¥3HLO
00°052' 00°052 00'052 00zl 000 334 MIINTY NYd
%8Y 79 69'8.£'95 00'Lyv'/8 69'925'G8 00'862°85 69'618'CHl 01'592'6 002822 01'256'1 SLN3WLSIANI NO 1STHILNI
SNOANYITAISIN
SANNIATY
Butujeway JuUBMEA pasiasy doueueA [enjay aoueuep Jebpng jobpng [enjoy
_Shmu””w._wm ucmt—_m lejol N uwmv-_m jejol uwmvsm aia awm_o:m aLa Jed  juaung polad juaun) poudd usun)d pollad jualingd AOMV ﬁ_ Z Du_ mm;wm

=

¥202/62/Z Ysnoiyl ¥zoe/L/z wold
saJnypuadxg pue sanuaAdy JO JUsLIRIS

10141SId LNIWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNESOND




1 =%g

N 8+°81:€ $Z0T/OE/P 1R

%eL' Ve

LITES 119 00'95E'8LL'L LI°€65°0S1 00" 21K LIEL £CEZ8'091') 8¢ Ive'el 00'66€°ZY 79'158'82 S3SNIdX3 ONILVHILO [ejoL

%15 /T ISTIvGH 00'€20'95 00'2bE'LE 6v'809'07 006997 SEIVLG ISNIdXT NOLLYIDTYd3A
%9G'L§ Tr'ee9'9l 00'142'2¢ 7r'999's 00'662'12 85Z€9'G1 00'662'C 826922 OR¥L0313 3 SY9 - SILNILN
%EE'EE 00008y 00'00'€1 000 00°000'6 00°000'6 000 00'6Z4'L 00'5Z}'} $334 33USNYL
%9261 71942 00Z97'E 22'509') 00'90€'Z 8200, 00'682 00'682 000 TIAVHL
%1E'E6 SLL8Y'S 00'728' 51125 00716’ G8'Z6¢ 0’59y 00°06% 09'%¢ SUYNINZS ANY ONINIVYL
%ET Ty 72689 00'ZE9' ZTsyl 00'980'} 816 15 00'9€} £V LEl 3NOH431AL
%L1 0L 4TI 00'065" r4: 3208 00'065 81’6y 000 565 SIONVHO NOILYDIIENd
%.9'9% T6°6Yh'e 00'0S2' 76961} 00°2€6°€ 80'008' 8E'L19 00'€1E" 79102 39V1S0d
%01’ 98’1z 00'50Y 9812 00'S0% v1'68¢ 00'0 000 00'0 $334 ANV SLINY3d
%8506 95ZLLYL 00Zr2'91 95'967'6 00'928'01 vr'626' HNEINE 00'8¥E'l 18902 $3rddns 301440

00'966Z1 00'866'Z1 9€'666'Z) 00'v29'} 76129’ LN SAILMOVA GNY 304440
%6429 0L116C 00'2£9'% 02'€9€'L 00'680' €522’ 00'6LT 00°28¢ 00'891 TYIYOLINYF 301440
%1218 89'95.'¢ 00'009't 89°222°C 00'P90'C Ak 99'907 00'€8¢ vE'9Ll SIUNLIANTdXT SNOANYTIZOSIA
%0000} 00°00S 00'006 00°008 007005 00'0 000 00'0 000 SLMYd AMOLNIANI

00'929'62 00'929'62 86'025'92 000 099 SANOS ANy JONVHNSNI
%LL0Y 1961’ 00'086'8 €1ees 00'G18' 18'180' 158p1 00°065 £ Loy ISNIdXT ALIMNDIS
%1 9E B106¢'1 00'L¥8'S 00°€rE'2 L8'95H'Z 00°08 88'WZl TYINTY LNIWIND3
%/8'29 BEZ6E PPl 00'8r2TV2 6E'9LY'EL 00ZES' YL 19'65€'89 G1'8vr'e 00'622°L} 58'082'6 SYIVdIH/ LNIVW/STdNS "dino3
%2E'ST Lr00L'L 00'9vE'Y L1008 00'90'Y B5'SHT'E 000 ov'LL SNOILJINOSENS B $3na
%000 000 000 99'999'} 000 000 000 MO 43M3S - NOILYAHISNOD
%11 99 £9'799'22 00'692'¥E £OVIT'El 00'698'rZ LE709'1) 02168 000562 0€'85Y'| ISNIdXI ¥ILNAWOD
%54 €6 89'55Y'62 00'6LY'LE 89'086'2! 00'7¥6'02 76'e96') 99'L1¥'Z 00819 ¥E'002 "LNIVA ONY SHIvd3d ONIgTINg
%lG Ve SL6LE'LL 00'€5'2¢ S1'66E 00'€£9'1Z S8'€ET'LT 00°604°2 69'L/8'C SADUVYHO MNvE
%00°001 00'202°S} 00'202°SH 00'Z02'E1 00Z0Z'EH 00'0 000 00'0 000 s163a ava
%06 '¥C 52°200'12) 00'620'987 0022579 61'120'G9E 000 00°000Z SINJNSSIASSY VS.L10a
%00'6Z STELYI8) 00'659'62, 520 00°0¥Z 7S GLBET PYS 000 000 000 0% W V1v¥d-04d ¥SL10a
%1628 YO'LLO'G 00'05Z°01 0'€65' 007689 96'867') 97’619 00758 7N T4 ONIAZAYNS ¥ ONIYIINIONT
%000 000 00'0 05'8LL 000 05'8L1 SNOILYILODAN H08Y1- w931
%90'9, 8LYETEl 00'00¥' L} 81 YEY'L 00009’} Z8'59L'% 90°260°) 00°05'} v6Z5¢ BUREL

00'006°S} 00'005'€1 6781861 000 00'0 000 ONILNNOJOY

$3SNIdX3 ONILVYIdO
Bulueuiay aoueyep posiA9y aosueylep |enjay asuepep 136png 1ebpng lenjoy
_Bhw.mu”“m._on_ uom_g___m |eyol - ummu:m |ejol umavsm ali uamu-_m aLA Jea) juauny poLidd Juddingd pouiad jusingd poiiad juaungd AOMV D Z Dn_ M_m\smm

v202/62/¢ usnoiyl $+20e/1L/¢ woid
sain)puadx3g pue SSNUSASY JO JUdWALIS

10141S1A INJWIAOUdWI TVHINIO AdNISONDI




Wd 8t-81-¢ ¥TOT/0¢/Y 2%

g a8eg
LoZvo'L2e 10'899'852 00'925°68 eYhro‘es STUNLIANIAXI Y3A0 INNIATY $$30X3
e\emx.aw 9 LL¥'P06 00°00€°290°¢ 95°606°181 00'362'VEe 888291z 00°2L6°6L 08'098°211 STUNLIANIX3 [BjJoL
%9L°CL ze'88e'ezl 00°051°296 00'051°218 89'19.°€¥8 00°051°2 62'621°1L S3SN3dX3 ¥3H1O0 IejoL
%9.°Ch ce'ese'eTt 00'051°296 00051218 89'19/'€h8 000542 626212 AYLNO VLdYD
$3SNIdX3 ¥3HIO0
m=_=_~Em~_ oJuelep PasiADy ddueliep |enpdy dueliep uoausm uwmu-_m |en)dy
_SM_”“”M& uom_.:m. ey - ucmu:.m lejoL gomgm. aLa 196png a1 Jeaj Juauny uo__.an_ JUaLN)  poudd jualun)  poUdd Jusung (0€) NN HIM3S
$202/62/Z Usnodyl +Zoz/L/T wold
; 7\ 71 sain)ipuadx3 pue S9NUSASY JO JUSLIdYLIS
aad ¥ UYL 10141510 INIWIAOHAIWI TVYINTD AHNFSONDI




6 @deg

N 8+°81:€ ¥T0T/0E/b 21

%EEGL

18'928'e8S

00°000°G.2 18°928'S0V 00000665 eLeLL'16l 5291219 00°000'69} 56820} 9NIMOTd - TYAOITH MONS
%09'¢¢ 86°291 00°00§ 86°291 00°005 zoese (€168 000 €168 INIATAHNS B ONIYIINIONT
%000 (00g01) 000 (00°504) 000 00601 {00'501) 000 00504 SNOILYLLODAN H08v1- o3
%01 8% LSE0'L 00006 Reges 00'286'} 67'96%') 81°Z8) 00’112 7886 WwOI1
(L1 L1 (1y98¢) 00052'C (17°98¢) 000522 Ly'9e9'e 000 000 000 ONILNNOJIV
SASNIdX3 ONILVYHAdO
%2Z6'95 £r0zL L) 00'00+'¥22 £ 0Z6'CS 00009051 15°619°96 LL20LE 00'661'81 £2°961'v1 $3SNIdX3 03113 TIOUAVd [eJ0L
%{10°E6) {€0°622) 00°00€ (S0'6L¢€ 00002 €065 7681 006 909 S3SNIdX3 TI0HAYd HIHLO
%L1'81 or'e9e 00000 (v50€) 00'68€"} ¥59E9°) AN\ 74 00'991 @rvl) JSNIdXT AV dANYIDY
%2508 v9'8LL'6 00°Z6¢'L1 Y9RIE'S 00'265'2 9e'elz’e ££'249 00'6v6 199/ 3SN3dX3 8340
%9¢'L9 ANV 00°28 71065 00°248 97°982 000 000 00'0 SWHO4INN
%ST 1S 69708 00°70%'1 69°0¢ 00°0Y6 LE'665 0¥'Sh 00891 09251 SIIS - SLI43NTE ITA0NNA
%E0'7S ¥5°066'G1 00'265'6C ¥5'ZeL'9 006261 979091 25019 00°29%C 87'958' SH3d - SL143N38 FIA0 TN
%9E'65 01'66.'82 00°EIS'8y OLEYEEl 00°260°CE 06'CLL6L 1162 00498'€ £2°289'C SNI "Q3N - SLI43N38 3FA0TdINT
%GEEs 16'620'} 00'626' 16788 00°082'} 60°268 0gLl 0009} 0LThl DIAINYOIA - SLI4INTE FIAOTINA
%96'GE 15°18v'6 00'67£'92 157269 00696"2L £ /98'91 1€ 00'964'7 554912 301440 - 1I0YAVd
%0199 7660122 00'828'0F 26'L6Y'CL 00912'L2 80'8LL'¢L 766y 00°20t'c 81'926' JONYNILNIYI - TI0H¥AYd
%1996 16'959°%¢ 0064219 L6'8PT vl 00°L18'0Y 60'295'9C 78'98¢°L 00°204'S gLeLL'E HIOYNYW - TIOHAYd
$ISNIIXT Q3LV138 TI0¥AVd
STUNLIANIX3
oz L6) (1zZ26692) 00021522 (Iz0evs 00'899°19¥% £L 1TSSy (6v'200) 006859 152459 SINNIATY [E10L
o be 9€) (0¥°026'252) 00°266'569 09'558 00'L2ZZZhy 09°010°sty VIIZ) 00VPYEY vL115°€9 $334 ¥3snj=0L
%L TL) {0592 00°0vS 050 00'09¢ A {00°€ 005y 002 3NNIATY 334 MI4SNvHL
%(06°51) (98'102'L) 00"095'2 71'816') 00°070's 71°95¢'9 GL'L0T 00°0£9 GLILES $334 ¥3SN NO SALLTYNId
%(05°9€) (0089112 00°966°.5 000 00°928'9¢ 00'828'9¢ 000 00Z62'S 00°Z62'S IVIOYINNOI - $334 ¥3sn
%(65°9¢) (p0'v24'0E2) 00°106'629 (v0°995) 00°€66'66¢ 96'921'66¢ (10'1.2) 00°LLY'LS 666028 TVILN3QISTY - $334 ¥3sN
$334 438N
94(82'86) (18'100°21) 00°€L1'6Z (18622°0) 00° b6l EVILLLT (ce'029) 00°1E¥2 11°009°) SNOANVTIAISIW lejoL
%269L6°C 0v'8l0'L 0092 0v'8z0's 0091 orvro’L (G50 00z Sl JNNIATY HIHLO
%(€8'19) (1z0z0'8L) 00'Ly1'62 (1Zv0e'8) 00'LEY'61 €29Z1'LI (89'628) 00'6Z4'C 2£°665°) SLNIALSIANI NO LSIFHILNI
SNOANYT1A0SIA
SANNIARY
m_“w_w_”_.“_mom 2oueLEA pasiAsy asueLEA 9Bpng QLA [enjoy aouewep 196png 196png [enjoy (09) INNIAIN
101 JUs215g jobpng eyol  -396png [ejo) 3e6png qLA Jeaj Juaung | pouddiuaung  poudd JUaLn)  poudd jusund IVID3dS TVAOWIH MONS

14Vdd

¥202/62/Z Usnolyl »2oe/L/c woid
saimypuadx3 pue SanuaAay Jo yuswalels

1O141S1d INTFWIAOUdIWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




01 98ed

Nd 80:81:¢ ¥T0T/0t/p 9_Q

29'88'185 79'796'005 _868.8 SFUNLIANIdXT ¥IAO INNIATY SS30X3T
%ET'E9 68'908'128 00°1£L°662°) 68'285'206 00°20€°86 LI'VZ6LLY T.Ns.s 00'¥E2'20Z 16 LE0 L1 SIUNLIANICXT [e30L
%0L'E IZory 00°0S20z1 00'0520Lb 61612911 S0v18%E 00000 SOVIELL SISNIdXT ¥IHLO IerolL
%0L€ L0y 0006202} 00'052°041 6262911 00'000°€ SOV AVILNO T¥LIdVD
S3ISNIdX3 ¥3HLO
WL 52'919'689 00°185'¥56 ST'Z66'25Y 00°256'€2L SL'Y96'792 LLE18'S9 00'5£2'981 £TIZV'0C) SISNIAX3 ONILVYILO [E101
%19 L917€9 001286 l9€eze 00Z¥2'9 6€€20°c 0018 0018 000 I8 dX3 HIA
%GLLL GT'606'L1 00'98¥'S1 5Z'19.'9 00'88Z°0} GL925°¢ 59216 00'98Z't GEeLE ddnSNIorand dx3a I191H3A
%589 6669 00ZH0'} 6911 00'GEY 90'8€ €92 0018 181 OIM193713 % S¥9 - SALMILN
%EEEE 00'05Z 000522 00'0 00'008't 00'005'} 050 0088} 05281 $334 331SNyL
%.0°68 2290 00'786' AR TIIN 00112t 88912 00591 00'591 000 T3AVHL
%GY'68 56'GE8'} 002502 85151 00'89€°} oLz 02851 00121 08z} SHYNINIS ONY ONINIVYL
%¥S'SE 151§ 00'Z9} 15¢ 00°801 £7'v01 160 00°Fh 80'€l INOHd3T3L
%1106 06070 00'692' 00002 (IR744 000 P42 SIDUYHO NOILYDITaNd
%86'Ch £9'16L 00'008'} €9')E 00°05€"t 1£800't 60’19 00°0S¥ 16'88Z 39V1S0d
%bY 06 v1p09 00'899 1709 00'899 98'€9 000 000 00'0 $334 ONY SLINN3d
%L 68 6V'€29T 00'26' 6Y159'L 00256'4 15'00€ 8261 00'¥HZ GG $311ddNns 301440
009912 009912 96991 810 0012 780.2 1N3¥ SAILMIOVS NY 301440
%0829 Srsey 00°€.2 Y622 00°215 66297 00'9¢ 0079 0082 TYINOLINYF 301440
%2 19 ¥8'992' 00009 ¥8'206't 00982 91'ees’) 19'8p 00°29% 662 SIHNLIANIX3 SNOINVTIFOSIA
%0000} 0000} 00°001 0062 0062 000 000 000 000 INIWINDI AL3HYS
00'622'Y 00'622'Y 0eeZy'y 000 0ge SONOS aNY ONVENSNI
%0000} 008} 008} 0081 0084 000 000 000 000 3SNIdXT ALI¥NDIS
%L Ly VEVLLY 00°000°01 VeyLLY 00°000°01 99'622' 00'0 000 000 SNOIS 3 $T00L ‘S31ddNS a1314
%6v'LZ £€8'8/1 00°Z€8 00'095 11°€59 0002 1802 TVANTY INTWAIND3
%89'66 G269 00°00Z 6L 16 00'00% 577 000 000 000 SUIVAIY/ INIVINSTITdNS dIND3
%8621 1288 00'89 VL 00709 62965 000 04S¢ SNOILAINOSENS 3 S3NA
%G9S 95'720'Y 00'0¥9'Z 95228 00'07H'9 wLl9' 9z¥el 00'52y ¥2'00E ASNIdXI ¥ILNANOD
%08'€6 8L8¥6'y 00'92' 8288L°E 00'918'¢ A4S 19'90% 000 BEES "LNIVW ONY SHIV43Y ONITING
%6L°1E VLOLY'E 0022441 00'94¥'2 62'969' 00226 £6v8L'L SIOUYHO YNvE
%00°001 00112 00'42'E 00112 00142°¢ 000 000 000 000 s183a ave
%00°00} 00'009°9 00'009'9 00°00%'Y 0000y 000 000 000 000 ONIDI J/NLNY TVAOINTH MONS
%EY LS 66'890'Cy 00°000'62 6689561 00°008'45 L0'LE6'LE v1'966 00°000°} 92°£00'71 ONIONYS - TYAOWZH MONS
m“_ﬂ_-:m_”::_moz saueLIeA pasinay 2oUBLEA Nra—— [emoy aaueueA 106png jobpng [enjoy (09) 3INN3IATY
[BJ0L JU32134 uomtzm |ejol - ummv-_m jejo} uom—u:m ali Jeaj Juaund poliad juaungd pouad Juaiingd poliad juaungd |_<_Ummm |_<>O_>_mm_ ;OZW

$202/62/Z USnoayl ¥Z0Z/1L/C Wwoid
sainyipuadxy pue S3NUIASY JO JUBLUDLL)S

10141S1d LNFWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




11 e8eg

A 8t°81€ ¥ZOZ/0%/ 21

1O141S1d LINJWIAOUdWI TVHINTO AHNDSONI

%{680¢) (9g'ec0’2)) 00'6€15S (9€°656) 00'690'6€ ¥9'501'8€ 81929 00298 81'98Y'S STUNLIANIAXT ¥IA0 INNIATY $539X3
%L1 0p Y6'69€'61 0018y v6'166 00°9£8°62 90'Vv8'8z 75°29% 00'lSL'E 8r88z°c SIUNLIGNIX3 301
%L1 0% ¥6'69E°61 008y ¥6'166 00'9€8'6Z 90Vre8e Z5Tor 00'1SL°E 8788z S3SNIdX3 ONILVHILO (2101
%9 0E LrSva'y 0000€'H 00ZEL9 65VS90L 00%ZTh €/'699°) ORMLOTTA R SYD - SALNILN
%000 00°0 000 0578 000 00'0 00'0 $39YVYHO NOILYDITENd
%L2°8€ 90'551 00'00¥ 90'55 00°00€ V6T 08 00'001 0T v6 $3NddnS 301440
00'068'9 00'Z66'% 00'000°Z 00'72S 00'008 TYIMOLINYF 301440
%v8'SE 166152 00'1E0°L 16521 00'/89'% 60°LLS'Y 02'89 00°985 08415 SIUNLIANIAX3 SNOANYTIZOSIA
00768 00'Z6E'E 15266 00'0 000 000 SANOS ANY IONVHNSNI
%ZEGE 00’k 00102 00 00'SEL 00'0EL G20 002l A TYINTY LNIWINDI
%000 000 00'0 00'6Z} 000 00'5Z) SHIVATH! INIVIISTddNS "dIND3
%YECS 1610824 00°000°S} 151052 00'000°0} £r'86v' 0078}’ 00°052'} 00'99 "LNIVIN ONY SHIVdZd ONIQTING
S3SNIdX3 ONILVYIdO
STUNLIANIdXI
“%lzzee)  (0ecovoe 00°ESEE0} (0c'156°1 00'L06'89 0’67699 99'191 00EI98 99ViL's SANNIAIY [e10L
slzzse) (oe°cov'oe 00'E5E'E0L (015670 00'106'89 06699 99'191 00'€19'8 VLS SNOANYTIIOSIN [BI0L
%000 X 000 IS 000 1661 000 000 000 INNIATY HIHLO
%(rZ'6e) (LZ'6i19e) 00'€5£'€01 (1Z'296'1) 00'106'89 6£€£6'99 99'19} 00€19'8 99'vLL'8 JNOONI TYLINIY
SNOANVTIIISIN
SANNIATY
Gujueway yebpng aoueliep pasiaay aoueEA WOPNG QLA [PV Jee) Juelng aouelep yebpng 196png lenyay Aowv
|ej0] Juadiad 19bpng |ejo| - 196png |ejo] 1ebpng Q1A pouad Juauny) polad JuaLng pouad yuaung TVLNIY IAVHO AHNESONIN 862
¥202/62/2 ysnolyl +20oz/L/z wold
MT 3 um me ‘N Q sainypuadx3y pue SaNUdIAY JO JUBWIBIRIS
eed ¥ O







133HS JONV1IVE ANV
NOILISOd HSVO
¥¢0¢ HOUVIA



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT GENERAL 46%
B CASH POSITION B WATER 33%
B - ] - SEWER 19%
March-24 SNOW 2%
- BEGINNING | ENDING
[FUND BALANCE | TRANSFERS | ADJUST._ RECEIPTS CHECKS BALANCE
GENERAL FUND $ 8,047,509.57 |$  (9,971.56)| $(285.71)| $§ 193,029.72 | § (45,209.26)| $ 8,185,072.76
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $  214,391.86 | § 997156 | - |$ - |$ - |$ 224,363.42
GENERAL INVESTMENT $  467,44531($ - |8 - |% 19.28 | § - |$ 467464.59
GF TOTAL $ 8,876,900.77
WATER FUND $ 5,704,329.69 | $ (220,156.14)| $ 538.56 [ § 414,654.67 $ (324,427.86)| $ 5,574,938.92
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | §  351,858.91 |$  11,91931|$ - 1§ - |8 - |$ 36377822
WATER INVESTMENT $ 51795723 (% - $ - $ 21.36 | $ - $ 517,978.59
KGID/TRPA RESTRICTED (STATION 4B8MPS) | $ 45,430.00 | § - $ - $ - $ - $ 45,430.00
DIST DEBT RESERVE $ 139,040.75 | $ 70,373.79 | $ - $ = $ - |$  209,414.54
TREAT DEBT RESERVE $ 211,083.12|$ 106,837.16 | $ - $ - |9 - $  317,920.28
CAP IMPROV. RESERVE $ (523,327.77)| § 31,025.88 | $ - $ _—= $ - $ (492,301.89)
WF TOTAL i N |$ 6,537,158.66
SEWER FUND $ 3.934,189.78 [ $ (301.68)[.$(112.56)| $§ 176,637.48 | § (408,526.25)| $ 3,701,887.77
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | $ 711348 | $ 30168 | $ - $ - $ - $ 7,415.16 |
SEWER INVESTMENT $ 26531878 | $ - $ 1094 | § - $ 265,320.72
L SF TOTAL $ 3.974,632.65
SNOW REV. FUND $ 11864131 |8 (4,500.85)| $(140.29)| $  66,335.59 | § (118,578.81)| $ 61,756.95
RESTRICTED CASH (VEHICLE REPLACEMENT) | §  109,208.11 | $ 450085|% - |$ - |8 - |$ 113,708.96
SNOW INVESTMENT $ 1265197 | $ - |$ - |83 052 % - |8 1265249
SNOW TOTAL |$ 188,118.40
298 KINGSBURY GRADE RENTAL $ 23045147 |$ - |$ - |$ 753968|% (2,105.82)| $  235,885.33
o 80 RENTAL TOTAL| i $  235885.33
GRAND TOTALS $ 19,853,293.57 | § (0.00)] $ - $§ 858,249.24 | § (898,847.00)| $ 19,812,695.81
CHECKING
US BANK $ 451,167.74 | § - |$ - [$ 78060240 %  (898,678.36) $  333,091.78
US BANKMMA s 112.25 | $ - $ - |s - |Is 112.25 |
L =l s -
MORTON CAPITAL MMA S 13,261.04 $ 5210 |§ - |$ 1331314
5.2% ZIONS BANCORPORATION $  250,000.00 | $ - $ - $ - $  250,000.00
5.15% CROSS RIVER BK |$  250,000.00 | $ - 18 - |$ - |$ 250,000.00
5.45% BMO BANK NATIONAL $ 250,009.@ 19 - $  250,000.00
4.80% BLUE RIDGE BANK $ 250,000.00 | $ - | B $  250,000.00 |
4.70% FLAGSTAR BANK $ 250,000.00 | $ - - '$  250,000.00
LOCAL GOVT POOLED $ 18,138,752.54 | $ - $ 7742610 |9 - | $18,216,178.64
GRANb_TOTALS_ $ 19,853,293.57 | $ - $ - $ 858,080.60 | $ (898,678.36)| $ 19,812,695.81

PAgET




1 :abed

Wd £0:2T:S $202/0E/Y 81eq

14V id

10141S1Ad INFWIAOUdWI TVHINIO AYNISONDI

9z°zH8's 00°0 00'£09 £0'002°T 98°988'S LETST S3ISN3dX3 QIvdIyd [eoL
9C'Ir8’8 000 00°€09 £0°00C°C 98'988'S LETST SASNAdX3I AIvdIdd
S3ISN3dX3 AIvdIAud
TT°8TT'SHT 000 00'0 £5'9/8 85" TSE'vIT 00°0 AYOLNIANI WALV [230L
1187 SbT 000 000 £5°9/8 85 TSEPHT 000 AYOLNIANI WIRALYW
AYOLNIANI TVINILVW
v¥£°009'088 Y9"EL0’S TLSES'TY 0L°6ZF'SET STHTT'L0S €S°LET'06T F19VAIIOTY SLNNOJDY (€101
000 000 000 000 000 000 SAONVAQY JIA0dWI
09'1b'y 000 85'12¢ 8b°67€'T 96'859'C 8512 J1aVAIZDTY S1150d3a
SE00E'8 000 00°0 000 000 S€°00€'8 AIIDTY SAXVL ALYAdOUd "DNITAA
bS 1/T'€0T 000 [TT98'T L¥'SER'0T Zh'98°9€ 8€'/86'sh "1SIANI - T19VAIZOTY 1STIIINI
£H°180°T 000 000 000 £5'180°T 00°0 "0 ¥LM AOOMIDAI-UNY
TT8TLLET 000 000 00°0 00°0 44 TAAAN! I19YATIDTY “1SIA XYL ILVIS
[ANATE ! 00'0 00°0 000 Z1°756'EST 000 F19VAIIDTY INVID
000 00°0 000 000 000 00°0 SINIWNIIA0D YIHIO0 WOYL 3Na
v9'€£0'S b9'€£0°S 000 00°0 000 00°0 IIAVYAIZDTY INTY
+8'198'99% 00°0 (81550 SLPOT'ETT TTSHO'ETE 00°0 J1aVAIZDIY SINNODDY
T19VAIZOTY SINNOJIV
STTZT'8T0Z 00'0 St'19€'9ZT 88bL'TLT 18°98T'LC6 10'8T8'169 SLNIWLSIANI |€10L
ST'ICT'810'T 000 SP19€92T 88Vl TLT 18'981°/76 10°828'769 SINIWLSIANI
SLINIWLSIANI
90'v2T'L88'LT €E°'S88'SET S6'9SZ'T9 LLL88'TOL'E S$8'T26'609'S 9T1°ZT9'LLT'S HSVD 8304
0F'6+0'C6 000 000 000 000 0v6¥0'26 ALNNOD SY19N0A A9 G13H HSYD
00°0 00°0 000 00°0 IAY3STY INFWIAOUAIWI TYLIdVD
87°026'£1€ 000 000 000 82'076'21€ 00°0 IDIAYIS 1830 INFWLYIIL
bSPIH'602 000 00°0 00°0 ¥SPTH'60C 000 IDIAY3S 1830 NOLLNEI1SIA
€L THS'6SL'LT £€'588/SET 56'95/'T9 LL(88'T0L'E 76'8€6'V4S'S 9/77,0'G8T'8 MNVE NI HSYD
0000 000 00°0 000 000 00°00C ANVH NO HSYD
00°00€ 0070 00°0 00°0 000 00°00€ HSYD ALLId
HSYD
$13SSV INIYHND
S13SSV
ANN3IATY
[e30) nu w_w_mw,m__m_ﬁw WVID3dS aNNJ ¥IMIS | ANNA¥ILVM | aNNd TvHINED
TYAOWIY MONS
ve0c/LE/E 40 SY
133HS FONVIVE




7 :abed

Wd £0:2T:5 H20Z/0E/t :318Q

65°969'009°29 £6'856'01C $ |ZrLSE'TET $ |Z8°'201'6T8's $ |T9LEV'6VT'LY $ |L0'OVB'6ST'6 $ S13SSV |e30L
98°'61€'0T9'TH 000 000 16'€96'S0L’T S6'SSE'P06°6€ 000 $13SSV Q3IXI4 12301
98°6PE0T9' TP 00'0 000 16'€96'S0ZL'T S6'S8E706'6€ 000 (13N) INIWJIND3A B INV1d ALY3dOUd |eI0L
YL TIE0ES' T 000 000 0562+ 14C +2'€88°85C'T 000 SSIUOOU NI NOLLDIMILSNOD
000 000 000 dIND3 B STDIHIA “d4d3A "WNIDV
6£°0969.S 00°0 000 87'E1T'8 15'2b€'895 000 INIWAINOI B STVIHIA
000 00°0 000 000 ALTIDV4 INOZO "¥d3a WNODV
97'£71'S08 000 000 000 9z'£21'508 000 S13SSY ¥IHLIO
000 000 000 UNLONYLSVAANT “4dIA “WNIOV
£5'998'£8b"0€ 000 000 9€bZE'98/ 1T'THS'104'67 000 AINLONYLSYYANI
000 000 000 INV1d ALTTLLN "4d3a "WNIDV
TL0TT'bT9' T 000 00°0 L€°8¥9°9ST 9 SETOVLOP'TT 000 ADIAY3S NI INVId ALTILLN
000 00'0 000 INIWAINDI "8d3A "WNIDV
8£°600°016'y 000 000 LL189°482 19'£2€'229'Y 000 INIWAIND3
000 000 000 "dIND3 301440 "¥d3A “WNIDVY
8Y'846'1T1 000 000 65'+80°0p 68'568'18 000 INIWAINDT ID1440
(13N) INIWAINO3 B INV1d ALNIdOUd
S13SSY a3xId
££°9VE'066°0T L6'856'0tC TV LSE'TET 16'SET'ETT'Y 99'TS0'SHT'L L0'0V8'6ST'6 S13SSV LNFWUND [e30L
TH'0EP'0S 000 000 000 T 0EP°0S 000 (13N) S1S00 FUNSSI ANOG SADYVHD aIYy343a Ie0L
€1°69C°66¢) 000 000 000 £1°692°66¢C 000 S1S0D 3NSSI ANOA 40 " LIOWY
b5 '669'6VE 000 000 000 b5'669°6VE€ 00'0 150D 3nssI anos
(13IN) S1S0D FUNSSI ANOYG SIDUVHD AIYI43a
ANNIATY
ej0L MM .."”__mwh_w_dw_%u TVIDAdS ANNd ¥amas AdNNd ¥31lVvM | ANNd TV33N3D
TVAOWIY MONS
¥202/1LE/E 40 SY
133HS IONVIVE

14vdd

10141S1d LNFWIAOHdIWI TYHINTO AHNSSONI




¢ :abed

Wd £0:Z1:S $20Z/0E/ 91eq

000 00'0 000 (16°868'69T) 000 ANNQDSIA ANOF NOLLVZLLYOWY
16'868'69T 000 000 0070 16'868'69T 000 SANOE NO LNNODSIA
69°659'¢TE 000 000 00°0 69'959'€CE 00'0 "DHI ONIANNATY 40 NOLLYZILYOWY

000 000 000 000 SIDUVHO ONIANNATY +661

379VAVd SANOS
SAILITIEVIT WY3Ll ONO1

L8'TZE'TIET 0b'€9€'6 9T ZP0’LST (£s'868'0D) S8 IY0'shO’T €0'892’'16 SITLITIAVIT LNFHUND 12301
08'TCC 60€ 009/172 ¥8'00E'8 09°06'T6 9¢'+08'102 000 $1150d3d F18VANN4TY [e10L
08'/97'48 000 ¥800E'8 09°'THO' VT 9€'ST6'FS 000 $334 AISN AIvdIUd
00°#S6'12C 00912 000 00°668'29 00'6/8'9%T 000 S1150d3a 31avannday

$1150d3d 319VANNITY
0Z'LZH’'608 000 ¥E£'0£6°0S T2°02L°L0T £8'981'88S 78°682°T9 SIT9VAVd A3LV13Y TIOUAVd [eI0L
000 000 000 000 000 000 F1AYAVd VY
000 000 000 000 000 000 F1avAVd IONVINSNI TWIIAIW

000 000 000 (9z°00+') 000 J19VAVd SIIS
£S°1€2'849 000 88'€7L 0 80°G£7'88 89°/98'86% 68"406'0S J1avAvd 9340
00'0 000 00°0 000 - 000 00°0 J19vAvVd S3NA NOINN
TTLIL'CE 00°0 £4'560'T 01°899' 6£"096'CC 06'766'C MDIS/OVA SAXY.L AINIIDY
1£°8££'201 000 £0'TTT'8 £0°218'1 79'850'1L £0°26£'8 AVd MDIS/NOLLYOVA Q3Ny¥d0V
00°0 00°0 00'0 000 000 000 I19vAvd S¥ad
000 00°0 000 000 00'0 000 sigeded dwio) paliasea
000 000 00°0 000 00'0 000 I19VAVd VI HLOWY/d3S
000 00°0 00'0 000 000 00'0 J19YAVd SAXV.L TI0UAVd

S119VAVd GILV1IY TI0UAVd
L8 TLY'EVT ov'£81°C 86'STS'L6T (s£ 655°'0vT) 99'0SL'pST TT'8LY'6C 379VAVd SINNOJDV [e10L
95°€T 000 000 000 95°€C 000 318VAVd INTT

00°0 000 00°0 (o€ 9v) 000 J19VAVd NOLLIIL0Ud SSO1

000 [{4f4 %11 (z5'6£6'9) (e9'612) JISNAdSNS - I1VAVd SLNNODIDV
LT'TH9'8¥T 0b'£81°C 19°6£0°861 76'C16'09C ¥8°/69'67 3aviL - I1IVAVd SLNNODDY

319YAVd SINNOJIDV
S31LIIGVIT LNIHUND
S3ILIIAVI]
INNIATY
|ejol >._“ _.”M_MM,M__HM__“M%N IVIDAdS ([ IER-EIEN] aNNd ¥3LYM | NN TVYINID
| TYAOWIY MONS
¥20cC/LE/E 40 SV
133HS FONVIVE

14vad

10141S1d INJWIAOUdWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




t :abeq

Wd £0:21:5 202/0€/b *a1eq

14vadd

10141S1d LNJWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AHNGSONDI

66'8S0°STH'p 000 92°S8°9SH 75°664'90€'T 12¥TH'6H9T 000 IVLLN3AIST - 5334 ¥3asn
Z1°259'SST 00'0 000 000 21'259'SST 00'0 ANV Vd3 304N0S LNIOd NON 6T€
£5°765T65 000 00°0 000 000 £5'25526S NOLLNERILSIA XV.L ILVIS
69'869'T/¥ 000 000 0070 000 69'859'1/b dN-DIYIN WIIOTVAQY
9€" 158y 00'0 0070 0070 00'0 9£' 158 XYL ALY3dOdd TYNOSY3d
76°£89'66S 000 00°0 000 00°0 76°£89'56S SAXV.L WIIOTVAQY
STUNLIANIdXT YIA0 INNIAFY SSADX3
64°29L'6LS"T 000 000 ¥6°200'888 S8'6SL'T69 000 S13SSY QaXId TYHINID NI INIWLISIANI [230L
64792681 000 000 ¥67200'888 S8'65/'169 000 13SSY @3IXI4 "NID NI INFWLSIANI
S13SSV QIXId TVHINID NI LNIWLISIANI
TZ'¥95'90€'S 00'0 00'0 'P60'8tb'T T1'888'28Z'C 89°'185'6ZS QIAYISTUNN - IINVIVE ANNA (8301
TT¥95'90€°S 000 000 WH60'8bb'C 1°888°287C 89°78676/S A3AYISTUNN - IINVIVE aNNd
@3AYISTUNN - IONVIVE ANNL
98'Z85'096'ZP v6'bT8'L8T TL'9E6°TTT 82'S0T'vb9’T 95'859'8Hb'ZE 98'950°25S"L SONINUVI INIVIIY [e30L
98'785'096 v6' 428’ L8T TL'9€6'CTT 8£°S0T'H¥9°C 95°859'8b1'E 98'950'/SS"2 SONINYVI AINIVLIIY
SONINYVI GINIVLIY
O'SLETSE'T 00'0 00°0 81°20S'9€S TT'EL8'STS 000 IVLIdVD AILNGTYINOD [el0L
Ob' SZE7TSET 000 000 81°70S9¢€S TE/8'618 000 IVLIdYD d3LNAIdINOD
IV1IdvD dILNGTHINOD
ALIND3 ANNd
$2°009'1S6'TT OV'£9£’6 $ [9TLp0'LST $ |(£s'868'0t) TTOTE'PEY'CZT $ |£0'89L'T6 $ S3ILTIIAVIT 200
LE'8LT'68S'TT 000 000 00'0 LE'8LT'68S'TT 000 SITLIITIAVIT WHIL ONOT €301
LEBLT'68S'TT 000 00°0 0070 LEBLT'68SIT 000 319VAVd SANOY 8101
£8°665'1C 000 000 000 £8°66b 1¢C 000 T1AVAVd 1STUTLNI S# NVO1 S
95°668'1//'S 00°0 0070 000 95°668'1//'C 0070 J19VAVd S# NVO1 3dS
08'065"pE 00°0 000 000 08'06£°vE 00°0 p# 9lqeAed 1S219)U] UBOT JYS
b E87'S6L'S 00°0 00°0 000 £b'€8/'G5/'S 000 p# dlqeded ueo] Jus
7£979'8 00°0 00°0 000 7£979'8 000 £# 9lqeAed 1S2.9)U] UEOT JYS
LE°0TL'0T2'T 00°0 000 00'0 LE°0TL0TZ'T 00°0 £# S|qeded UeoT 445
8€9/4'S 00'0 00'0 00'0 8€'94L'S 00'0 3|qeAed 1sa49qU] UROT 44S
89°165'08/ 00'0 00'0 00'0 89'165°08/ 00'0 C# 9lqeAed ueo IS
aNN3IATY
lerol MM_._..”__MM-”_M_‘\MW 1vIDads anNnd ¥amas AdNNd ¥31LVYM | ANNd TvdINID
TYAOWIY MONS
¥202/1LE/€ 40 SY
133HS IONVY1vVd




s :abeq

Wd £0:21:S ¥Z0T/0E/Y i91ea

(68°20L'90) 00°0 (50°£55'T) (¥6°054'%) (12°£89'81) (69°15£'T) oI
(87°82L'29) 000 (T+'9€9'2) (61°818'ST) (£6'9€9'1€) (1+'9£9°7) ONLLNNOJJV
1S +¥8°C 000 00°0 0v"+8¢ HEET’e 8992 ASNIdXA IONYMOTIV IvD
(19°6b%'2) 00°0 (£0°6£9) (95'9£2) (£6°8£8) (50'S5/) S3SNIAX3 TI0YAVd ¥IHLIO
[4:15: 33 000 (16'+82'D) (€5°029'T) TH'ET0'8 (s5'6¥2) JSNAX3 IAVIT @3NV
(€5°005'TH) 000 (£0°06+'7) (50°56€'S) (68205'0¢) (9s°2T1'E) 3SN3dxX3 9340
(£8'895°c) 000 (82'982) (£1°86) (#6'£95'D) (b+'919) SWIOLINN
(10°99€'S) 000 (09°6£4) (6£°€8%) (8T /SP'D) (b€'589'T) SIIS - S1143IN3d JIA0TdWI
(gzese’sLT) 000 (66'205'ST) (z8'€56'82) (tz2LT'etn) {9z'819'61) S¥3d - S1I43N38 IIA0TdWA
(ocevs'ver) 000 (cTope’cd) (1£°98£'€€) (2£7905'8¢€T) (P1€0160) SNI "03W - S1I43N3g 3TA0TdWA
(zs-66¥°21) 000 (8£'590°1) (18'026'D) (b1°851°2) (6L ¥¥E'D DIQIW/VDI4 - S114aN3g JIA0TdIWI
(96'6£9°8CT) 000 (96'10£'6T) (00°+09'8€) (00'24¥'18) (00°0€'6T) 301440 - TIO¥AVd
(zz'£02'605) 00°0 (95°06£'9T) 000 (68°669'552) (££914'9€) FONVNALNIVIN - TIO¥AVd
(59°'186'8£7) 00°0 (£2°65€°08) (Tz°24£'89) (82'£65'8ET) (6€°£¥8'TH) YADYNVYI - TIOUAVd
8E'E/'9E 16°ST ob'#0'T 19'0/2°C $1°680°CE 7E£°€S0'T INNIATE YIHLO
SL6%9'SL S/'649'S/ 000 000 000 00'0 JWOONI TVINTY
00'651°C 000 000 00°0 00'651°C 000 FONVINSNI INIT ANTIAYAS
99°756°0T 00'0 000 000 99'256'0T 00'0 FONVYNSNI SSOT INTTAYAS
€6'9LET 000 00°0 000 £6'9/€'T 00'0 INNIAZY NEWAY INTIASIS
00°0S2’S 00°0 000 00°SL€E 00'5/8'F 00°0 334 MIIATY NVTd
1TH9St 00°0 00°855 ST'S9S°T 96'0b'S 000 3NNIATY 33 YIJSNVEL
£2°996'08L 00'0 €T Tv8eT 2€048'19T 89'£97°06 09'99£'91€ SINIWLSIANI NO LSTHILNI
00°005'80T 00'0 00°0 000099 00'006'T0T 00°0 5334 NOLIDANNOD
S0°0TE 000 000 000 S0°0TE 000 S434 ¥O3HD NiNL3Y
16°S€S'8 00'0 000 000 16'SES'8 00'0 SADUVYHD FDIAYAS
S9'0Z¥'TL 000 vL82T'L 8£99H'TT £S5ty 000 §334 ¥3ISN NO SALLTYNAd
££'560°9T1 000 00°0 £P'HTEST 0£°1££'001 000 NOLLAWNSNOD TVIDUIWWOD
20'€09°0/ 00°0 000 00'0 - 70°€09°0Z 000 NOLLD3LOYd FHIH TVIDUIWWOD
66'GZS'1SE 00'0 000212 08'825'1€ 61°£48'142 000 IVIDEIWIWOD - S334 ¥3sN
/8'/86'€9 00'0 000 00°0 [8'/86'€9 000 NOLLY3LOYd FYI4 TVILNIQISIY
AT 000 00'0 00'0 AT 00'0 NOLLAWNSNOD € Y3LL TYLLNIQISIY
L£°865°0V 00'0 00'0 00°0 LE°865°0F 000 NOLLAIWNSNOD 7 ¥3IL TYILNIQISIY
1€°292°6¥C 00°0 00'0 6£°69/81 76°£66'0€C 000 NOLLJWNSNOD T ¥3LL WVIINIAISIY
JNNIATY
lejoL nu _."”__Mw,m__m_‘ﬂmw WIDads aNN4 ¥3M3S | AONNJYILVM | ANNd TVHIN3D
AYAOWIY MONS
¥20cC/LE/E 4O SV .
133HS JONVIVE

14vdd

10141S1a INJFWIAOHUdAWI TYHINTO AHNGSONDI




9 :abed

Wd £0:2T:S +202/0¢/b a1eq

(61°€81'D) 000 (88'912) (8£'002) (b2 e81'T) (6£°18) TAIAVIL
(00zes'T) 00°0 (st"912) (sg-z6g) (s1°524) (s5°£6T) SUYNIWIS ANV ONINIVYL
(bv'265°TT) 000 (zs211) 1z vio'n) (61°€82°01) (zs°211) ANOHdI 3L
(90°981'2) 0070 00°0 000 (90/981°7) 000 S100L TIVIWS/SITddNS dOHS
(21°e9'1) (0528) (o1v20) (81°54t) (9£°199) (85°661) S3I9¥VHD NOLLYDIIand
(61°650'8) 00'0 (££:800'T) (80°008'2) (F£r0S2'Y) 00°0 39V1S0d
(66'6£6'9) 000 (98'€9) (F1°€8¢) (€1°£5¢'9) (98°S€T) $334 ANV SLIWY3d
(69°v22'8) (v6"¥¥T) (zvzsy) (482 d)] (z1°£94'%) (68°89¢) Saddns 331440
(oz'1EE'ew) 000 (95'991'2) (9£°666CT) (2£'866'S7) (95°991°7) AIN3Y SILLNIDVA ANV 301440
(00°785°€T) (007008'2) (s5°£82) (og'ses'T) (09'05'€) (55°£82) TVIYOLINYC 301440
(¢zzer'on) (15°920'S) (91°¢+8'T) (ze'106) (F8211'D) (bve€T) SIINLIANIXT SNOINVTIIISIW
(00°84T) 000 000 000 (008 1) 000 $334 NAN
(00°00+'S) 000 000 000 (00"00'S) 000 INIVIN B YIVdIY ¥I1TW
(05 0+9'8T) 000 000 00°0 (05°0t9'8T) 00'0 S1¥Vd AYOLNIANI
(98'S£0) 000 00°0 00°0 (98°5£2) 000 ANIWAINDI AL34VS
(z9°28L'vET) (16°265'C) (08vzr'y) (85°5£5'92) (£6'66£'56) (08'vTr'y) SANOF ANV 3DNVANSNI
(eT9ze1T) 000 (c6'v) (1£°¥55°S) (99°192'G) (c6'%) ISNIdX3 ALTIND3S
(ev'65€'9) 000 (99°522'9) 000 000 (22°€€1'T) SNOIS B ST100.L ‘SArddns a13id
(€1°520'1T) (szorT) (+9°868) (8T /21'€E) (25269'9) (bv"091) TVINTY INFWIINDI
(£v°080°26) (00°s2T) (15°6T) (15°89+"22) (#0906'€T) (£€'199) SUIVdIY/ LNIVIN/SIT1ddNS "dINO3
(95°569'TT) 000 (67°965) (65°5k2'E) (6£°£52'2) (62°96%) SNOLLATY2S4NS 8 Sand
(99'999'T) 00'0 00'0 (99°999'1) 000 000 MOTd YIM3IS - NOLLYAYISNOD
(6£°9v'95) 00'0 (99'808'¢) (59:990°21) (T+"062'6£) (z9°082'1) 3SNIdX3 ¥ILNdWOD
(€v'96T°0T) (€0'122'D) (90°2v€) (9£'250'0) (z6'88L'y) (90°z$€) "LNIVIN ANV SuIVd3d ONIAIINg
(££'689'69) 00°0 (01°558'8) (ST°SPT'H0) (2°'689°9¢) 00°0 SADAUYHD NNvE
(5£'120'59¢) 000 000 (5£°120'59¢€) 000 00°0 SLNIWSSISSY VS110a
(S2°6£T'bpS) 000 000 (SL°6€T'¥HS) 000 00°0 08 W V.Lvd-0dd ¥S110d
(89'/pE'ED) 00°0 (89°LvE"Eh) 000 000 000 ONIANVS - TYAOWIY MONS
(88'96£8bE) 000 (88°96£8p€) 00'0 000 000 ONIMOTd - TYAOWIY MONS
(00°808°¢SS) 000 000 000 000 (00°808'€5S) SArddNS 3 IONYNILNIVIN QvOd
(09'825T) 000 000 000 000 (09°825'T) J9VNIVYA ANV NOISOY3
(10°92£'92T) 000 (z0°z€s) (96°8€7'T) (0s°010°2) (€SHTT8TT) ONIAIAUNS B ONIYIINIONT
(00°050°T) 000 (00°S0T) (05°841) (00°0£9) (05'9€T) SNOLLVILO93AN ¥0av1 - Tvoa1
ANN3IATY
jejoL MMM"MWMM.Q@GN 1VvIDaAdS AaNNd 43m3as daNNd ¥431VM | dNNd TVH3NID
TVYAOWIY MONS
v20c/LE/E 40 SY
133HS AONVIVE

14vdd

10141S1Ad LNJWIAOHdIWI TYHINTO AHNGSONI




£ obed

Wd £0:21:§ $20Z/0E/t :21eg

S€'960°6¥9'6Y $ |LS°S6S'TET $ |(¥0'069°sZ) $ |6£°100°098's $ |6E'LTT'STIS'PE $ [V0'TL0'890'6 $ ALINDA ANNd [eaol
(16'88T1°0SS'T) £9'0LL'EY (9£'929'8tT) (£6'£0£'959) (S£'790'vTL'T) 0S"EEP'SE6 STUNLIANIdXI YIAO ANNIATY $S30XT [EI01
(0V'8€9°590°T) 000 000 (¢6'+0T9%) (8F°EESZTOT) 000 3SNIdX3 NOLLYIDIUd3q
(1v'sz8's) 00°0 000 000 (1¥'528'L) 000 SANOS 40 NOLLYZILYOWY
(95°62+'1SEY) 00'0 (10°e8b'02T) (16086'898) (Tv'19¢'6£1°E) (cz'v09'28T) AY1LNO WLIdYD
(0£/9¢€'612) 00'0 000 000 (0£'9€€'612) 00°0 JISNADXT 1SFHALNI
(bb"65p'0P) 00°0 00'0 000 (¥v'65b'0%) 000 dX3 WILSAS INSWLYIYL ¥3LYM
(0gs8veT) 000 00'0 000 (0£°58p'2T) 000 ISNIdXT WALSAS 1SIA ¥ALYM
(¢99/8'91) 000 00'0 00'0 (£9'9/8'91) 00'0 AINIFWOYNVIN QTHS YIMIS/HTLYM
(00'8bT'TT) 00°0 000 00°0 (00°8r1'1T) 00'0 ONIdINYS/ONTHOLINOW 3 LYM
(16'625'%€) 000 (6£°€20€) 000 (91'v62'6T) (9g7212'TT) W3 dx3 HAA
(¥8'62H'£E) 00°0 (66'508°€) 000 (69°65+'82) (9T1'+91'9) ddnS/110/13nd dx3 I1DIHIA
(£b'89¢'£20) (62'15121) (9z'1£8) (c0'025°4T) (£9'¥56'96T) (oz'1£8) JIY10313 8 SvO - SALTLLN
(00°052'€€) 000 (05°289'T) (o0'szT’om) (00°052'00) (05°£89'D) 5334 33.1SMAL
IANNIATY
jejol >._“ ...__.M_MM_“_M_Q%N IVIDAdS AdNN4d ¥3Mm3s ANN4 33LYM | ANNd TYY3INTD
TVAOWIE MONS
v20¢C/LE/E 40 SV
133HS FONVIVE

14vdd

10141S1Ad INFWIAOUdWI TVHINIO AHNDSONDI




g :abed

Wd £0°Z1:S ¥T0Z/0E/ *eq

¥1°92£'GOT‘9T $ - $ - $ TYLLLS $ TL'8SG'9ST9T $ SANNA TVINTFWNYIA09 TVLIOL
££°069°G68LvT § - $ - $ - $ IYLLL8 $ 1i01ans
8rove’eest $ : $ - $ sper ¢ o00°2Z626Z2S‘T $ INIWINDT ? STTDIHIA
CL'LSO°TE $ ” $ - $ - $ Zr/LSo‘1e $ INIWdINDI 301440
§Z°Z8r°9ZT ¢ - $ . $ . $ GZT8r'9ZL $ anvi
PI098961vCr $ - $ = $ - $ pro9ce6rcr ¢ JYNLINYLISYHINI
96°69ZL9 $ . $ = $ - $ 96°69Z°29 $ INIWdIND3
8/'089°VES $ E $ & $ p6'8cL'8 $ PB8'IS6°52S $ SSIHO0Yd NI NOILONHISNOD
TYINTIWNEINO0D
00'SSZ9ET'T % - $ - $ - $ 00°S82'9€T‘t $ vioLans
00°G82'9€T'T $ - $ - $ - $ 00°G8L9€TT 3 TINLONYLSYIANI
12V ANO8 J0HVL
LTTLO'TOT'T § - $ - $ eLSTS'Y $ SS'9PT'Z60'T $ 1vLiOLENS
6E+£2'979 3 - $ - [3 - $  6EVLL'979 [3 AINTWAINDI B STDIHIA
7£'08b'SL $ - $ - $ - $ zeosy'ss $ AINVId ALTILLN
[9°ETH'6 $ - $ - $ - $ /9°€eh’6 $ ANIWAINDI 301440
61°+C6'€6 $ - $ - $ - $ 6T'vT6'€6 $ anvl
#8'028'61 $ . $ - $ - $ t80T8'eh ¢ TANLONYLSVAANI
87785 $ - $ - $ - $ 8/T85'bb ] AINIWAINOI
80'99910¢ $ - $ - $ TLSTS'y $ 9g'0bT'L6T $ SSTYO0Ud NI NOLLDMILSNOD
AaNNd MONS
L8'8L8'9T6'ET $ - $ - $ 0L 1STY $ LI'/T9TT6'ET $ TVLIOLANS
60995206 § - $ - $ 8v'sb $ 719215706 $ AINIWAINDI B STTOIHIA
18'408°08 $ - $ - $ - $ 18'v08°08 $ INVId ALTTLLN
8C'09£'€2T'T $ - $ - $ - $ sgroog'eze't ¢ 9Aa1g AUNGSONIN 862
SK'EE9'TE $ - $ - $ - $ Sp'Ee9’1e $ AIN3WdINO3 321440
90'855'CE $ - $ - $ - $ 90°855'CE $ anvl
0E'¥SL'60E'TT  § - $ - $ - $ 0€¥SL'60E'TT  $ THNLONYLSYUANT
81'/81'cT $ - $ - $ - $ 81°/8T'¢e $ INIWAIND3
0L'FT0EEE $ - $ - $ TTE0T'y $ 8p'1T8'8ZE $ SSTAD0Ud NI NOLLONYLISNOD
¥20Z/TE/E suoneayissejday siesodsia suonippy veoz/62/c AaNNd TVYINID
ajuejeqg $S91 aauejeg
Suipuz Sujuuisag
SLNNODJV 13SSY

.hfb o il

UBWR)S 193YS doUR)eg U0 SPUNJ 1e}udLIanod
oy} uj papiodal Jou a1e ‘9104a13Y) ‘pue S82IN0SAI |BI2UBULJ JOU 38 SIIIAIIIE |eIUBLIUIIA0S Ul Ppasn S}3SSe Pasea) asn-03-}ysu pue syasse jendes,

v2oe/LE/E 4O SY

133HS JONVIVE

10141S1d LINJWIAOHdIWI TYHIANIO AHNGSONDI




6 :abed

Wd £0°Z1:S $702/0¢/ 31eq

8T'VV6'TL00T $ - $ - $ 691T20'VE $ 6v'TT6°LS0'0T $ SANN4 TVINIWNYIA09 TV10L
GC09ZLYCIT § - $§ - SR $ SI'I699¢ $ 1loians
£0°9IeSLI‘T  § - $ = $ IZLETY $ 98°8/089I'T §$ INIWCINDT ® ST1DIHIN
L0°9IES/I°T  § - $ - $ £SIYe $ 02'TL9°ST $ ANYId ALITILN
€L°TI09L $ = $ = $ 9re699C $ 6r'62r'zer $ ‘09d79 AYNASONI 86C
00°croCer $ 5 $ = $ 8YryeLT $ zsiziZ6er $ INIWdIND3 321440
£E°E9E6T $ s $ G $ ZL09 $ G9°20E6T $ any1
557528998 § o $ = $ 82°065€C $ LTVILvr9'e § JYNLONYLSVYYINI
91°688°09 $ - $ - $ LvLS $ 66742809 $ INIWdINOI
2 o - $ = S i $§ - $ $SIY90Yd NI NOILONYISNOD
TVINIWNYEINOD
T1'8LT'¥P9 $ - $ - $ - $ TT'S/T'PP9 ¢ violans
T1'8/1%49 $ - [3 - $ - $ TT8.Tvb9 $ TANUONYLSVHANI
1OV ANOg FOHVL
ST'6E9'E6 $ - $ - $ €T8S8'Y $ ¢6'08Z'88 ¢ 1violans
£b'0p6'96€ $ - $ - $ £OVOb'Y $ 0r'9/b'z6€ $ INIWAINDI B STTDIHIA
8891/, $ - $ - $  S9'b9T1 $ €CTssL $ ANY1d ALTILLN
SOE1T'L $ - $ - $ 2099 $ £08pT'L $ ANIFWAINDI 321440
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ anvi
$8'0£6'6€ $ - $ - $ L9001 $  £1°0€8'6€ $ ANLONALSVHINI
S6'264'TY $ - $ - $ 98'¢€T $ 60FLL'TH $ AIN3AWLINGA
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ SSTAD0Ud NI NOLLONYLSNOD
dNNd MONS
Z6'9ZT'vE6'S § - $ - $ 9P'E9T'6C $ 9P'€96'V06'8 $ TVLOLANS
¥9'GLE'844 $ - [3 - $ 8T'€LL'T $ 94°209'G// $ 1INIWAINOI B STIDIHAA
58'S62'8 $ - $ - $ 88'9/1 $ /6'817°8 $ AINVId ALTIILN
S6'864'bTT $ - $ - $ 946997 $ 6b'6CT'cc $ A1 AINISONDA 86T
LE°€9E°6T $ - $ ) $ 209 $ S9Z0g'61 $ INIWCIND3 31440
09°507'¥86'Z $ - $ - $ T196bb'EC $ 66'SS2096'L % FANLDNYLSVHANI
15°/80°61 $ - $ - $ 19'€E $ 06'€S0°6T $ ANIWdING3
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ SSFY90Ud NI NOLLONYLSNOD
Y20C/TE/E suonelisse)day sjesodsiq suonippy ¥20¢Z/6C/T aNNd TvY3INaD
aouejegd SS9 aouejeg
uipu
Buipu3 Bumuideq SINNODIY “4d3d WNODY
2C0C/LE/E 40 SY
133HS FONVY1vVd

g M1

10141S1d INFWIAOUAIWI TYHINIO AHNGSONDI







A3dNIgGINOOD ANN4 11V

S3dNLIANddXd
ANV dNN3AJd 40 LINJW31VLS

¥¢0¢ HOdVIN






(z591) ) 00'9v2'Z¢6' LI'005Z5S 00'226°cEL L LIIT98T8 (vZ'190°9) 00'909°028 92'865¥98 T g IN A [EJoL
(z6cd) ) 00°€91'8IEL 620971 00'6E0°T6V'S 62°60.'195 65'€85C 00'168°C65 6GPLY 165 S334 ¥3sN [0l
00'1587 00Zz 00281 T 00'65+7 (ovD) 00'8€C 09°2€¢ IONVHNSNI ANIT INIAYIES
00'1L08'G1 00058’} 99'756'0} (z556) 00'L1€') 87’12’ JDONVUNSNI $SOT INITANIS
00'9£8'} 00'6.€"} £6'9/8' 0't 00'ES) SOYS1 INNIATY NINGY INITAYIS
%80°0% AN 00'00Y'S FAT 00'6¥0'y A 089y, 00°05Y 08'964') 3NNIATY 334 HIISNVHL
%00°05Z 00°005'22 00'000° 1€ 00'00€'E8 0000252 00°005'80} 00'001° 00°009 00°002't $334 NOILOINNOD
00°08¥ 00'09¢ S004E 0002 00'0% 00'09 $334 MOIHO NunL3Y
00'00¢'%} 00°008°0} 16°5EG'8 00°002° ST SIOYYHO IDINYIS
00'9/6'%L 59'881'Sl 0026295 S902Y' 1L 7L E6' 00'872'9 zZL78L's $334 ¥3SN NO STLTYNId
%15C £'880' 00°£00'€Z} €1'6/6'22 00'9L1'€0} £2°560°921 18'590°} 00'L50'S 189119 NOILAWNSNOD TYIDHINNOD
00'EL'v6 2oL 00'209'02 20'€09'02 00'578'L BLYYE'L NOILOTLONd T4 TYIOHINNOD
00'L86'voY 66'991 'y 00'£68' L€ 66'526'15E 00°80Z'6¢ B0'EEL'6E TVIONINWINOD - $334 ¥3SN
00'222'€8 18'085' 00'£5'29 19'186'69 - 50'06€ 00'0v6'9 SO'0EE"L NOILOTLOYd M4 TVILNIAISTY
00'006'69 00'€28'€S TeEATAY 85'6€9 00'669 85°8€E’} NOILIWNSNOD € ¥3IL TvILNIAISTY
00°000'89 00°02€'05 1£°9660F 00070 z7E'56¢') NOILAWNSNOO Z ¥3IL TvILN3QIS3Y
00'00%'19€ 00'8/2'8.2 1E'192'652 00'059'%2 BLSLL6L NOILAWNSNOD | ¥3IL TVIINIQISTY
00'51.2'906'S 00'620'GkY'Y 66'850°CH'Y 78'798'C 00212 L6¥ Z8'920'106 TVILNIQISTH - §334 438N
s334¥3sn
%1616 86'962'706 00'S12'6¥S 86'Z1E'Zr9 00'659°LL¥ 86'126°250°) 01°68¥°€9 00'989'GY 0152160} SNOINVTIIISIN [E301
%ITGE 8EL6V'6 009692 8ETHT 9l 00'1€2'02 8CELP9E vty 008v2T TTs9 INNIATY HIHLO
00'€GE'E0) 00'pIS'LL G2'679'GL 96201 00'€19'8 965128 JNOONI TY.LNIY
%0004} 00'062'2 00005 00'529° 00'529° 00°052° 00'5Z} 00521 00052 334 MIINTY NYd
%G5G /8 ££095'v98 00'988'9Lp £1°/59'89Y 00'682ZL€ £2'976'082 18'182°€5 0000275 1818188 SINIFNLSIANI NO LSIHIUNI
%000 V769’551 000 z1'759's64 000 71'259'561 00'502° 00'0 00'502'S LNVYO ¥d3 30H8N0S LNIOd NON 61€
SNOANVTIIOSIN
00'298'¥90°2 00'622'628'} 05°972'799'} 00'620°16Z 16'388'I51 saxvlieol
00'020°062 €50 00755265 £5255265 00 0066869 11°6€8°G9 NOILNEIYLSIA XL 3LYLS
00'625'195 00'E89'¥S 69'959'}LY 00'666'2. £9'9.9°0% dNFIVN NZHOTVAQY
%178l 98 LyL 00'0L'Y 9¢'Ly. 00'V0L'Y 9g'158'y 00'0 00'0 000" XYL ALHIOYd WNOSHId
00'59)'60. 00°068'289 6'€89'G65 00'L61'26 LTSS SaXVL WIHOTYAQY
Saxvl
S3NNaATY
Buureway
106png mucu_a> JoBpng [EI0L ERITTTETY 160G QLA lenjoy aosuepep 1ebpng 1abpng |enyoy
B0 Jua213g Jjabpng |ejol “_.omvzm ali Jeaj jusun) poliad jusiing poudd juaung pouad juaungd

¥202/1£/€ uSnoayl $Zoz/L/€ wold
salnpuadx3 pue sanuaAay Jo JusLwdeIS

10141S1d INJWIAOUdWI TVHINIO AHNGSONDI




7 o8

Wd 8¢:6¥F FTOT/0E/Y 2®d

%000 000 000 99'999' 000 000 000 MO ¥3IM3IS - NOILYAYISNOD
%8¢°8S 1926162 00'6€9'GEL 19€65 Ly 00°000%01 6€°91'98 12296'C 00°2¥2°01 6,618 3SNIdX3 ¥3LNdWOD
%0828 1ST0V'EL 00'665'€9 1566¥'2S 00'969'79 £7'96L0L 0r'eL€'9 00'296'9 09'€65 "LNIV ONY SHIvd3d oNIaTing
%86'7e £2'802'€T 0086826 00'699'69 12699'69 00ZhL L ¥6'295' SIDUVHO YNvE
%0000} 00'96.'6p 0096267 00'96.'6% 00'962'6Y 00'0 000 000 000 s1g3a ave
%06'7C 62200121 00°620°98¥ 00225 ¥98 6/'120'69¢ 000 000 000 SLINIWSSISSY vSL10d
%00'5C TR AR 00'€59'GeL A 00°0¥Z FrS CTAGTA A 000 000 000 0% W Y1vy-0dd vSL10a
%0000} 00'009'9 000099 00'009'9 00'009'9 000 00'002' 000022 000 ONIDI IQ/LNY TYAOWTY MONS
%02 2k 2e59'le 00°000'G2 A4 N 0000519 89/¥8'Sy 00°000°0} 1991¥'11 ONIANYS - TYAOWIY MONS
%G0'6S Z1'€09'9z¥ 00'000'62Z Z1'€09°14€ 00000022 89°96€0YE 00'000'621 G1'€22'L61 ONIMOT - TYAOWIY MONS
00°000°0€ 00°005'Z1 00'808°€SS 000 000 000 S3NddNS ® IONVYNILNIVIN QVOY
%68'66 OrLLY'eT 00'000'SZ OF L2v'SL 00°000'Z} 09'825'} 00'0 000 000 I9YNIVHA ANY NOISOY3
0000689 00'86%'L5 10'9z2'92) 05'€8¢ 00'999' 05282' ONIAIANNS ¥ ONIYFINIONT
%000 000 000 00°050°t 000 00'0 000 SNOILYILO93N HO8Y1- T¥931
%69°€S LLIST'LE 00'000'8S L1'S52°91 00'86t'SY 68ThL'9C 052€€'2 00'%€8'Y 051052 WO
00'000'Sy 00'000'SY A AN 000 000 000 - ONILNNOJOY
SASNIAXT ONILVNIdO
%G99y 20°985°620°L 00622202 20°661°88Y 00°0¥8'599° 86°0¥9°2LL'L 0L'ZLE 9 00°065°081 06'21Z'vEL S3SNAdX3 A31v13d 1108AVd [BloL
%EE IV 000 ISNIdX3 IONVYMOTIV HVD
%9ECY 6£°008°) 00052y 6E9E5'L 00986'¢ LO'6hY'T G0'88 0088 SASNIdXI TIOHUAYd ¥IHLO
%SL°LLL 71’8592 00'008'22 [AATAA 0072891 009/8'L 95ZEY'e ISNIAX3 AV J3NYIDV
%bl'8L LrEiEsy) 00728681 ¥ 006°00} 00°10¥'ZrL £5°005'L¥ EgLTLL 00'€28'l L9 3SN3dX3 8340
%.8'L9 11826 00'09¢°6 21'162'G 00°09¢'6 £8'895°C 000 000 000 SIWYOJINN
%65 B6°128'2 00'8€2°€1 66'769'Y 00'190°0} LO'99E'S 00'k6)'1 £5'50%'} SIS - S1I43NI8 3TA0TNT
%60°} ¥ AR YR 7 AR 00'990°10¢ rANA LAY 00°56/'5¢¢ 82eSE 1L 78'625'. 0068062 81'€95°21 SY3d - SLI4INIF IFA0TINI
%8L b 0L0v2°281 00'€86'90¥ 02299'L8 00'50v'ClE 0€2vL'vee 20'680'9 00'925°1€ £6°0¥1'SZ SNI'G3W - SLIJIN3D IFA0TdN3
%9)'G¢ 878219 008261 87'966'L 00°95¥'¥1 ZGB6V'TL 00'909' 68GLL) 2133014 - SLI4INIE 33A0TdNI
%L 92 ¥0'G26'0F 0065961 70'650'C 00'6EL°LEL 96'6/9'821 00°8€9°v1 0Z0€z'9l 301440 - 110HAYd
%pE vh 8.'80€'9KC 00°715'655 8.°92t' L0} 00°ZE9'0LY 22602'60€ L1 6r8'9 00°€62°9% 68'EYY'6E FONYNILNIVIN - TIOHAYd
%8Sk GE'LER'GET 00°€L8'VLS GE'/ZV'201 00'60)98¢ 69'186'8.¢ 0v'985'21 00106y 091862 HIADYNYI - TI0HAYd
S3SNIdX3 031V TI0¥AVd
SIUNLIANIdX3
Buureway d2UBMERA aoueLBA |enjoy aaueuep 3obpng 1abpng |enjoy
yoBpng : 1ebpng [ejo) : yoBpng QLA y
101 Jusaseq jabpng [ejo) 39bpng Q1A 189\ Judun?g poudd juaung)  poldd uaungy  poLidd Juaun?

¥202/1€/€ usnolyl ¥20Z/L/€ woiy
sain}ipuadx3 pue senusAdy JO JUdWALLIS

10141SI1A INIWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




¢ 982q

N 8€:6Fb PZ0T/0¢/p 2%

%6092 95°€96°ThY'1 00°€LL'1ES'S 9G°EYC 892 00'€S 95 Y 7'602'880'Y 00°L¥5'78¢ 12'959'68¢ SASNIAXI ONILYHIO [EI0L
%¥S' €T 09'8Lv'22€ 00'260°16€"} 00'L6Z'EV0'L 0¥’ 8E9'€90°1 00'226'4 1 £6'26512L ISNIJX3 NOILYIOFH43d
%00'52 65809 0070l 650 00'9z8°2 '628'L 160 000£8 67698 SANOS 40 NOILVZILHOWY
%15ty 95°05¥'2€ 00'0L6'22 9622yl 00'289'%S 657 0F 009209 99'988'}1 dX3NILSAS INFWLYIHL HILYM
%ET18 0L ¥E0'vS 00025'99 0L'€0F'LE 00'688'6Y 0€'587°2h 8€'8€E"y 00'¢rS'S 79'702'L ISNIJXI WALSAS 1SI0 HIALVM
00°005'G1 00'005'G} 19'9/8'9) 000 000 000 LININOVYNVIA IHS HIMIS/HILYM
%8L'GE 00’1129 00'65¢°21 00128 00'6L0°C) 00811 00ceL 0027} 00'GLL ONITdNYS/ONIHOLINOW HILYM
%62'8¢ 60'62V'1C 00'6G6'55 60'6EV'L 00'696'LY 16'625'VE 00'€99'y 056092 ABY dX3 H3A
%802 91'826'06 00'85€'971 91'9£8'85 00'992'96 y8'6CY L€ G5'€06'2 00'969°0) S¥'T6LT ddNSMI0N3Nd dX3 F10IH3A
%LY'SC £6°0€6'LL 00'662'S0€ 00995612 1’89842 (A1 0006812 i A QL0373 8 SVO - SALNILN
%00'62 00052t} 00'000'St 000 00'062°¢€ 00'05.°€E 000 00'05.'¢ 00'0S2'¢ $334 331SNdL
%5968 18'916'81 0000L'LC L8'0Y9'el 00'728'GL 6LEBLT 00092} 00092} 000 TAAVHEL
%0466 00'880'VE 00'029'5E 00281'SC 00%12'9C 00Z€5't 00'696'7 00'696°C 000 SHYNIWAS ANV ONINIVYL
%SL°0¢ 9G2S 0007291 95796 00'§55'T) 7’266 L1 2169 00'96¢°} 88'92¢') ANOHd314AL
%.14'89 v6'el8Y 000002 ¥6'€90°C 00'052°G 90'981'C ¥1°08% 00'¥8S 98'c0l ST00L TIVAS/S3NGdNS dOHS
%6 L2 88'959°G 00'00¢'2 88'9¢Y 000202 AR N 000 000 000 S3OYVYHO NOILYDIaNd
%lC9 L8069 00'000'G} 18'68LC 00'6¥Z'1) 616508 000 000 000 39v150d
%866 10126 00'LL6'6 10'0S2'} 000612 66'6€6'9 00058 24606 $334 ANV S1INY3d
%¥3'¥8 LE'9LE'Y 00'L65'¥S 1£'/99'2¢ 00'2¥6'0F 69228 AT 00'915F GLl80'e $3NddNS 301440
00'82Z€'ey 00'gz¢'ch 0zZ'LEC'er 000 000 000 IN3d S3ILMOVY4 ANY 301440
%9€'68 00'96.'8 00'2¥E'2e 00'202°¢ 008520l 00'LSS'EL 00290t 00'298°} 00°008 TYIJOLINYF 301340
%8Y'0L €1°691°vC 00'882'v€ £L'¥66'S) 00LLLee 1TTTL0L 8G'1¥L'C 00'/68°C [AA 172 SIUNLIINIAXT SNOINVTIIOSIN
%080 0020 00052 007201 00'062 008yl 000 00050 S334 N3N
%00'C8 00'009'%C 00°000°0€ 00'009'6 00°000°G} 00°00¥'S 000 000 000 LINIVIA B dIvd3d 3313
00'005'S} 00°005°S} 050798l 000 85652} S1dvd AJOLNIANI
%9582 71798 007001t ¥l'6EL 00646 98°'5¢eC 00004 00001 000 INININDT AL3IVS
%89V 866290 00'90 1 ¥l 8£'865'C 00'4¥E'2€1 7978LYEL 00'55¢°} 80'606'1 SANOS ANY JONVHNSNI
%.L9'LE LIPve9 00kLL'8l LLU6TL'T 00'95¥°¢l £T9CE L1 0092 £8'060'} ISN3dX3 ALMND3S
%bc6.L 180222 00°0£9°0¢ 15°060'72 00°05t'0¢ £7'65€°9 0005 0008 000 SNOIS B ST100L ‘S3NddNS a13l4
%C1'CT 18yie'e 00°0YE'1 18Y8 000111 £1°G20°}) 006112 A A TY.LNIY INSNCIND3
%EY09 1529071 00'969'¢C 156068 00985'921 £1°080°26 BEPYY'6 00708'81 29'64€'6 SHIVdIY/ INIYAISITddNS "dIND3
%2902 ' 270'e 00'€h2'y} #r'6LeT 00'LI6E) 956691 00°06S 00065 000 SNOLLJI¥OSENS % Sand
Bujuiewsay
Jobpng ajueLep o — ERTTTTY 10Bpng QLA |enjay asuelep Jobpng 1obpng lenjoy
[£30) Jusosed 1eBpng |ejo) 1ebpng QLA JR3A JUdLINY | pousd Jusung  poudd Juaun)  Poudd Judung,

¥202/1€/€ usnoayl ¥2oe/L/€ wold
saimpuadx3 pue SaNUSASY JO JUSLIBILIS

10141S1a INJWIA0OUdWI TVHINIO AHNESONDI




p :98eg

Wd 8¢°6FF ¥TOL/0E/Y 2B

60°9¥'029°2 60°068'LY'9 62'G16'Z8) 00°8€€°0E 62°€5Z°¢1T STUNLIANIdXT YIAO ANNIATY $S3IX3

%1S'8h 26782'992°6 0066820161 7C'685'998'S 00°900°€0L'G ) 89919'98'6 £0'€86'381 00°892°0%8 16982159 STUNLIONIAXT [e10L
%8165 vlocL'e6l'o 00°26F49€°L) L'9¥6'60L'S 00°€12°0896 92'992°0.6°Y 0L0zL'hl 00Lel'slz 0£0LY 221 S3ASNAdXI ¥IHLO [eloL
%5909 ¥0.5'90.°9 00'000'850°} } P LIY'660G 00180576 95 62r15E T IS019'Sh) 00°065°6¥2 61°616'€0) AVILNO TYLIdYD

%P 82 0£091'28 00°26¥°90¢ 0€'G65'0} 00228622 0L'9EE'612 68°601' 00°L¥5'5Z LLEY'EZ 3SNAdX3 1STHIINI.

S3ISNIdX3 ¥3H10
Bulujewoy agueuep aouelep fenpoy asuepep Jebipng jebpng |lenyoy
3e6png ’ 136png [ejo : 39b6png g LA :
301 Jusaseq j1abpng [e101 1ebpng Q1A Jedj juaun) pouad jualng  pousdjuaiung  poliad Juaiun?

v202Z/1€/€ ysnoayl ¥20z/L/€ woid
sain)ipuadx3 pue SanusAay JO JuUsWA LIS

LO1d41SId LNFWIAOUdIWI TYHINTO AHNISONI




(GNN4 A9)

S3dNLIAN3IdX3
ANV dNN3A3Y 40 INJWALVIS

¥¢0¢ HOdVI






[ feq

Wd 14-02:¢ $TOT/E/P 1A

%(Lt"L82) {esv11'e8) 00'000'GE (€5'798°16) 00°052'92 £57LL'8LL 00986 00'916'C 00°086' ONIAZAYNS B ONIYIINIONT
%000 (059¢e1) 000 (0s°9¢1) 000 05°9¢1 000 000 000 SNOILYILOSAN H0gv1 - Tv931
9%09'6¢ 8l 00006 Leeey 007412 69162 18l 00'2he 9509 WO
%(21°24) (1198¢) 000622 (17'98¢) 00082'C 17'9€9'T 000 000 000 ONLLNNODOY
SISNIAX3 ONILYYIO
%G38'SY 6 V8L LEL 00°601°982 6£910°19 00°L¥6°61Z 19'FZ6'¥S1 £2'626 00'80¥'€Z 1818 SISNIdXT GILVT13H TIOUAVd le1oL
%99'0p (ze'ezs) (00°008) (zeeLh (00°009) (89°9¢y (00°29) (00'29 000 3SNIdXT FIONYMOTIV HvD
%(8¢°2¢) (50'502) 00085 (soeve) 00ZLy 50651 vo'oy 00°9F {#0°0) $3SNAdX T10HAYd Y3HLO
%1826 Sr'052'e 00'00'€ SrGIET 006292 55672 (0gczt) 00262 08'GLL 3SNIdX3 IAYITAINYOOY
%1562 vy L20'T) 00'061'G1 vr6.2'8 00°Z6¢'}1 96ZhL'E 01026 00'99Z'1 P'SYe ISNIdXT 83d0
%60'96 95284 000 95281 0070V’ pr91L9 000 000 000 SWHO4INN
%97} 99'682 00'G6'} (ves8l) 00°005' 7£'689') (1.2°201) 0084} LLG8T SIIS - SLI4ANAF JFA0TNI
VAYA 2220'61 00'L#9'8€ 21986 0008682 978196} CINAAN) 00'022'¢ 72160 S¥3d - S1143INIE ITAOTdIA
%9Y'EG 98'VeY'cee 0082529 98'78.'81 00°998' Ly vL'60L'62 11°605 00'088'% £79/8'Y SNI"G3N - SLI4ANTE 3FA0TdINT
%46} 12 007682 (6055) 0062’1 BL¥PE'T (z8°662) 00661 AR DIQINVOIL - SLIFANIE FIA0TdNA
%Y1 '9Z 00°2¥0°2 00'6¥€'92 00°09% 0079261 00°20¢'61 (e58¢2) 009612 £ePEY'T 301440 - TIOHAVd
%9/°G¢ £2 10102 0085128 £2161°9 00'898'2Y 1191298 (9t'895'¢) 0069y 9r'16£'8 JONYNILNIVA - TIOMAVd
%8Gy 19148 GE 00202 LL 19'890'9) 00°916'25 6E' L8 LY 08'2£9C 00'SEY'9 0Z'.6L°¢ HYIOVNYIN - TIOHAVd
SASNIdX3I QILYITY TIOHAVd
$3YUNLIANIdXT
%l816) (85'682°002) 00°951'Z81Z riveve 00'6L1°LL6°) Zv'991°286'l (60°28€%Y) 00°828"0¥2 16077961 SANNIATY lel0l
%b6'691 Z6'1£8°661 00'985Z11 76622622 00'061'88 I66IVIIE YE'ESI 8T 00'66.°6 VE766°8E SNOANVTTAOSIA lej0L
%EE'S s 0000071 ZEE0E 00052 ZEes0') (00°€8 0068 000 INNIATY HIHLO
%SE' 121 09'822'661 00°88G°9LL 09°926'62¢ 00°0p¥'28 09'996'01€ £'9£8'6C 009126 £'265'8¢ SINIWLSIANI NO LSTALNI
SNOANVTIIISIN
%(8E'61) (05" 128 '00%) 00'898790'2 (05°28¥'¥91) 00'622'628'1 05972 '¥99°) (erorL'el) 00'620°1£2 15898151 S3axvileo)L
%l00°GZ) (Iv 115 Z61) 00020062 €50 00786265 £5755265 o 00'6£8G9 [16E8'99 NOLLNEIYLSIA XYL TLYLS
%(00°91) (1£'028'68) 00'625'195 (1£720'e) 00'689'7¥S 69'859'L2Y (822828 00'666'22 £9'9/9'0F dirIAYIN WIROTVAQY
%1281 9c' L 00701y o' bl 00401y oG8y 000 00°0 000 XYL AL43dOdd WNOSHId
%(0091) (80'18%'¢hL) 00691604 (80'902°z6) 00'068'289 26'€89'665 (cezL8'0p) 00'161'26 LTINS SAXVL WIHOTYAQY
SaXVL
SANNIAIY
m:_:_mEom_ JVduBLRA pasiAsy JJuenep jenjoy oJueLIiep uomﬂsm “_mmv:m |enjoy
_S“Mmﬁ“”m._om uwm_u:m |ejol - uom_u:m jejol uom_usm ali uom_uzm aLa Jea ) jualn) polad juauny pouRd Juaung pouad jualngd «O h» Qz :l M§NZW0

14vdd

$202/1€/€ Ysnoyl ¥2oz/L/€ wold
saIn)puadx3 pue SaNUSASY JO JUBWARIS

10141SIA INJWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AHNISONDI




Z o8eg

Nd [7-0Z:€ PTOTAL/Y 1B

057898021 05'LLLE0L'} 05°'€EH'SER 00'892°v61 15'922'291 SIUNLIANTXT HIA0 INNIAIY SS30X3
%8E"4S 80°726'90¥°) 00°20£'S5¥'2 80'b20'6E0°) 00°252'580° T6°2EL'9V0') 09'SYE'Z) 00'090'0% orvLL'SE SUNLIANIXT lejoL
%08°06 LI'SS1Z08°) 00°092'786'1 LISSIT¥ST) 00092621 £T700Z81 82'98E°0) 0006571 17342 $3ISNIdX3 ¥3H10 18301
%0806 11561208} 00092786t IISSUIVST 00092622} £270928) 82°9850} 00'065 71 A AVILNO TVLIdYD
S3SNIdX3 ¥3HLO
00'9€8'v8) 00°950°0%1 80'702'60L |6g62t°1 00'290'8 Wzes's S3SNIAXT ONILYHIO [BI0]
%zl 0012101 CARARY 001667 9L 00°EV8 GLY08'e WBY dX3 HIA
%9519 ve1IZ'e 00'9Et'cL YeTI6'Y 00'220'04 oL'yaL's 9/'6£8 00'6HL'} AT ddnSroMand dx3 I10HIA
%6EEY V289 00'%L0't v2SL) 00°245 9T LIS 082y 00°101 02'es OI4L0FT3 B SYO - S3LMILN
%00'SZ 05295 00082 050 00'889° 05189’ 050 00'981 05281 $334 331SNYL
%9€ 96 12'891°C 000822 12'209' 00'689' 6.8 00'884 00881 00'0 JAAVNL
92856 SY'825'Y 00'92LY Gy e'S 00'bS'S 55261 00'¥6€ 00%6€ 00'0 SHYNIWES ANY ONINIVHL
%9 L2 B by 00'Z91 8r'e 00’12} G 160 00wl 60°Ck 3NOHdI 1AL
%6972 rse 00592 00°00} 86661 00'0 000 000 SIOYYHI NOILYDITENd
00°29 00°29 98'5€l 000 000 000 $334 ANV SLINY3d
%7 88 119927 00'SEL'E b1Z86') 001562 68'89€ 60'60} 00192 16’151 S$31ddNS 301440
009912 009942 95'991'¢ 000 000 000 IN3Y SIILIIOVS ANY 301440
%0829 sy 00°€2L Y62 00085 862682 00'%9 00'%9 000 TYIMOLINYF 301440
%6996 96'€78' 00'£450'2 95'650' 00'E6T'S eez 00'84S 00'985 000} STUNLIANIAX3 SNOINVTIFOSIN
%0000} 00'006 00°005 00'005 00'006 000 000 000 000 INIWAINDI AL34YS
%LLSH 02'92L'C 001519 02'92L's 00'LG1'8 08'vey'y 00'0 052 SONOS ANV JONVENSNI
%97 88 1048 00ZY 208 002k g6y 00 £6y ISNIdXT ALINNOIS
%05 76 £2'961'6} 00'0£9°02 £T91E'6) 00'05%'02 1IEEV) 0008 000§ 000 SNSIS 2 $T00L 'S3ddNS a13i4
%06'8Y 95'¢G) 00°pie 9G'vL 00'SEZ w09l 6L'S 0092 1802 TVINIY INTWIND3
%ES /8 £9'966'C 00°005'Y £9€187 00'G/E'E €195 V1 15E 00'62€ 92l SHIYdIH/ LNIYW/STddNS “dIND3
%ES'LL VoL 00'%29 VoLl 00'%29 62965 0028 0028 000 SNOILAI¥9SENS 3 $3ana
%69/ €802y 00'155'S £e1E6'2 00Z12Y 19082} 81'59¢ 00"y 7918 ISNIdXT ¥ILNAWOD
%078 ¥6'L96°) 00'706'} ¥6'80') 00'82t'L 90Zhe 91yl 00’651 eyl "LNIVIN ONY SHIvd3y ONIQTING
00'000'0¢ 00'006'2} 00'808'€55 000 000 000 $31ddNS B IDNYNILNIYW QYON
%68'€6 OV LLY'EZ 00'000'5Z 0F 1211 00'000'2L 09'825'} 00'0 00'0 000 J9YNIVYHA ANY NOISON3
Bujujewsy aouelep pasiAsy AdUBLEA |enjoy aoueuep jebpng j196png |enjoy
_muhwmu““”_cm ﬁcmusm lejol - “—omvzm jejol umm—uzm aia ammvzm aLA Jed  Juaungd Poliad jusling poliad jualng poliad uaun) «Q h\ QZ:& |~§mzm°
¥202/1LE/€ ysnoayl +Z0e/1/€ wold
sain)puadx3y pue SeNUaAdY JO JUSLIRLEIS
= 10141510 LNTJWIAOHdWI TYHINID AHNISONDI




¢ 2feq

W 1#+0T-€ YE0T/0E/Y D1

10141510 INJWIAOHdWI TVHINTO AHNESONDI

%89'6¢ 98'8L'Y 00'206'41 98222 00'1€6' pL8SL'L 50'80Z 00°'Z66 66'€8. 2IG3NYOI4 - SLISINIE FTA0 TN
%pL9Z 0006281 00'292°0L 00'62Z' 00'£69'2S 00ZLp'LS 00'568' 80°Z6v'9 301440 - TIO¥AVd
%L vy L1088'10Z 00°925'257 LL6hY L8 00'GPL'SHE 68'969'552 50'/80°0} 00°221°8¢ 56'6£0'82 JONYNILNIVIA - TIO¥AYd
%il'ey Z20.8'v01 00°892'€4C TTYs0'hy 00'Z5v'28) 8L L6E'SE) 9197401 0072'02 Y5210} YIOYNYA - TIO¥AVd
SISNIdX3 031VTIY TI0¥AVd
SUNLIANIIX3
A(ran) 00'6/SZV6 Y 9¥'LLZ 80V 00ZIveeL'e ovessiely VEVeT LT 00'118°16¢ YESE0BLY SANNIATY [BI0L
(6822 ) 00'61E2ELY Z5°000€8 00°€06'S96°C 75°€06°8Y9°E IS92ET 00°€6EVLE IS61I0LE $334 ¥3sn [eoL
00’158 00Z¢ 006V 00654 ov 0 00'8€7 09267 JONVANSNI INITINIAYIS
00°108'} 0010584 99'756'0} 00ZLE'L 8’127’ JONVHNSNI SSOT ANIAYIS
00'8€8°} 00'62E'} £6'9.€'t S0’} 00€S1 S0'¥SL 3NNIAZE NINGY INITAYIS
%EYGY 965512 00°'582'¢ 96267 00'€E9%'Z 96°0¥'S 08865 00'v./2 082.8 INNIATY 334 YI4SNVHL
%09 20€ 00'006'9Z 00'000'6Z 00'006'08 0000012 00'006'101 00005 000 00'005 $334 NOILO3NNOD
0008 0009¢ 500L€ 0002 00°0Y 0009 $334 ¥O3FHD NuNLIY
00'00v'71 00'008'0} 165658 00°002' ST SIOUYHO FOINYTS
00957 b €5'682'L 00'Zhr'SE €5'S7L'TY 22506 00°9€6°¢ ZUEY8Y $334 ¥3SN NO SAILTYNId
%€l 0S¥8L1L 00°296'88 0£'116'92 00°098'€. 0€'L22'00} L0 00'0£9' 10181T NOILINNSNOD TVIDNIWNOD
00'ZEL'Y6 201 00°209°0L Z0'€09°0L 00'678'2 8L ¥¥'L NOILD3LO¥d T4 WIDYININOD
00'785'¥9E BL6EY'Y 00°8EY'€LT 61°228'102 00'Z8¢'0¢ 88'/€€°0¢ WVIOYINNOD - $334 ¥3SN
00'2/2'c8 18085} 00°257'29 18'/86'€9 50°06€ 00'076'9 S0'0E'Z NOILO3LOYd 3u4 WILNIAISTH
00'006'69 00'€28'€S ¥$252 LY 85°6€9 00'669 85'86€'} NOILJWNSNOD € ¥3IL WILNIQIS3
00'000'89 00'0Z€'08 1£'865°0% 000702 7eS6e'l NOILJWNSNOD Z ¥3IL TVILNIAIST
00°000'62€ 00'0£€'€52 26'266'0€2 00°0€0'€2 01'SL1'6! NOILANNSNOD | ¥3IL TVILNIAISTY
00°€25'€25°¢ V2eLLe 00'ZrITHIT \TrIYer9'T 61'786' 00'/29'¢62 61'609'262 TVILNIQISTY - $334 ¥3sN
$334 ¥3sn
%1962} Y6'6152L 00°092'012 6°0.2'528 0060851 661128y L1682 00'8LY°LL LISIETY SNOANVTIAISIW 18101
%9 7C ¥1'582°9 00°008°G¢ VLSELT) 00'0SE64 ¥1'58077¢ ITTEY 00'051T [TTe59 3NNIAZY ¥3HLO
%00°062 00'529'¢ 00'052'} 00'Z4'Y 00052 00'5/8'Y 0052} 000 00'2 334 MIIATY NYd
%8686 89'256'90} 00'0+Z'€81 89'852'251 00'60%'2E} 89291062 05561l 008925} 05°€9+'0¢ SINIWLSIANI NO LSTHILNI
%000 Z1'259's5) 000 125951 000 Z1'259'S51 00'02' 000 00'502' INYH9 ¥d3 308N0S INIOd NON 6LE
SNOANVTIIIS
SaNNIATY
bututewy 99UBLIEA pasinay aoueLeA [enjoy aoueuep, Jobpng 19bpng {enjoy
_ﬂ“w.m“—n”m._mn_ uwm—uzm |ejol - uwm—usm |ejol amm—usm alar uwmv:m aLr Jeaj juaung polad juaung poldd Juland poldd jusung AONv DZ :u_ M_m.—.<\</
$202/LE/€ Usnolyl $20oz/L/€ woid
i e sainjpuadx3 pue SanNUaAaY JO JuUsWALLIS
2 L@ LW




t efeq

Wd 1+°02:¢ ¥20Z/0¢/p ed

%ES I 92'669'¢ 000562 A WA 0096'S v2052'y 000 000 000 39V.1S0d
%S L 18€1¥'T 001228 18269 000502 €1'26¢'9 00068 €506 $334 ANV SLINY3d
%S0'68 887¢L’LT 00068°1L€ 88°8v1 6l 00916'€C CLL9LY G6'6¢8 00859 S0ze8’l $317ddNS 33(440
00°866'G¢ 00°866'SC 2186652 000 000 000 AIN3Y S3ILAIOYH ANV 331440
%6.°29 0r'eZ8's 00'vic'e 0r'v0S'e 00'556'9 09°05+'c 00€LL 00'¢LL 000 IVIJOLINYF 331440
%C8'8.L 9,°298', 0000001 91°¢8¢'G 00'L0S'2 ¥8LLT 00°€LL 00°€ee 0002t SIHNLIANIAXT SNOANVTIFOSIN
%080 00°C0L 00°05¢ 00201 00052 008y 000 00'0502 S$334 N3N
%0028 000092 00°000'0¢ 00°009'6 00°000°GL 00°00%'S 000 000 000 INIVIA 8 HIVd3Y ¥3L3aN
00'000'G} 00°000'G1L 05°0v9'8L 000 866521 S1HVd AJOLNIANL
%E£8°¢S vl'v9g 00009 L9l 00°00% 99'66C 00001 00°001 000 ININCINDI AL3AVS
%L 2080L'Y 0080666 L0°th 00'€48°G6 £6'662'G6 00'65¢°} 80°68¢'L SANOG ANV JONYHNSNI
%85'6€ ¥£'69.°¢ 00'1€5'6 ve'6LE’) 00'196'9 99°192'G 009¢) £L'8ps ISNIAX3I ALIEMND3S
%E8'92 8r'ESY'T 00'9vL'6 8Y'26C 006960 252699 00'GEZ') [rA A IVINTY INFWAIND3
%CL'G 96°¢Y8 000821 00001} ¥0°906'¢L 08'28¢ 00°05S 0cele SHIVdIS/ INIYW/SIITAdNS "dinD3
%0.6) 19082} 00°8€0'6 19'860°L 0095¢€'8 6€°45C'L 002 00¢ie 000 SNOILJIYISENS ® S3aNd
%by 6 658888y 0062188 65'88€'9Z 0062969 106768 £6°65 0070052 Vidys 3SNIdX3 ¥3LNdNOD
%0Z¥8 80°192'6T 000000 80'19/'/1 0000522 2688y [ANATAA 00005°C L TATATA "INIVIN ANV SHIVdad ONIATiNG
%19'6C 86829°C) 0081y 85862 0088692 Z7'689'9¢ 000LLy €Ly SIDUVYHI MNvE
%00°001 00'€8e'ce 00'€8e’ee 00°€8¢'eE 00°€8€ece 000 000 000 000 $1830 avd
%S0'69 05'60£'G) 0005222 0$'120°0L 00290°21 050702 00968'} 05°25€'E ONIAIAYNS B ONIYIINIONT
%000 000 000 00°0€9 000 000 000 SNOILYILOD3N HOogy1 - v
%1E9t 6L'9L1'91 00008y 6L L 0000192 12°€99°8l YLY0L'L 00006°C 92'S6.'| BLBEN
00°000°2¢ 00°000°2¢ 16'9€9°)€ 000 000 000 ONILNNOJJVY
S3ISNIdX3 ONILYHIdO
%S89y 9¥'861't19 00'9Z6'VLE"} |ov'vav'z0e 00'Z12'90°L ¥S'L2L'0eL 09'266'L€ 00'9ZEZL) ov'eeerL S3SNAdX3 3LVI3H T10HAVd IEJ0L
%9991 000 ISNIdXE JOINYMOTIV ¥YD
%82'¢L L0°19€'T 00°002°c 20'19€C 00002'e £6'8¢8 €00 000 SISNIdXE TIOHAYd HIHLO
%¥9'L9L LWelole 00°000°€) Lrv9L'LL 00°16.'6 9l'v.6 00°€80'} ¥8'80} 3ISNIdX3 JAVIT AINYIOY
%66'2L 11501801 00°809's€l Lesy'es 00°656'€0} 68'205°0¢ 621918 00'165'}L 12°68¢'c ISNIX3 9340
%L1°€9 90'¥6E'y 00296'9 90'v6E'y 007969 ¥6295°C 000 000 000 SIWHOLINN
%b1CL TLYSED 00188 AN A 002699 8T 51T 00°¢6L 16'9¢6 SIS - SLI43N38 IFA0TdINT
%16 6L12€€L 00°6¥9'981 62°60L'9¢ 00°286'6EL L LiT'EL) GYGI6Y 00°¥8S 'Sl §6'825'01 S¥3d - S1I43N38 33A0TdINT
%86' Ly 89522001 00'2EL'862 89'626 ¥ 00°9¢%°¢8L 2E'905'8€1 96°CHS'Y 00°ZEY'8L ¥0°888'¢) SNI 'd3W - S1143N39 33A0TdN3
Bujueway CRITCIITYY pasiaey aouelep [enjoy 20uepep Johpng 1oBpng [enjoy
_shwm““msm 19bpng jejoy  -)ebpngejol | 19bpng LA 196png LA JE9AJUBLING | POMOd JUBLNG  POLISd JUBLINY  POMdd JUaLINg (02) NN H3LYM

p

¥202/1E/€ UsnoaylL ¥20z/L/c wold
saimipuadx3 pue sanuanay JO JuswLleIS

10141S10 LNJWIA0OHdIWI TVHINTO AHNGSONIA




¢ afeqd

Wd 1p:0T€ YT0T/08/p 2Rd

v(sg9z) $9'60£'695°C (00°89¢'682'2) G9'P99'LLG"Y (00'22210¢8°9) (ce'z90'v2L'Y) (R 71K 74 (00'szz'0LL) LL'9¥6'co STUNLIANIJXI YIAO INNIATY $530X3
%ELTS 61°102°92£9 00°216°1E2°C) 61°€6£°691°Y 00°6€1'620°01 18'shL's68's 1'6¥6'302 00°6£0'295 £2°680°€5E STUNLIANIAXT E}0L
%1065 69'821'¢68y 00°2£8°167°8 69 4SEYZ'E 00°€50°€20°L 11'869°86€°E 1£°962°091 00°175°002 £V8.C6 $3SNAdX3 ¥IHLO [0l
%6109 65826'G08'y 000%£'686', 65618°€19C 00°181'¢629 W19g'8LLE 8y'9p9'v9l 00'000'GEC 75°€5E°0L AVILNO TVLIdvD
%82 0£'094'28 00°'/6%'90¢ 0£'5£5'01 00'7/8'622 0L9EE'6LT 69'601'C 0011552 LLLEY'ET ISNIdXT LSIHALNI
$3SN3dX3 ¥IHLO
%0LZE 9'£98'8¢8 00°481°6952 yeees’Lee 00°728'€96°L 910z¢'9zL'} 08°00C'v 00221681 0Z'1LL6'P8) $3SNIdXI ONILYHIO leloL
%8.°€T 250061 00'7E0°'SEE’L 00°G22'L00'} 87'EEs’LL0') 00°€SZ'LLL 0510911 3SNAdX3 NOILYIDIUd3a
%0052 65809 00'¥EY'0L 650 00928'2 Wsze'L 150 0008 61698 SANOE 40 NOLLYZILHOWY
%G vy 95°061'Z¢ 00016'2L 96°22C'L 00'789'%S #'65Y'0Y 009209 99'088'L1 dXTWALSAS INIWLYIHL ¥ILYM
%ET' 18 0L'780'vS 00'025'99 0L'E0V'2€ 00'688'6Y 0c's8y'zl 9C'8EEY 00°€YS's 294021 ISNIIXT WILSAS 1SIQ ¥ALvMm
00'005'S) 00'008'GL 199/8'91 000 000 000 INFNOYNYIN AIHS HIMISAITLYM
%8L'SE 001129 00°66E"21 00128} 00'610°Cl 00'8kL'LY 00'ZEL 00° k') 00'64. ONITANYS/ONRIOLINOW HILYM
%2L'SY ¥82L9'9L 00°/9%'9¢ 8'685", 00°06€'22 91'¥6.'6l 00'6€0'¢ S1'p08'c WY dX3 HIA
%6€ L 1£'920'LL 00°987'66 LE¥GL'9Y 00v19'vL 69°'65v'8¢ £0'950'9 000628 I6EETT ddNSMIOANA dX3 I10HIA
%.26'C2 1817198 00202652 00'€99'081 £9'¥56'961 L)'6eT 00'668'Zl €891 ORLOTT3 B SYO - SALNILN
%0052 000529 00'000'2Z 000 0006202 00°052°02 000 000522 000622 $334 331SNYL
%LL'16 9z022'Tl 00V0F'S) 07'698'8 00°€50'01 vLE8LL 00°LLL'} 00°2LLL 000 J3AYHL
%¥8'96 S8Z¥2'TT 00'896'2Z G8'005'01 00'92¢'2) §1seL 00716l 00v16°) 000 SHYNINIS ANY ONINIVHL
%08 19005y 00¥8L YL L8H08 00'880°4 1 6L'€82'0L €L79 00Z€Z'1 12691} INOHdITAL
%12.'39 v6ELe'Y 00°000°Z ¥6'€90'€ 00062's 909817 4'08F 00'¥8S 98°c0} S100L TIVWS/SIddNS dOHS
%616, Y2816 00081 ¥Z'8LS 00'08L'} 9199 000 000 000 SIDYVYHI NOILYOITENd
Bututeway aJueuep pasiasy SoUBMERA |lenjoy aoueyep Jobpng 19bpng fenjoy
_smmn“w& wbpng oL -jbpngreo | wbpraain SO eaxjueuny | pouaqieuny  powsdiueuny  pousdjusung (02) ANN4 ¥3LVM

$20cC/LE/E USnoIyl $202/1L/€ Wold
saJnypuadx3 pue SSNUAASY JO JUBLLIBIRIS

10141S1d INJWIAOUdWI TYHINTO AHNGSONDI




9 afeg

Wd [+:0Z:¢ $Z0T/0¢/ -0ed

%OE by SIISSZYL 00°¥6.°12¢ £2'58¢'€9 0082922 STTVT6LI 82'95Y'S 00°6£'92 7288602 SISNIAX3 GILVITYH TIONAV lE0L
%z el 09°Z6) 00'LY 00'}¥, 000 ISNIdX3 IONYMOTTY HVD
00'00Z 00'6%) 9692 z0'LL 0021 SISNIdX3I TI0HAVd ¥IHLO
%6166 1r6I8T 00°000'% LS 00'866'C £5029' 00'VEE 55656 3SNIdXT IAYITAINYIOY
%l '8L 56'98'61 0078972 S6'LLL'EL 00°€l5'8} S0'S6E'S 65151 002607 5665 39N3dX3 8340
%6091 €881 0021} ()] 0021} 1186 00'0 00'0 000 SINYOLINN
%8YES 1Z'598 00'6v0°L (A% 00862 6287 00'v6 951} SIS - S1143NTE FFA0TINI
%08 L8 815222} 00'621'9% 81'8/9' 00'7€9'75 7868687 zl4S8 00'8p8'€ 88°066' S¥3d - SLI43N38 IFA0TdINT
%P6 0F 6CETV'EL 00'04Z°2S 62°€/04 00'09} ¥ 12'982'€E 16508 00'05'7 eSS SNI '3 - S1I43N38 3FA0 TN
%Z8'9¢ 615z 00'950' 61°09€ 001622 18'0E6'L 00'662 £v'89Z DI03N/VOIA - S1143N3E IIA0TWS
%PL 92 00'160'%} 00'569'25 00516 00'615'6¢ 00'709'8¢ 00'L6E'Y 90'698'F 301440 - TIONAVd
%E98Y 62°92.'%9 00'POL'EEL 6L0SY'1€ 00'828'66 122189 29'6Y'€ 0060’1} 86°¥65'2 YIOYNVYI - TIOYAYd
$3ISNIAX3 031V1IY TI0NAVd
SFUNLIANTIE
%P 02 00'88996°L 0LVET88 00'6£0'88%'} 0L€LT9ISL STV 1L 0062491 SZ'SS6'VL1 SANNIATY lel0L
%82 'S7) 00'2¥8'688°1 oL 1TV LTEE0TIV) 1Z9°G20°) 00'%50°95} 79620251 S334 ¥3sn (oL
o) Gr'6) 00651 SZTY8E 0018kl ST'EO5} 0586 00'1El 05'62Z INNIATY 334 ¥IISNVAL
%000} 00009 00'000'9 0000+ 00'002'Y 00'009'9 00'009 00°009 00°002') $334 NOILOINNOD
%879 8€'90¢'} 00'09}'0Z 86'9P€'9 00'024'Sk 86'99Y'12 09282 00'089' 08'/9¢'T $334 ¥3SN NO S3ILTYNId
00'020'7€ 00'962'62 N AR T 0186 00'18€' INARS NOILdWNSNOD TYIDHININOD
00'LOY'ZY 00'662°1€ 08'826'1€ 00'7ES'S 0TE0S'E TVIONIWWOD - $334 ¥3sn
00'00¢'2€ 00'876'%Z 66'69.'81 00029’ 69°00¢ NOILJWNSNOD | ¥31L TvILNIAISTY
00'162'€52' 00'296'7LE"} 25'662'90¢') 00'80} 971 EE6Y0'9Y) TVILNIAISTY - $334 43N
$334 ¥3sn
%58b8 £6'8L8'5L 00'178'e8 le6'159°26 00°895°99 £6'612'791 £9°06°01 00'SZY'L £9'G28'L) SNO3NVTIIISIN [=10L
%Ly 9LY) 1912LT 00061 191917 00ELL 19vieT 00°€l 00€l 000 INNIATY HIHLO
00062’} 00528 00'62€ 000 0052} 00’52} 334 MIIATY NYTd
%8.78 A TARD] 00'Lit'L8 2€'066'S6 00'085'59 ZE0/5'191 £9EIT0L 00'282°2 £9°062'Z) SINIWLSIANI NO LSIHILNI
SNOINYI1IISIN
SANNIATY
Bujujeway aJueLIBA pesiAsy JJUBMEA |enjoy asueuep 19bpng 1ebpng lenjoy
_Souw.mu““”_wn_ amqu_m jejol - uwmvsm ejol “_.amvsm alA uowu_._m aLa Jeaj jualng pouad jusiing pouad yuaung poliad juaiing Aomv h_ Z Dn_ m_m\smm

¥20Z/1LE/E UsnoJyl +20oz/L/€ wold
saln)ipuadx3 pue SenuaAdYy JO JUBWIBILIS

10141S10 LNFWIAOHdIWI TYHINIO AHNGSONI




L adeg

W 1502 $T0T/0E/Y =1ed

%B8E'EE £5'109'¢65 00'95€'822"} £5°€88'091 00°8€9'1SE'} LrVSLIP8L) 91°682°91 00'12Z'0p YZ'166'€Z S3SNIJX3 ONILVYIO IR0
%0/ L1 80'816'6 00'€20'96 0091027 26019y 006997 £ro6rS ISNIdXT NOILYIDTMdAA
%LLGY 160511 00'L2'TE 161£0' 00'855'€Z £0'025'L §6'LIE 00'652°2 7 188') 21410313 % S¥O - SALIULN
%00'G2 00'52€'€ 00'005'€} 00'0 00'5ZH0) 00'SZH'0L 000 00521} 00°sZL'L $334 331SNYL
%9L'6L 7T19LT 0029v'¢ AT A 00'665'Z 827002 00'682 00'682 00'0 TaAVHL
%1£'€6 SL18K'S 00728'S SLLL0'Y 00'V0Y'Y $8'Z6€ 00'06¢ 00'06% 000 SUYNINIS ONY ONINIVYHL
%81°vE 61196 002€9't 6L 6Y1 00'%22'} 1201 15 00'9¢} erigl INOHdT13L
%1 0L 8V 00'066's Z8vil 00065 8L'sLy 000 000 000 S3I9UYHO NOILYOIENd
%.9'9% T6'6vY'T 00'05Z' 76964} 00'86'€ 80'008° 00'0 000 000 39v1S0d
%0Y'S 99’1z 00'S0¥ 9812 00'50% 1°E8¢ 00'0 000 000 $334 ANV SLIWY3d
%678 89°008'} 00Zr2'9l 89'8EL'6 000842} T AN Asd 00¥SE'} 88116 531ddNS 301440
00'866') 00'966'C} 9€'666'Z1 00'0 000 000 LNT¥ SIILMIOV4 ONY 301440
%629 0L1L6'2 00°2€9'Y 02052} 00'92%'€ 0€'5z2'L 00'28¢ 00°/8¢ 000 TYIMOLINYF 30440
%1708 89'869'C 00°009'¥ 89'9Y5'C 00'8hY'S 76106 00'%2¢ 00'¥8¢ 0009 SFUNLIANTIX3 SNOANYTIEOSIA
%00'004 00'005 00'005 00'005 00005 000 000 00'0 000 SLuYd AHOLNIANI
00'929'2 00'929'6Z 86'G65'02 000 006} SANOg NY JONYNNSNI
%9Z'SE 62520 00'085'8 62098 00'G1H'9 LLYSS'S 9Lzl 00'009 Y8 ZLY 3SN3dX3 ALINO3S
%LL8L 26LL 00'Zb8'S 00'SLO'E 82 1Z1'E €51 00229 1709 TYINTY INTWAINO3
%65'€9 67'6/2'SE) 0087242 6726078 00°195'65 ) 15'89¥' 22 01'919'8 00'62L'L1 06ZLL'E SUIVAIN/ LNIVIN/SATddNS dIND3
%ZEST 0oL} 00°'9¥E'Y 17056 00'96L Y 65'SHT'E 00051 00°051 000 SNOILI¥0SaNS ¥ $3na
%000 000 000 99'999' 000 00'0 000 MOT4 ¥IMIS - NOLLYA¥ISNOD
%679 $£'20222 00'69275 SEZGH'S) 00617 L2 59'990'2) 7288 00'08€' 82790 3SN3dX3 ¥ILNIWOD
%1Y'E6 ¥9'99€'62 00BLY'LE ¥9'6051Z 00'296'€2 962507 969252 00819 068 *LNIYI ONY S¥IVd3d ONITING
%09'GZ L2088 00'ESY'ZE 1761 00'8€E'7T AR A 005042 OV'LI6T SADYYHO MNVE
%0000} 00'Z0Z'€l 00Z02'¢H 00°Z02'} 00'Z0Z'€} 000 00'0 000 000 slg3davd
%06'7C 67200121 00'620'98Y 00'225°79¢ 52'120'G9¢ 000 000 000 SINIWSSISSY ¥8110a
%006 SZTELI8L 00'€59'6Z2 520 00°0¥Z'7¥S GLBEZVYS 00'0 000 000 0% W V1V4-0¥d V51100
%1628 YO'LLO'G 00'052'0} YO Lir'9 00'989'/ 96'86Z'L 00'%58 00’758 000 ONIAIAYNS B ONIMIINION
%00'0 000 000 058/} 000 000 000 SNOILYILO9AN ¥0gv1- 931
%0LTL 906791 00°00¥' L} 90'662'8 00'050'} ¥608L'Y 88798 00°05¥'1 1685 oI
00'005'} 00'00S'E} 672181 00'0 000 000 ONILNNOJOY
S3SNIdX3 ONILVYIdO
Buutewiay aoueLRA posiAsy dauepeA lenjoy aosueuen Jobpng 19bpng lenjoy
_au_hw.mhum._on_ ucm—uzm lejol - ummﬂ_._m jejol uom—:_m air uomvsm G1A Jea  Jjualin) poudd jualng poliad Judungd poliad jualnyd AOMv DZ Du_ M_m;mw

20z/Le/e usnoayl #20oz/L/€ woid
saIn)ipuadx3y pue SaNUSASY JO JUsSWIALIS

10141S1d INJWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AHNGSONDI




g a8eg

Wd [#:0Z°€ ¥T0T/0L/ =21.d

L0'306'1EV L0'€19'092 90'500' 00°198'96 90°998'V0} STUNLIANIAXI ¥IAO INNIAIY SS30XT
%0Z LT LT VES 00°00€°290°€ L8°88V'8L) 00°9LY LLY'T £9°1167762T 00°819'99 61°680°02 SIUNLIANIdX3 18301
%G1 01 60'691°86 00°051°296 00°051°218 160867398 000 £T612GC S3ASNIdX3 ¥3HLO I=I0L
%G} 0} 60'691'86 00051296 00051218 16°086°898 000 €T6125C AV1LNO TY1IdYD
$3ISNIdX3 YIHLO
w..__o:m_u:_.:om aduelep pasingy JdueleA uom n |en}oy 9JUBLIBA uomvzm ummu-_m |enpdy A v
_2“._. ﬁﬂuwsn_ jobpng |ejol  -1ebpng |ejoL 1ebpng gLA Phg QLA Jeap Jualng | pousad juaungy  poiiad Juaung)  pouad jusung 0€) ANNJ Y3IM3IS

¥202/1E/€ Ysnosyl ¥20z/L/€ woid
saimipuadx3 pue SaNUsAdY JO JUBLLID)EIS

10141S1d LNFJWIAOHdIWI TVHINIO AHNGSONDI




6 o8eqd

W 1%:0T:€ PTOTE/P 938

%SG0°'6S

Z1'€09'9Zy

saJn)ipuadx3 pue SaNUSASY JO JUBWNLIS

10141S1a INFWIAOHdWI TVHINIO AHNISONDI

00°000'GLL Z1'€09'L28 00°000022 88'96€'8Y€ {s1eez'ze) 0000052} §L€TT LG) 9ONIMOTTd - TYAOWI MONS
%09'€E 86291 00005 86'/91 00°005 z20°z8e 000 000 000 ONIAIAENS % ONIYIINIONT
%000 {o0°s01) 000 (00°s01) 000 00°504 000 00°0 00°0 SNOILYILODIN HOgY1- Tvo31
%LE'9Y S6'TYE’l 00006 56919 007LLT 0'265') L8l 00'TYT 95'09 Tvoa
%21 11) (19g¢) 00062 (198¢) 000522 L7'969'C 000 000 000 ONILNNOJOY
S3ASNIAXT ONILYYIHO
%9L'6Y Tres'tIL 00°00v'v22 Zrzie'os 00'650°691 8EOVLZLL 66165 0065181 10°290'9) SASNIAX3 ALY T108AVd [0
%iz0esl (2062 00°00€ (20750 00'SeC 10645 9672 0062 00 $3SNIdX3 TIOHAYd HIHLO
%(SZ L) (16'182) 00°000'C (16782) 00°005'} L6'Y8C'T (2¢°187) 00291 1£'8%9 ISNIdXT 3AYIT AINYDIY
%Vl '8L 161068 0026511 160509 00’1158 £0'06¢'C ££'2.9 00'6v6 19°9.2 3SNIdX3 9340
%9 L9 74065 00°2.8 7L°065 00'228 82982 000 000 000 SWHOEINN
%Sz LY 0v'299 00'20v'} 0b'9ze 00°990°) 09°6¢/ (6z71) 00921 62071 SIS - S1143N38 33A0TdINA
%29 Ly LO'¥60't1 00°265'6C 10’8699 00'961'22 66°206'G1 L¥0.5 00'29v'Z £5'968' S¥3d - SLI43NTE IFA0TINT
%89'L5 1899162 00°cL5'8y 18716'€) 00'126'9¢ £Lope'ee L0182 00'798° £2°7€9'¢ SNI"3N - S1143N38 33A0TdINI
%86 7 T 168 00'€Z6'L A 000t 8/°690°) (69°9) 00'09} 69°891 J1GIN/YDIL - SLIFANTE FFA0TdNI
%¥L'9C YO'L10°2 00°67€'92 v0'6GY 0019261 96'10€'61 (£5°9¢2) 009642 £5VE'T 301440 - TIOHAVd
%.8'85 ¥’ 2€0'hZ 00'828°0F vy'8z8'cl 00'619°0¢ 9506291 Z5°088 00°€0v'E 8y'2L0'C JONVNILNIVA - TIOHAYd
%1108 ££'668'0¢ 00'612'19 £L'655'G1 00'E6'SY LT66E'0E Z8708'L 00'Z0L'S 8L°/6L'C HIOYNVI - TIOHAYd
SISNIAXT QLYY TI0HAVd
STUNLIANIdXT
%102 °82) (1v1£5%00) 00°0LLSeL (1v'v06'9) 00'eV5"1ZS £6°8£9°025 (0zv8 00'628°69 08'06EC9 SANNIATY 1e10L
%61 22) (ou'svz'e8l) 00°266'69 00'280°1 00'599°505 00252905 ovieT 00PrYeo 0¥'S29€9 $334 ¥3sn [eloL
%EEE 008 0005 0065 00'S0% 00855 0567 00Sy 0S¥6 INNIATY 334 HIISNVAL
%(8€'%) {9z'1£¢) 00°095'2 .'855°) 00°029' vL'922'L 09°02 00089 09'0.8 $334 ¥3SN NO SAILTYNA
(L€ LT) (0092861 00'966'2S 000 000242y 000242y 00'0 00762'G 00'262'6 TVIDHINWOD - $334 ¥3ASN
{21 L2) (v2s60'eL) 00'106'629 (v2¥29) 00'04v'2Sy 92°5Y8'95Y (02°85) 00'2LY' LG 0e'8LY' LS TvILNIQISTY - $334 ¥3SN
$334 ¥3sn
%(0p°28) (2r982's) 00'€LL'62 (2'166'2) 00'8.8'1C £6'088°¢1 (09°612) 00°1LEY'2 ovsLLl SNO3ANVTIIOSIN lej0L
%26 916'€ 0v' 810l 0092 0V 920l 008l or VR0l (00Z) 007 000 INNIATY HIHLO
%(76'6S) {L8'p08'9)) 00°2b1'62 (28210'6) 0009812 eLZY8Tl (09°¢12) 00°62¥'2 orsLLL SINFWLSIANI NO LSTHILNI
SNOANYTTAOSIN
SANNIATY
m_“_c.M”__Emam asueLeA pasiAay saueuep I — [emoy aoueLeA JoBpng j9bpng |enjoy (09) INN3A3Y
[e10) Jusaieg jbpngejol  -3ebpng jpjo) 39bpng aLA Jeajjuauny | pouadjusun)  poudad Judln)  poudd jusin VID3dS TYAOWIY MONS
¥202Z/1£/€ usnoayl $20z/1L/€ wold
i




Lild leror o pras s Sy

YT YE6'STY v IeL 0Ly ! STUNLIANIXT HIAO INNIATY §S30X3
%158y LL'S9Y'0€9 00'LEL'662'} VISEY LIy 00'L06'97 L'} 62'592'699 00'765° 191 81 LFE'I6) STUNLIGNIdXT [ej0L
%Ze0 66'99¢ 0070502} 00'052°011 Lo'e8r0z) 000 ey $3ISNIdXT ¥IHLO [eI0L
%ZZ 0 66'99C 00052°0z1 00052011 L0°€8Y0z) 000 LT AVILNO TVLIdYD
$3SNIdX3 ¥3H10
%ZEYS 0£'SYS'81S 00'185'756 0£°950°1EY 00'Z60°298 01'SE0°9EY 00'SELEPE S6'0L0'LL1 SISNIAXT ONILVHILO I8j0)
%L L9 R 00’16 197007 00'820Z BEEZ0E 0018, 00182 000 BN dX3 HIA
%bE'GL LO'0E' L 00'98%'Sl 10'692'L 00'525'1) B6'508'€ 92°100') 0082’} 262 ddnSroMan4 dx3 I10H3A
%LEEY v20p9 00ZL0'L VY8l 00'965 9T LLE 09 2% 00'L0} 02'€S 04193133 SYO - SALMILN
%0052 05796 000822 00'89'} 05289' 00281 0528} $334 331SNYL
%10'68 ZV8L) 00'786' rARIIIA 00°28%') 88'9LC 00'99} 00994 000 T3AVHL
%5168 66'6e8') 00Z50' 55Zee) 00'6€5') oLz 00’42} 00'k2L 00'0 SUYNINIS ANY ONINIVHL
%9V LT 8ryy 0029} 8y 00zzh 29N 160 00pl 60'El INOHdITAL
%1106 06°000° 00'592' 00002 0L'¥2T 000 00'0 000 SIOUYHO NOILYOIENd
%86'CY £9'16L 00'008'} £9'LYE 00°08€' 1£'800°) 00'0 000 000 39V1S0d
%P 06 IR 00'899 1109 00'899 98'¢9 00'0 000 000 $334 ANV SLINN3d
%EG¥8 851242 00426 8sTrL'L 00'664' sy 6016 00°€rZ 16°151 $31ddNS 301440
00'994' 00994 96'991°2 00'0 000 00'0 1N SIILMIOVA ANY 301440
%0829 Syeep 00'€LL SYE6T 00185 66482 00'79 00'79 00'0 TYIMOLINYF 301440
%60°29 ¥8'952'¢ 00'009' ¥8'85€' 00°Z0Z'Y 9L'Epe'l 00'95Y 00'99% 0004 STUNLIANIXI SNOINYTIZISIN
%0000} 00°00} 00'004 00'SL 0052 000 000 000 000 INININOT AL3AVS
00'622'Y 00'642'F 08'vZy'y 000 052 SANOA ANV FONVHNSNI
%19ZL 01 008} 20°€) 008l €6y 000 £6v ISNIdXT ALINNO3S
%L Ly veVLLY 00'0000} VE LY 00°000°0} 99'672' 00'0 000 000 SN9IS 3 $7001 ‘S3NddNS a13l4
0028 00'622 9869 00'59} sz TYINTY INIWIND3
%17 L6 67089 00°00Z B17'0€S 00055 156l vLTE) 00051 9zl SUIVAIY/ INIVW/STTddNS "dIND3
%56 PX: 00589 1288 00'689 62965 00'18 00’18 000 SNOILdI¥0SENS ® S3ana
%8108 VE'IER'E 00°0¥9'2 vE'180' 00'068'9 99'908'€ 81967 00'05% 2z 16l ISNIdXT ¥ILNIWOD
%2S'eH V6'EE6'y 00'9£2' VEELO'E 00°956' 90'zve 9452y 00'0bY v8pl “LNIVW ONY SdIvd3d ONIaTIng
%Y 02 06'122'2 002241} 00'¢re's 01558' 0026 18'96)'} SIOUYHO YNvE
%0000} 00'LIZ'E 00'LIT'E 00'HLZ'E 00'LIZ'E 000 000 00'0 000 s193a ave
%00°001 00'009'9 00'009'9 00'009' 00'009'9 000 00'002°2 000022 000 ONIDI IANLNY TYACIWTH MONS
%02 Z¥ ZETSO'LE 00'000'G. 78T6H'8) 00'005'19 89'/VE'EY 00'000'04 19911'} 1 ONIANYS - TYAOWTY MONS
m.“w_m_”__smﬁ_ aJueuep pasiney agueLep o [enjoy soueuep 1o6png 106png [enjoy (09) INN3A3Y
[E10] Juasiag uwm—-:m |ejol - aum—u:m fejol uom_u—_m ala Jea) jusun) poudd juaiing pollad jualnng pouad jualingd |_<_Uw &m |_< >O_\4 mm ;OZW

¥202Z/1€/€ ysnoiyl +zoe/L/€ wold
sain)ipuadxg pue SeNUaAdY JO JUBWIANELIS

10141SI1d LINJWIAOHdIWI TVYHINTO AHNESONI




1 :ofeq

W 1H0T:€ ¥TOT/0E/Y o1ed

%(z9°02) (ze'80€°11) 00'6€1'SS eosy 00'LZL'EY £9°0LL'EY 66'800°1 00°959'Y 66799 STUNLIANIX3 ¥IA0 INNIATY §S30X3
%G8'ee 16'81€°9) 00'v1Z'8Y 16°268'1 00'62'eE £0'668'1€ £0°906 00'286'¢ 16'050'€ STUNLIANIAX3 [e10L
%G8'EE I6BIEDL 00VIZ8Y 16726871 00'€6LCE £0'568°1€ - £0'906 00256 16050 SISNIAX3 ONILYHILO 8301
%8602 WR-TIN) 00°00€°S}H 00298 615121 0gee 000651 029671 JMLOTIF B SV - SALAILN
%000 000 00'0 05Z8 000 000 000 $39UYHD NOILYOINENd
%LL'8E 90'551 00°00% 9055 00°00€ v6ve 000 00'0 00'0 5317ddNS 391440
00°068° 00'99}'s 00'008'2 00'7LS 00°008 TYIHOLINYF 301440
%1582 67700 00'1€0'4 6 9v2 00'€42' 15'920'S 8602 00985 SIS SIUNLIANTXT SNOANYTTIISIA
0026 00'Z6€' |G 266°C 000 00'0 000 SANOE ANY FONYHNSNI
%V L2 Lps ! 00'L0Z Glg 00051 5Z°ovl S0 00°21 5291 TYLNIY INFWAIND3
%000 000 00°0 00'5Z1 00'0 000 000 SHIVAIH/ INIVIN/SI1ddNS “dIND3
%9918 1682TL 00°000'G} 169258 00'0SZ' 14 £0'1242 ov £20°) 00052t 09722 *INIYW ANV SHIVdTd ONIaTINg
S3ASNIdXT ONILYNAMO
STANLIANIdX3
(62°92) 00'€SEE0L (¥esve) 00VISZL 9969952 96201 00°€19°8 965118 SANNIATY (€01
(6r92) Ve 189772 00'€SEE0L (ve'sv8) 00VISIL 99°699°C/ 96201 00°€19'8 96S1L3 SNOANYTIAISIN 1ol
%000 I6GH 000 161 000 1651 000 000 000 3NNIATY H3HLO
00'€5€°€01 (Gz'798'1) 00'H1G'22 SL6V9'GL 96201 00°€19'e 96'G12'8 NOONI TYLNIY
SNOANVTIAOSIN
SANNIATY
Buuleway yobpng aoueleA posinay ELTET)ETY PipNg LA [EMY JeeA Juaung asuenep jebipng 1ebpng lenjoy Aowv
jej0]1 adladd 1obpng |ejol - umm_u:m (2011 1ebpng QLA pouad jualng pouad juauing pollad juaun)y |_<..—-ZNI mD(I mv >I :mmoz _V_ me

2

¥202/1E/€ Usnoayl +20e/L/E wold
sain)ipuadX3 pue SSNUBASY JO JUSWISLIS

10141510 INJWIAOHdWI TVHINTO AHNESONDI







KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #9

TITLE: PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL UPDATE - EMPLOYEE LOCKER POLICY

For Discussion and Possible Action: For discussion and possible action to add
Employee Locker Policy to the Personnel Policy Manual

MEETING DATE: 21 May 2024
PREPARED BY: Judy Brewer, Administrative and H.R. Supervisor

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees review and approve the Employee Locker Policy 2.4 of

the Personnel Manual.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The purpose of the Employee Locker Policy is to provide guidance for the use and responsibility
of employee lockers. It aims to promote a sense of responsibility and respect for shared
resources and to ensure accountability and fairness for the use of lockers. Moreover, clarifies the
district’s intention of opening and inspecting lockers as may be necessary. The use of lockers is
intended to improve the quality of work life, yet it is important to establish that there should be
no expectation of personal privacy for items stored in a district locker.

With the renovations to building 160, lockers will be available for more employees and the
district did not have a policy relating to personal effects within a district locker. Therefore, it is
appropriate to include guidance relating to the use of employee lockers in the district policy.

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the locker policy paragraph 2.4 as attached
to the Personnel Policy Manual.

INCLUDED:

(A)  Personnel Policy Amendment paragraph 2.4

Fund impacted by above action:

() All Funds (X) Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund

() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund
() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending
Attachment A






EMPLOYEE LOCKER POLICY

ADMINISTRATION
2.4 EMPLOYEE LOCKER POLICY

2.4.1 Purpose

The purpose of the Kingsbury General Improvement District’s Employee Locker Policy is to
provide guidance for the use and responsibility of employee lockers. It aims to promote a sense
of responsibility and respect for shared resources and to ensure accountability and fairness for
the use of lockers.

2.4.2 Locker Assignments

Lockers are available in limited quantity with priority of assignment for field personnel. Each
locker will be assigned by district for an individual’s use and label it appropriately. Employees
are not allowed to switch lockers without coordination from the district. In case of conflict over
locker assignments, the district will resolve the issue.

2.4.3 Locker Maintenance

Employees are responsible for maintaining the cleanliness and good condition of their lockers.
Lockers should be cleaned regularly and kept free of food, or any hazardous materials,
substances, or other prohibited items. The district may conduct inspections of lockers at any
time to ensure they are being used and maintained. In accordance with this policy employees
shall refrain from putting stickers or markings on the locker.

2.4.4 Locker Security

Each locker may be secured by the employee assigned. The district is not responsible for items
stored in lockers. They are installed for the convenience of employees and valuable items
should not be stored in locker. There should be no expectation or entitlement to privacy of
items contained in the district locker.

2.4.5 Locker Inspections

The district may conduct random inspections of lockers to ensure they are being used
appropriately and in compliance with the policy. Inspections may be conducted without prior
notice to employees and locks may be cut and not replaced if determined to be necessary.

2.4.6 Consequences for non-compliance
Employees who violate this policy could be subject to administrative or disciplinary actions.






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #10

TITLE: PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL UPDATE - TEMPORARY LABORER

For Discussion and Possible Action. For discussion and possible action to amend the
Personnel Policy Manual regarding the use of Temporary Laborers

MEETING DATE: 21 May 2024
PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
It is recommended that the board approve and adopt the draft amendment 3.1.1 to the Personnel

Manual.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The district adopted the Personnel Manual in March 2022. While the manual references seasonal
or casual laborer in appropriate places, there is no guidance regarding the recruitment or
retention of temporary help.

The district has used temporary laborers in past years to assist with seasonal needs such as
drainage, road work or specific projects. Increasingly, with vacancies and challenges recruiting
and retaining high quality personnel, the district is more dependent upon temporary laborers.

Therefore, it is appropriate to include guidance relating to the use of temporary laborers in the
district policy.

The board reviewed this policy and provided suggestions which have been incorporated.

It is recommended that the board adopt the amendment to the policy manual paragraph 3.1.1 as
enclosed.

INCLUDED:

(A)  Personnel Policy Amendment paragraph 3.11

Fund impacted by above action:

() All Funds (X) Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund

() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund
() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



Attachment A

3. EMPLOYMENT
THIS SECTION COVERS HIRING FOR REGULAR FULL AND PART-TIME POSITIONS, AND
FOR CASUAL/TEMPORARY/SEASONAL POSITIONS.

3.1 Source of Applicant

Regular positions may be filled by applicants from within the organization or from the outside.
The best qualified individual will be selected without regard to present employment. The
position vacancy announcement may be posted internally and externally.

Promotional recruitments limit consideration of applicants to qualified employees currently
working for KGID in a regular or introductory status with at least 6 months of service.

3.1.1 Temporary Labor

The district may opt to use temporary labor to assist with necessary work when additional people\
will assist to make the work safer and more efficient, or to fill a temporary gap of permanent
personnel due to the permanent employee’s approved absence or vacancy. Temporary
employment is well suited to meet a temporary or seasonal surge such as completing drainage
clearing before and after each winter season, or road crew work during the summer. Temporary
workers may be a source for applicants for permanent positions if they meet the requirements as
established in the recruitment/job description.

To ensure compliance with the State personnel regulations, a temporary worker may not work
more than 980 hours in a 12-month period for Kingsbury GID. There are no benefits assigned to
temporary workers. There are no expectations that a temporary worker may become permanent
in the temporary roles. This stipulation will be included in all job offers for temporary workers.

District management may determine when and how many temporary laborers are necessary and
establish the wage to be consistent with the tasks. Temporary labor may be funded by using
funds available in the personnel budget either due to vacancies or specifically authorized in the
budget for projects which temporary labor was anticipated. Management will routinely update
the board of trustees on the status of temporary workers.

\ Temporary labor may be recruited in open recruitment or using a placement agency when j
necessary.

3.2 Job Announcements

Prior to initiating recruitment, KGID may verify the essential job functions; identify knowledge,
skills, and abilities needed, and determine what education, experience, and credentials will
provide the desired knowledge, skills, and abilities.



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #11

TITLE: APPROVE ON-CALL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH JACOBS ENGINEERING
FOR TECHNICAL SERVICES

For Discussion and Possible Action. Review and approve the on-call services
agreement with Jacobs Engineering and authorize the General Manager to execute it as
appropriate.

MEETING DATE: 21 May 2024
PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the on-call services agreement with Jacobs
Engineering and authorize the General Manager to execute it as appropriate.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

In 2015, the district entered into an agreement with Jacobs Engineering (predecessor) to provide
technical services for water treatment and controls. After the treatment plant was constructed,
the district retained these engineering services. The district has from time to time called upon
Jacobs to provide technical support. The current SCADA systems are out of date, not supported
by the developer, and do not comply with the Cyber Security criteria established by US EPA for
water systems.

Recently, it was noted that the existing agreement was out of date and a new agreement would be
appropriate to retain their expertise. In addition, the district seeks to replace and consolidate the
SCADA systems. As the developer of the SCADA system for the treatment plant, Jacobs is
uniquely positioned to provide the district technical support and assistance to complete the grant
application which is being sought by the district. It is anticipated that a follow-on agreement will
be needed for the provisions to replace the SCADA to comply with current requirements.

The attachment is to the Agreement, between Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. (Consultant), and
Kingsbury General Improvement District (District), for engineering and consulting services on
an on-call basis for SCADA network and drinking water treatment and distribution process
assistance. It is anticipated that the support sought will not exceed $10,000 each year or $25,000
for the expected duration of the agreement.

INCLUDED:
A. On call Services Agreement — Jacobs Engineering

Fund(s) impacted by above action:

() All Funds () Not a Budget Item
(X) Water Fund (X)) Sewer Fund
() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund

() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending

1






EXHIBIT A

Scope of Work for
2024 KGID On-Call Services

Prepared for

Kingsbury General Improvement District

May 2024

vacobs

50 West Liberty, Suite 205
Reno, NV 89501



Exhibit A: Scope of Work for 2024 On-call Services

This exhibit is to the Agreement, between Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. (Consultant), and
Kingsbury General Improvement District (District), for engineering and consulting services
on an on-call basis for SCADA network and drinking water treatment and distribution
process assistance. The official name for the project will be the 2024 KGID On-call Services,
hereinafter referred to as the “Project.”

Consultant’s Scope of Work

The Consultant proposes the following three Tasks to manage and address any engineering,
consulting, or SCADA support services for the District:

Task 1 - Project Management

Consultant will initiate and manage project activities, schedule, and plan work to complete
activities in a properly integrated and timely manner. Project management activities will
include Progress Monitoring, Team Coordination, Consultant Team Health and Safety
stewardship, and Project Administration.

Task 1 Deliverables:

e Monthly project billings showing labor hours by staff member and by task and brief
description of services performed.

Task 2 -~ On-call SCADA Consulting Assistance

Consultant will coordinate with the District to provide short-term assistance on any SCADA
network or HMI issues at any of the District facilities as they arise. Assistance can include,
but not be limited to consulting services, remote programming changes and edits, changes
to Human-Machine Interface (HMI) devices and Programmable Logic Controllers (PLCs),
network system infrastructure, and other control related devices and hardware.

Task 3 — On-call Kingsbury Water Treatment Plant Process Assistance

Consultant will coordinate with the District to provide short-term assistance with treatment
and distribution process start-up, on-going operations, and process optimization at the
Kingsbury WTP. This assistance can be provided for any of the water processes. This
assistance may include, but not limited to, diagnostics, calculations or modeling, analysis of
data, or on-site investigation of issues.

Schedule

The terms of this Contract shall remain in effect for the duration of the service period. If
additional tasks are desired beyond this length of time, Consultant reserves the right to
request a scope and fee modification for additional administrative and support time and
updated billing rates.



Compensation

Consultant shall provide a written scope of services and estimated cost to perform services
as requested by the District prior to initiating work. No work shall be performed on Task 2
or Task 3 unless authorized in writing by the District.

Compensation for services described herein will be on a time and materials basis for a total
not-to-exceed budget of $25,000. Compensation is based on hourly bill rates included in the
table below. Approximately 120 hours of engineering assistance and/or SCADA
programming can be provided. This total fee will not be exceeded without prior
authorization from District. District is not obligated to compensate the Consultant for work
beyond the authorized budget nor is the Consultant obligated to incur costs that exceed the
authorized budget.

2024 Hourly Labor Billing Rate Schedule

Classification 2024 Rate
Principal Technologist*/Principal Project Manager $265
Sr. Technologist*/Sr. Project Manager $250
Senior Project Engineer*/Project Manager 5225
Project Engineer* $210
Associate Engineer* $185
Staff Engineer 2* $165
Staff Engineer 1* $145
Engineering Tech 5 $175
Engineering Tech 4 $160
Engineering Tech 3 $140
Engineering Tech 2 $120

* includes engineering, consulting, planner, and scientist disciplines

Notes:

1.

&

Direct Expenses are those necessary costs and charges incurred for the PROJECT including, but not limited to:
(1) the direct costs of transportation, meals and lodging, mail, subcontracts, and outside services; special
client-approved PROJECT-specific insurance, letters of credit, bonds, and equipment and supplies; (2)
Consultant's charges for direct use of Consultant's vehicles, computing systems, laboratory test and analysis,
word processing, printing and reproduction services, and certain field equipment; and (3) Consultant's project
charges for special health and safety requirements of Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA)
services.

Consultant's rates for the following direct expenses shall be: Computer charges of $6.00 will be applied to all
labor hours for all staff. These rates are subject to change for work performed beyond the work period noted
below.

A markup of 10% will be applied to all other Direct Costs and Expenses.

An additional premium of 25% will be added to the above rates for Expert Witness and Testimonial Services.
Rates are applicable for work performed through December 31, 2024. Rate increases will go into effect on
January 1, 2025.



A rate increase, which will not exceed 5%, is anticipated in 2025. A new Hourly Billing Rate
Schedule will be provided to the District at that time. The 2025 rates will not change the
contract amount.



KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #12

TITLE: PUBLIC HEARING ON FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 BUDGET INCLUDING
DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF FINAL BUDGET

For Discussion and Possible Action: Conduct public hearing and adopt the Budget for
FY 2024/2025

MEETING DATE: 21 May 2024
PREPARED BY:  Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approval of Budget for fiscal year 2024/2025

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Each year the Board of Trustees conducts a budget workshop
to review and discuss the tentative budget which is followed by the adoption of a final budget in
May. Once approved, the budget must be signed by all Trustees and submitted to the Department of
Taxation no later than June 1%, 2024.

The tentative FY 2024/2025 budget was submitted as required to the Department of Taxation and
corrective comments were received on 9 May 2024. Ironically, budgeting conservatively is at the
core of the discrepancies. The tentative budget was not in compliance due to the Snow Removal
Fund with a negative balance due to anticipating higher expense year while the Water Utility
Enterprise Fund was budgeted with negative cash equivalents due possibility of more rapid spending
on capital projects. These have been adjusted. The Snow Fund budget included a transfer from the
General Fund. The Water Utility Enterprise Fund was corrected with an adjustment to the
anticipated rate of spending. The notice of public hearing was published in the newspaper.

A brief presentation on the proposed budget is available. Which provides for the summary of the
proposed 2024/2025 budget. The presentation and budget worksheets will be available for
discussion during the hearing.

This item includes a public hearing, and the format is as follows:

1. Opening/Welcome (specific to the public hearing) Board Chair

2. Presentation on proposed FY 2024/2025 Budget Management

3. Open Public Hearing (motion/vote) regarding the Budget Board Chair
proposed FY 2024/25

4. Public Comment
5. Close Public Hearing (motion/vote) of FY 2024/25 Budget Board Chair
6. Board discussion/action on adoption of FY 2024/2025 Budget Board Chair

|



Updates to the budget based upon the April 9 meeting and subsequent review include:

Adjusted sewage treatment cost up based upon recent information

Adjust lowest 3 hourly wage positions

Adjustment to Water Capital spending reflecting lower rate in spring 2025
Adjustment of Snow Rate revenues reflecting new rate of $26.50 starting in Jan

Transfer of $550k from General Fund to cover budgeted deficiency compliance with
NRS 354.596

INCLUDED:
A. Draft FY 2024/25 Final Budget
B. Copy of published notice
C. Tentative Budget Review by Department of Taxation

Fund impacted by above action:

(X) All Funds () Not a Budget Item
() Water Fund () Sewer Fund

() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund
() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



Final:Budget®s

i,
ey
53
)
. gt

‘)
"y

Supporting Documents
May 21, 2024

Tafioe on Tap -
Llearly Special




MISSION STATEMENT
Our skilled employees, management staff, and Board of Trustees, working as a team, are
committed to provide water and sewer service, and maintain roads and drainage systems in an
efficient, courteous, and accountable manner, for the long-term benefit of our customers, in
accordance with standards set for public health, safety and the environment.

Kingsbury GID
Statistics at a Glance
Established September 8" 1964

Governed by 5 Elected Community Members as the Board of Trustees

Services provided: Water, Sewage collection, Road maintenance, Snow Removal,
Erosion control and Drainage

15 positions

38 miles of water line

27 miles of sewer line

22 miles of roadway

286 fire hydrants

693 manholes

33 pressure zones (water)

8 water reservoirs (5.8 million gallons)

3157 water service connections

1824 wastewater service connections

1 Surface water treatment plant

700 foot underwater intake line

4 Sewage lift-stations

6 Water pump stations

1,751.22 acre feet/year water right

Water production capacity of 6.5 million gallons per day
86 million gallons of sewer flow annually

Typical residential monthly water bill $190.00

Typical residential monthly sewer bill $ 60.40
Typical residential snow removal bill $ 22.50
Property tax assessment $ 0.5848/$1,000 ($335,854,509.00 total assessed value)
$12,836,831 annual revenues ($2.5 M grant fy24/25)



Budget Message

Fiscal year 2024/2025 budget was prepared with a pragmatic outlook building upon the
success while focusing on capturing efficiencies within the institutional ethos. An
organizational fermata, an indeterminant pause to gain footing. We have new systems,
new facilities, and gaps in key positions; we continue to manage costs to a degree of
addressing the impacts of inflation and uncertainty as we seek improvements in service
delivery while gaining management and information tools.

For this budget we projected:

Revenues will increase slightly due to property tax and rate increases in place
for the snow removal fund. Water use will increase incrementally higher — more units
online, stable economic outlook for first half of FY, 25 and the snowpack melting a little
earlier than last year. Water and sewer rate increases are not assumed (the district
should also update the fee schedule as we engage rates). However, the influence of
$2.5 million on a project grant makes revenue appear large.

Expenses will have moderation as inflation has slowed over the previous 3 years;
wages will increase by 5%; services purchased by the district have some increases; fuel
and energy should remain flat during the first half of the year. The sewer maintenance
contract expires in October with the.renewal to be negotiated (likely reflecting several
years without an adjustment). The district expenses paid to the sewer authority continue
to be higher. Snow removal expenses are expected to be consistent with ten-year
leveling model used in the rate setting yet have to be budgeted more conservatively.

As presented, the budget reflects each of the funds’ balances decrease from the
anticipated FY24 year end. Putting the funds to work has been achieved. Adjusted for
specific reserves, debt coverage and unfunded liabilities, the district is in the unenviable
position requiring;rate increases for multiple funds. The district has not experienced
regulatory concerns'amounting to any notable level, but treatment plant upgrades are
forecasted. Insurance costs continue to increase, fortunately we have experienced no
injuries or erker compensation issues for the past three years.

People are th'e"{':‘bre of this institution: the district continues to struggle with filling the gaps
in our ranks. Cdi‘r_lpetition with other agencies, cost-of-living and the general dearth of
qualified applicants are ot_)sta'él'es to finding and retaining desirable people. Yet to that
end, a couple recent hires demonstrated themselves to be of the right stuff and folded
into the team well while others were also high caliper and able to have a quick tenure at
the district taking a small piece forward assuming duties which better fulfill their career
goals. The district pursued new tools such as temporary labor and small vendor services
in order to complete the mission.

Operational/compliance projects such as the Lead/Copper Service Line (NDEP) inventory
and System Resiliency Certification (US EPA), and CyberSecurity Compliance (USEPA)
are major elements in the work plan. Capital projects and general support of the
community redevelopment projects such as Barton Hospital, completion of Tahoe Beach

2



Club and Tahoe/Peak Condominium Complex takes full engagement of our engineering
capacity. Grants for projects such as the SCADA replacement, pump station/reservoir
renovations, and landfill recovery are on the horizon. We have been informed that the
bandwidth of the consulting firms is also stretched.

The district has pressed the vehicle and equipment replacement cycles in order to
establish the replacement reserve fund. Operational expenses are rising but not for the
equipment most likely to be replaced. The traditional valuation equation of repairs verse
replacement is not applicable to short-term decisions, until the replacement reserve
matures.

Customer expectations for drainage improvements, retaining walls and better tailored
snow service have become detractors. As the district regroups around the core missions
this year during the next year, the future vision may become driven towards these
elements stretching revenues to new points. Service delivery suited for the changing
demographics of the district are likely to provide challenges in funding. The district has
embraced training and development of our workforce and improved the partnering
opportunity with our vendors and neighboring agencies.

Enterprise fund rate increases are needed. The Sewer fund poses a unique concern with
completion of the masterplan, renewal maintenance service contract, higher than industry
flows and increasing expenditures to the treatment agency. The Water fund requires a
moderate increase addressing inflation and capital needs.

An election year and the legislative year commencing in the spring, active engagement,
both independently and in the cohort of the League of Cities and Municipalities is
anticipated. Articulated positions for Northern Nevada will have unique weight for the
current Administration. Kingsbury is positioned as a leader for the GID’s within the State
and in the recent past led the League. The annual conference for the League this year
is at Stateline, making Kingsbury the de facto host, providing a unique opportunity to bring
attention to the agency; our challenges and achievements.

September of this year marks the 60" year of our district's service to the community.
Taking stock of the accomplishments and preparing for the next 60 is like a crescendo
followed by the caesura. With the majority turover in the membership of the board of
trustees anticipated at mid-year, capturing current plans and vamping them for the future
will be a weighty task to provide continuity and preserve the momentum. Protecting the
health of our customers, being stewards of the public trust, maintaining the assets
entrusted to us places the district at the core of the Kingsbury
community.

Respectfully Submitted,

Mitchell S. Dion
General Manager



Table of Contents

Page
Y 1Y o) o Ve OO S ULS I P 1
Kingbury GID Statistics at @ GlanCe...............oooviie i 1
BUAQGET MESSAGE. ... i nieiiiiiiiii it e e 28&3
TablE Of CONMEENES. ... ieit et iie et e e e e ettt e e r it e et e s bt s r s e s r e e s st e s 4
Organizational Chart.............oooiiiiuiiiiii e 5
Map Of DiStrict S@IVICE AT€a.........couiiuiiiiiiiie ittt 6
Kingsbury GID Combined Budget............ P e 7&8
General Fund Budget.................ooone, ” e s 9&10
Water Fund BUdget............ccovvverveeeecneennn. S e - 11 & 12
Sewer Fund Budget.................. .................................. 13 &14
SNOW FUND BUAGEL. ......ooovooeoeeee e f e 15 &16
Supporting Worksheet Computer Expense..........ccceeians " B8 s e e 17
Supporting Worksheet Expense ANOCAtION. ...t it 18
Supporting Worksheet Payroll..).’.z ...............................................................
Capital Outlay................. A e TS T PO
Supporting Worksheet Englneerrng e
Supporting Worksheet Rental...... l,« I PR R LIPS 24
DD oot ettt 25



_— OARD OF
| Customers TRUSTEES

Mitch Dion ]
GENERAL MANAGER |

JUDY BREWER VACANT
ADMINISTRATIVE ADMINISTRATIVE
AND HUMAN AND FINANCE

RESOURCE SUPERV. ANALYST

¢ CARRIE BAUWENS e BRANDY JOHNS
Ulility Billing Coordinator Accountant li

o LEIGH STANTON
Administrative Clerk/Secretary

15 FTE

FY 2024 Requested Authorized Positions

Outsourced

Snow Removal

Sewer Maintenance Services
Engineerning

VACANT
ENGINEERING
TECH

| VACANT
UTILITY
OPERATIONS
‘ SUPERINTENDENT |

« JOE ESENARRO
Lead Water Operator
e SHANE MORTENSEN
Water Operator 11
« BYRAN MOSS
Water Ogegator Il
« MIKE EDWARDS
Water Operator Il
¢ Vacant
Water Opetator. )
o Jeff Wood
Maintenance Technician I
s Vacant
Maintenance Technician Il



Dlstr_it_:t Services -
I worer iy

[ water, Sewer, Roads







KGID COMBINED BUDGET 24-25

LEGAL $ 2900 $ 34800 § 17400 !$ 2900 $__ 58,000
LEGAL LABOR NEGOTIATIONS $ 16128 7440 $ 2108, % 1240 $_ 12,400
LIEN FEES 5 1250 s 125
METER REPAIR & MAINT $ 30,000 $ 30,000
MISCELLANEOUS $ 14088 § 10000 § 4600 § 5600 $ 34,288
OFFICE JANITORIAL $ 7,663 § 9274 $ 4637 8 773§ 22347
OFFICE SUPPLIES $ 1925.§ 12570 $ 6582 § 1314 § 2239
PERMITS AND FEES . 167 $ 9,056 $ 405§ 668 § 10,296
POSTAGE $ 7800 $§ 5100 § 2100 § 15000
PUBLICATION CHARGES .8 205 $ 3180 $ 1590 $ 1515 § 6.580
ROAD MAINT. & SUPPLIES $ 45000 s - $ 45000
SAFETY EQUIPMENT $ 500 _$ 500 $ 100 $ 1,100
SECURITY EXPENSE $ __a2ls 9531 § 8580 % 18§ 1817
SEWER FLOW MANAGEMENT __ A S $ -
SHOP SUPPLIES/SM. TOOLS  _ $ 7,000 8 7,000
SNOW REMOVAL - PLOWING $ 775000 $ 775000
SNOW REMOVAL - SANDING $ 75000 $ _ 75000
SNOW REMOVAL- ANTHDE ICING | $ $ -
TELEPHONE $  162.§  14784]% 1632 § 16218 __ 16740
TRAINING & SEMINARS $ 4726 §  22968!% 5874 % 2062 35620
TRAVEL $ 2250 § 13404 $ 3462 5 1,984 $_ 21,100
TRUSTEE COMPENSATION $ 2250 §_ 27000 $ 13500 § 2250 § 45000
UNIFORM EXPENSE $ 1404 $__ 692 $_ 117 5_ _87 5 9,360
UTILITIES - GAS/ELECTRIC 16972 $ 278507 § 30000 $ _ 1670 § 327,149
VEMICLEEXPENSE FUELIOIL __ § 14311 § 1084911 516311 § 137,113
VEHICLEEXPENSER&M _ _ § 12053 § _ 51,920 _$ 11303 §__ 75276
WATERMONTORNG/SAMPLE ~ ______§_ 17583 __ s 17,583
WTR CONSERV, & WTR SHED [ $_ 18500 § 18500
WATER DISTRIBUTION EXP $__ 62700 s 62700
WATER TREATMENT EXP $ 82456 $ 82456
TOTAL OPERATING EXP. $ 622186 §$ 2,638,029 $ 2,157,031 § 1,212,445 § 6,628,291
INTEREST EXPENSE s $ -8 - 8 272609
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE I $ 625 $_ 62,176 $ 1,419,801
AMORTIZATION EXPENSE .8 S 9246
{GAIN) LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF EQUIP R : s
TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS '$ 550,000 | Uy $ (550.000) $
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 1,972,186 § 4,277,509 § 2219207 § 662445 § 8,331,347
I NETINCOME § 1,225330 § 3,307,301 § (162,900) § 135603 § 4,505,484
CAPITAL OUTLAY 5 (2,136.000). § (1.611,589) §_(520000) S (120,000}, § (14,398,589
CONTINGENCY $  (82,808) o s (40.243)' §  (123,049]
DEBT PRINCIPAL REPAYMENT '$ (1,369,133) o __$_{1,369,133)
PROCEEDS FROMSRF LOAN s -t $ -
PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF EQUIP s . |
ACCTS RECEIVABLE-GRANT n $ - $
ACCTS PAYABLE-PROJECT ___ | _1s P S, S s -
DEVELOPER CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS Is_37s0000/ | . .§_ 3,750,000
ADD BACK DEPRECIATION/AMORT _ § 1,366,871 $ 62,176 % 1429047
ADJUST TO CASH FLOW s - $ - 8 -
TOTAL CASH FLOW ADJUSTMENTS § (2,220,806) $ (7,863,851) $ (457,824) § (160,243) § (10,711.724)
! 18
NET CASH INCR./DECR. $ (995416) § (4,556,550) § (620,724) §  (33,550) $ (6,206,240)
AVAIL. CASH - BEGINNING $ 5827,691§ 4196208 $ 10,023,989
AVAILABLE CASH - END $ 1.2141 § 3575574 $ 4,846,715
OPENING FUNDBALANCE __ § 9571460 S 42907 § 9614367
ENDING FUND BALANCE ___ § 8,576,044 _ g IS 9357 § 8585401
| $ -
DEPREC. ACCT. RESERVED §_ 105659 § 444985 § 8320 $ 127,211 $__ 686175
RESERVE ADDITIONS § 155734 §_ 300670 $ 8151 % 95564 §_ 560,119
LESS RESERVE USE s8-8 -8 - s -8 _
NET RESERVE BALANCE § 261,303 §  745655:% 16471 $ 2227751$ 1,246,204
DISTRIBUTION DEBT SERVICE $ 228602 | i$ 228692
TREATMENT DEBT SERVICE § 592,179 $ 592179
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT RESERVE $ (763,739 $  (763,739)

TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH| § 261,393 § 802787 § 16471 § 222,775 § 1,303,426




KGID COMBINED BUDGET 24-25

"GENERAL | _WATER__| SEWER SNOW TOTAL

I ——— FUND FUND FUND FUND ALL FUNDS

‘REVENUES 3 e —

RESIDENTIAL BASE FEES S 3584576 $ 1751842 $ 717876 $ 6.054,294
TIER 1 CONSUMPTION REVENUE ___ $ 320000 § 26400 __§_ 355400
TIER 2 CONSUMPTION REVENUE $ eso00 _$ 68000
TIER 3 CONSUMPTION REVENUE $ 72,000 $ 72000
FIRE PROTECTION T $ 88,344 $ 88344

COMMERCIAL BASE FEES r '$ 364056 $ 44212 §  66,096!% 474364
CONSUMPTION | _$ 110000 3 34,020 LS 144,020
FIREPROTECTION | 1s _ 94137 i $ 94137

PENALTIES ON USERFEES 3 17867 § 11682 § 4810 ' $ 34,359

SERVICE CHARGES '$ 14400 .. .8 14400

RETURN CHECK FEES L s 480 3 480

CONNECTION FEES _ L $ 9655|8720 $ 103750

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS |$ . 31152018 345198 [$ 176809 § 8419 $ 841,946

TRANSFER FM OTHER FUNDS is - Ts -

GRANT REVENUE s __ - 18 23500001 $ $ 2,350,000

OTHER, INCL. RENTAL _$ 108167 _$ 25350 §$ 500_$% 55 $ 134,072

TRANSFER FEES $ 417618 214213 882]|% 7,200

PLAN REVIEW FEES $ 1,250 ,$ 1,500 1$ 270

SERVLINE LOSS REVENUE, . $__1a7m0] $ 14710

SERVLINE LINE REVENUE ) 2,856 | $ 2,856

SERVLINE ADMIN REVENUE % 1880 $. 1,860

PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX | s 7,800 | _Is 7,800

AD VALOREM TAXES _ 625935 $ 625935

AD VALOREMMAKE-UP J $ 547,346 ] $ . 547,346

STATE TAX DISTRIBUTION $ 796808 $ 796,808

TOTAL REVENUES $ 2,397,576 $ 7,584,810 $ 2,056,307 § 798,138 § 12,836,831
~_ 'EXPENDITURES -

PAYROLL - MANAGEMENT § 89284|Ss 27550308 157190 3 73,283 | 895230

MAINTENANCE [ $ 1158891$ 477,361 % $ 51778’ $ 645028

__OFFICE |$_ 27692l$ 73842 $ 55380 § 27,692 3 184,606
ACCRUED LEAVE s 350018 13.000'$ 4000 $ 2,000 § 22500

i PAYROLL SUBTOTAL' § 236,365 '$ 839706 § 216570 $ 154,723 § 1,447,364
FICA/MEDICARE '3 3,768 ' $ 12,777 _§ 3,444 § 2512 § 22,502

MEDICAL INS. 1% 652931% 250,767 $ 59056 $ 49,715 § 424,831
EMPLOYER PERS $ 449158 197437 $ 51276 § 34759 $ 328,387

_ WORKMANS COMP _$ _ 279,$ _ 6946 $ 859 $ 1113 8 11677
SEPIRA _ .3 - 3 $ = .3 - 18 -
UNEMPLOYMENTEXP _ § 2998 § 7995,% 599 S  2998$ 19,987

OPEB EXPENSE _§ 11,040 § _ 40670 _$__ 17490 $  11,392|$ 80,592

OTHER P/R EXP § 2,000 § 3200 § 500 $  1,000;$ _ 6700

VEHICLE EXP INCL IN WAGES $ (B0D) $ {4,000] § {500) $ 's (5300}
BENEFIT SUBTOTAL § 131,974 § 515792 § 138121 § 103,489 $ 887,976

 TOTALP/R8 RELATEO COSTS § 368,339 § 1,355498 § 354,691 § 258,212 § 2,335,340

ACCOUNTING $§ 2946 $ 75355 § 17678 § 2946 $ 098,925

BANK CHARGES $ 52837 § 34727 $§ 11906 § 99,470

BAD DEBT |$ 32053 _$ 20958 $ 8630 § 61,641

BUILDING REPAIR & MAINT. $ 20000/%  30000]|$ 31419 § 5276 $ 86695

BUSINESS MEALS s - s 500 § - 8 $ 500

COMPUTER EXPENSE I$ 7584/3 60261 $ 17861 $ 5139 § 90,845

DCSIDM &0 1 § 823691 $ 823691

DCSID ASSESSMENTS ! L $ 490,034 $ 490,034

DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS s 674 | $ 903 $ 4,346 §$ 685 § 14,743

ENGINEERING & SURVEYING i$ 35000.% 22750 $§ 10250 $ 500 $ 68,500

EQUIP. SUPPLIES & R&M § 450018 14750 § 212,748 § 700, § 232,698

EQUIPMENT RENTAL 8 51518 9146 $ 3847 $ 832§ 14,340

EROSION & DRAINAGE $ 25000 s 25000

FACILITIES RENT $ N 5 $ '$ -

FIELD SUPPLIES/TOOLS/SIGNS $ 20,630 - $ 10000!$ 30630

INSURANCE AND BONDS $ 8678 $ 115165 § 28694 §  4782|§  157.319

INVENTORY PARTS 3 15,000 ¢ 500 '$ 15500




GENERAL

KGID GENERAL FUND BUDGET WORKSHEET 2023/2024 5/15/2024 |
D _ TTACTUAL  BUDGET 1§T6MOS. | (OVERY  PROJECT PROJECT  (OVERY = PROPOSED
- 22/23 23/24 ACTUAL  UNDER 2ND 6MOS. 2324 TOTAL _ UNDER _ BUDGET 24/25
REVENUES ] T -
AD VALOREM TAXES 562,056 | 709,165 394,136 315,029 315,029 709,165 0 625,935
AD VALOREM MAKE-UP 455944 | 561,529 312,074 249455 249455 561,529 (0) 547,346
STATE TAX DISTRIBUTION 725,207, 790,070 395,035 395,035 395,035 790070  (0). 796,808
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 235001 | 116,588 203819 (87.231) 164414 368,233  (251,645) 311,520
PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX 7,800 4,104 ~ 1,99 2,113 201377 4104 (), 7,800
GRANT REVENUE 40,000 R
RENTAL INCOME 113,327 '103,353 49, 480 53, 873 49,536 99,016 4.3;57 1gj/,167
OTHER, INCL. LAND SALE 1.894 1,000 1,069 (69) 2,872 13,941 {2,941) 1,000
TOTAL REVENUES 2,141,319 2,285,809 1,357,604 928,205 1,178,454 2,536,058 (250,249) 2,397,576
""" ‘EXPENDITURES I ) . ) i - -
'PAYROLL - MANAGEMENT 52874 77222 28020 49202 21,734° 49,754 27,468 89,284
MAINTENANCE 14,577  57.158 11,267 45,891 5539 ~~ 66636 __ (9.478) 115889
OFFICE _ 2327117 26,349 T 12,698 13,651 17661 30,359 __ (a010) 27692
ACCRUED LEAVE 2,741 3,500 1,669 1831 1420~ 3,089 411 3,500
PAYROLL SUBTOTAL| 93,463 164,229 53,654 110,575 96,184 149,838 14,392 236,365
FICA/MEDICARE 1,393 2,392 807 1585 3541 4,348 (1,956)_ 3,769
MEDICAL INS. 740,508 62,528 148247 47,704 26247 41,070 21,458 65,293
o EMPLOYER PERS 22,779 38641 13301, 25340 13510 26,811 11,830 44,915
- WORKERS COMP 866 1,975 624 1,351 2,258 2,882 (907) 2,759
- SEP/RA 8 - . - . - - 0
UNEMPL BENEFIT - - o 2,998 |
OPEBEXPENSE __ (56,875) 15,190 "2 075 13, 15 2,075 ] 4, 150" 1N 040 T 11,040
OTHER PIR EXP. 101 550 562 | (12); 93]~ 1 497 (947), " 2,000
T VEHICLE ALLOW INCLPR_ (763 (800) —  {400) " (40D): (26} (426) T "(374) "(800)
BENEFIT SUBTOTAL 8,090 - 120,476 31,793 | 88,683 48,565 | 80,758 40,517 131,974
TOTAL P/R & RELATED COSTS 101,553 284,705 85,447 199,258 144,749 230,596 54,909 368,339
'ACCOUNTING 7,911 2,250 2,636 (386) - — 2,636 (386) 2,946
LEGAL i 1543, _ 2,900 1,585~ 1,315 _ 1,500 3085~ {(185) 2,900
LEGAL LABOR NEGOTIATIONS f[ 1351 T 806 _ 806 (808). 1,612
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING | 886941 35, ooo 1= 00, 928 (65, 928) T 17,400 118,328 (83,328) 35,000
EROSION & DRAINAGE s 5285 25,000 1529 23471 5000 6529 18471 25,000
ROAD MAINT, & SUPPLIES 342,681 30,000 553808  (523,808) 25599 ~ T 579407 (549407) 45000
BAD DEBTS 1 - - - - - - -
BANK CHARGES _ - - e ) -
BUILDING REPAIRS/MAINT ) 403 16904 2,469 14435 11, 280 13 749< _ 3 155 20,000
COMPUTER EXPENSE ~ 2,952 5,551 917 74634 1,639 1 56 2,995 | 7,584
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 597 674 _ 561 13 113 674 _ o _ __ 674
EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES/R&M 1,029 [ 74500 82 4418 44181 _ 4,500 _ (o) 4,500
EQUIPMENT RENTAL _ 38, _ 515 _ 196 319 321 517 (2 515
FIELD SUPPL./TOOLS/SIGNS __ 6704 20,630 27 20,603 6,081 6, 125 14505 20,630
SECURITY EXPENSE il a2 - 42 42 - 42
INSURANCE AND BONDS 9, eoo 11,543 8017 3526 500 8, 517 3,026 8678
MISCELLANECUS EXP. _ i 10,291 14,088 3445 10643 8092 11,537 2551 14,088
OFFICE JANITORIAL J 9305 7663, 5637 2,026 5980 T 11818 (3.953) 7,663
IES RENT 3,250 2,166 ' 1625 ~ &4 542 2,167 [ -
OFFICE SUPPLIES - 810~ 3,535 297~ 3238 _ __ 3,;2,33 3.535 | o 1,925
PERMITS & FEES 83 87 _ 136 (69} o 136 (69) 167,
POSTAGE - - - ) o ) -
PUBLICATIONCHARGES 331 265 i 195 | 70 260 J_ 455 ] (19@), 295
SAFETY EQUIPMENT . - 500 - d 500 500 500 - 500
TELEPHONE = 185 162 78] 84 sl 159 3 162
TRAINING & SEMINARS o 84 4726 T 185° 4541 1606~ 1785 2841 4726
TRAVEL 332 2250 8 2,168 750 832 1418 2,250
TRUSTEE COMPENSATION 2,068 2,250 1,125 1,125~ 14257 2,250 - T 225
UNIFORM EXPENSE _ T 1% 1,404 317 1,087 1087 1404, " (0) 1,404}
UTILITIES i 17,084 16,314 7,571 8,743 8,743 16,314 (0), 16,972
VEHICLE EXPENSE FUEL/OIL "~ 44871 13436 3,538 9898~ 9898 13436 0 14,311
VEHICLE EXPENSE R&M 13514 10121 5674 44477 asar|T T a0020 0, 12,053
INTEREST EXPENSE - L - - -
SUBTOTAL EXPENSES 634625 313,1 61 786,105 (268,944) 944) 265,808 1,054, 314 534, 351 ), 622,186
CAPITAL OUTLAY 825097 1,984,760 135449 1849311 141,265 276,714 1,708,046 2,138,000
CONTINGENCY - 75118 - 75,118, 12,212 1 12,212 62,906 82,806
SUBTOTAL 1,459,722 2,579,039 923,554 1,655485 | 419,285, 1,343,240 1,236,600 2,842,992
TRANSF. TO OTHER FUNDS - i - T - - ! - 550,000.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES | 1,450,722 2,579,030 | 923,554  1,655485 419,285 1,343,240 1,236,600 3,392,992
NET GAIN OR LOSS 629,704 (293,230) 434,051 (727,281) 759,169 1,192,817  (1,486,849) {995,416)
|
OPENING FUND BALANCE 7,748,938  7,948743 8,378,642 . T 8.378.542 1 9,571,460
!
CLOSING FUND BALANCE 8378642 7655513 8,812,692 "5 571,460 8,576,044

9



GENERAL

[KGID GENERAL FUND BUDGET WORKSHEET 2023/2024 L - 5/15/2024 ]
ACTUAL ' BUDGET  1ST6MOS. (OVER)  PROJECT  PROJECT __ (OVERY _ PROPOSED_
T TRH23T T 23124 ACTUAL UNDER 2ND 6 MOS. 23/24 TOTAL~ UNDER ~ BUDGET 24/25
DEPREC. ACCT.RESERVED = 0 134619 134,619 - 0 - T T 105,659
VEHICLE & EQUIPEMENT [ T
RESERVE ADDITIONS 134,619 L_ 113944, 59,829 54,115 59,829 119,659 ) 155,734
LESS RESERVE USE 01 _ (14,000) - {14,000) I X1 -
NET RESERVE BALANCE 0l 2348637 194449 40,115 59,829 105659 T 261,393
TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH 134,619 234,563 194,449 40,115 59,829 105,659 - 261,393

10



WATER

KGID WATER FUND BUDGET WORKSHEET 2023/24 5/15/2024
ACTUAL BUDGET 1ST6MOS. (OVERY PROJECT PROJECT (OVERY _ PROPOSED

22/23 23124 ACTUAL  UNDER 2ND 6 MOS. 23/24 TOTAL _ UNDER _BUDGET 24/25

'REVENUES
RESIDENTIAL BASE FEES 3,498,601  3.523523 1,750,958 1,772,565 1,785264 3,536,222 | (12,699) 3,584,576
CONSUMPTION 0 o o0 S0 - 0
TIER 1 CONSUMPTION 325,557 320000 170,183 __ 158, 817 159 ,000] 329,183 (183) 329,000
TIER 2 CONSUMPTICN "64,436 66,000 i __ 40,169 27,831 ___ 24000 64,169 3,831 68,000
TIER 3 CONSUMPTION 73,154 T Te0,900 38,996 30804 29000 _ 67,996 1904 72,000
FIRE PROTECTION 81,754 83277 42,002 41,185 ~ 52,422 94,514 (11,237) 86344
COMMERCIAL BASE FEES 364,187 364,584 186,634 177,950 182,025 368,659 {4.075). 364,056
CONSUMPTION 106,365 88,987 65,150 '23,837 45000 110,150 (21, 163) ~ 110,000
FIRE PROTECTION 93,838 94137 47,060 47,068 | 47,068 94,137 0 94,137
PENALTIES ON USER FEES 47459 47,256 28,214 26,405 ~ 54,619 (7,363), 17,867
SERVICE CHARGES 15121 14400 __ 6,763 76377 14400 (0. 14,400
RETURN CHECK FEES 543 480 90" 290 340 430 50 480
CONNECTION FEES 15,800 25000 48200  (23200) 14,711 62,911 _ (37.911) 96,550
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 268 283_ 183210 201,290 (18,080) 182,188 ' 383,478 “w(_z_ggzsa) -345,198
GRANT REVENUE __ - 68026 (68026) 83674 151,700  (151,700) 2, ,350,000
TRANSFER FEE REVENUE _ 52 231 3,285 3,467 (182)] 1638 5,105 (1,820} 4,176
PLAN REVIEW FEES 771,500 _ 1,250 3000  (1,750) 750 3,750 ° "~ (2,500) 1,250
SERVLINE LOSS REVENUE T 18778 _ 15,801 “7289 8512 8512 _ 15801 o0 14,710
SERVLINE LINE REVENUE 2,708 2,851 1449 1402 1,402 2,851 (o) 2,856
SERVLINE ADMIN REVENUE 1,828 1838 ~ 915 923 923 1.838 e ® _ 1,860
OTHER, INCL. LAND SALE 31,787 25,800 18,457 7.343 25100 43,557 ' (17.757) 25,350
TOTAL REVENUES 5,016,930 4,942,579 2,728,511 2,214,068 2,676,959 5,405,470  (462,891) 7,584,810
'EXPENDITURES

PAYROLL - MANAGEMENT 177,657 243268 93684 149,584 ! 58,788 152471, 90,797 275,503
MAINTENANGE 361,412 451,526 772,443 285,083 217,306 _ 389,749 67,777~ 477,361
OFFICE 62,057 70262 33861 _ 36,401 47,096 80,958  (10,696) 73,842
ACCRUED LEAVE EXP 7.930 13,000 4,144 8856 (12,457)  _ (8,013) 21,013 '13,000
PAYROLL SUBTOTAL 609,056 784,056 304,132 479,924 311,033 615,165 168,891 839,706
FICA/MEDICARE 9238 11,907 | 4,765 7,942, _ 5793 10,558 1,349 | 12,777
MEDICAL INS. 195535 238732 _ 91,393' 147,339 100,562 191,955 46,777  _ 250,767
EMPLOYER PERS 137.995 186,649 80,679 105070 _ 78,335 159,014  _ 27,635 197,437
WORKERS COMP 5962 8812 (1,976) " 9,988 6723 5547 3265 6,946

SEP/IRA gio o 0 — e - 0
UNEMPLOYMENTEXP ___ e o~ o - - 7,995

OPEB EXPENSE 34,186 138,608 70,3351 118, 273 vz_o_sgg 40670 . 97,938 40,670
OTHER P/REXP 1,740 3,200 513 2,687 2,687 3,200 0 3,200

VEHICLE ALLOW INCL WAGES (3.816) (4,0000T _(2,000)  "(2,000) (134 (2,134) (1,866) (4,000)
BENEFIT SUBTOTAL 381,650 583,908 194,509 13,907 214,301 410,944 176,963 515,792
TOTAL P/R & RELATED COSTS 990,706 1,367,964 498,641 869,324 525,335 1,026,109 345,854 1,355,498
ACCOUNTING 22,933 27,000 31,637 (4,637) - 1 31,637 (4,837 75,355
LEGAL 33,134 34,800 ; 8,849 25951 28420, __37,269|  (2,469) 34,800
LEGAL LABOR NEGOTIATIONS 950 - e 3,720 3720 (3.720) 7440
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING 8637 22, 756" 3519 19232 6350] 9, 869 12,882 22,750
BAD DEBTS 0 33383 0 33,383 4,795 4795 28588 32,053
BANK CHARGES 46,723~ 49,318 23,889 | 25429 24,499 48,388 930, 52,837

BUILDING REPAIR & MAINT. B89 30000, " 3519| 26481 3098 6617 _ 23383 ] 30,000

BUSINESS MEALS 0 D 0] -1 0 ] 500
COMPUTER EXPENSE 44,036 88,179 28165| ~ 60014| 40,133 68,2¢ 29734 19.881 60,261
DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 7,909 9038  7162] 1,876’ 1,108 82707 768, 9,038
EQUIP. SUPPLIES & R&M 11,154 14,750 2,141 12,609 12609 14750 © 14,750
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 7,029 9,146 4,579 4,567 4,390 8,969, 177 9,146
SECURITY EXPENSE 6,818 9,531 3,723 5,808 5,808 9531 (0) 9,531
INSURANGE AND BONDS 90,474 99,908 _ 91,388 8,520 8787 100,175 _  (267) 115,165
SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0 500 236 264 500 736 500
INVENTORY PARTS 6,538 15000 11,1921 = 38087 3,808 ! 15,000 15,000
LIEN FEES 357 250 (1,802) 2,152 2152 250 - 1250
METER REPAIR & MAINT 4823, 30000~ 7 o: 306,000 15000 15000 __ 15,000 30,000
MISCELLANEOUS 19,653 | 10,000 1,350 8650 8,650 " 10,000 0o 1o000
OFFICE JANITORIAL 17831 9,274 2,839 6,435 6.955 9,794 (520) 9,274
FACILITIES RENT 38,998 25998 19,499 6,499 6,500 25099 (1) 0
OFFICE SUPPLIES — 7608 31,890 1962 29928 29,928 _ 31890 (0) 12570
PERMITS AND FEES 7864 8,771 4,280 4491 5048 9,328 (557)__ 9,056
POSTAGE o 6,502 7.950 3,178 4,772 3,420 6,598 _ 1,352; 7,800
PUBLICATION CHARGES 584 T 3180 521 2,659 2,364 2,885 295" 73180

SHOP SUPPLIES/SM. TOOLS 1,236 7,000 | 1,857 5143 5143 7,000 0~ 7,000
TELEPHONE _ 13837 14784 6892 7.892 7,525 14,417 367 14,784
TRAINING & SEMINARS 74460 22,968 1 692 22,276 9,500, 10,192 12,776 22,968
TRAVEL 2,835 _ 13,404 71,149 12,255 3,ooo¥i 4,149 T 9,255 13,404
TRUSTEE COMPENSATION 24,810 27,000 1 13,500 ; 13,50 _ 1350017 " 27,000 - 27,000
UNIFORM EXPENSE 373 6,962 1,261 5,701 5,701 6,962 0 6962
UTILITIES - GAS/ELECTRIC 264,197 255702 138,946 _ 116,756 141,725 280,671 (24,969)] 278,507

VEHICLE EXPENSE FUEL/OIL 30,319 | 99,486 16,081 83,405 83,405 99,486 0 1%491 |




WATER

KGID WATER FUND BUDGET WORKSHEET 2023/24 5/15/2024
__ACTUAL _ BUDGET 1ST6MOS. (OVERY PROJECT PROJECT (OVERY _ PROPOSED
22123 23124 “TACTUAL  UNDER 2ND 6 MOS. 23/24 TOTAL UNDER BUDGET 24/25
VEHICLE EXPENSE R&M 22,059 36467 12831, 23636 _ 23,636 36467 (0); 51920
WATER MONITORING/SAMPLE 16,672 17,359 8,197 i 9182 9,162 1739 - 17,583
WTR SHED MANAGEMENT 15231 15500 16,877 (3,377) 0 16,877 (1,377) 18,500
WTR DISTRIBUTION EXP 44,173~ 66,520 10,0097~ 56,511 ] 56,511 0y 62,700
WTR TREATMENT EXP 53,001 72,910 256351 47,275 47275 (0) 82,456
TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 1,872,525 2,594,642 1,004,292 1,580,350 1,150,460 2,165,887 432,755 2,638,029
INTEREST EXPENSE 325516 306497 157,394 149,103 149,043 , 306,437 _ 60 272,609
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 1,321,045 " 13350347 676,836 656,198 _ 680,789 1,357,625  (22,591) 1,357,625
AMORTIZATION EXPENSE T AL700 T 104341 5217 5217 5217 10,434 ) 9,246
{GAIN) LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF Et 326 T T - "~ (4,453) (4,453] 4,453 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,531,113 4,246.607 1,843,738 2,402,869 1,990,057 3,835,930 414,677 4,277,509
NET INCOME 1,485,817 695,972 884,773 (188,801) 686,902 1,569,540 (877,568 3,307,301
CAPITAL OUTLAY (1,993,134) _ (7,985,340) (2,696,598) 5,268,742 (2,031,098) (4,727,696) (3,257,644)  (11,611,589)
DEBT PRINCIPAL REPAYMENT (1,611 162) (1,335304)  (663.477) 671,827  (671,827) (1,335,304) 0__ (1,369.133)
PROCEEDS FROM SRF LOAN . - o - R - - -
PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF EQUI ) - 770 - R N -
ACCTS RECE{VABLE-GRANT ) - (66,894)  (66,894)  '(83,106). _ (150,000) 150,000 -
FUND OPEB LIABILITY ACCT (38,983) - 0. - 0 - . -
ACCTS PAYABLE-PROJECT [ R . I
DEVELOPER CAPITALCONTRIB ~ 0 3,750,000 66,804 (3,683,106) 83, 106 '™ 150,000 | 3,600,000 3,750,000
ADD BACK DEPRECIATION/AMOR ~ 1,332,746~ 1,345,468 825,879 663,415 686,006 | 1,368,059 | (22,591) 1,366,871
ADJUST TO CASH FLOW - (167,182) T (269,295)  (269.295) 269,295 ' 0, (o) T
TOTAL CASH FLOW ADJUSTMENTS  (2,477,715)  (4,225,176) (2,803,490) 2,604,690 (1,747,624) (4,694,941) 469,765 (7,353.351)
NET CASH INCR./DECR. (991,898)  (3,529,204) (1,918,717) 1,610,487 (1,060,723) (3,125,401)  (403,803)  (4,556,550),
AVAIL. CASH - BEGINNING 9,944,990 © 9,075,402 8,953,002 ; - 8,953,092 . _ 5,827,691
AVAILABLE CASH - END 8,953,092 © 5,546,198 7,034,374 | - 5,827,601 | 1,271,141
DEPREC. ACCT. RESERVED 618,907 301954 __ 301,954 1 0 373,469 301,954 | 444,985
RESERVE ADDITIONS 184,282 - L - 0f - 0
RESERVE ADDITIONS (VEHICLE) 256,504 143,032° 71,5161 71,_5_1§ 71516 143,032, 300,670
LESS RESERVE USE (757 739) _ (112,000) - 0 0 -
NET RESERVE BALANCE 301,954 332,986 . 3734697  (40,483)__ 444, 985 T 444,985
ﬂ
DISTRIB DEBT SERVICE 1228692 228692 228,692 0, 228697 228692 228692
TREATMENT DEBT SERVICE "502,1797  592,179" 562,179 - 59217971 592,479 592,179
CAPITAL IMPROV RESERVE 661,385 (763,738)  (585,052) (178,687) (514,878)  (514,878) (763,739)
TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH 1,784,209 390,118 609,288  (219,170) 750,978 750,978 - 802,787

12




SEWER

KGID SEWER FUND BUDGET WORKSHEET 2023/24 i 5/15/2024
| _ ACTUAL BUDGET | 1ST6 MOS. (OVERY PROJECT PROJECT _ (OVERY  PROPOSED
] "7 22/23 23/24 ACTUAL UNDER 2ND 6 MOS.23/24 TOTAL  UNDER  BUDGET 24/25
‘REVENUES
USER FEES - RESIDENTIAL 1,750,999 = 1,753,291 870,950 882,341 870,122 1,741,072 12,219 1,751,842
USERFEES- COMMERCIAL 42233 42401 21,019 21,382 22,106 43,125 (724) 44,212
CONSUMPTION RESIDENTIAL 29,629 32,400 16,563 15,837 10,200 26,763 5,637 26,400
CONSUMPTION COMMERCIAL | 37,961 34,020 15412 18608| 16,200 31,612 2,408 34,020
PENALTIES ON USER FEES 25346 20,160 14,057 6,103 12471 26528 (6.368). 11,682
CONNECTION FEES 10,200 6,000 5,400 600 600 —  e000: - T 7200
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 136635 87,441 109,769 ___ (22,328) 93316 ' 203085 (115644 176,809
TRANSFER FEES 1,937 1,578 7 1,106 469 1,071 2,477 _ (602) 2,142
PLAN REVIEW FEES - 4250 1,250 250 1,000 1,000 1,250 - 1,500
OTHER REVENUE 591 150 2,270 “[2.420) 150 2,420 {2,270) 500
TOTAL REVENUES 2,036,782 1,978,688 1,056,796 921,892 ' 1,027,236 ) 2,084,032 | _ (105,344) 2,056,307
~ EXPENDITURES o —
PAYROLL - MANAGEMENT ~ " 84,798 133,104 45,202 87,902~ 42,994 88,196 44,908 157,190
MAINTENANCE - 0 - - o
OFFICE 46543 52,695 25, 396 27 29g 35322 60,718 (8, 023) 55380
ACCRUED LEAVE 5,189 4,000 2,295 1,705 675 2,970 1,030 4,000
PAYROLL SUBTOTAL 136,530 189,799 72892 116,907 78,991 151,884 37,914 | 216,570
FICA/MEDICARE 2,287 3,056 1,236 1820 1875 3110 (54). 3,444
MEDICAL INS. 41,450 . 57,210 21284 _ 35926 _ 20814 42007 15113 59,056
EMPLOYER PERS | 33349 46,79  _ 20,133 26,047, = 19,392 39,525 8654 - 51276
WORKERS COMP 635 1,049 Q_:j) 1,062 901 gss, 161, 859
__ SEP/IRA | 98 - I _ B - =t | ~ 0
- UNEMPLOYMENT - - o 5,99
C T OPEBEXPENSE _ | "' 595 T 24, 684 aser 21, 087 3,597 7, 194 11_490, 17,490
|- OTHER PIREXP. 337 200 124 76 186 310 _(110) 500
VEHICLE EXP INCL WAGES (509)" (500" (267) (233)° (18 285) " [215) (500}
BENEFIT SUBTOTAL. 77,941 131,878 46,003 85,785 46,746 92,839 39,255 138,121
OTAL P/R & RELATED COSTS 214,471 321,677 118,986 202,691 125,737 | 244,723 77,169 354,691
ACCOUNTING 11467 | 13,500 15,818 2,318). 15818 ___ (2318) 17,678
LEGAL 11,038 17,400 3527 13873 2280 __ 5807 11,593 | 717,400
LEGAL LABOR NEGOTIATIONS 106 - -7 1,054 1,054 (1,054) 2,108
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING 2,629 10,250 1,004 9246 ~ 335 4354  58% 10,250
DCLTSA #1 PRO-RATA M & O 652,903 725,653 362,827 | 362,827 362827 _ 725654 1y 823691
DCLTSA CAP PLAN (ASSESS) 496,649 486,029 _ 242 015 | 244,015 , 244,015 486 029 - 490,034
BAD DEBTS _ i 1. 132027 - 1 13202 10,923 3| 2219 20,958
BANK CHARGES ~—  ~___ 31, 5i9 1 32453 15776 _ 16677] _ 16,018 _ 31,7941 " 859 34,727
BUILDING REPAIR & MAINT. 2,284 31419 1,554 29 865—__ 1,549 3,103 28316 31,419
BUSINESS MEALS - - ) ! - e
COMPUTER EXPENSE 12474 34,269 g@; 24 @E. | = 24,606 ; 34269 (0) 17,861
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS "3486 4346 3474 1a72 386 3,560 786 4,346
EQUIP. SUPPLIES & R&M _ 107,227 (212,748 _ 49592 163,156 = 102,183 151775 60973 212,748
EQUIPMENT RENTAL T 3212 38477 2207  ig40 1768 3975 (128 3,847
'SECURITY EXPENSE 74397 8,580 3613 4967 3958 7571 1,009 8.580
INSURANCE AND BONDS _ 21,800 25676 26,514 (838) - 26,514 (838) 28,694
SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0 - o - - - -
INVENTORY PARTS (69) 500 500 N 500_ - 500
MISCELLANEOUS EXP. 11,026 4,600 (880) s 480 845 3,755 4,600
OFFICE JANITORIAL 3876 4637 14191 4,897 _(280) 4,637
FACILITIES RENT 19499 12,998 9,750 | 3 248 | 3250 1 13,000 (@) 0
OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,327 16,242 1016 15226 15226 | _ 16, 242J {0) 6,582
PERMITS & FEES__ 379 405 383 _ 22 22! 405 (0) 405
POSTAGE 4416 5250 2008 ~ 3152 2020 4,118~ 1,132 5,100
PUBLICATION CHARGES 227 1,590 ECT 1,199 590T 981 608 1,590
INTEREST - - - I -
SWR FLOW MANAGEMENT » - __1.667 ¢ 667) _-w__l B 667 (1,667) -
TELEPHONE - 1,553 1,632 __730° 902 | 845 15675 6T
TRAINING & SEMINARS ~ “3s8 ~ 5,874 368 5506 3200 3,568 _2_3_ 06
TRAVEL 680 3,462 701 2,761 1500 2,201 261
TRUSTEE COMPENSATION 124057 _ 13,500 6,750 67750 6750 13500 -
UNIFORM EXPENSE L 59 17 98 19 197 7] o
UTILITIES - GAS/ELECTRIC 25,698 32,271 11,550 207297 11,7811~ 23.331° 8,940 30,000
SUBTOTAL EXPENSES 1,663,170 2,044,127 892,310 1,151,817 951,560 1,643,870 200,472 | 2,157,031
CAPITAL OUTLAY 168,293 __ 967,150 701,058 266,092 122,714 _ 823,772 143378 520,000
LOSS/GAIN ON DISPOSALS - I . - - S .
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 57,450 56,023, 29970 26,083 _ 32,205 _93‘175 (6.152) 62,176
PROCEEDS ON SALE OF EQUIl - - O S — - - -
DEVELOPER CAPITALCONTRI ~ _ - - ! - - -
ADD BACK DEPR ; (57,450).  (56,023), (28, 970) (26, 053) (32, 205; __(62,i75) 6452 ~ {82,176)
ADJUST TO CASH FLOW (51,594} i (52518) 52,5181 52,518 - i - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,779,868 3,011,277 1,540,850 1,470,427 1,926,792 2,667,642 343,852 2,677,031
NET CASH INCR./[DECR.) 266,013 (1,032,589)  (484,054) {99,556)  (583,610)  (449,195) (620,724)

13



SEWER

KGID SEWER FUND BUDGET WORKSHEET 2023/24 E— 5/15/2024
ACTUAL | BUDGET 14ST6MOS. (OVERV _ PROJECT PROJECT _ (OVERY __ PROPOSED.
B - 223 1 23024 ACTUAL  UNDER "2ND 6 MOS. 23/24 TOTAL™ UNDER ~ BUDGET 24/25
PRICR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT ISy g ———— _ ! S
AVAIL. CASH - BEGINNING 4,522,995 4,584,233 4,779,908 - 4779,908 4,196,298
AVAILABLE CASH - END 4,779,908 1"‘3},’;@?@‘7 4,295,854 3,575,574
DEPREC. ACCT. RESERVED 0 4,700 4700 i 8510, 8,320
RESERVE ADDITIONS ’ 4,700 3,620 18107 1,810 1810 8,151
LESS RESERVE USE 0 - - 0 -
NET RESERVE BALANCE ~ 4700 _ 8320 6510 1810 83207 8,320 16,471
TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH 4,700 8,320 1,810 6.510 8,320 3,620 - 16,471
\

14




SNOW

KGID SNOW FUND BUDGET WORKSHEET 2023/24 - - 5/15/2024
- ACTUAL ~ BUDGET 1ST6MOS. (OVERY ° PROJECT . PROJECT  (OVERY , PROPOSED
22/23 23/24 ACTUAL  UNDER :2ND 6 MOS. 23124 TOTAL UNDER | BUDGET 24/25
REVENUES , _ _ 1. ,
USER FEES 483,329 629,901 284,642 345259 345,009 629,651 250 717,876
COMMERCIAL USER FEES 44,601 57,996 26,265 31,731 31,752 58,017 (21) 66,096
PENALTIES ON USER FEES 8,247 7,560 4656 2,904 3959 8615 (1.055):; 4,810
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 24,759 29,147 7,831 21,316 4,444 12275 16,872 | 8,419
TRANSFER FEE 504 540 389 71 441 810" (270) 882
GRANT REVENUE 120,000 - 0 0 - - -
OTHER 1% 26 1,043 (1.9177) 30 1,073 (1,047 55
GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF ASSET - - 0 - 1,375 1,375 (1,375) -
TOTAL REVENUES 681,636 725,170 324,806 400,364 387,010 711,816 13,354 798,138
~ EXPENDITURES = T T o .
PAYROLL - MANAGEMENT 37,162 61,219 19,892 41,327 18,581 1 38,473 22,746 73,253
MAINTENANCE 10,412 40,828 8,048 32,780 18,142 26,190 14,638 51,778
OFFICE ] 232711 26,349 12,698 13651 17,661 30,359 {4,010) 27,692
ACCRUED LEAVE 2,385 2,000 1,368 634 919 2,285 (285) 2,000
PAYROLL SUBTOTAL 73,230 130,396 42,004 | 88,392 55,303 97,307 33,000 | 154,723
FICA/MEDICARE _ 1,100 1923 638 1,285 1138 1,776 147 2,512
MEDICAL INS. 31,411 48,513 11,623 36,890 21,459 33,081 15432 ¢ 49,7
EMPLOYERPERS ™ 17,061 29,597 10,026 19571 11,205 21320 8277,
WORKERS COMP__~ 552 1.402 232 1,170 1,033 1,265 137
SEP/IRA 33" 0 0 - - -
_ UNEMPLOYMENT _ 0 (N T =—————
OPEB EXPENSE 1. s 182) 11,392 1660 9732 1660 3, 30 8, 072 721
- OTHER PIR EXP 2t 300 419~ (119) 569 ‘988 (eas\
CARALLOW INCL WAGES 0. 0 0 - 0
BENEFITS SUBTOTAL 14,077 93127 24,598 68,529 37,154 51750 31,376 103,489 |
TOTAL P/R & RELATED COSTS 87,307 223,523 | 66,602 156,921 ! 92,456 159,057 64,465 258,212
ACCOUNTING 1,911 2250 2,540 (290; - 2540 —(290)_ — 2,946
LEGAL 2,346 2,900 1 390 1510 ° 1,500 2,890 10 2,800
LEGAL LABOR NEGOTIATIONS 119 | 7_J’__ - 620 620 1620 1,240
ENGINEERING & SURVEYING a5 5007 95 408" 416 511 . 500
SNOW REMOVAL PLOWING 1,225,979 775000 14,556 | 760,444 '35_@;9’5)@ 364,556 410,444 775,000
SNOW REMOVAL SANDING 31,796 75,000 2676 72374 54180 56,836 18,164 75,000
SNOW REMOVAL ANTIIDE ICING 0~ 6600) 0 6600 "0 - 6600
BADDEBTS 0 321, 0 " 3211 1291 1,201 1820 8, 630
BANK CHARGES 8981 114277 _ 5409~ 5718 6,595 12,004 (877) 11,906
BUILDING REPAIRS/MAINT 381 { 5,276 | 39T 5017 E 677 | 4, 599 1 5,276
BUSINESS MEALS 0 0 0__ -
COMPUTEREXPENSE =~ 4,783 7,649 3115 4525 525~ 4525 " 7640 (0) 5,1 39
DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS _ 597 _ 685 BB 124 124 685 "0 685
EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES & MAINT 134 700 2 698 - .2 698 700
EQUIPMENT RENTAL _ 718 832 - 612 220 375 ° 987 _ (155) 832
FIELD SUPPLIES/TOOLS/SIGN 76,068 10,000 | 5226, 4774 4804 10,030 (30). 10,000
SECURITY 0 18- 0. 18 18 18 - 18
INSURANCE AND BONDS 3,633 4,279 _aa19” (140} 0 4,419 _(140): 4,782
MISCELLANEOUS 6 5600 | 4793, 3807 3807 _ 5600 __ (0) 5,600
OFFICE JANITORIAL 237 7 5% 580 816 (43) 773
FACILITIES RENT - 1638 528 542 2,180 (14) 0
OFFICE SUPPLIES 193" 72731 2,731 2,924 (0). 1314
PERMITS AND FEES 64 804 ___ 604 668 0 668
POSTAGE 0 ! 719 1,081 8% 18091 __ 191 2,100
PUBLICATION CHARGES w5 2070 435 630 1,635 1,515
SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0" 100 0 - 100_ 100
TELEPHONE _18 .84, 79 157 _ 5 162
TRAINING & SEMINARS 204 1,848 | 1,000 1,204 848~ 2,052
TRAVEL 217 i 1,767 450 667 1,317 1,984
TRUSTEE COMPENSATION 1125 1125 1,125 | 2,250 - 2,250
UNIFORM EXPENSE __ 223 _654 654" 877 0l - 877
UTILTIES 210 802 214 424" 588 — 1870
VEHICLE EXPENSE FUEL/OIL 1,806 13,630 13630 15438 _ 0 18,311
VEHICLE EXPENSE R&M 289 6,480 12, ooo 14,891 15,520) 11,303
INTEREST EXPENSE 0 - - - -
TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 1,397,718 | 1,178,980 119,054 | 1,059,927 556, 043 675096 503,884 1,212,445
CAPITAL OUTLAY ~ 248,879 120,750 93,036 27714 18,2651 111,301  _ 9,449 129,000
CONTINGENCY - 38992 - 38 992_ T17288 17229 21,763 40,243
ADJUST TO CASH FLOW I 66.082 - - -
SUBTOTAL N _1,712,679 1!§ga,zgz 242,090 1.1;@,(33_._ 591,5zg 803,626 535,096 "1,381,688
TRANSF. FROM OTHER FUNDS - - - - : - -550,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,712,679 1,338,722 212,000 1,126,633 591,538 803,626 535,096 831,688
INET GAIN OR LOSS (1,031,043)_ (613,562) 112,716 (726,269) (204,528 {91,811)  (521,742) {33,550)
OPENING FUND BALANCE 1,165,760 225024 134,717 T 134,717 42,907

15



SNOW

KGID SNOW FUND BUDGET WORKSHEET 2023724 . . ] 5[15/2024
' | [ [ —— - = ) —
- TTACTUAL " BUDGET "1ST6MOS. (OVERY_ PROJECT | PROJECT (OVER) _ PROPOSED
T iT 22123 7 | 2324 ACTUAL — UNDER _ 2ND 6 MOS. 23/24 TOTAL' UNDER ~BUDGET 24/25
ENDING FUND BALANCE 134,717 (388,528) 247,434 42,907 9,357
DEPREC. ACCT. RESERVED — 0. 73200 73201 _ - 100,206 732001 17721
RESERVE ADDITIONS 73201 36,867 27,005 9,862 27,005 54010 " 95564
LESS RESERVE USE 0 {14,000) - - 0 [ -
NET RESERVE BALANCE - 73,201 " 96,068 100,206~ (4,138) 127211 127,211 T 222,775
TOTAL RESTRICTED CASH 73,201 96,068 27,005 69,063 127,211 54,010 - 222,715

16




COMPUTER EXP

KGID COMPUTER EXPENSE FY 2024/2025 | 5/15/2024
' TOTAL GENERAL = WATER SEWER SNow !
FUND FUND | FUND : FUND
IMAINTENANCE, SUPPORT & UPGRADES B
Brightly CMMS Licensing Fees 5@9_] 250 3,000 1,500 250
Abila/MIP Maintenance Fee S 4,504 225 2,702 1,352 225
|
Springbrook Software (uiitity billing) maint fee 1L 13519 f . 7,030 4,596 1,893
B e | |
Network & Server Monitoring Pac States 16,200 810 9,720 4,860 810
Network & Server Monitoning Fac States 0 | |
Springbrook Web Payments ! 1,500 ' - 780 510 210
n——— - " N -
Misc. software upgrades _3,000 150 1,800 900 ‘ 150
Consulting fees and support (Thunderbird) 8000 6,000
(SCADA] = =
Micropaver € Suppon/Mamlenance 650 650 |
A I — FS— | I
Fixed Asset Sofiware (Annual mainf) — [ 300 15 180 90 15
=
Charter (office, shop & lake ke station) . |
“Office 5:60:30:5 - T TT2020 101 1,212 606 101 —]
‘Shop & Lake Station 4,060 | o 4,060
. | ]
GIS Licensing 5,000 1,000 2,000 2,000 i _
SCADA Wonderware Support/Maint ST 2 __}‘” 6,379 6,379
SCADA Wonderware Support/Maint Lake 6,899 6,899 i
I A —
WIN 911 Support 720 720
Verizon Networkfleet GPS 1502 165 | 1,160 | 136 131
Verizon Networkfleet GPS - Snow (7) 1 1,137 T 1,137
Website Hosting - | 350 18 210 105 -18
, : I | | L
New Monitors _ 750 38 450 225 38
e e e | l I
Miscellaneous hardware 3,000 150 | 1,800 200 | 150
Adobe Annual Subscription j 265 13 159 80 3
Tablet/Cell Phone Replacement_ | ~8000] 4000 4600 - -
!
TOTAL COMPUTER EXPENSE | 90,845 7,584 | 60,261 | 17,861 5,139

17




EXPENSE ALLOCATION

KGID FUND EXPENSE ALLOCATIONS 2023/2024 . _ 5/15/2024
o | PROJECTED | PROPOSED | GENERAL WATER SEWER = SNOW
- 2023/24  2022i2023 FUND = FUND ~— FUND FUND
insurance/Bonds 5:60:30:5 139,624 131,599 8,678 89,445 28,694 4,762 |
Servline Water Lossfline Ins 25,720 25,720
Total Insurance Expense 157,319 8,678 115,165 28,694 4,782
Legal 49,051 68,000 2,900 34,800 | 17,400 2,800
Accounting/Audit 5:60:30:56 52,632 56,925 2,946 35,355 17,678 2,946
Single Act Audit o 40,000 40,000
98,925 2,946 | 75,355 17,678 2,946
Bank Charges 0:54:37:09 92,185 "99,220 0 52,587 34,727 11,906
Bank Charges wirefusbank 250 250
Totals 99,470 0 52,837 34,727 11,906
Office Supplies _ |
298 Kingsbury . 400 400 '
Billing 0:54:37:09 0 3,500 0 1,855 1,225 420
Other 5:60:30:5 0 18,490 1,525 10,715 5,357 894
Totals 54,592 22,390 1,925 | 12,570 6,582 1,314
Postage (general) 0:54:37:09 12,326 15,000 - 7,800 5,100 2,100
Telephone 5:60:30:5 Office o | 3240 162 -1,944 972 162
Telephone 0:100:0:0 Shop 12,840 12,840
Telephone 0:0:100:0 Sewer 660 660
Total Telephone 16,308 16,740 162 14,784 1,632 [ 162
Vehicle Exp FUEL/OIL. 10:0:80:10 128,357 125,114 12,511 100,091 0 12,511
Sweeper Brooms pallet | 4,000 1,000 3,000
Backhoe Tires 0 0 0 0
Water Veh. Tires | 4,000 400 3,200 400
Road Crew Veh Tires 4,000 400 3,200 400
Total Vehicle Exp/FuellTires 137,114 14,311 106,491 0 ‘ 16,311
Vehicle Exp. R&M 10:0:80:10 61,479 69,275 5,928 47,420 0 5,928
Sweeper R&M 50:0:0:50 6,500 1,625 4,875
Steriing Dump Truck 0025 R&M 1,500 500 500 500
Vactor R&M 50:50:0:0 8,000 4,000 4,000
Total Vehicle R&M 75,275 12,053 | 51,920 | 0 | 11,303
Faclilites Rent 5:60:30:5 | 43,346 0 ] 0 | 0 | 0 0
Trustee Compensation 5:60:30:5 45,000 45,000 2,250 | 27,000 13,500 2,250
Janitorial 5:60:30:5 27,123 22,347 7,663 9,274 4,637 773
Training and Seminars —
Water 0:0:100:0 | 13,500 13,500
Roads 100:0:0:0 . 4,000 4,000
Sewer 0:0:100:0 . 1,000 1,000
Snow 0:0:0:100 1,200 1,200
Billing 0:54:37:09 756 518 126
Other 5:60:30:5 14.520 726 8,712 4,356 726
Totals 16,750 35,620 4,726 22,968 5,874 2,052
Travel R
Water 0:0:100:0 9,000 9,000
Roads 100:0:0:0 2,000 2,000
Sewer 0:0:100:0 1,000 1,000
Snow 0:0:0:100 1,500 1,500
Billing 0:54:37:09 - | 2,600 1,404 962 234
Other 5:60:30:5 5,000 250 3.000 1,500 250
Totals 7,848 | 21,100 | 2,250 | 13,404 | 3,462 1,984
Computer Exp. 5:60:30:5 I 112,763 90,845 7,584 60,261 17,861 5,139
Utilities . i |
298 Kingsbury Grade 16,218 16,300
Office 5:60:30:5 33427 1,671 20,056 10,028 1,670
Water 0:100:0:0 258,452 258452
Sewer 0:0:100:0 \ 19,973 19,973

Total Utilities 320,739 328,070 16,972 278,507 30,000 ! 1,670

TOTAL 1,223,215 84,420 883,136 187,146 67,592




PAYROLL

KGID PAYROLL CALCULATIONS 2023(24 - WITH 3% CPI INCREASE & 2% MERIT INCREASE , o 5152024
2024/25 - WITH 3% CPI & 2% MERIT INCREASE __2023/2024 INCREASE OF 2024[2025 " GENERAL ___ WATER _SEWER | SNOW __
BASE 5.00% TOTAL FUND FUND ~ FUND FUND
Water De epartment —
Waler Operator 100% PERSPaid ~
Lead Operator - Base Rate-$35.20/hr _ 71,021 2,196 73,216 73,216
Lead Operator - Standby Rate 1664hrs 12.5% base $4.40/hr 7.096 226 7,322 7,322
Lead Operator - In Charge Pay 10% premium of regular pay - dwks 1,148 2,230 3.379 3,379
Lead Operator - Overlime- 52hrs = 4fwk 2,664 82 2,746 2,746
L_ead Operator - Call Back Field - 78 = 6lwk 3,995 123 4,118 4,118
Lead Operator - Call Back -Laptop - OT on base 26/hrs = 2wk 1,332 41 1,373 1,373
Subtotal 87,257 4,897 92,154 92,154
!
- 'Base Rate-$32. _64ihr 65,836 2,085 67,891 67,891
Operator |l - Special Skills (2.5%) $0.82 Regf Rate $32.64/hr 1,646 60 1,706 1,706
Operator IIl - Standby R Rale 1664hrs 12.5% base $4.08/hr 6,581 208 6,789 6,789
Operator It - In Chame Pay 10% premium of re of regular pay - - - . -
Operator W - Ovem ne- 52hrs = dfwk 2, 195 415 2,610 2,610
Operator 11 - Call BackiOT - Field - 78 = Biwk 3,263 622 3,915 3,915
Operator lll- Call Back - Laptop - OT on base 26/hrs = 2wk 1,008 207 1,305 1.305
Subtotal 80,649 | 3,567 84,216 84,216
™ Water Operator 50%/50% PERS o J
Operator - Base Rale~$33 46/Mhr 67,571 2,026 69,597 69,597
Operator Il - Specnal Skills (2.5%)0.84 Reo Rale$33 46nr | 1,602 55 1,747 1,747
Operator |l - Standby Rate 1664hrs 12.5% base $4.18/hr . 6,753 203 6,956 6,956
Operator Il - Overtime- §2hrs = diwk 2,598 77 2,675 2,675
Operator Il - Call Back - Field - 78 = 6iwk 3,896 117 4,013 4,013
Operalor II- Call Back “Laptop - OT on base 26/tws = 2wk 1,299 39 1,338 1,338
R T e e __ Subtotal 83,809 2,517 86,326 86,326
Operator Il - Base Rate-$34.13/br - 2,150 73,823 73,623
Opetator Il - Special Skills (6%) 2. 05 Reg R: {36) 4,264 4,264
Operator il - Standby R Rate 1664hrs 12.5% base $4.270hr 352 7,105 7,105
Opefator il - In Charge Pay 10% oremium of regular pay - . - -
Operalor - Overt me- 52hrs = diwk 136 2,822 2,822
Operator Il - - Call Back - Field - 78 = 6wk e 204 4,233 4,233
Operator Il - - Call Back - Lagtop -OTon base 26/hrs = hrs = 2K 68 1,411 1,411
R Subtotal 90,784 2,874 93,658 93,668
Operator Hl - Base Rate-$38.42/hr 77 532 2,382 79,914 79,914
Operator Il - Schlal Skills (7.5%) 2,88 Reg Rate $38.42/hr N 5 810 180 5,990 5,990
Operator lll - Standby Rate 1664hrs 12.5% base $4.80/mr Nl Z 757 230 7.987 7,987
Operator il - tn Charge | Pay 10% premium of regular pay - - - . -
Operator - Ovemme- - 52hrs = dfwk 3,126 95 3,221 3,221
Operalor IIt - Call Back - Field - 78 = 6/wk - 4,688 144 4,832 4,832
Operalot il - CaII Back Laplop oT on base 26/hrs = 2wk 1,562 49 1,611 1,611
Subtotal 100,475 3,080 | 103,555 103,555
1 |
3,536 108 3.644 3,644
o 3,536 108 3,644 3,644
L [
TOTAL WATER OPERAT T 1 T
Base Rate-$33.81/hr__ ) 353,632 10,809 364,442 - 364,442 - -
Special Skills 13,448 259 13,706 13,706
Standby Rate 6656HRS AT 12.5% 34,940 1,219 36,158 36,159
In Charge Pay 1q% premium of regular pay 1,149 2,230 3,379 3,379
Overtime- 208hrs regular pay o 13,269 806 14,075 - 14,075
Award Budget 1% 3,536 108 3,644 3 3,644
Call Back - Field - 3 2hrs on regular pay 19,901 1,209 21,110 21,110
CaII Back - Laptop - 5 - 104hrs on base pay 6,634 404 7,038 7,039
— Total Water Dept 446,510 17,042 463,555 - 463,555 - -
== s -
_!.__
Road/Snow Department !
Slreet Maintenance Technl;lan Il 52. 5%GF10%WE 37.5%Snow ___
Base Pay at $28 S?th = 49,686 9,636 69,322 31,144 5,932 22,246
Special Skills : . 0 0 0 0 0
Overtime - 100 hours. al $42.78 per hour _ -, {‘ 3,584 694 4,278 2,246 428 1,605
Lead - 510 hours at $2.85 per hour i 143 41 1,454 763 145 545
Standby time 126 hrsiwk for 12 wks @ $3.57/hr. 4,580 904 5,484 2,879 548 2,056
" Total Street Maintenance Technlciag_HJ)gL§o PERS §9,263 11,275 70,538 37,033 7,054 - 26,452
Maintenance Technician | - Base Pay at $27.48/hr 100% Pers 1 43,025 14,134 57,159 30,008 5716 21,435
Standby time 128‘_r3£sl\yk for 12 wks @ $3 4§Ihr 3 968 1,315 5,284 2,774 528 1,982
Overtime - 100 holirs at $41.22 per hour = 3 103 1,019 4,122 2,164 412 1,546
Lead - 510 hours al $2.75 per hour 1,285 118 1.403 737 140 526
Tolal Street Maintenance Technicilan | @1 00% PERS 50,096 16,469 66,565 34,847 6,656 - 24,963
Seasonal person with C_DL at $20.00/hr lor 6 mos. 20,800 - 20,800
“Gvertime 30 frs at $30.00/hr 900 - 900
" Total Seasonaiwages & OT X 2 A 43,400 43,400 43,400
Award Budget 1% Total Base Wages 927 44 o71 510 97 363
Award Subtota! 927 4 971 510 97 363
_Total Road/Snow Department 153,686 27,788 181,474 115,889 13,806 - 61,778
Office Allocated 15%GF;40%WF;30%SF;15%SnowFund A
Accoutant I} at $29.10/hr 100% PERS - 59,864 663 60,528 9,079 24,210 18,158 9,079
“Overtime 60 hrs at $43.65 2, 591 28 2,619 393 1,046 786 393
Utiiity Billing Coordinator at $30.71/hr 61.982 1,895 63,877 9,582 25,551 19,163 9,582
Overtime 30 hrs at $9§_91 1,341 41 1,382 207 554 415 207
Administrative Clerk/Secretary $25.62/hr 47 218 2 361 53 250 7993 21316 15 987 7 9%3 ]
1




PAYROLL

KGID PAYROLL CALCULATIONS 2023/24 - WITH 3% CPI INCREASE & 2% MERIT INCREASE ___ 515/2024
2024/25 - WITH 3% CPl & 2% MERIT INCREASE ) 77202312024 INCREASE OF  2024/2025 GENERAL WATER T_ ! SEWER _L_ SNOW
___BASE 5.00% TOTAL ~ T FUND ~ FUND FUND = FUND
Overtime 30 hrs at $38.43 968 185 1,153 173 462 346 173
Award Budget 1% Total Base Wages 1,691 65 1,756 263 702 527 263
_Total Office 175,685 5,238 184,605 27,692 73,842 55,380 27,692

o I

Management Allocated 15%GF; 40%WF; 30%SF; 15%SNOW | |

General Manager $161,570.76 annual wi100% PERS 156,818 4,753 161,571 24,236 64,628 48,471 24,236
G Manager $26,674 annual In Lieu Health Beni No PERS 28 450 -2,605 25,845 3,877 10,339 7,754 3,877
Operations Super - $105,817.66 annual w/100% PERS |l 104,639 1,179 105,818 15,873 79,363 10,582 0
Operations Super Award Budget 1% Base Salary . 2,043 (985) 1,058 159 794 105 0

Admin. & Human Resources Super - $76,589 annual _ 5,202 79,557 11,934 31,824 23,867 11,934
n. & Human Resources Super Award Budget 1% Base Sal (656) 796 119 318 239 119
Engineering Technician - $124,800 annual ) 52,000 124,800 18,720 49,920 37.440 18,720
Enginnering Technician Award Budget 1% Base aI | 520 1,248 187 500 374 187
Admin. & Financial Anylist - $93,600annual 20,800 93,600 14,040 37,440 28,080 14,040
Admin. & FlnanCIalAr\vIlstAward Budpet 1% Base Sal 208 936 140 375 281 140
Total Management 514,813 80,416 595,229 89,284 275,503 157,190 73,2583
| 1
TOTAL ALL WAGES & SALARIES B 1,290,664 130,486 1.424,863 232,865 826,705 212,570 152,722
' i
. 3%! !
115,673 3,758 119,432 119,432
1 Management Non Union Employee $2158.11/mo (Ops Super) _3_53,_693 842 44,145 6,622 33,109 4,416
2 Road/Snow Union Employee includ. depend qtgggg!mo 1,880 59,717 31,351 5,972 22,394
3 Office Employees includ. depend. at $2480/mo_ 2,820 89,575 13,436 35,831 26,872 13,436
3 Management Non Union Employees $1253. sfmo ___ 489 77,684 11,653 31,074 23,305 11,653
1 Water StatefUnion Employee $914.11/mo (Byran) 357 15,662 0 15,652 0 0
Rehred Employees State Mandated Contribution 83121mo i E - 3,744 3,744
Retired Emplovees State Mandated Contribution $1,184.32/mo 14,881 . 14,881 2,232 5.953 4,464 2,232
__Total Medical Insurance i 406,983 [ 10,148 424,831 65,293 250,767 59,056 49,715
i i
17.50%
Waler Deot 0:100:0:0 (3) . 269,470 47,157 47,157
t. 0:100:0:0 100% Emplovgr patd (2) 162,416 54,409 54,409
7.5 S0/S0PERS 64,806 11,341 5,954 1,134 4,253
:10:0:37.5 100% PERS 62,443 20,918 10,982 2,092 7,844
GM 100% | Empiuyer paid T 161,571 54,126 8,119 21,651 16,238 8,119
‘Admin & HumanEngineering Tech, Admin & Finanacial Anylist
50/50 PERS 297,957 52,142 7.821 20,857 15,642 7.821
Ops Super 100% Employer paid 105818 35,449 5317 26,587 3,545 0
Office 15:40:30:15 Accountant Il 100% Emplov Paid 60,528 20,277 3,042 8,112 6,083 3,042
Office 15:40:30:15 Utility Billing Coordlnal i 117,167 20,504 3,076 8,201 6,151 3,076
Trustees (4] 100% Emplover Paid 36,000 12,060 603 7,236 3,618 603
_Total PERS 1,338,175 0 328,386 44,915 197,437 51,276 34,759
Flca at 6.2% of all non-PERS Wages & Salaries 6. 20‘)?l
1 Trustee - $9,000 at 6.2% 5:60:30:5 o 9,000 558 28 35 167 28
2 Seasonal Employee at 6.2% o 43,400 B 2,691 2,691 0 0 0
__Total Fica 43,400 2,691 2,691 ) 0 0
| | I
331077 47 eos"i 197,437 51,276 _ 34,759
I =
Medicare 1.45% ] |
§_}Q{a(e_r_&Employees at 1.45% . 463,555 6,722 6,722
Trustees - $45,000 at 1.45% - 45000 653 33 392 195 KK}
3 Office Employees + Management at 1.45% 672,958 1 9,758 1,464 3,903 2,927 1,464
2 S sonal Employees - at 1.45% 43,400 629 629
Operallons Supervisor at 1.45% 106,876 _ 1,550 232 1,162 155 0
2 Road/Snow Emplovee at 1.45% 181.474 2,631 1,381 263 SRR 08 7|
__Total Medicare 1,513,261 21,943 3,741 12,442 3,277 2,484
Worker's Comp. Limit $36,000 peremployee Rate |, Amount
Water Dept. 0:100:0:0 e 0.0276 180,000 4,968 4,968
Street Maintenance Techs Il 52.5:10:0:37.5 o 0.0276 72,000 1.987 1,084 199 745
Road Dept. Seasonal 100:0:0:0 0.0276 43,400 1,198 1,198
Mz nt & Engineering Tech 15:40:30:15 o 0.0276 72,000 1.987 298 796 596 298
an Resource & Financial A\nvl_ls_!_»~ g 0.00241 180,000 434 65 175 130 65
Ogerallons Supervisor 15:75:10:00 0.0276 36,000 994 149 745 99 ]
Trustees at $9.000/vr x 5 = $45,000 _ 0.00241 45,000 108 ) 65 34 5
Total Worker's Comp. =~~~ ; 11,677 2,759 6,946 859 1,113
Uniforms and safetv gear iseparate line item on worksheetsj
Bool/Safety glasses allowance $400 per field employee 3200 3,200 480 2,380 40 300
Uniforms _ $170 per field empl. T 1360 1,360 204 1,012 17 127
Miscell is Shints, Jackets and Coveralls $600(8) 4800 il 4,800 720 3,570 60 450
Total uniforms and safety gear o ! 9,360 1,404 6,962 17 877
\
SUMMARY TOTALS OF WAGES, SALARIES AND BENEFITS - -
Wapes & Salaries 1,424,863 232,865 826,705 212,570 152,722
Medical Insurance 424,831 65,293 250,767 69,056 49,715
Pers - 328,386 44,915 197,437 51,276 34,759
Fica i 2,691 2,691 0 0 0
_ Medicare 21,943 3,741 12,442 3.277 2,484
Workers Comp 11,677 2,759 6,946 859 1,113

" GRAND TOTALS' 2,214,391 352,262 1,294,298 327,039 240,791




CAPITAL OUTLAY 24-25

KGID CAPITAL OUTLAY 24/25 . . _SN1512024
T _ TOTAL [ GENERAL _ WATER _ SEWER , SNOW
- o FUND FOND ~ " "FUND — | 'FUN
Miscellaneous 20,000 5000 5,000 5,000 , 5,000
i
2023/2024 Walerline Project Tramway
Engineering 72,860 72,860
Construction 2,654,229 2,654,229
2024/2025 Waterline Project Maryanne/Barrett/Drew
Engineering 155,000 155,000
Construction 1,500,000 1,500,000
2023/2024 Station 3 Pump Renovation
Engineering 160,000 160,000
Construction -
2023/2024 Andria Storm Water
Professional Fees 85,000 85,000
Construction 200,000 200,000
2022/2023 Market Sewer Lift Station Renovation
Engineering 50,000 50,000
Scada Sever Station 1 & Upgrades 475,000 250,000 225,000
SCADA Alarming 10,000 10,000
Cathodic Rectifier @ Station 4 7,500 7,500
298 Kingsbury Grade Markee Roof Replacement 9,000 9,000
298 Kingsbury Grade Building Improvements Const. 50,000 50,000
Backhoe 140,000 14,000 412,000 - 14,000
Tahoe Beach Club Watermain dedication 3,750,000 3,750,000
Ponderosa MHP Watermain & Metering 2,350,000 2,350,000
TBC Inspection costs 25,000 25,000
Palisades Sub Meters 25,000 25,000
The Ridge Meters 40,000 40,000
Water Meter Register Replacement 20,000 20,000
FY 25 Road Maintenance 1,800,000 | 1,500,000 200,000 100,000
Andria Project Seal Coat Contruction 50,000 25,000 25,000
Steat Ring/Concrete Collar Repair 75,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
OperationsYard Equipment Storage Facility 600,000 200,000 200,000 100,000 100,000
ToolCat w/snow blower 75,000 25,000 25,000 15,000 10,000
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY| 14,398,589 | 2,138,000 | 11,611,589 520,000 129,000

21




CAPITAL OUTLAY 2nd 6 mos

KGID CAPITAL OUTLAY 23/24 2ND 6 MONTHS i

5/15/2024!

- TOTAL = GENERAL WATER SEWER . SNOW
3 FUND = FUND | FUND FUND
Miscellaneous ] 20,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
2022/2023 Waterline & Road Rehab Project
Engineering As-Built 10,000 10,000
2024 Waterline Project Tramway
Engineering 300,000 300,000
Construction 1,288,050 1,288,050
2023/2024 Andria Storm Water
Professional Fees 85,000 85,000
Facilities 160 Pineridge 146,807 7,340 88,084 44,042 7.340
Windows/Doors/Demo/Signage 160 Pineridge 83,500 4,175 50,100 25,050 4175
298 Kingsbury Grade Landscape Improvements 10,000 10,000
TBC Inspection costs 21,908 21,908
2023/2024 Station 3 Pump Renovation
Engineering 160,000 160,000
2022/2023 Market Sewer Lift Station Renovation
Engineering 36,472 36,472
Tramway Retaining Wall
Engineering -
Constuction -
Storm Water Mater Plan 28,000 28,000
Pad Ops Yard or Logging Rd 35,000 1,750 21,000 10,500 1,750
Plotter 5,500 3,850 1,650
Ponderosa MHP Watermain & Metering 83,106
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY; 2,230,237 141,265 | 2,031,098 122,714 | 18,265

I

22




ENG 23-24 2ND 6 MONTH

KGID 'ENGINEERING 2023/2024 - 2ND 6 MONTHS 5/16/2024
~ PROJECT [ TOTAL GENERAL ‘WATER | SEWER SNOW
General Services 6,516 1,900 2,100 | 2,100 416/
Standard Details 3,000 500 1250 1250
I R | , |
Micro Paver 15,000 15,000 | . o
S — ! —
Water Audit Project 3,000 " 3000] |
- I ==
| / : -~
TOTALS 27,516 17,400 | 6,350 3,350 416
ENG 24-25
KGID 'ENGINEERING 2024/2025 ! 5/15/2024
| |
"PROJECT TOTAL | GENERAL = 'WATER | SEWER SNOW
_ M | L
Miscellaneous 16,000 4,500 5,000 5,000 | 500
General Services 9,000 9,000 6,500 ] o
Standard Details 3,000 500 1,250 | 1,250 B
'Micro Paver Updates 15,000 | 15,000 1 o
GIS Updates ) 20,000 6,000 10,000 | 4,000 N
| |
TOTALS 62,000 35000 22,750 | 10,250 [ 500
|

23



vZ

298 KINGSBURY GRADE

RENTAL

{Included in General Fund)

Ordinary Income/Expense AUDITED BUDGET 18T 6 MOS. (OVER)/ PROJECT PROJECT (OVERY PROPOSED

Income 2022/2023 2023/2024 ACTUAL UNDER  2ND 6 MOS. 23/24 TOTAL UNDER 202412025

Rental Income & $101,493.64  §97,704.00  $46,723.74 $50,980.26 $46,782.00 $93,505.74 $4,198.26 $100,400.64

Reimbursed Expenses $5,646.00 $2,756.36 $2,889.64 $2,754.00 $5,510.36 $135.64 $6,766.68

Other Revenue $285.00 $0.00 $16.91 -$15.91 $0.00 $15.91 -$15.91 $0.00
Total Income $101,778.64 $103,350.00  $49,496.01 $53,853.99 $49,536.00 $99,032.01 $4,317.99 $107,167.32

Expense

Property Insurance $3,083.40 $3,391.74 $3,597.51 -$205.77 $0.00  $3,597.51 -$205.77 $3,895.33

Leasing

Mgmt-Advtg-Mktg (Misc. Expend) $6,771.37 $7,031.47 $3,2095.58 $3,735.89 $3,735.89 $7,031.47 $0.00 $6,974.51

Equipment Rental Bear Box $195.00 $200.85 $97.50 $103.35 $103.35 $200.85 $0.00 $200.85

UTILITIES Electric/Gas $14,451.87  $15,300.00 $7,348.53 $7,951.47  $7,951.47 $15,300.00 $0.00 $16,218.00
Total Leasing $21,418.24 $22,532.32 $10,741.61 $11,790.71  $11,790.71  $22,532.32 $0.00 $23,393.36

Property Maintenance

Janitorial $7,775.00 $6,890.00 $5,400.00 $1,490.00 $5,400.00 $10,800.00 -$3,910.00 $10,800.00

Supplies $270.59 $400.00 $150.74 $249.26 $200.00 $350.74 $49.26 $400.00

Bldg Repairs & Maintenance $8,155.87 $15,000.00 $2,209.83 $12,790.17  $5270.20  $7,480.03 $7.519.97 $15,000.00
Total Property Maintenance $16,201.46 $22,290.00 $7,760.57 $14,529.43 $10,870.20 $18,630.77 $3,659.23 $26,200.00

Travel

Transportation $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total Travel $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total Operating Expense $40,703.10 $48,214.06 $22,099.69 $26,114.37 $22,660.91 $44,760.60 $3,453.46 $53,488.69

Other Expenses

Capital Outlay $7,095.00 $84,000.00 $0.00 $84,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $74,000.00 $59,000.00
Total Other Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $84,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $74,000.00 $59,000.00

Total Expenditures $40,703.10 $48,214.06 $22,099.69 $110,114.37 $32,660.91 $54,760.60 $77,453.46 $112,488.69

NET INCOME $61,075.54 $55,135.94 $27,396.32 -$56,260.38 $16,875.09 $44,271.41 -$73,135.47 -$5,321.37



ALL EXISTING OR PROPOSED

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, REVENUE BONDS,
MEDIUM-TERM FINANCING, CAPITAL LEASES AND
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS

*-Type

1« General Obfigation Bonds

2 - G.0. Revenue Supported Bonds
3 - G.0. Special Assessment Bonds
4 - Revenue Bonds

5 . Medium-Term Financing

6 - Medium-Tem Financing - Lease Purchase

7 - Capital Leases

8 - Special Assessment Bonds
9 - Mortgages

10 - Other (Specify Type)

11 - Proposed (Specify Type)

mn i (2) | {3) 4) (5) (6) | 7 (8) | (9 {10) (11}
. REQUIREMENTS FOR FISCAL
| | BEGINNING YEAR ENDING 06/30/25 (9)4(10)
[ | ORIGINAL FINAL OUTSTANDING
NAME OF BOND ORLOAN | TYPE AMOUNT OF ISSUE | PAYMENT | INTEREST |  BALANCE INTEREST PRINCIPAL
Listand Subtotal By Fund | * TERM ISSUE DATE DATE RATE 71112024 PAYABLE PAYABLE | TOTAL
[ [
WATER FUND | u — 1! $ - $ s s |
|
2007 SRF LOAN 2 om0 300,000| 11/30/2007 7M/2027)  295/$ 78050168 |8 21526955 214,896.31 ‘s 235,423.26
| [ === {
2010 SRF LOAN |2 20 3,306,650, 6/9/2010 1112030 285§ ’-2’°~71°~37.!.§ 3317675 | § 187,783.25 |_s 220,960.00
2012 SRF LOAN 2| 20! 11,000,000, 3122012 17112032 239§ 575578343 § 133,636.67_| 3 551,085.7215 794.722.39
2015 SRFLOAN 2 2_0_J 6,000,000, 111412015 1/1/2035 228 § 3,771,809.56 | § izse.sgh 305,367.24 | § 389,635.83
_ | e, 7= = B SR _'Is_ 15 8 B | N
[ $ $ s 's
— e 1 — ] - ! 8 == 3t ——
M — $ 5 L] '$
|
i | | |__ s s s s
i |
== = === == 18 B - '$ ——
[ | S R s s s Is
| s |.s $ s
e I 1 = : i g —
| | 1 o | $ 5 $ s
[ l [ :
| $ $ |$ It
L— ! i L = S—— o . _ - !
| i N [ s s T
TOTAL ALL DEBT SERVICE l | 20,606,650 | $11,518,986.04 | § 272,608.96 | $ 1,369,132.52 | § 1,641,741 48
SCHEDULE C-1 - INDEBTEDNESS
KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
{Local Government)
Schadule C-1

FORM 4404LGF

Last Revised 4/12/2024

25






legals- legals-
douglas co. douglas co.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
ON FINAL BUDGET OF
KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT 2024-25

Notice: Tuesday, May 21, 2024, at 5:00 p.m.
the Board of Trustees of Kingsbury General
Improvement District will hold a public
hearing on the final budget for fiscal year
2024/2025. The public hearing will be held at
the Kingsbury General Improvement District’s
offices located at 160 Pine Ridge Drive,
Stateline, Nevada.
The final budget has been prepared in detail
and on appropriate forms as prescribed by
the Nevada Department of Taxation. Copies
of the final budget are on file and available
for public inspection at the Kingsbury General
Improvement District’s office, at the office of
Douglas County Clerk in Minden, Nevada,
and at the Nevada Department of Taxation
in Carson City, Nevada. Kingsbury General
Improvement District may be contacted at
775-588-3548.

Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

May 14, 2024

Pub Date: May 18, 2024 Ad # 43408







STATE OF NEVADA

LAS VEGAS OFFICE
DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION 700 E. Warm Springs Rd, Suite 200
-Web Site: hitps://tax.nv.cov Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
. _ Phone (702) 486-2300
Call Center: (866) 962-3707 P (702) 4562373
JOE LOMBARDO
Governor CARSON CITY OFFICE RENO OFFICE
GEORGE KELESIS 3850 Arrowhead Dr., 2™ Floor 4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite L235
Chair, Nevada Texc Commission Carson City, Nevada 89706 Reno, NV 89502
SHELLIE HUGHES Phone: (775) 684-2000 Phone: (775) 687-9999
Executive Director Fax: (775) 684-2020 Fax: (775) 688-1303
May 8, 2024

Mr. Mitchell S. Dion

General Manager

Kingsbury General Improvement District
P. 0. Box 2220

Stateline, NV 89449

Re: Tentative Budget — Fiscal Year 2024-2025

Dear Mr. Dion:

The Department of Taxation has examined your fiscal year 2024-25 tentative budget pursuant to NRS
354.596(5) and finds it to be out of compliance with the law and appropriate regulations.

Pursuant to NRS 354.598(5) ‘No governing body may adopt any budget which appropriates for any
fund any amount in excess of the budget resources of that fund.’ The Snow Removal Special
Revenue Fund was budgeted with a negative ending fund balance and the Water Utility Enterprise
Fund was budgeted with negative cash equivalents. These funds will need to be budgeted with a
positive ending fund balance and positive cash equivalents in the final budget.

Please be reminded a proof of publication of the notice of the public hearing must be
transmitted to the Department with your final budget per NRS 354.598 (3).

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (775) 684-2092 or by e-mail at
tthorpe@tax.state.nv.us.

Sincerely,

)/ g
V{ z;zt“f;f

Andé Tharpe /

Bydget Analyst.”

Local Government Finance
Department of Taxation






KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
AGENDA ITEM #13

TITLE: APPROVE JULY 1, 2024 TO JUNE 30, 2026 COLLECTIVE BARGAINING
AGREEMENT BETWEEN KINGSBURY GID AND INTERNATIONAL UNION OF
OPERATING ENGINEERS STATIONARY LOCAL 39, AFL-CIO

For Discussion and Possible Action. Review, discuss and approve the collective
bargaining agreement.

MEETING DATE: 21 May 2024
PREPARED BY: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2026 Collective Bargaining Agreement between Kingsbury GID
and International Union of Operating Engineers Stationary Local 39, AFL-CIO.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The district has two employee groups, represented and unrepresented. The district’s represented
workforce are members of the International Union of Operating Engineers Stationary Local 39,
AFL-CIO, except for the management or supervisory positions. The relationship is subject to
contract negotiations with the duration of the contracts typically two or three years.

The provisions discussed in the current negotiations were holidays, clothing allowance, overtime
rate multiplier, longevity pay, health care and pay. These elements are the primary components
for the total compensation which employees receive. Balancing compensation to retain a viable
workforce for the benefit of the district is a challenging and essiential role. The district
continues to experience a vacancy rate in excess of 35% with a high rate of turnover in new
employees and management/supervisory recruitments going unanswered.

The district uses the CPI All Cities Urban as the basis for contract negotiation. In March, the
Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers increased 0.4 percent, seasonally adjusted, and
rose 3.5 percent over the last 12 months, up 3.8% over the year. The recent decline was
anticipated in the last negotiation period in which a 5.0 (1% year) percent and 3.0 (2*! year)
percent were negotiated. Agencies in the recruitment area for the district reported their wages
are rising between 3 and 11 percent.

Additionally, it was sought to increase the uniform allowance from $300 to $500 each year. This
covers items such as boots.

The district had proposed a cost savings sharing alternative to healthcare insurance which was
not accepted within the context of the contract. However, it was noted that the bargaining unit
would not object should the district offer this alternative as an employment benefit available to
all employees (including represented employees). This will be addressed by district at a later

1



date.
Chant 1. Over-the-year percent change in CPI-U, West region, March 2021-March 2024

e Aj tEMS

Percent change All tems less food and energy
10.0

9.0
8.0
7.0
6.0
5.0

4.0 \_/._

3.0 N
20
1.0

0.0 "+
War Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec ldar

2021 2022 2023 2024
Source: U.5. Bureau of Labor Statistics.

The expected cost increase of this agreement is approximately $27,000 if all represented
positions are filled.

INCLUDED:
(A) Collective Bargaining Agreement (redlined pages extract)
(B) Collective Bargaining Agreement (final)

Fund impacted by above action:

(X) All Funds () Not a Budget Item

() Water Fund () Sewer Fund

() General Fund () Snow Removal Fund
() Not Budgeted for () Emergency Spending



COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
Between

KINGSBURY GENERAL
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

And
THE INTERNATIONAL UNION OF

OPERATING ENGINEERS
STATIONARY LOCAL 39, AFL-CIO

July 1, 2022-2024 to June 30, 20242026

KGID 2022-2024 Redline






TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION ..uueeecisersicsrscrrencacessensarssasssacssassasssnsssanssnsssasssssansssssssssssssssssssssssns 1
ARTICLE 2 - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS ....oinuieiiieniirncserincssncssensanssssssssssssssassnsssnsssssssssacsanssssssasses 2
ARTICLE 3 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS....ccccciiiiinnirrennsoniinesanscnnasancsssenesssas el
ARTICLE 4 - UNION RIGHTS....ccceintiiisuccsunsnssarssesssscssecssssrnssnsasanssanssssssassess w3
A, UnION DUES cccceerieccsrsesisssnisscrsossrsnassnsssassossessssasessanassssanssssassasssrassssnassssnns w3
B.  Union Representation ........ceciimecnmesiissseniesensessssssesssssssssssesssessnssasasssnssssansssssssacssones 4
ARTICLE 5 - DISCRIMINATION .....cccccoiseisincansanssanssnssancssaessnessnsssscsassssnsssssssssosssessassorsassassssasse 5
ARTICLE 6 - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS....cccccivviniiirencrncsnnesnisssesanssnsssssssssssssssssssssanssassassses 5
ARTICLE 7 - DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE ......ccoccinvinstnnsnresnissccsuessecsaneessssssssssssassssessesse 5
A. Purpose.............. . ceertseessussorsesensetbatsRtsetsssestes atsssntsnes R RSsROs SRR RO R OO PASS 5
B. Employee Representatlon .................................................... 5
C. Reprimand ReVIEW. . cciiesccsisnseniisasssssessessssessssessssassassssnnsnssnsssssassssssosssssssssssssssssssssasss 65
D. Suspension or Discharge Hearing.......cceeeeerereesisciisnnsicssnssisstssssacssssarssnssccasescsssasssasane 6
E. Right of APPeal....caceiinvisicciricniiisenisicsesssrosnsssrssasesasssnsssasssssossessasssssone . 6
ARTICLE 8 - GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE ....................................... 6
A, PUIPOSE.cniitiniiiineiisissesiessssssnsssasansssssssnsassssssssassssssesssnessssssstsstsstsasensnssesssssssssossasasssenssas 6
B. Definitions ASeeausessssesansasanesetatsNesEentsarenasonnasEESRanasansesnssasnannsagEess 76
C. Time Limits cevnessssesnscstssassssesstsesantssens 76
D. Representation.......ceeiccssissennssnnesaissesessscesnessasesasssassans 7
E. ReESPONSE....unaicniirrcinscnisssassssscssnessasssssesnsssnsesnassssssansssses 7

F.  Grievance STEPS ...ccocereirrcrecssssanssssenssrnssssssressssnsssasosssssssssasssssssssssssssssstsssssssssnsssssasssessanse 7
Step 1 — INformal DiSCUSSION w.ecuveieereiiersecsnesnsessncsssseesnnessnsassassssssasssssassssssessassssssssssstsssssssassns 7
Step 2 — Formal Grievance ......ueccccessacsnessesnssacssssesareses 87
Step 3 — District Board of Trustees ......occceceererceesensanessecsssasssansssessarees .87
Step 4 — ArDIrationN c..cicceeeensrecssescrecssesseessrnessnsssasssssssssssssssssassssasssssssses .8

G. Selection of ArDItrator.....ciniiiiiisisissesssnsssesssensssassssnessssassansessaces w8
H. Arbitrator’s Decision Binding .98

L. Witness Use....ccccrecicrecrinnas . ceestessatessentessaneesssatsssesssessnatsssnasesransssanesarnnsssnasananes 98

J. Expedited Arbitration..... tesesesnsssesnnsssrnesaansserstsesesssesesstatessnatseotsts saetsIRSIIsIRITIRS PR RO S 98
ARTICLE 9 - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME crsesessseesstasanes 109
A. Hours of Work................. O SR ueanaatanatas e atatatas s asassnnsssntastnssnsesatissnsesssssnsansess 109
B. Overtime and Compensatory Tlme ...... 1110
C. Standby, Snow Removal Standby, and Call Back Assignments.. 121
ARTICLE 10 — COMPENSATION......ccccenriscnrieenessaasns 1312
A, Base Pay c..ninicniennnneniinnicsinanieniiensensesnssanisssssses 1312
B. Pay Periods and Pay Rates......ccccvveenvnrerecncancene 1312
C. Merit INCreases .ccccrecessessssccsssncssasssssosnsssnsassanssssasessasanassansons 1412
D. Compensation Administration — Probationary Period..... 1413
E. Base Pay Rate Upon Initial Appointment.....ccoeeeenecrercnrennes 1513
F. Compensation for “In Charge” Assignments.....c...ccoeeeeeeee 1514
G. Selection for “In Charge” Assignments ........ccoeeeecsareeces 1514
H. “Lead” Assignments .........ceceeenresarcarsene 1614

KGID 2022-2024 Redline






L. Special SKIllS Pay......ccocverrnesierenssuesnnseesissessnssecsuinnsacsssssnsassonssnssssassssssssssesssssssssssssasss 1715

ARTICLE 11 - ALLOWANCES AND REIMBURSEMENT .....cccvveinenvnncsnccnesacsnesncnns 1745
A.  Uniform AlIOWANCE .....ccceesssenssressssnsarrecsssnnncisssnnancssonsssasssnssones . 1745
B.  TOOIS coeeeeeccnrecicsisnnitieccssnsensssscsssnssscssassosssssontssssssnsssssasasssssanns . 1816
C.  Mileage....cocerercrercericsseissacssnessasnnsssansanens vestsssssnnessnnsnnssens A 1816

ARTICLE 12 - HOLIDAYS cccoiiricccrressssesssnccssessssssssnsssansssssssessssssasssansssssossssesnasssssasassassassssassss 1916
A, ODSEIVANCE ..cceciriieccrssnsisecssssncssssanssssssrssssssssssosssssssssasassssassasssssssasssssnssssssnnassssassssnnesses 1916
B.  HoldAy Pay....coeensiniinnienisseinsssnsniesssissnsessanssnssasssnsssassssasssstsssssssssssasssssssassasssssess 1917
C. Holiday Bonus Leave ... ceeireciecsnnssnnisnensssensiisssecssesssnssssncsansones . 1917

ARTICLE 13 — VACATIONS.....cceevveuriersrenssersas . . 2017

ARTICLE 14 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE.........cce... cessscssstessesnssassssseenssasiesnsarasnns 2118

ARTICLE 15 - SICK LEAVE.................. . cereserssssncsaanes S S 2118
A, ACCIUAL...uiicisirinisinicssnsnssnsssssssecssansisssansesasasens SRR . 21148
B. Buy BacK....iinninaineennnesississsesins wsvessesszssnsossssss BUETEON 1 oussensnnssasanny 2118
C.  Definition...ccvseecceicsnecssecssrosssesssnessansssssssasssseses Basesssessnaransessasaansasdiansasnssesnasssfissusss 2119
D. How Charged...........cccueeeuueeeee. BeesshsaasanessTesEseasseastssnasesntaRaasaasasasantassnsesassnasanes 2219
E. Worker’s Compensation Deduction ......eeeeeeicnsneensiniccisnecnsssccsncesssncsssnsossassasssnses 2320

ARTICLE 16 — SICK LEAVE MATERNITY ......cceeeevueecenens asassusasssssseimisnsas 2320

ARTICLE 17 — JURY DUTY ..cconrmsrirnricrsnisnssnsssnissssssssonsasssnssanssassassses .. 2421

ARTICLE 18 — MILITARY LEAVE.........nrnnncnnnssiesisesssisseessases 2421

ARTICLE 19 - HEALTH AND WELFARE . — 2522
A.  Coverage Provided..........ccoseeeseensennnsnirssnisseessssessecssnncssssssscsssncssnessasssssesssssnsssessanssonse 2522
B.  EIGIDIILY . covoiininerinisiniicsinsinsicssiciensenssnsesssssesssssassassassnssnssassssssssssensesasesassssases 2522
C. KGID Health and Welfare Contributions - Local 39 Health & Welfare Fund....2522
D. State of Nevada and Local 39 Health and Welfare Fund..........cccceeueeueene 2623

ARTICLE 20 - RETIREMENT PLAN.....ccccocssesnisanisnnsessorsansssesanssoncsnessacsasesanssons 2623

ARTICLE 21 - PROTECTIVE GEAR AND EQUIPMENT. 2724

ARTICLE 22 — CAREER DEVELOPMENT ........cuirievenicrsnccsnecsanceans ...2825

ARTICLE 23 - LAYOFF AND RECALL.....c..cceceruee. ceerrensenas 2825
Y W UF: )71 i PO OO PP DIPUP PPt 2825
B.  Recall...iirceiicsneicnsnneniriecissnensssnsesssannssasnssssssssssesssssessassessanssssasssssanssssssasnss ... 2925

ARTICLE 24 — SAVINGS CLAUSE . ...uuccinirneciissessanssessnsessssssssssssassssssassass 2926

ARTICLE 25 - SCOPE, EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION w2926
AL SCOPC.cicirtiisctiscsttisscstessnnecsssssessssnssesasssssnssssnens . w..2926
B. Effective Date and Duration..........c..cccevsverensunes 2926

APPENDIX A....ouuerreeciensnrseccssnsssesssscsnessacssnossssssssssossesssesssssssssssssssassssassassonsnass 3128

APPENDIX Bh.....cccosncsssssncsnssssscsasessssasssassorasssssansssnasasssnessacsassasssassasssssssassstsssssssasssasssesssassasensns 3229

APPENDIX C.....ceeversuneransanssansnces cscssnsssessnene S S 3229

KGID 2022-2024 Redline






has been directed or approved by the Operations Superintendent. The Operator shall use his best
judgment whether to make adjustments or corrections, subject to later approval by the Operations
Superintendent, which shall not be unreasonably denied.

9.3.7 If necessary and required adjustments and troubleshooting cannot be performed from the
Operator’s home, and the at-home call assignment results in a call-in or call-back, then the
Operator shall be paid pursuant to Section 9.3.9 below, starting from the time of the original at-
home call assignment, in lieu of the one (1) hour “at-home call” pay, but not both.

9.3.8 If an Operator obtains approval from the Operations Superintendent to respond directly to
the central computer without the use of the laptop computer, then adjustments and troubleshooting
which could have been performed with the laptop computer will be paid at the same rate as other
necessary and required functions, that is, at the rate of one (1) hour of one and one half (1.5) times
hourly regular pay, as calculated in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act.

9.3.9 Call Back Assignments: A minimum of two (2) hours overtime compensation per call shall
be paid to an employee who is called in to work, in addition to the standby pay to which such
employee is entitled pursuant to paragraph 9.3.1. & 9.3.5 above, unless the call-back merges with
the employee’s regular shift. Additional call assignments started within the two (2) hour
guaranteed minimum do not start an additional two (2) hour guaranteed minimum; however, the
time worked beyond the two (2) hour minimum will be paid at the applicable overtime rate plus
the standby time rate. All callback time shall be portal-to-portal and shall be paid at the applicable
overtime rate.

ARTICLE 10 - COMPENSATION

A. Base Pay

10.1.1 Employees shall be paid the straight time rates of pay applicable to their classification as
listed in Appendix C attached hereto.

B. Pav Periods and Payv Rates

10.2.1  All employees shall be paid on the 15" and last day of each month. Compensation will
include wages up to and including the 15" and the last day of each month of the pay period being
completed.

10.2.2 FY 2023-2025 (July 1, 20222024 — June 30, 26232025) — For fiscal year 202325, the base

13

KGID 2022-2024






hourly rates of pay in effect on June 30, 20222024, shall increase by five-three and one-half percent
(53.5%). (Thisraise-is-retroactive-toFuly 12022

10.2.3 FY 202624 (July 1,2023-2025 — June 30, 26242026) — For fiscal year 20242026, the base
hourly rates of pay in effect on June 30, 26232025, shall increase by three and one-half percent
(33.5%).

C. Merit Increases

10.3.1 During the term of this Agreement, cach permanent employee will receive a formal
performance evaluation completed by the District on or before May 31%.

10.3.2 In FY 20242025 and FY 2026(July 1, 2623-2024 - June 30, 26242026) employees who
received a standard/average or better evaluation in their May 31% evaluations will receive a two
percent (2.0%) merit increase effective the first full pay period of the following fiscal year. Merit
increases will be calculated using the employee’s base salary as of the first pay period of the fiscal
year in which it will be applied. For instance, if an employee receives a standard or better
evaluation on his or her May 31, 2023-2024 evaluation, he or she will receive a two percent (2.0%)
merit increase which will be applied to his or her pay effective the first full pay period following
July 1, 20232024, and the increase will be calculated on his or her base rate of pay effective July
1, 20232024. An employee who receives a below standard/average evaluation will receive no
merit increase in the following fiscal year. An employee’s evaluation is not subject to grievance
under this Agreement. The merit benefit expires June 30, 20242026, unless extended in writing
by the parties.

10.3.3 A merit increase received by an employee impacts an employee’s hourly rate for the
contract year in question, but the increase does not impact that employee’s base hourly rate
reflected on the District’s salary schedule, i.e., merit is not compounding from year to year.

D. Compensation Administration — Probationary Period

10.4.1 The General Manager or his/her Designee shall be responsible for compensation
administration in accordance with the provisions of this Article. Employees defined in Appendix
B hereto shall have a one (1) year probationary period. During the first six (6) months of
employment, probationary employees shall be paid eighty percent (80%) of the appropriate rate.
The next six (6) months of employment, probationary employees shall be paid ninety percent
(90%) of the appropriate rate. After one (1) year, employees shall be paid one hundred percent
(100%) of the appropriate rate. Employees promoted to a higher classification may be placed upon
promotional probation at the sole discretion of the General Manager for a period not to exceed six
months. This probationary period may be extended for an additional three months in the sole
discretion of the General Manager. In the event other employee fails to meet the requirements of
the promotional probation including any extension, the employee shall voluntarily demote to their
former position if otherwise remains qualified for the position. If not qualified or does not
voluntarily demote the employee will be terminated for failing the promotional probationary
period. The employee filling the former position will voluntarily demote to his/her former position

14

KGID 2022-2024






worked in increments of one-half (2) hour when so assigned, with a minimum of one (1) hour
“lead” compensation per assignment.

1. Special Skills Pay

10.8.1 Each employee will receive additional compensation, from presentation of proof to the
District, for the duration of this contract, as long as the employee maintains the special skill, for
the following additional skills:

One percent (1%) additional compensation per skill:
a. Backflow Tester certification only

Two and one-half percent (2.5%) additional compensation per skill:

a. Commercial Driver’s License, either Class A or B

b. Cross Connect/Backflow Tester Certification and Specialist Certification

c. Passing a course in Telemetry systems satisfactory to the District General Manager

d. Grade III Water Treatment Certificate. Individual 2.5% incentives for Grade III Water
Treatment Certificate and Grade III Water Distribution Certificate ceases when required for the
Water Treatment/Distribution Operator III job description.

e. Grade III Water Distribution Certificate. Individual 2.5% incentives for Grade I1I Water
Treatment Certificate and Grade III Water Distribution Certificate ceases when required for the
Water Treatment/Distribution Operator III job description.

f. Building/construction inspection Certificate

g. GIS Certificate. Successful completion of GIS 109 & 205 from Western Nevada College
or equivalent as determined by the District satisfies special skills requirement.

h. Promotion to Grade III Operator results in increase of 12.5% of base pay.

Grade III treatment and Grade III distribution certification must be achieved before more than
four of the above additional compensation skills will be paid.

One percent (1%) additional compensation per skill for employees currently holding the
following additional skills:

a. Nevada Department of Health Grade II Water Treatment Certificate

b. Nevada Department of Health Grade II Water Distribution Certificate

ARTICLE 11 - ALLOWANCES AND REIMBURSEMENT

A. Uniform Allowance

11.1.1 Any employee who is required by virtue of the duty of employment, or by request of his/her
supervisor, to wear a uniform designated by the District, and which is not furnished by the District,
shall be paid a uniform allowance in addition to other compensation. The uniform allowance for
such employees in the District shall be at the rate of Three Five Hundred Dollars ($200500.00) per
year paid semiannually with the final payroll during the month of December and the month of June

17

KGID 2022-2024






employee is laid off. The District will provide the Union with a list of employees to be laid off at
least thirty (30) working days prior to the effective date of any layoff.

23.1.2 The District and the Union agree to meet to discuss alternatives to any layoff. Such
alternatives include reduced workweek, leave of absence, voluntary layoff, and/or other issues,
which may minimize mandatory layoffs.

B. Recall

23.2.1 The District shall maintain a list of all employees affected by layoffs. An employee who
has been placed in layoff status shall be given priority based on seniority and ability to perform
the job when a vacancy occurs. If the employee refuses an offer of re-employment, the employee
shall be removed from the list.

ARTICLE 24 - SAVINGS CLAUSE

24.1.1 In the event that any provision of this Agreement is or shall be rendered invalid by
applicable legislation or be declared invalid by any court or regulatory agency of competent
jurisdiction, such action shall only invalidate that provision of the Agreement.

24.1.2 Ttis the express intention of the District and the Union that all other provisions not rendered

invalid shall remain in full force and effect, and that the parties shall enter into negotiations to
bring the invalid section or sections into compliance.

ARTICLE 25 — SCOPE, EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION

A. Scope

25.1.1 This Agreement sets forth the full and entire understanding of the parties regarding rates
of pay, hours of work, and other conditions of employment.

B. Effective Date and Duration

25.2.1 This Agreement shall be in full force and effect July 1, 26222024, and shall continue in
force until June 30, 20242026.

29

KGID 2022-2024






IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District and the Union have caused these presents to be duly

executed by their authorized representatives, this day of 20222024.
Bart Florence, Business Manager Sandy ParksNatalie Yanish, Chairman
1.U.O.E. Local 39, AFL-CIO Board of Trustees, Kingsbury GID
Jeff Gladieux, President Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager
I.U.O.E. Local 39, AFL-CIO Kingsbury GID

Brandy Johnson, Director of Public Employees
L.U.O.E. Local 39, AFL-CIO

Jerry FrederiekScott Lupo, Business Representative
L.U.O.E. Local 39, AFL-CIO

Joe Esenarro, Steward
Member/Negotiator

30

KGID 2022-2024






It is further directed that the Kingsbury General Improvement District will then remit said monies
to the above organization in the manner prescribed.

NAME (PRINT)

HOME TELEPHONE

STREET ADDRESS

CITY STATE Z1p

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER

WORK PHONE

CLASSIFICATION

WORKSITE

SIGNATURE

DATE SIGNED

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX C

Rates of Pay

32

KGID 2022-2024






33

KGID 2022-2024






COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
Between

KINGSBURY GENERAL
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

And
THE INTERNATIONAL UNION OF

OPERATING ENGINEERS
STATIONARY LOCAL 39, AFL-CIO

July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2026

KGID 2022-2024 Redline



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION

PAGE

ARTICLE 2 - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

ARTICLE 3 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

ARTICLE 4 - UNION RIGHTS

A. Union Dues

B. Union Representation

ARTICLE 5 - DISCRIMINATION...

ARTICLE 6 - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS

ARTICLE 7 - DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

Purpose

Employee Representation
Reprimand Review

Suspension or Discharge Hearing

mE0wE

Right of Appeal
ARTICLE 8 - GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

Purpose

Definitions

Time Limits

Representation ..

RESPONSE couuaeereereressrtnerecssssessccstsssecssassecccesaassaseas
Grievance Steps

AEpOwEP

Step 1 — Informal Discussion..

Step 2 — Formal Grievance
Step 3 — District Board of Trustees

Step 4 — Arbitration

G. Selection of Arbitrator

H. Arbitrator’s Decision Binding

I. Witness Use

CCeRWRXXIIIIIIaaa SN b W W W =

J.  Expedited Arbitration

ARTICLE 10 - COMPENSATION.

Base Pay

Merit Increases ..

ARTICLE 9 - HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME 10
A. Hours of Work....cereeceeervencereans 10
B. Overtime and Compensatory Time 11
C. Standby, Snow Removal Standby, and Call Back Assignments 12

13

13

Pay Periods and Pay Rates .13
.14

Compensation Administration — Probationary Perlod 14
Base Pay Rate Upon Initial Appointment .15
Compensation for “In Charge” Assignments .......cc.ccoccreecsscessosscsnsense 15
Selection for “In Charge” Assignments 15
“Lead” ASSIGNMENLS....ccoversenssvrssressrssssssssnsesansssasssnsesssasssoncas 16

TQEEPOR»

KGID 2022-2024 Redline



I.  Special SKills Pay ...c.cocevcvcessensccsscssissnsssssnsecssncsassacsassnnas
ARTICLE 11 - ALLOWANCES AND REIMBURSEMENT

A.  Uniform ALIOWAaNCE....ccccerseeevosccrcraanssroesssssssssssas
B. TO0OIS.ceeueuuceeearccscessrorescnsccssnnnes
C.  MIlEAZE .evervrercsurensnscssercsasssnsosancsssassssssssssssssssnssssnnsanasones

ARTICLE 12 - HOLIDAYS sessssusassssessessessresssnsesraranas

A. Observance

B. Holiday Pay

C. Holiday Bonus Leave......... ceseesunensene

ARTICLE 13 - VACATIONS ........

ARTICLE 14 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE

ARTICLE 15 - SICK LEAVE......

A. Accrual.........

B. Buy Back

C. Definition

D. How Charged .....ccccvereneecaeinans
E. Worker’s Compensation Deduction

ARTICLE 16 - SICK LEAVE MATERNITY

ARTICLE 17 - JURY DUTY

ARTICLE 18 - MILITARY LEAVE.........

ARTICLE 19 - HEALTH AND WELFARE

A. Coverage Provided
B. Eligibility

C. KGID Health and Welfare Contrlbutlons Local 39 Health & Welfare Fund
D. State of Nevada and Local 39 Health and Welfare Fund

ARTICLE 20 - RETIREMENT PLAN..........

ooooooo

ARTICLE 21 - PROTECTIVE GEAR AND EQUIPMENT

ARTICLE 22 - CAREER DEVELOPMENT

ARTICLE 23 — LAYOFF AND RECALL ...ccccesviesuersseessnsssscsnssanssnnesnssassssssssssasssssssssssnsasssassass
A. Layoff cessasssassssecssesssassestesstssseRIsRSRaSSTORSSER OO SRS abSaR AR LS
B. Recall.....

ARTICLE 24 - SAVINGS CLAUSE

ARTICLE 25 - SCOPE, EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION

A. Scope..........
B. Effective Date and DUuration .....cccccccceessscssrersesesance

APPENDIX A....eevrrenrerciosaccsssncssenes

APPENDIX B........
APPENDIX C

KGID 2022-2024 Redline

17

17
18
18
19
19
19
19
20

.21

21

.21
.21

21
22
23

.23
.. 24

24
25
25
25
25
26
26
27

.28

28
28
29

.29
.29

29
29

.31

32
32



COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the KINGSBURY GENERAL
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as the “District”, and the
INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING ENGINEERS, STATIONARY LOCAL 39,
AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the “Union”, and has as its purpose the promotion of
harmonious labor relations between the District and the Union; the establishment of an equitable
and peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences; and the establishment of rates of pay,
hours of work, and other conditions of employment.

WHEREAS, the District provides public services essential to the health, safety, and welfare of the
residents of the Kingsbury General Improvement District; and

WHEREAS, the employees of the District recognize their responsibility to provide such public
services to the community; and

WHEREAS, it is the duty of the District to negotiate in good faith with the employees who have
voluntarily chosen to be represented by the Union which is a party to this Agreement, and it is the
duty of the Union to negotiate in good faith with the District concerning wages, hours, and other
terms and conditions of employment.

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION

1.1.1 The District recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining agent for employees in an
occupation, which is included in the recognized bargaining unit. Occupations, which are included
in the recognized bargaining unit, are listed in Appendix “B” to this Agreement.

1.1.2 The term “employee” or “employees” as used in this Agreement shall refer only to
employees employed by the District who perform the functions of an occupation which is included
in the recognized bargaining unit.

1.1.3 The term “full time employee” as used in this Agreement shall apply only to employees
who are employed to work forty (40) hours or more per week.

1.1.4 The term “regular employee” as used in this Agreement shall apply only to full or part time
employees other than seasonal employees. “Seasonal Employees” are employed full time for
seasonal work, which is not, or cannot, be performed all year, and which is usually performed
during specific seasons.

1.1.5 Nothing in this Article shall preclude any employee from exercising his/her individual
rights under State and/or Federal Law.

1.1.6 The parties agree that the title of Supervisor does not currently meet the statutory definition
for “supervisory employee” set forth in NRS 288.075, and therefore, it is allowable and appropriate
for these employees to be included within the same bargaining agreement as non-supervisory

1

KGID 2022-2024



employees. However, in the event that the duties for any of these positions change, both parties
reserve the right to seek a determination from the Employee Management Relations Board
concerning whether any, or all, of these positions come within the definition of supervisory
employee set forth in NRS 288.075. In the event that the EMRB determines that any of these
positions meet the statutory definition of supervisory employee, then the employees in these
positions shall no longer be a part of this Agreement, but shall have a new Agreement immediately
go into effect which incorporates the provisions of this Agreement, and thereafter, shall negotiate
as a separate bargaining unit with a separate bargaining Agreement.

1.1.7 District Personnel Policy

The parties hereby recognize and agree that the District has adopted Personnel Policies and may
amend said policies from time to time. The parties further recognize and agree that this Agreement
is supplementary to said policies and shall in no way be construed to incorporate the District’s
adopted Personnel Policies into this Agreement, with the exception of District Policy Performance
Management and Disciplinary Actions (as amended).

ARTICLE 2 - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

2.1.1 Any employee employed in an occupation included in the bargaining unit has the right to
the full benefits and protection provided by the expressed written terms of this Agreement, whether
or not the employee is a member of the Union; except that an employee dismissed from
employment while serving an initial probationary period shall not have the right to appeal such
dismissal through the grievance procedure or disciplinary appeals process of this Agreement.

2.1.2  Every employee has the right to join or not to join the Union without intimidation, coercion
or fear of reprisal by any party to this Agreement

2.1.3 The District and the Union recognize that employee personnel files should be maintained
on a confidential basis. The General Manager or his/her designee shall supervise all access to
personnel files. Only duplicate copies of personnel files may be removed from the Office for
review. An employee, or an employee who has been terminated, his/her authorized representative,
or the employee’s supervisor, shall be permitted access to copies of the employee’s or terminated
employee’s personnel files during working hours.

2.1.4 All items added to an employee’s personnel file during the life of this Agreement shall be
accompanied by the employee’s acknowledgment of such entry. The employee’s supervisor and
the District’s General Manager will review all items intended for placement into the employee file,
and the supervisor will present the employee a copy of the item, and a form to be signed by the
employee, indicating that the employee has knowledge of the entry of the item in the personnel
file. The form shall contain a space for any employee comments, and for the employee’s signature.
The supervisor will forward said materials to the office for filing in the employee’s personnel file.
In addition, the employee may, within twenty (20) days, prepare a document in rebuttal to, or

KGID 2022-2024



explanation of, the original entry, and such rebuttal or explanation shall then be appended to the
original entry and made a part of the personnel file.

ARTICLE 3 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

3.1.1 Allrights, functions and responsibilities of the District not specifically modified or limited
by the express written terms of this Agreement, shall remain the vested right of the District.
Included in the rights specifically retained by the District and established pursuant to NRS
288.150; including but not limited to: the right to direct the work force and to assign the work to
be performed; to select and determine the number of any type or classification of employees
required; to hire, promote, and lay off employees for lack of work or lack of funds; and to suspend,
discipline and terminate employees for just cause. In exercising these rights the District will
comply with all applicable provisions of this Agreement, or of State and Federal Law, and will not
transfer or assign employees as a form of discipline.

3.1.2 The District reserves the right to determine the appropriate staffing levels, the work
schedules and the content of the work day, the quality and quantity of services to be offered to the
public, the means and methods of offering those services, as may be necessary for the safety of the
public and the efficiency of its operations.

3.1.3 Notwithstanding the provisions of this Agreement, the District has the right to take
whatever actions that may be necessary to carry out its rights and responsibilities in situations of
emergency, such as riot, military action, natural disaster, or civil disorder. Nothing contained
herein shall affect the rights, which the District may have under law.

3.1.4 The purpose of this Article is to establish the chain of command. The corresponding chain

of command is that the Operators and Street Maintenance Specialist shall report to the Operations
Superintendent, the Clerical Staff shall report to the Business & Contracts Manager.

ARTICLE 4 - UNION RIGHTS

A. Union Dues

4.1.1 The District agrees to deduct from the wages of each Union member and remit to the Union
the authorized deduction for Union Dues, assessments and per capita payments. Such authorized
deductions must be individually and voluntarily executed in writing by the employee in a format
agreed upon by the District and the Union (see Appendix “A” to this Agreement). Such authorized
deductions may be executed at any time during the life of this Agreement to become effective on

KGID 2022-2024



the first full pay period following a five (5) day period after receipt of said document by the
District.

4.1.2 The total amount to be deducted for Union dues, assessments and per capita will be that
amount as designated periodically by the Union. Said deductions shall be withheld in two equal
installments from the first two pay periods of each month.

4.13 Such authorized deductions shall remain in full force and effect during the life of this
Agreement, unless canceled in a certified letter signed by the employee. Such cancellation may
only be made during a fifteen (15) day period ending on June 30 of any year.

4.1.4 The employee’s earnings must be regularly sufficient after required deductions are made,
to cover the amount of said deductions. When the employee’s wages are not sufficient to cover
the full employee withholding, no Union deductions will be made.

4.1.5 The District will not honor any check-off authorizations executed by any employees
covered by this Agreement in favor of any other labor organization or organization representing
employees as long as the Union is the recognized bargaining agent for said employees; nor honor
any check-off authorization from anyone who is not employed in an occupation which is part of
the recognized bargaining unit. The Union will not use check-off authorizations as a substitute for
authorization by anyone not covered by the bargaining unit, to be represented by the Union.

4.1.6 The Union agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the District harmless against any and all
claims or suits that may arise out of or by reason of any action taken by the District in reliance
upon any dues deduction authorization cards submitted by the Union to the District. The Union
agrees to refund to the District any amounts paid to it in error on account of the payroll deduction
provision upon presentation of proper evidence of error or mistake.

B. Union Representation

42.1 The District recognizes and agrees to deal with the designated Stewards and
Representatives of the Union with respect to all grievances regarding the interpretation and/or
application of the express written terms of this Agreement.

4.22 The Union will furnish the District with the names of any officers, representatives, and the
designated Stewards immediately after their designation, election, or appointment. Stewards will
not be recognized by the District until such a list is received in writing by the General Manager.

4.2.3 At therequest of the Union or the Stewards, the Stewards may be allowed reasonable time
off (release time), not to exceed ten (10) straight time hours per Steward per fiscal year, without
loss of pay to represent the Union at meetings with the General Manager or histher designee, or to
attend negotiation meetings in the Tahoe Basin. Such release time shall be during normal working
hours, when the Stewards are present and available for duty. In addition, the General Manager will

KGID 2022-2024



not unreasonably deny release time for up to an additional ten (10) hours per year per Steward, as
needed.

4.2.4 At the request of the Union the Stewards will be granted an excused absence from work to
participate in Union activities away from the workplace. Such excused absences will be granted
by the General Manager when work schedules permit, but will not be unreasonably denied. Such
excused absences will be without pay, unless otherwise agreed to between the Union and the
District.

ARTICLE 5 - DISCRIMINATION

5.1.1 No longer covered under this agreement.

ARTICLE 6 - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS

6.1.1 The District agrees that it will not lockout its employees.

6.1.2 The Union agrees that neither it, nor its officers, employees, or members will engage in,
encourage, sanction, or support a strike, work stoppage, boycott, slowdown, mass resignation,
mass absenteeism, picketing, or any other actions which would involve suspension of, or
interference with, the normal work of the District, for any reason whatsoever.

ARTICLE 7 - DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

A. Purpose

7.1.1 The purpose of this Article is to provide for an equitable and expeditious manner for the
resolution of disputes arising from the imposition of discipline.

7.1.2 The District agrees that no employee will be disciplined or discharged without just cause.

B. Emplovee Representation

7.2.1 Any employee who has reason to believe that discipline will result from a discussion with
his/her supervisor, or with the General Manager, shall have the right to request and be provided

KGID 2022-2024



with Union Representation during the discussion. When requested, the District shall make
arrangements for the desired representation.

C. Reprimand Review

7.3.1 Verbal and written reprimands shall only be subject to review through the immediate
Supervisor or his/her designee, and shall not be subject to arbitration. The District may, at its
option, require the attendance of a witness during any meeting with the subject employee.

If the employee is not satisfied with the response of the immediate Supervisor he/she may request
a review with the General Manager. Upon completion of the review, the Supervisor/General
Manager may withdraw, affirm, or modify a verbal or written reprimand. Within thirty (30)
calendar days of the final disposition by the Supervisor/General Manager or his/her designee, the
affected employee may submit a written statement responding to the reprimand and such statement
shall be included in the employee’s official personnel file(s). Such written response shall remain
in the official personnel file for as long as the reprimand remains in the file.

D. Suspension or Discharge Hearing

7.4.1 Any regular employee being suspended without pay or discharged shall not be removed
from the payroll until after the completion of a hearing before the General Manager. The purpose
of this hearing is for the employee to respond to the specific charges, and to present evidence on
his/her behalf. The employee will have the right to be represented at this hearing by a Union
Representative.

E. Rigcht of Appeal

7.5.1 An employee who has been suspended without pay or discharged, or the Union
Representative, shall have the right within ten (10) days after the suspension without pay, or the
discharge, to appeal such discipline starting with Step 2 of the Grievance and Arbitration Procedure
of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 8 - GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

A. Purpese

" 8.1.1 This Grievance and Arbitration Procedure shall be used to process and resolve grievances
arising under this Agreement. The purpose of this procedure is to resolve grievances informally

KGID 2022-2024



at the lowest possible level; to provide an orderly procedure for reviewing and resolving grievances
promptly.

B. Definitions

8.2.1 A “grievance” is a dispute by one or a group of employees, or a dispute between the Union
and the District involving the interpretation, application, or enforcement of the express written
terms of this Agreement.

8.2.2 Asused in this procedure, the term “party” means an employee, the Union or the District.

8.2.3 Asused in the Agreement, the term “day” is defined as a calendar day.

8.2.4 As used in this Agreement, the term “working day” is defined as a regular work day,
Monday — Friday, excluding holidays listed in Article 12.

C. Time Limits

8.3.1 Each party involved in a grievance shall act quickly so that the grievance may be resolved
promptly. Every effort should be made to complete action within the time limits contained in this
grievance procedure, but with the written consent of all parties the time limitation for any step may
be extended. If the grievant fails to respond within the specified or extended time limits, the
grievance will be dismissed.

D. Representation

8.4.1 A grievant and his/her Steward, at the request of the grievant, may attend any grievance
proceeding while on duty, without loss of pay. The grievant may be represented at any step of this
grievance procedure by the Union Representative.

E. Response

8.5.1 If the District fails to respond to a grievance within the time limits specified for that step,
the grievance shall be deemed denied at said step, and the grievant shall have the right to appeal
to the next higher step. At each step of this grievance procedure, a copy of the decision shall be
sent to the grievant and the Union Representative.

F. Grievance Steps

Step 1 — Informal Discussion

8.6.1 The grievance of an employee shall initially be discussed with the grievant’s “immediate
supervisor.” Within ten (10) workdays, the immediate supervisor shall give his/her decision or
response. If the immediate supervisor fails to respond to the informal grievance within ten (10)

KGID 2022-2024



workdays, the grievant shall have the right to initiate a formal grievance no later than ten (10)
workdays after the event or circumstances occasioning the grievance.

Step 2 — Formal Grievance

8.6.2 (1) If the Union or the grievant is not satisfied with the decision rendered pursuant to Step
1, or if the grievant’s immediate supervisor fails to respond to the informal grievance, he/she, or
the Union Representative, may appeal in writing within ten (10) workdays to the General Manager.
Within ten (10) workdays of receipt of said appeal, the General Manager will examine the relevant
evidence and schedule a meeting with the aggrieved employee and the Union Representative for
the purpose of resolving the grievance.

8.6.2 (2) The General Manager shall, within ten (10) workdays of the meeting, render his/her
decision and reasons therefore in writing to the aggrieved employee and the Union.

Step 3 — District Board of Trustees

8.6.3 If the Union or the grievant is not satisfied with the decision rendered pursuant to Step 2,
he/she or the Union Representative may appeal the decision in writing, accompanied by all
pertinent documents, within ten (10) workdays to the Board of Trustees of the District. Within ten
(10) workdays the Board of Trustees of the District will examine the relevant evidence and
schedule a meeting with the aggrieved employee and the Union Representative for the purpose of
resolving the grievance. The Board of Trustees of the District shall, within ten (10) workdays of
the meeting, render a decision and its reasons therefore in writing to the aggrieved employee and
the Union.

Step 4 — Arbitration

8.6.4 Ifthe Board of Trustees of the District fails to respond in writing as provided in Step 3, or
if the response is not satisfactory to the grievant, only the Union shall have the right to refer the
matter to binding arbitration. Such referral shall be made by written demand submitted to the
General Manager within ten (10) workdays of receipt of the decision of the Board of Trustees, or
of the Board’s failure to make a timely response.

G. Selection of Arbitrator

8.7.1 Within ten (10) workdays after written notice of submission to arbitration, the District and
the Union may agree upon a mutually acceptable arbitrator who is experienced, impartial,
disinterested and of recognized competence.

8.7.2 If the parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator, a request for a list/panel of arbitrators
shall be made to the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMCS) by the grievant.

KGID 2022-2024



Thereafter, the parties shall meet and confer regarding the list/panel of arbitrators, and shall strike
names until an arbitrator is selected. The grieving party shall strike the first name.

8.7.3 Costs and expenses of arbitration shall be borne equally by the parties; however, each party
will pay their own expenses in preparation for any arbitration hearing. Any hearing(s) held by the
arbitrator shall be in closed session and no news releases shall be made concerning progress of any
hearing(s).

H. Arbitrator’s Decision Binding

8.8.1 The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding.
8.8.2 The arbitrator shall have no authority to add to, delete, or alter any provisions of this
Agreement, but shall limit his/her decision to the application and interpretation of its expressed

written provisions.

I. Witness Use

8.9.1 Prior to the arbitration hearing, the Union shall furnish the District with a list of witnesses
it desires to call who would be otherwise working. The parties will be reasonable in the scheduling
of time off to accommodate both the operations of the District and the grievant’s fair hearing. The
District will assume no overtime liability as a result of a grievant’s or witnesses testimony.

J. Expedited Arbitration

8.10.1 The District and the Union will use expedited arbitration when agreed to by both parties.

8.10.2 Expedited arbitration shall include an agreed upon statement of facts and any stipulations
between the parties submitted to the arbitrator at least ten (10) workdays prior to the hearing, and
a requirement that the arbitrator selected render a decision within fourteen (14) days of the
conclusion of the hearing.

8.10.3 Either party to an expedited arbitration hearing shall have the right to have the hearing
transcribed by a court reporter. Both parties shall be entitled to copies of the transcript, the cost

KGID 2022-2024



of which will be shared equally. In addition the parties may agree to waive the use of post hearing
briefs.

ARTICLE 9 — HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

A. Hours of Work

9.1.1 Employees of the District will normally work eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days per
week, forty (40) hours per week, fifty-two (52) weeks per year, including authorized absences with

pay.

9.1.2 A workday is one twenty-four (24) hour period commencing at midnight inclusive of two
(2) rest periods, but exclusive of meal periods. Such rest periods shall not be scheduled within one
(1) hour of the employee’s starting time, quitting time, or meal breaks, unless otherwise agreed to
by the District and the Union. All employees normally shall be allowed a lunch period of one-half
(1/2) hour, which shall be generally in the middle of the work shift.

9.1.3 Employees working a five (5) day, forty (40) hour week receive two (2) consecutive days
offin the workweek unless otherwise approved by the employee and the District or due to a regular
work schedule change. For the purpose of this Section, the employee’s workweek shall commence
with his first regularly scheduled workday.

9.1.4 When an employee is required by the District to attend training, the time spent in training
(classroom training and/or compulsory homework assignments) shall be counted as hours worked.
Training which takes place during off-duty hours with attendance voluntary is not considered hours
worked.

9.1.5 Employees shall be given at least five (5) workdays written notice prior to a permanent
change in their assigned hours of work, unless the change in assigned hours of work results due to
an emergency or unless mutually agreed to by the District and the Union. Notwithstanding
paragraph 9.1.1 above, employees may be assigned to work a modified workweek, subject to
approval by the District and the Union.

9.1.6 Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting or preventing the District from

establishing other work shifts when mutually agreed to by the District and the Union. That the
District and the Union will develop and implement a “9/80” schedule for employees that provides

10

KGID 2022-2024



adequate coverage for the District. The “9/80” reflects a schedule where the employee works 9
days and 80 hours in a two-week period.

B. Overtime and Compensatory Time

9.2.1 The General Manager or his/her Designee may require an employee to work overtime.
9.2.2 Employees shall be compensated for all overtime worked.

9.2.3 Employees required to work in excess of eight (8) hours in a twenty-four (24) hour period or
forty (40) hours per week shall be compensated for such overtime with pay at one and one-half
(1.5) times the employees regular hourly rate, as calculated in accordance with the Fair Labor
Standards Act, for each quarter (.25) hour or major portion thereof or, at the request of the
employee and with approval of the department supervisor, by compensatory time off on the basis
of one and one-half (1.5) hours off for overtime worked for each quarter (.25) hour or major portion
thereof.

9.2.4 Employees working more than 3 hours of overtime in one continuous shift will have a meal
purchased for their consumption.

9.2.5 Compensatory time off must be used within six (6) months of when it is earned. Unused
compensatory time shall be cashed out on a semiannual basis the first pay period of January and
July each year. The District will not be unreasonable in the scheduling of compensatory time off
and will consider the employee’s request and the operating demands.

9.2.6 Employees will receive a cash payment for all compensatory time earned but unused at the
time of termination.

9.2.7 Absence with pay, including compensatory time off, shall be counted as time worked.

9.2.8 Employees who work overtime shall promptly and accurately report such time to their
SUpervisor.

9.2.9 The District agrees to make a reasonable effort to distribute overtime equally among qualified
employees in the same work unit, insofar as circumstances permit and unless the employee is on
sick or other approved leave under this Agreement. If practical, the District agrees to make a
reasonable effort in assigning overtime work to employees on a voluntary basis.

9.2.10 All overtime work will be assigned at the beginning of the workday whenever reasonable
and practical.

9.2.11 Employees required to work on any holiday, except New Year’s Day, Thanksgiving Day,
Family Day, and Christmas Day, shall receive, in addition to straight time pay for the holiday,

11

KGID 2022-2024



overtime compensation pay at one and one-half (1.5) times the employee’s regular hourly rate for
each quarter (.25) hour or major portion thereof.

9.2.12 Employees required to work on New Year’s Day, Thanksgiving Day, Family Day, or
Christmas Day, shall receive, in addition to straight time pay for the holiday, overtime
compensation pay at one and one-half (1.5) times the employee’s regular hourly rate for each
quarter (.25) hour or major portion thereof for the first eight (8) hours worked and shall receive
overtime compensation at two and one-half (2.5) times the employee's regularly hourly rate for
each quarter (.25) hour or major portion thereof worked over eight (8) hours.

C. Standby. Snow Removal Standby, and Call Back Assignments

9.3.1. Snow Removal Standby: Any employee who is required to remain on snow removal
standby to deal with District issues by telephone shall be paid twelve and one-half percent
(12.50%) of his/her base pay per hour for each hour assigned to standby. Any employee who is
called in to work while on snow removal standby duty shall be compensated for such work
performed at the appropriate overtime rate. The District will use personal consideration and
professional courtesy when assigning standby.

9.3.2 Any employee on snow removal standby will be provided with a cell phone by the District
for use and is to respond to call-ins within thirty (45) forty- five minutes of receipt. There shall be
no personal calls on the District provided cell phone.

9.3.3 In the event no bargaining unit employee can be contacted to respond to a snow removal call-
out, the District may utilize non-bargaining unit employees to respond without violating the
contract. A log of such responses will be kept by the District for inspection by the Union.

9.3.4 Standby: Any Water Treatment/Distribution Operator who is required to remain on standby
for emergency work shall be paid twelve and one-half percent (12.5%) premium of base pay per
hour assigned to standby. Employees on sick or other approved leave under this agreement are not
available for standby assignments or pay. Any employee called in to work while on standby duty
shall be compensated for such work performed at the overtime rate.

Any Water Treatment /Distribution Operator who may be required to remain on standby for
emergency work shall be able to respond to the District for emergencies within a reasonable period
of time.

9.3.5 Water Treatment/Distribution Operators on standby will be provided with a laptop computer
to be used by the Operator for necessary and required adjustments and for troubleshooting from
the Operator’s home. For the performance of this duty Operators on standby will be paid one
hour’s (1) pay at one and one-half (1.5) times regular pay per hour, as calculated in accordance
with the Fair Labor Standards Act requirements.

9.3.6 Necessary and required adjustments and troubleshooting consist of responses to calls from
the District answering service, or contact by the central computer. Other operational changes,
adjustments, or corrections will be deemed necessary and required only if there exists a condition
which requires response in order to correct or to avoid system malfunction, or when such action

12

KGID 2022-2024



has been directed or approved by the Operations Superintendent. The Operator shall use his best
judgment whether to make adjustments or corrections, subject to later approval by the Operations
Superintendent, which shall not be unreasonably denied.

9.3.7 If necessary and required adjustments and troubleshooting cannot be performed from the
Operator’s home, and the at-home call assignment results in a call-in or call-back, then the
Operator shall be paid pursuant to Section 9.3.9 below, starting from the time of the original at-
home call assignment, in lieu of the one (1) hour “at-home call” pay, but not both.

9.3.8 If an Operator obtains approval from the Operations Superintendent to respond directly to
the central computer without the use of the laptop computer, then adjustments and troubleshooting
which could have been performed with the laptop computer will be paid at the same rate as other
necessary and required functions, that is, at the rate of one (1) hour of one and one half (1.5) times
hourly regular pay, as calculated in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act.

9.3.9 Call Back Assignments: A minimum of two (2) hours overtime compensation per call shall
be paid to an employee who is called in to work, in addition to the standby pay to which such
employee is entitled pursuant to paragraph 9.3.1. & 9.3.5 above, unless the call-back merges with
the employee’s regular shift. Additional call assignments started within the two (2) hour
guaranteed minimum do not start an additional two (2) hour guaranteed minimum; however, the
time worked beyond the two (2) hour minimum will be paid at the applicable overtime rate plus
the standby time rate. All callback time shall be portal-to-portal and shall be paid at the applicable
overtime rate.

ARTICLE 10 - COMPENSATION

A. Base Pay

10.1.1 Employees shall be paid the straight time rates of pay applicable to their classification as
listed in Appendix C attached hereto.

B. Pav Periods and Pav Rates

10.2.1  All employees shall be paid on the 15 and last day of each month. Compensation will
include wages up to and including the 15% and the last day of each month of the pay period being
completed.

13

KGID 2022-2024



10.2.2 FY 2025 (July 1, 2024 — June 30, 2025) — For fiscal year 2025, the base hourly rates of
pay in effect on June 30, 2024, shall increase by three and one-half percent (3.5%).

10.2.3 FY 2026 (July 1, 2025 — June 30, 2026) — For fiscal year 2026, the base hourly rates of
pay in effect on June 30, 2025, shall increase by three and one-half percent (3.5%).

C. Merit Increases

10.3.1 During the term of this Agreement, each permanent employee will receive a formal
performance evaluation completed by the District on or before May 3 1,

10.3.2 In FY 2025 and FY 2026(July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2026) employees who received a
standard/average or better evaluation in their May 31% evaluations will receive a two percent
(2.0%) merit increase effective the first full pay period of the following fiscal year. Merit increases
will be calculated using the employee’s base salary as of the first pay period of the fiscal year in
which it will be applied. For instance, if an employee receives a standard or better evaluation on
his or her May 31, 2024 evaluation, he or she will receive a two percent (2.0%) merit increase
which will be applied to his or her pay effective the first full pay period following July 1, 2024,
and the increase will be calculated on his or her base rate of pay effective July 1, 2024. An
employee who receives a below standard/average evaluation will receive no merit increase in the
following fiscal year. An employee’s evaluation is not subject to grievance under this Agreement.
The merit benefit expires June 30, 2026, unless extended in writing by the parties.

10.3.3 A merit increase received by an employee impacts an employee’s hourly rate for the
contract year in question, but the increase does not impact that employee’s base hourly rate

reflected on the District’s salary schedule, i.e., merit is not compounding from year to year.

D. Compensation Administration — Probationary Period

10.4.1 The General Manager or his/her Designee shall be responsible for compensation
administration in accordance with the provisions of this Article. Employees defined in Appendix
B hereto shall have a one (1) year probationary period. During the first six (6) months of
employment, probationary employees shall be paid eighty percent (80%) of the appropriate rate.
The next six (6) months of employment, probationary employees shall be paid ninety percent
(90%) of the appropriate rate. After one (1) year, employees shall be paid one hundred percent
(100%) of the appropriate rate. Employees promoted to a higher classification may be placed upon
promotional probation at the sole discretion of the General Manager for a period not to exceed six
months. This probationary period may be extended for an additional three months in the sole
discretion of the General Manager. In the event other employee fails to meet the requirements of
the promotional probation including any extension, the employee shall voluntarily demote to their
former position if otherwise remains qualified for the position. If not qualified or does not
voluntarily demote the employee will be terminated for failing the promotional probationary
period. The employee filling the former position will voluntarily demote to his/her former position

14

KGID 2022-2024



if otherwise remains qualified for the position or may be terminated if the employee is in his/her
initial hire one (1) year probationary period.

E. Base Pav Rate Upon Initial Appointment

10.5.1 Upon initial appointment, the entry rate will be the minimum rate for the class of the position
involved. In exceptional cases where an applicant for a position may have qualifications distinctly
above and beyond the minimum qualification requirements for the class, or in cases where
recruiting efforts have failed to fill a position at the minimum rate, the General Manager or his/her
Designee may authorize entrance at a rate above the minimum rate. In cases of inability to recruit
at the minimum rate, any current employee in positions of the same class whose rates are below
the rate established as entrance rate shall have their pay adjusted to the rate at which the position
was finally filled.

F. Compensation for “In Charge” Assicnments

10.6.1 A Grade II or higher Water Operator who is assigned in charge of another employee and/or
the water system during regular working hours shall be paid a five percent (5%) premium when so
assigned in place of the Operations Superintendent starting with the fifth (5™) hour of such
assignment unless the Operations Superintendent is on a scheduled leave at which time the
premium would begin with the first hour.

A Grade II or higher Water Operator who is assigned in charge of the water system and/or other
employees outside of regular work hours shall be paid a ten percent (10%) premium when not on
standby and a five percent (5%) premium when on standby. If this employee is in charge over two
weeks continuously, this rate will increase to ten percent

(10%). An employee will return to his/her former rate of pay when the "in charge" assignment
terminates.

G. Selection for “In Charge” Assigcnments

10.7.1 The selection of an employee to be in charge in the absence of the Operations Supervisor
shall be made as follows:

a. Step One — The Operations Superintendent will post a notice for one (1) week seeking

applicants who wish to be considered for in-charge duty in the absence of the Operation’s
Superintendent. The posting shall include the duties which could be covered, such as monitoring,

15

KGID 2022-2024



and directing other employees in the performance of their duties, and making decisions regarding
emergency work to be performed.

b. Step Two — Any Grade II or above qualified employee wishing to apply will submit
their name for consideration.

c. Step Three — The District shall select the employee through a selection process and
notify the employee within one (1) week.

10.7.2 The in-charge selection process will take place once every six (6) months, with the selected
person(s) to serve as needed during the following six (6) month  period.

H. “Lead” Assicnments

“Lead” assignments for Street Maintenance Specialist are defined as any employee providing
direct oversight of one (1) or more co-workers. Any employee assigned as “lead” shall receive
ten percent (10%) compensation above base pay. All “lead” assignments shall be paid for all hours

16

KGID 2022-2024



worked in increments of one-half (}4) hour when so assigned, with a minimum of one (1) hour
“lead” compensation per assignment.

I. Special Skills Pav

10.8.1 Each employee will receive additional compensation, from presentation of proof to the
District, for the duration of this contract, as long as the employee maintains the special skill, for
the following additional skills:

One percent (1%) additional compensation per skill:
a. Backflow Tester certification only

Two and one-half percent (2.5%) additional compensation per skill:

a. Commercial Driver’s License, either Class A or B

b. Cross Connect/Backflow Tester Certification and Specialist Certification

c. Passing a course in Telemetry systems satisfactory to the District General Manager

d. Grade III Water Treatment Certificate. Individual 2.5% incentives for Grade III Water
Treatment Certificate and Grade III Water Distribution Certificate ceases when required for the
Water Treatment/Distribution Operator III job description.

e. Grade III Water Distribution Certificate. Individual 2.5% incentives for Grade 111 Water
Treatment Certificate and Grade III Water Distribution Certificate ceases when required for the
Water Treatment/Distribution Operator 111 job description.

f. Building/construction inspection Certificate

g. GIS Certificate. Successful completion of GIS 109 & 205 from Western Nevada College
or equivalent as determined by the District satisfies special skills requirement.

h. Promotion to Grade III Operator results in increase of 12.5% of base pay.

Grade II1 treatment and Grade I1I distribution certification must be achieved before more than
four of the above additional compensation skills will be paid.

One percent (1%) additional compensation per skill for employees currently holding the
following additional skills:

a. Nevada Department of Health Grade II Water Treatment Certificate

b. Nevada Department of Health Grade II Water Distribution Certificate

ARTICLE 11 - ALLOWANCES AND REIMBURSEMENT

A. Uniform Allowance

11.1.1 Any employee who is required by virtue of the duty of employment, or by request of his’her
supervisor, to wear a uniform designated by the District, and which is not furnished by the District,
shall be paid a uniform allowance in addition to other compensation. The uniform allowance for
such employees in the District shall be at the rate of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per year paid
semiannually with the final payroll during the month of December and the month of June each

17

KGID 2022-2024



fiscal year. This uniform allowance shall cover the full cost of original purchase, replacement,
and upkeep of said uniform during the time of employment with the District.

11.1.2 In lieu of the uniform allowance provided for in this Article, the District may elect to
furnish either directly or through contract facilities the required uniform, replacement, and upkeep
services.

11.1.3 Upon termination from District employment, the supervisor, at his discretion, may require
the employee to return to the District any uniform or parts thereof in his/her possession at the time
of termination.

11.1.4 Any employee showing up for work in a dirty, damaged or unserviceable uniform as
determined by the General Manager or designee may be immediately relieved from work without
pay until the employee returns to work with a clean, undamaged, or serviceable uniform.
Employees so relieved shall return to work within one (1) hour unless allowed a greater amount
of time. Repeated instances shall be a basis for additional disciplinary action.

B. Tools

11.2.1 The District shall provide the necessary tools and equipment required for the routine
performance of job duties.

C. Mileage

11.3.1 Any employee required to use their personal vehicle for official business shall be
reimbursed a mileage allowance at the U.S. Internal Revenue Service rate per mile in effect during

18

KGID 2022-2024



the life of this contract. Use of their personal vehicle must be approved in advance by the
employee’s supervisor.

ARTICLE 12 - HOLIDAYS

A. Observance

12.1.1 Every employee shall be entitled to a day off from work on the following holidays during
each year:

New Year’s Day (January 1)
Martin Luther King’s Day (Third Monday in January)
President’s Day (Third Monday in February)
Memorial Day (Last Monday in May)
Juneteenth (June 19)
Independence Day (July 4)
Labor Day (First Monday in September)
Nevada Day (October 31 or the state declared day)
Veteran’s Day (November 11)
j- Thanksgiving Day (Forth Thursday in November)
k. Family Day (Day after Thanksgiving)
1. Christmas Day (December 25)
m. And upon any other day that may be declared a holiday by the General Manager,
the State Legislature, the President of the United States or District Board of Trustees.

T FR SR T

12.1.2 To be eligible for holiday pay, an employee must be on the active payroll of the District
and must have worked his/her full regularly scheduled workday before and after the holiday, unless
excused by the District.

12.1.3 For employees regularly scheduled a Monday-Friday workweek, whenever one of these
holidays falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday will be observed as the holiday. Should it fall
on a Sunday, the following Monday will be the holiday.

B. Holidav Payvy

12.2.1 Pay for a holiday worked will be added to the payroll for the period within which the
holiday falls.

C. Holiday Bonus Leave

12.3.1 An employee may choose to receive compensatory time off in lieu of holiday overtime pay
for any holiday worked.

12.3.2 The compensatory time off will be accumulated at one and one-half (1.5) times the number
of hours worked for each hour or major fraction worked.

19

KGID 2022-2024



12.3.3 All compensatory time off must be used within six (6) months of the date earned.

ARTICLE 13 — VACATIONS

13.1.1 Regular full-time employees shall commence to accrue annual vacation at the start of the
first pay period occurring after thirty (30) days of employment. The earned vacation for all regular
full-time employees shall be based on years of service as a regular full-time employee with the
District, and shall be as follows:

Years of Continuous Service Vacation Days Earned Monthly
Less than three years .83- 10 days yearly
Three years, less than ten years 1.25- 15 days yearly
Ten years, less than twenty years 1.66- 20 days yearly
Twenty years or more 2.08- 25 days yearly

13.1.2 Vacation time off shall accrue for each pay period. The accrual shall be prorated based on
hours worked divided by hours available within pay period when the employee has any unpaid
leave for the pay period.

13.1.3 Vacation shall be reported and charged in one-quarter (1/4) hour increments for vacation
taken.

13.1.4 Holidays, as enumerated in this Agreement, occurring within the vacation period will not
be counted as vacation days.

13.1.5 Sick leave will not be granted in lieu of vacation time.

13.1.6 When vacations may be taken shall be determined in advance by the employee’s
supervisor, after considering the needs of the District and the wishes and seniority of the employee.

13.1.7 Regular full-time employees who have completed their initial probationary period who
leave the employment of the District for any reason other than dishonesty against the District shall

20

KGID 2022-2024



be compensated for earned vacation benefits accrued at the time of such departure from the
District’s employment.

13.1.8 An employee’s “vacation accrual” shall be unused vacation, limited to the maximum
vacation he/she can earn in a two (2) year period.

ARTICLE 14 — LEAVE OF ABSENCE

14.1.1 Except as provided in Article 4, paragraphs 4.2.3 and 4.2.4 leave of absence without pay
may only be granted if recommended by the supervisor and subsequently approved by the General
Manager. Ifthe leave of absence is not approved by the General Manager, there shall be no appeal.

ARTICLE 15 — SICK LEAVE

A. Accrual

15.1.1 All employees shall be entitled to accrue sick leave at the start of the first pay period
occurring after thirty (30) days of employment without limitation at the following rates:
15.1.2 Four (4) hours per pay period, twelve (12) days per year.

15.1.3 Sick leave shall accrue for each pay period. The accrual shall be prorated based on hours
worked divided by hours available within pay period when the employee has any unpaid

leave for the pay period.

B. Buv Back

15.2.1 On the first regular pay day of each calendar year the District will buy back at fifty percent
(50%) of the employee’s straight time hourly rate of pay for all accrued sick leave in excess of
sixty days (480 hours).

15.2.2 Bonus Sick Leave: Any employee’s sick leave in excess of the maximum accrual of four
hundred and eighty (480) hours of regular sick leave shall have an option, which must be stated in
writing prior to the first regular payday of each calendar year, the ability to have those additional
hours or any portion (in increments of one-quarter (1/4) hour) credited to bonus sick leave. Bonus
sick leave shall have a maximum accrual of four hundred and eighty (480) hours. Pursuant to
Section 15.5.6. bonus sick leave shall be compensated at twenty five percent (25%) of the
employee’s straight time hourly rate. Paid sick leave of sixteen (16) hours or less shall be charged
to the employee’s regular sick leave account. Paid sick leave of more than sixteen (16) hours shall
be charged to the employee’s bonus sick leave account.

C. Definition

15.3.1 Sick leave shall be an absence from work by reason of medical appointments, illness,
injury, or death. Sick leave may be granted only for medical appointments, illness or injury of the

21

KGID 2022-2024



employee, or illness, injury or death of any relative within the third degree of consanguinity or
affinity (consanguinity is defined as kinship to include blood relationship, whereas affinity is the
connection existing in consequence of marriage), i.¢., spouse, parent, child, grandparent, brother,
or sister, or grandchild, adopted child and stepchild.

15.3.2 In the event of a death in the family as defined above, an employee shall be granted
consecutive days off with pay to attend the funeral or services. If attending services within 100
miles of employee’s home, up to three (3) days may be taken as Bereavement Leave and shall not
be deducted from the employee’s sick leave. If attending services out-of-town beyond 100 miles,
up to five (5) days may be taken with the understanding that the additional two (2) days will be
charged to sick leave. Vacation leave or compensatory leave shall be used for time off in excess
of five (5) days.

D. How Charged

15.4.1 Sick leave shall be reported and charged in one-quarter (1/4) hour increments or sick leave
taken. Holidays occurring during sick leave periods shall not be counted as sick leave. Sick leave
taken during a weekly pay period shall be charged after sick leave earned during that pay period
is credited.

15.4.2 If an employee does not have adequate accrued sick leave time, the employee may utilize
either accrued vacation time or accrued compensatory time off in lieu thereof. The choice is the
employee’s in each case of such use.

15.4.3 Whenever possible, an employee shall notify the District in writing of their intention of
being absent due to illness, injury or other authorized reason.

15.4.4 The General Manager may require the employee to provide a written doctor’s statement
when the employee is off work for three (3) or more days, or in the event the District has cause to
believe the employee is abusing his leave.

15.4.5 The General Manager will require the employee to provide a written doctor’s statement
which confirms with any and all HIPAA requirements when the employee is required to be off
work due to injury, illness or disability. Such documentation will include a statement that the
illness or condition prevents the employee from completing his or her essential job functions (For
instance, a statement that the condition and/or illness prevents the employee from returning to
work), a prognosis for recovery (i.e., the expected duration of the iliness or condition), and any
work limitations that result from the employee’s illness or condition (i.e., employee should be
placed on light / desk duty because he/she is unable to stand for more than five minutes at a time),
or a recommendation for any accommodation which would allow the employee to complete the
essential functions of his or her job. Prior to the employee returning to work, a doctor’s written
statement will be required releasing the employee back to work and shall include any required
limitations.

15.4.6 Additional documentation may be required of the employee, depending on the seriousness
of the disability at the District’s expense. Such documentation will include a statement of the

22

KGID 2022-2024



general impact of the illness and/or condition, a prognosis for recovery, and any work limitations.
The District shall have the authority to seek a second opinion from an independent doctor at the
District’s expense.

15.4.6 Upon termination of employment, an employee who has completed five (5) years of service
to the District shall be compensated for accrued sick leave at the rate of fifty percent (50%) of the
employee’s straight time hourly rate of pay. Bonus sick leave shall be compensated in accordance
with 15.2.2.

E. Worker’s Compensation Deduction

15.4.7 When an employee receives either Employer’s Insurance Company of Nevada (EICN) or
the District’s designated administrator, compensation for lost wages, the employee’s accrued sick
leave will be charged only for that percent of each day’s pay which is not compensated by the
Employer’s Insurance Company of Nevada (EICN) or the District’s designated administrator. The
District will pay that portion of the employee’s salary which together with the Employer’s
Insurance Company of Nevada (EICN) or the District’s designated administrator payment, equals
total salary, until accrued sick leave is exhausted.

ARTICLE 16 — SICK LEAVE MATERNITY

16.1.1 An employee is entitled to use accrued sick leave for maternity regardless of the type of
delivery or results of pregnancy if the provisions specified in the following paragraphs, inclusive,
are fully complied with.

16.1.2 If, after exhausting her accumulated sick leave, an employee requires additional time off
from work, accumulated vacation shall be granted. If additional time is required, leave without
pay may be granted by the District if it is considered to be justifiable.

16.1.3 Sick leave for maternity may be taken for six (6) weeks or until released by a physician to
return to work. The decision as to when such leave begins or ends shall be made by the employee
with the approval of the supervisor, accompanied by the approval of the employee’s personal
physician or physician designated by the supervisor.

16.1.4 Sick leave for maternity shall not be used for infant care or for the conditions of pregnancy
which do not incapacitate the employee for duty.

16.1.5 Pregnancy shall not jeopardize an employee’s job or seniority except for time spent on
leave without pay. She shall be responsible for reporting the pregnancy as soon as it is an

23

KGID 2022-2024



established fact so that steps may be taken to protect the employee’s health or modify her working
conditions and in order that the necessary staffing adjustments may be planned.

16.1.6 The failure to report for assignment at the expiration of a maternity leave shall be
considered as a resignation.

16.1.7 In every case, an employee shall submit a written report from her physician to the
supervisor as to the anticipated dates of absence and a second report stating that she is physically
able to return to work as of a given date.

16.1.8 This Article shall be automatically amended to conform to Federal guidelines to the extent
such guidelines now or in the future exceed these benefits, to include but not limited to the Family
Medical Leave Act.

ARTICLE 17 — JURY DUTY

17.1.1 Any employee required by legal process to serve on any jury shall receive his/her regular
salary for a period of twenty (20) working days as though he/she were actually on the job during
this time, provided that he/she remits such jury fees to the District.

17.1.2 Any employee appearing on jury duty during scheduled days off shall retain any juror fees,
but will not receive regular salary.

17.1.3 Any employee working other than a day shift appearing for jury service shall have the jury
service time counted as time worked on that workday.

17.1.4 Employees receiving summons for jury service shall immediately notify their supervisor
to make the necessary scheduling changes.

17.1.5 Ifthe employee is not selected for jury service or is released eatly, he/she shall report back
to his/her department to resume work for the remainder of the day shift.

ARTICLE 18 - MILITARY LEAVE

18.1.1 Any employee who is an active member of the National Guard or any reserve component
of the United States Armed Forces shall be relieved from his/her duties, upon request, to serve

24

KGID 2022-2024



under orders on training duty without loss of his/her regular compensation for a period not to
exceed fifteen (15) working days in any one (1) calendar year.

18.1.2 Any such absence shall not be deducted from the employee’s accrued vacation.

ARTICLE 19 - HEALTH AND WELFARE

A. Coverage Provided

19.1.1 During the term of this Agreement the District will provide Health and Welfare Benefits
for regular employees and each employee’s eligible dependents, at the same level of benefits as
are currently provided.

19.1.2 The District shall reimburse each regular employee up to One Hundred Dollars ($100.00)
per fiscal year that this Agreement is in effect, for eye examinations and glasses when such benefits

are not provided under the group medical plan.

B. Eligibility

19.2.1 During the term of this Agreement regular employees of the District shall be eligible for
Health and Welfare coverage.

19.2.2 Dependents of a regular employee shall be eligible for Health and Welfare coverage
provided by the District.

19.2.3 Health and Welfare coverage for regular employees of the District and their dependents
shall commence in accordance with the plan chosen by the employee.

C. KGID Health and Welfare Contributions - Local 39 Health & Welfare Fund

19.3.1 The Employer agrees to contribute into the Stationary Engineers Local 39 Health and
Welfare Trust Fund, at its respective office in San Francisco, California, or such other designated
place of payment as the Trustees of said Trust Fund may determine, the below listed amounts, per
month, for each eligible employee as defined by this Agreement, for the purpose of providing such
employee and his/her dependents with group life insurance, hospitalization, prescription drug,
medical, vision, and dental benefits as are now in effect, or as may hereafter be specified by the
Trustees of said Trust Fund. The Employer further agrees to accept, assume and be bound by all
of the obligations imposed upon Individual Employers by that certain Trust Agreement referred to
for convenience as the "Stationary Engineers Local 39 Health and Welfare Trust Agreement" as
said Trust Agreement may now exist or may hereafter be amended (a copy of which has been
delivered to the Employer and receipt of which is expressly acknowledged) and further agrees to
be bound by any amendments, modifications, changes or mergers with respect to said Trust
Agreement made by the parties thereto. Effective January 1, 2019, the monthly contribution shall

25

KGID 2022-2024



be the amount of Two Thousand One Hundred Thirty One and No/100 Dollars ($2,131.00) plus
$25.00 per month.

The above contributions shall be made on or before the tenth (10th) day of each month, for each
employee employed for a period of not less than eighty (80) hours during the preceding calendar
month.

The undersigned further agrees that he or it does irrevocably designate and appoint the Employers
mentioned in said Health and Welfare Trust as his or its attorneys-in-fact for the selection, removal
and substitution of trustees, as provided for in said Trust Agreements and as may be hereinafter
provided by or pursuant to said Trust Agreements.

In the event that the Trustees of the Stationary Engineers Local 39 Health & Welfare Trust
determine that the current contribution amount or the amount referred to in this Agreement is
insufficient to provide the benefits then in effect, the Employer herein agrees to pay such further
amount as may be necessary in the decision of the Trustees to maintain the then current level of
benefits for the life of the Agreement as determined by the Board of Trustees.

In the event the individual Employer herein fails to pay the amounts of Trust Fund contributions
due and owing for the period in which they are due and owing, the individual Employer shall pay,
in addition to the amounts due as contributions, such additional liquidated damages and/or
attorney's fees as are set forth in the Trust Agreement to which the individual Employer is bound.

In the event of accident, illness, or layoff of any employee with ninety (90) days or more of

employment, the Employer will continue the monthly payments for the employee and his
dependents for a period not to exceed three (3) months.

D. State of Nevada and Local 39 Health and Welfare Fund

19.3.2 For the term of this Agreement the District will contribute one hundred percent (100%) of
the premiums required to maintain Health and Welfare benefits in effect for eligible employees
and their eligible dependents.

19.3.3 It is specified during the term of this Agreement that the employee has the choice of health
and welfare coverage through the Local 39 1.U.O.E. H&W plan or the State of Nevada H&W
P.P.O. or HMO plans.

ARTICLE 20 - RETIREMENT PLAN

A. All employees covered by this agreement shall participate in the Public Employees Retirement
System (“PERS”) of the State of Nevada in accordance with the rules of that system as set
forth in NRS Chapter 286.

26

KGID 2022-2024



=

The District agrees that it will contribute, for each employee covered by this agreement, to the
PERS for the term of this agreement the PERS contribution rate paid as of July 1,
2018. Increases in the contribution rate, above the rate in effect on July 1, 2018, which are
mandated by the Nevada Legislature shall be paid for by the party or parties designated in such
action.

e

If the Nevada Legislature fails to designate whether the District or the employee is to pay for
the increase in the PERS contribution rate, increases above the rate in effect on July 1, 2018,
the District and the employee shall each pay one half (1/2) of the increased
contribution. Payment of the employee’s portion of the PERS contribution increase shall be
made in lieu of equivalent basic salary increase or cost of living increases, or both, in
accordance with NRS Chapter 286.

=

If the Nevada Legislature reduces the PERS contribution rate and fails to designate the
distribution of the decreased rates, if any, decreases in the contribution rate shall be equally
shared and shall be credited by increasing the pay schedule by an amount equal to one half
(1/2) the prescribed reduction, up to a reduction that renders the PERS contribution rate
equivalent to the July 1, 2018 PERS contribution rate. Any decrease below the July 1, 2018
contribution rate will credited to the District.

|

The PERS contribution rate as of July 1, 2018, is twenty-eight percent (28%).

F. The following benefit is grandfathered and applicable to all employees employed by the
District prior to January 1, 2019:

Effective July 1, 1995, at the end of each calendar month for the duration of this agreement, the
District will contribute a total of fifteen and two tenths percent (15.2%) of regular pay to the
combination of a SEP-IRA account and the Nevada PERS system for each bargaining unit
employee who has completed the SEP-IRA qualification period.
ARTICLE 21 — PROTECTIVE GEAR AND EQUIPMENT

21.1.1 When it is determined by the District that specific protective devices, wearing apparel, and
other equipment necessary to protect an employee from injury or exposure are reasonable and
prudent, the District shall furnish such devices, apparel and/or equipment, which may include, but
shall not be limited to, coveralls, safety boots, safety glasses and rain gear.

21.1.2 In lieu of furnishing the specified items of safety boots and safety glasses, the District may
elect to reimburse covered employees up to Four Hundred Dollars ($400.00) per year for purchase
of safety rated boots and safety glasses as governed by the replacement provisions below. In order
to be eligible for reimbursements as provided in this paragraph, the employee must submit proof
of purchase with his/her claim.

21.1.3 When replacement of any item provided pursuant to this Section is required due to normal
wear, such replacement shall be at the District’s expense. When replacement of any item is

27

KGID 2022-2024



required as a result of an employee’s negligence or misconduct, such replacement shall be at the
employee’s expense.

ARTICLE 22 — CAREER DEVELOPMENT

22.1.1 Anemployee will be reimbursed for educational training courses pursuant to the following
conditions:

a. The training must be directly related to the required skill or education for the
employee’s current position, not reimbursement merely for promotion preparation, and must be
approved in advance by the General Manager.

b. Only aregular full-time employee who has been so employed for at least one (1) year
will be eligible for reimbursement.

¢. Reimbursement will not occur for any portion of the cost assumed by any other source.

d. Reimbursement expenses shall be restricted to tuition, course fees, and required
textbooks.

e. A course must be taken from a recognized and accredited school.

f. Presentation of evidence of a passing grade.

22.1.2 While courses should normally be taken on the employee’s own time, exception may be
granted by his/her supervisor, in which case hours away from work must be deducted from earned
vacation, compensatory time, or be recorded as an unpaid leave of absence.

ARTICLE 23 - LAYOFF AND RECALL

A. Layoff

23.1.1 Layoff of employee(s) covered by this contract shall be by seniority and qualifications. All
regular part-time and probationary employees must be laid off before any regular full-time

28

KGID 2022-2024



employee is laid off. The District will provide the Union with a list of employees to be laid off at
least thirty (30) working days prior to the effective date of any layoff.

23.1.2 The District and the Union agree to meet to discuss alternatives to any layoff. Such
alternatives include reduced workweek, leave of absence, voluntary layoff, and/or other issues,
which may minimize mandatory layoffs.

B. Recall
23.2.1 The District shall maintain a list of all employees affected by layoffs. An employee who
has been placed in layoff status shall be given priority based on seniority and ability to perform

the job when a vacancy occurs. If the employee refuses an offer of re-employment, the employee
shall be removed from the list.

ARTICLE 24 — SAVINGS CLAUSE

24.1.1 In the event that any provision of this Agreement is or shall be rendered invalid by
applicable legislation or be declared invalid by any court or regulatory agency of competent
jurisdiction, such action shall only invalidate that provision of the Agreement.

24.1.2 Ttisthe express intention of the District and the Union that all other provisions not rendered

invalid shall remain in full force and effect, and that the parties shall enter into negotiations to
bring the invalid section or sections into compliance.

ARTICLE 25 — SCOPE, EFFECTIVE DATE AND DURATION

A. Scope

25.1.1 This Agreement sets forth the full and entire understanding of the parties regarding rates
of pay, hours of work, and other conditions of employment.

B. Effective Date and Duration

25.2.1 This Agreement shall be in full force and effect July 1, 2024, and shall continue in force
until June 30, 2026.

29

KGID 2022-2024



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District and the Union have caused these presents to be duly

executed by their authorized representatives, this day of 2024.
Bart Florence, Business Manager Natalie Yanish, Chairman

1.U.O.E. Local 39, AFL-CIO Board of Trustees, Kingsbury GID
Jeff Gladieux, President Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager
I.U.O.E. Local 39, AFL-CIO Kingsbury GID

Brandy Johnson, Director of Public Employees
L.U.O.E. Local 39, AFL-CIO

Scott Lupo, Business Representative
1.U.O.E. Local 39, AFL-CIO

Joe Esenarro, Steward
Member/Negotiator

30

KGID 2022-2024



APPENDIX A

KINGSBURY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
PAYROLL DEDUCTION AUTHORIZATION

I, the undersigned, being a member of the International Union of Operating Engineers, Stationary
Local 39, and required by the Constitution and Bylaws of that organization to contribute dues, per
capita and assessments in a specified amount, hereby authorize the compensation, in conformity
with the agreement between the Parties, and effective the first pay period following the date hereof.

31

KGID 2022-2024



It is further directed that the Kingsbury General Improvement District will then remit said monies
to the above organization in the manner prescribed.

NAME (PRINT)

HOME TELEPHONE

STREET ADDRESS

CITY STATE VAl g

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER

WORK PHONE

CLASSIFICATION

WORKSITE

SIGNATURE

DATE SIGNED

APPENDIX B

APPENDIX C

Rates of Pay

32

KGID 2022-2024



4871-1575-0332, v. 1

KGID 2022-2024

33



APPENDIX C

Rates of Pay
1 July 2024 1 July 2025
CURRENT 2025 2026

3.5% 3.5%
Accountant I $32.61 $33.75 $34.93
Utility Billing Coordinator $29.24 $30.26 $31.32
Administrative Clerk/Secretary $24.44 $25.30 $26.19
Water Treatment/Distribution Operator $32.49 $33.63 $34.81
Water Treatment/Distribution Operator 111 $36.57 $37.85 $39.17
Street Maintenance Specialist $29.44 $30.47 $31.54
Operator in Training $22.67 $23.46 $24.28
Maintenance Technician I $24.43 $25.59 $26.49
Maintenance Technician II $25.74 $26.65 $27.58
Water Treatment/Distribution Lead Op. $39.44 $40.82 $42.25

During the first six (6) months of employment probationary employees shall be paid eighty percent (80%) of the
appropriate rate. The next six (6) months of employment probationary employees shall be paid ninety percent
(90%) of the appropriate rate. After one (1) year one hundred percent (100%) of the appropriate rate.






MEMO TO:  Kingsbury GID Board of Trustees
FROM: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager

SUBIJECT: General Manager’s Report for the meeting May 21, 2024

General:

In 2024, we experienced very few water line breaks this year. Still higher than industry norms but
much improved. We have made good progress on cleaning drains and getting stormwater system
cleaned up. Had to redo several drains due to sand being spread along Tramway by vendor.

Recruitments and still seeking a few qualified candidates. Getting the right people is increasingly our
goal. We experienced the well qualified Admin and Finance Analyst and lost him... our lack of mgmt
folks gets to be a challenge to cover, supervise, and get the variety of tasks done.

Consumer Confidence Report for CY2023 is attached.

In March, the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers increased 0.4 percent, seasonally
adjusted, and rose 3.5 percent over the last 12 months, up 3.8 percent over the year.

Programs:

Amount Bank Issuer Rate Maturity Date
$250,000 Zions Bank 5.20% 12/6/2024
$250,000 Cross River Bank 5.15% 12/9/2024
$250,000 BMO Bank 5.45% 4/11/2025
$250,000 Blueridge Bank 4.80% 6/30/2025
$250,000 Flagstar Bank 4.70% 7/17/2025
LGIP APR RATE 5.2852572

Board for Financing Water Projects

The Board for Financing Water Projects meeting was May 15.

The district has applications for two future waterline replacement projects, but these in the mid point on the
priority list. If we were interested in competing for these loans, we could likely push one into the funding zone
by next Winter. Our Market Street lift station renovation project is also close enough to push into the funding
zone, but we are still awaiting the revision to the gravity concept that could put 2/3 of sewage into a gravity
system with significantly reduces the scope of market street. The big factor on Market Street remains more
emergency storage (and the potential of catastrophic failure of the pressure main).

Building 160 Pine Ridge project is winding up. We have a couple extra items which the board
approved and getting prices for windows and exterior doors to the bays. The elevator completion is
only large item remaining. We are dealing with the normal warranty items common to new buildings.

The CMMS system implementation is going slow. Our gaps in personnel make investing the time to
learn to be more efficient challenging.



We have our grant team working on trying to bring in some funding for the SCADA project. This is a
project to modernize our SCADA on to one system (plant and distribution) and to implement SCADA
for WasteWater. This project should save water and energy (US EPA Grant) qualifying up to 50%
grant.

Customers:

We have 3 customers with pending claims for resolution of the snowplow striking the fire hydrant on Kimberly
Brook. Our insurance adjuster has pressed the issue, but the vendor and their insurance adjuster have not
moved in a positive direction for the homeowners.

Associations and outside meetings:
Attended the APWA luncheon and received good tips for training of the street crew.

Water Resources:
Not many words to describe the water year. Even the late season storm of May is mostly just normal.
350
a |

2300 CENTRAL Percent of Apr 1 Avg: 61%
250 Percent of Normal: 98%

200
150

100
50 R 61 V

0 — St == —

% April 1 Aver

-D_ec Jan Feb Mar Apr _PMay Jun Jul

Average 1982-1983 (max) — 2014-2015 (Min) = 2023-2024 {current)

Currently, the lake is at 6,228.5 — legal limit is 6229.1
I f--

Water Stored in Lake Tahoe (above rim) plus Snowpack %
Baseg on CDEC/UCLA SWE & USGS La!(e Levels (wishadgd 1981-2010 Normals) |

1000 1 - 1000
o _
E o0 bl inmand e | S ﬂ»:l’aximumjﬁim taval 800
é "
< 997 l w I - 600
S e —— prmnst s < Lake s-aim‘:]g-;\\\
2] e W2, | N
2 400 18 - 400
a
8
c 200 200

0
M A M J J A C P
Water Year 2023-2024 : N A

California Nevada Cimate Anphications Progran

- |



i3

1o Watse o avah

Future Work/In Progress/Concerns/Heads up
e Equipment shelter
Outreach event Open House for new facility, District 60th Anniversary
SCADA software replacement
Lead service line inventory
EPA Certification of the Risk and Resiliency Assessment






MEMO TO: Mitch Dion, General Manager

FROM: Judy Brewer, Administrative & Human Resource Supervisor

SUBJECT: Management Report activities of April 2024

Rental Property (298 Kingsbury)
« Miscellaneous repairs are needed to the building.
o Full occupancy
« Marque sign and landscape require repair
« landscaping clean up in progress now that Spring is here

General Information
e Reviewing platform and digital document process to fit organization information architecture
¢ Continuing to organize office post move, clearing out old files
e Document imaging project continues

Human Resources

e Continue to employ three temporary workers to assist as general labor for roads and general
support (They all have around 450 hours remaining)

e Street Maintenance Tech. scheduled to start end of month

e Water Utility Operator lll interviews continue

e Active recruitments for Water Crew, Utility Operations Superintendent, Admin. & Financial
Systems Analyst, Civil Engineer, Street Maintenance and Seasonal positions

e Working with customers that were affected by water damage from the hydrant hit by snow plow

e Assisting in providing information needed for labor negotiations

SERVICE REQUEST (APRIL 23 vs APRIL 24)

[ Apr-23 Apr-24

REQUEST REQUEST

CODE: COUNT: AMOUNT: CODE: COUNT: AMOUNT:
OFF/ON 2 150.00 OFF/ON 3 100.00
INSPECTION 1 0 INSPECTION 7 50.00
REREAD 1 0 REREAD 0 0
REPAIR 0 0 REPAIR 0 0
OFF 9 600.00 OFF 3 100.00
ESCROW 5 250.00 ESCROW 0 0
ON 3 100.00 ON 9 300.00
REMOVE 0 0 REMOVE 0 0
NEW 1 0 NEW 3 0
PROFILE 1 0 PROFILE 5 50.00
TAMPER 0 0 TAMPER 0 0
LEAK 1 100.00 LEAK 0 0
CHANGE 0] 0 CHANGE 12 0
ON CALL 2 100.00 ON CALL 1 100.00
TOTAL 25 1300.00 TOTAL 43 700.00




HOURS WORKED COMPARISON (APR. 2022-2023-2024)

APR. (2022-24)

2000 Hours Worked
1800
1600
1400
1200
1000

800

600

400

200

0 .
2022 2023 2024

(includes 3 temporary workers in 2024)

LIENS (APRIL 2024)

County Tax collection:

759 Boulder Court #Q  $91,990.84
495 Tramway Drive, #12 $90,732.00

Renewing process for County Tax collection:

313 Tramway Drive, #16 $84,809.42

Service Turned Off:

165 Irwin A&B S47,738.54 Turned off in 2016
302 Griffin Court $10,130.00 Turned off in 2021



PN
DOWL MEMORANDUM

TO: Mitchell S. Dion, General Manager, Kingsbury GID
FROM: Travis Marshall, PE, Project Engineer, DOWL
DATE: May 15, 2024

SUBJECT: Engineering Report for the Meeting of May 21, 2024

GENERAL

e Assisted with general service request items and general correspondence.

o DOWL prepared a draft task order for the MaryAnne and Barrett Watermain Replacement
Project, presented to the district for review and comment. This task order will be utilized
for FY25 budgeting and anticipated to be brought to the June 2024 Board Meeting for
award.

PROJECTS

Task Order #33: Tahoe Beach Club Management/Observation Services
o On-call construction observation will resume next summer.

Task Order #54: Sewer Master Plan
e DOWL fo explore gravity sewer alternatives to convey sewer from the upper 2/3 of the
district directly to the regional wastewater treatment facility.
e« DOWL continues to model the Hydraulic conditions of the alternatives to identify the
viability of each. Findings will be utilized to update and prepare the amended sections of
the Sewer Master Plan. DOWL will provide draft report revisions for review once complete.

Task Order #60: Survey Support for FY23 — FY 25 Water Main and Road Improvement Projects
e FY23: Andria and Barrett (West)
o Tasks complete for design.
e FY24: Tramway and Tina
o Tasks complete for design.
e FY25: Maryanne and Barrett
o Post processing and mapping underway. 7
o Processing for design will be completed prior to the design task order that is
anticipated June 2024.

Task Order #61; FY23 Water Main and Road Improvement Project
o DOWL has completed project closeout tasks with the contractor and anticipates the project
wrapping up this month.
e DOWL processed final payment documents, presented to Contractor for signature and
return to DOWL to close out Project.
e Contractor working to provide DOWL lien releases from paving sub-contractor.

Task Order #64: FY24 Water Main and Road Repair/Replacement Project:
e Project construction commenced the week of May 13%. Contractor is mobilizing onsite.
e Contractor to work on the Ponderosa MHP portion of the project before moving on to Tina
and Tramway.
e Materials were delivered to the district May 6 — 10™.

775-851-4788 » 5510 Longley Lane = Reno, Nevada 89511 = www.dowl.com



MEMORANDUM

¢ DOWL continues to coordinate with the Contractor to complete contractual
requirements, Federal Funding Requirements, and review material submittals.

Task Order #65 — Ponderosa MHP Waterline Replacement Project
e The project will remain combined with the FY24 Water Main Project as a single contract.
¢ Contractor anticipates full completion of the Ponderosa MHP prior to construction on other

project site.
Task Orders on Agenda
e None

Page 2 of 2



Kingsbury General Improvement District

Water System NV 0000004
Consumer Confidence Report — 2024
Covering Calendar Year — 2023

NN
£

KINGSBURY GID

The purpose of this notice is to provide our customers with
information about water quality during 2023. Included are
details about where your water comes from, what it contains,
and how it compares to U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) and State standards. Technical language in this report is
written to comply with regulatory requirements, yet we are
committed to providing you with useful information. It matters
to us that you are aware of our commitment and continuous
efforts to improve the water system and protect water quality
while delivering high quality services. To learn more, please visit
the website or any regularly scheduled meetings. For more
information, please contact us at 775-588-3548.

Where your water comes from:
Our water intake is 70 feet deep and nearly 700 feet off shore.

Source Water Type
Surface Water — Lake Tahoe

Source Name
LAKE TAHOE INTAKE STATION 1 RAW

We treat water with ozone and UV energy then add disinfectant
to protect you against microbial contaminants. The Safe Drinking
Water Act (SDWA) requires States to develop a Source Water
Assessment (SWA) for each public water supply that treats and
distributes raw source water in order to identify potential
contamination sources. Nevada has completed an assessment of
our source water. For results of the source water assessment,
please see our website.

Message from EPA

Some people may be more vulnerable to contaminants in
drinking water than the general population. Immuno-
compromised persons, such as those with cancer undergoing
chemotherapy, persons who have undergone organ transplants,
people with HIV/AIDS or other immune system disorders, some
elderly, and infants can be particularly at risk from infections.
These people should seek advice about drinking water from their
health care providers. EPA/CDC guidelines on appropriate means
to lessen the risk of infection by Cryptosporidium and other
microbial contaminants are available from the Safe Drinking
Water Hotline (800-426-4791).

Drinking water, including bottled water, may reasonably be
expected to contain at least small amounts of some
contaminants. The presence of contaminants does not
necessarily indicate that water poses a health risk. More
information about contaminants and potential health effects can
be obtained by calling the EPA.

EPA Safe Drinking Water Hotline (800-426-4791).

What your water contains:

The sources of drinking water (both tap water and bottled water)
included rivers, lakes, streams, ponds, reservoirs, springs, and
wells. As water travels over the surface of the land or through
the ground, it dissolves naturally occurring minerals and, in some
cases, radioactive material, and can pick up substances resulting
from the presence of animals or from human activity.

Contaminants that may be present in source water before we
treat it include:

Microbial contaminants, such as viruses and bacteria, may come
from sewage treatment plants, septic systems, agricultural
livestock operations and wildlife.

Inorganic contaminants, such as salts and metals, can be
naturally-occurring or result from urban storm water runoff,
industrial or domestic wastewater discharges, oil and gas
production, mining, or farming.

Pesticides and herbicides may come from a variety of sources
such as storm water run-off, agriculture, and residential users.

Radioactive contaminants, can be naturally occurring or the
result of mining activity

Organic contaminants, including synthetic and volatile organic
chemicals, which are by-products of industrial processes and
petroleum production, may also come from gas stations, urban
storm water run-off, and septic systems.

in order to ensure that tap water is safe to drink, EPA prescribes
regulation which limits the number of certain contaminants in
water provided by public water systems. We treat our water
according to EPA’s regulations. Food and Drug Administration
regulations establish limits for contaminants in bottled water,
which must provide the same protection for public health.

Our water system tested a minimum of 8 samples per month in
accordance with the Total Coliform Rule for microbiological
contaminants. Coliform bacteria are usually harmless, but their
presences in water can be an indication of disease-causing
bacteria. When coliform bacteria are found, special follow-up
tests are done to determine if harmful bacteria are present in the
water supply. If this limit is exceeded, the water supplier must
notify the public by newspaper, television, or radio.

Water Quality Data

How does it compare:



The following tables list all the drinking water contaminants that ~ The state requires monitoring for certain contaminants less than
were detected during the 2023 calendar year. The presence of once per year because the concentrations of these

these contaminants does not necessarily indicate that the water  contaminants are not expected to vary significantly from year to
poses a health risk. Unless noted, the data presented in the year. Therefore, some of the data, is more than one year old.
table is from testing completed January 1- December 31, 2022. The bottom line, water provided to you by Kingsbury GID is safe.

e ——— ——

Terms & Abbreviations

Maximum Contaminant Level Goal (MCLG): the “Goal” is the level of a contaminant in drinking water below which there is no known
or expected risk to human health. MCLG's allow for a margin of safety.

Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL): the “Maximum Allowed” MCL is the highest level of a contaminant that is allowed in drinking
water. MCL’s are set as close to the MCLG’s as feasible using the best available treatment technology.

Action Level (AL): the concentration of a contaminant that, if exceeded, triggers treatment or other requirements that a water system
must follow.

Treatment Technigue (TT): a treatment technique is a required process intended to reduce the level of a contaminant in drinking
water.

Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level (MRDL): the highest level of a disinfectant allowed in-drinking water. There is convincing
evidence that addition of a disinfectant is necessary for control of microbial contaminants.

Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goal [MRDLG): the level of a drinking water disinfectant below which there is no known or
expected risk to health. MRDLG's do not reflect the benefits of the use of disinfectants to control microbial contaminants.

Non-Detects (ND): laboratory analysis indicates that the constituent is not present or below detectable thresholds.

Parts per Million (ppm) or milligrams per liter (mg/1)
Parts per Billion {ppb) or micrograms per liter (ug/1)

Picocuries per Liter (pCi/L): picocuries per liter is a measure of the radioactivity in water.

Millirems per Year (mrem/yr): measure of radiation absorbed by the body.

Million Fibers per Liter (MFL): million fibers per liter is a measure of the presence of asbestos fibers that are longer than 10
micrometers.

Nephelometric Turbidity Unit (NTU): nephelometric turbidity unit is a measure of the clarity of water. Turbidity in excess of 5NTU is
just noticeable to the average person.

e - —— S e

e ——

Testing Results for KINGSBURY GID (NV 0000004)

Microbiological | Result | MCL | mcLG Typical Source
No Detected Results were Found in the Calendar Year of 2023
Disinfection By-Products Monitoring RAA Range Unit MCL MCLG Typical Source
Period
TOTAL HALOACETIC 2023 9.5 19-95 ppb 60 0 By-product of drinking water
ACIDS (HAAS) disinfection
TTHM 2023 25.0 7.7-25.0 ppb 80 0 By-product of drinking water
chlorination
Lead and Copper Date 90™ Percentile Unit AL Sies Typical Source 1
Over AL
COPPER, FREE 2020 - 2022 0.14 | 0.004-0.17 ppm 13 |o Corrosion of household plumbing
systems; Erosion of natural deposits;
B Leaching from wood preservatives.
LEAD 2020 - 2022 2 0-2 ppb 15 0 Corrosion of household plumbing
| systems; Erosion of natural deposits.




Regulated Contaminants Collection Highest Range Unit MCL MCLG Typical Source
Date Value

ARSENIC 09/26/2023 | .002 .002 ppm | 0.01 0 Erosion of natural deposits;
Runoff from orchards; Runoff

from glass and electronics
production wastes.

BARIUM 09/26/2023 | 0.012 0.012 ppm |2 2 Discharge of drilling wastes;
Discharge from metal refineries;
Erosion of natural deposits.

BROMATE 10/09/2023 | 6.1 0-6.1 ppb 10 1 By-product of drinking water
chlorination
Radionuclides Collection Highest Range Unit MCL MCLG Typical Source
Date Value

No Detected Results were Found in the Calendar Year of 2023

Secondary Contaminants Collection Date Highest Value Range Unit SMCL | MCLG
CHLORIDE 09/26/2023 3.5 3.5 MG/L 400
MAGNESIUM 09/26/2023 1.9 1.9 MG/L 150

PH 09/26/2023 7.38 7.38 PH Units 8.5

SODIUM 09/26/2023 7.2 7.2 MG/L 200

SULFATE 09/26/2023 3.2 3.2 MG/L 500 | 0
TDS 09/26/2023 72 72 MG/L 1000
TEMPERATURE 09/26/2023 24.0 24.0 C 0
{CENTIGRADE)

ZINC 09/26/2023 0.04 0.04 MG/L

Health Information About Water Quality

While your water meets the EPA's standard for Lead, if present at elevated levels this contaminant can cause serious health problems,
especially for pregnant women and young children. Lead in drinking water is primarily from materials and components associated
with service lines and home plumbing. Your Water System is responsible for providing high quality drinking water but cannot control
the variety of materials used in plumbing components. When your water has been sitting for several hours, you can minimize the
potential for lead exposure by flushing your tap for 30 seconds to 2 minutes before using water for drinking or cooking. If you are
concerned about lead in your drinking water, you may wish to have your water tested. Information on lead in drinking water, testing
methods, and steps you can take to minimize exposure is available from the Safe Drinking Water Hotline or at

http://www.epa.gov/safewater/lead.

Violations

Category Analyte Compliance Period

Type

No violations occurred in 2023

Clearly Special - Kingsbury GID serves Lake Tahoe on Tap:

Lake Tahoe is the source of our drinking water. Due to its size, clarity, and location on the crest of the Sierras, it is exceptional for
great drinking water. Water quality of the lake however is threatened by invasive species, algae, plastics, chemical contaminants,
forestry practices, and recreation. As a community we work together to protect and preserve its unparalleled environmental benefits
and safety for drinking water. Our ability to provide great tasting and high-quality water depends on everyone in the watershed being
responsible stewards. Kingsbury GID continues to be actively engaged in efforts to ensure our water quality remains excellent. The
district does not do it alone, water quality is the sum of all the incremental efforts by everyone. Providing the high quality, safety, and
reliability of Tahoe on tap is our priority. Please consider best practices for your home and property because what goes into the storm
drain will end up in our drinking water. Healthy forests and water smart landscapes work together protecting our soil, air, and water
for future generations. For additional information: https://www.kgid.org.







FEATURE

Nikki Holloway, Hunter Adams,
Carlos Anthony Espindola dr.;
and Keisuke lkehata

Found in freshwaterandosean
environments, microplastics mei Pesse
hazards throueh cliemicai transterds
they are matle of harmiul chemicals or
tiiey can adserh polutents.

\Vicroplastics pollttiensauUrces
include clothes WasSHlns Vasienaler
systens, biosolids tire andread
wear and atmoepheric particies that
affectwildlife @naiumarns.

Nanofiltration endieverse ostosis shiould
rmore chicctvelyremslamicieplastics than
nilcrofiiiration and Uit afiltration, eveniitiae
membranc Batrers ate also made or plasies.

Analvtical Mot PIogess on microplastics
Includes guantification (eaumeration and
maAss concentranoen), size chiaractetization,
=hd minimum threshelds for detecton (Size

and massh.

[ se Fef o (R 0 ek Gt el [l

A6 IOURKALAYS A HAY D623




@ FEATURE Microplastics and Water

—= lastics have embedded themselves in almost
| every aspect of our lives. In the 2]st century,
~ plastic products make up a majority of the
;S items manufactured in the world, and it is
estimated that the production of plastic products con-
sumes around 8% of the world’s petroleum supply, with
4% used for the actual product stock and the other 4%
used for energy during production.

Plastic pollution can occur in freshwater and ocean
environments. A study of Lake Michigan that analyzed
particles on the water surface found surface concen-
trations of around 17,000 particles/km?, or 1 particle
for every 630 square feet (Mason et al. 2016a). In a more
.populated area, it was reported that the average micro-
plastic abundance in California’s San Francisco Bay was
700,000 particles/km?, or 1 particle for every 15 square
feet (Sutton et al, 2016}, It was estimated in early 2017
that rivers transport an average of 1.1 to 2.4 million
metric tons of plastic waste into the oceans everyyear
(Lebreton et al. 2017).

The term microplasticwas first used by Ryan and
Moloney (1990) and later in a study by Thompson et al.
(2004). There is no consensus on the particle size of the

Microplastics Classifications

« PET + Sphere
» HDPE « Fragment
| = LOPE + Fiber
* PVC ¢ Film
« PP + Fopam
e PS s Pellet
| s Other ¢ Ambiguous
(e.g., acrylic,
polycarbonate,
nylon, PTFE)

HDPE—high density polyethylene, LDPE—low density polyethylene, PET~polyethylene
terephthalate, PP—polypropylene, PS—polystyrene, PTFE—polytetrafiuorcethylene, PVC—

polyvinyl chioride

Figure 1

38 JOURNAL AWWA « MAY 2024

Macroplastic

plastic category, and there can be several orders of mag-
nitude difference between studies. However, the Joint
Group of Experts on the Scientific Aspects of Marine
Environmental Protection (GESAMP) defined the fol-
Jowing size ranges (GESAMP 2015):
® 5,000 pum (macroplastics)
* 5,000-1,000 pm (mesoplastics)
® 1,000-0.1 pm (microplastics)
» <0.1 um (nanoplastics)
Particles that have a largest dimension less than
~  orequalto5mm are considered microplastics by the
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration,
the GESAMP, and the United Nations Environmental

Program. This upper limit was
set according to the filter sizes
available to researchers or to
distinctions in animal digestion
ability. Figure 1 shows classifica-
tions of microplastics based on
the materials, shapes, and sizes.

Microplastic Many studies have investigat-
«0.1-1.0 ed the health effects of micro-
» 1-20 plastics on wildlife, but few have
+ 20-50 been completed on humans, and
« 50100 microplastic toxicity is still poor-
» 100-200 !y underftood. Rather than caus-
« 300-1,000 mg physma'l harm to hux.nans,
. microplastics are more likely to
Mesoplastic cause harm through chemical

« 1,000-5,000 transfer if they are composed
of harmful chemicals or adsorb
pollutants. Smith et al. (2019)
reviewed the factors that affect
toxicity, including detection of
microplastics in stool samples,
inhalation of microplastics, bio-
accumulation, and dependence

on shape.

¢ >5,000



Types and Sources

Microplastics are broadly grouped as primary and sec-
ondary. Primary microplastics have been engineered to
be on the micro scale at a specific size and shape; these
include microbeads used in personal care products as
well as micropellets that are used in manufacturing
plastic items and as additives to paints and powder coat-
ings. These engineered microparticles can end up as
environmental pollution through mishandling, improper
management, or indiscriminate discarding.

Secondary microplastics occur from the physical or
chemical breakdown of macroplastics and larger prima-
ry microplastics. Tire and road wear release contribute
the largest amount of non-point-source microplastic pol-
lution, while textiles are the second largest contributor.

Microplastics are generally found in two shape cate-
gories: (1) fragments and spheres or (2) fibers. Primary
fragments or spheres are produced for cosmetics and
abrasives. Of these, the majority are composed of poly-
ethylene. Microplastic fibers can contain hazardous
chemicals if the textile manufacturing process includes
toxic additives. For example, some dyes are known
carcinogens, while per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances
(PFAS) used as oil and stain repellants can persist and
acenmulate in wildlife. A study estimated that between
200 million and 800 million microfibers were discharged
into the Hudson River every day in June 2016, of which .
around 50% were most likely composed of plastic (Miller
et al. 2017).

Models for nutrient fate and transport can be used to
estimate environmental microplastic movement, but
unlike nutrients, not all particles end up in the oceans,
and some are retained becanse of settling. Sediment is
generally considered tobe a final sink for microplastics
(Nizzetto et al. 2016).

Wastewater Treatment Plants

A general point source for microplastics is effluent from
centralized wastewater collection systems, which can be
discharged directly into an adjacent water body or sent
to a wastewater treatment plant. The microplastics
found in centralized wastewater systems include
microbeads from personal care products, fibers found in
household dust, and fibers released during clothes wash-
ing (Siegfried et al. 2017). The majority of microplastics
entering a wastéwater treatment facility come from
domestic sewer systems, but through the general pri-
mary and secondary treatment processes, more than
90% of the initial microplastic concentration can be
removed before release (Bayo et al. 2020). It has been
estimated that typical microplastic removal rates range
from 80% to 95%, with some plants achieving up to 99%

removal (Kal&ikov4 et al. 2017, Mintenig et al. 2017).1t
was observed that the application of microfiltration
during wastewater treatment could achieve microplastic
removal efficiency up to 98% (Yahyanezhad et al. 2021).

Although most wastewater treatment facilities can
effectively remove microplastics, these facilities can still
be a major source of microplastics because of the sheer
volume of water they release. For example, a study of
eight San Francisco Bay wastewater treatment plants
found they discharged an average of 0.086 microplastic
particles per liter (or 0.33 particles per gallon) and seven
million microplastic particles per day (Sutton et al. 2016).
A different study of 17 wastewater treatment plants
found on average less than one particle per liter of efflu-
ent (Mason et al. 2016b).

A study by Talvitie et al. (2017) examined tertiary
treatment processes to further improve microplastic
removal. They examined four municipal wastewater
treatment plants that employed different treatment
techniques, including membrane bioreactor, disc filters,
rapid sand filters, and dissolved air flotation. These
treatment techniques were effective; in order ofin-
creasing microplastic removal, dissolved air flotation
removed 95.0%, rapid sand filtration removed 97.1%,
disc filters removed 98.5%, and membrane bioreactors
removed 99.9%.

Many studies have investigated the
health effects of microplastics on
wildlife, but few have been completed
on humans, and microplastic toxicity
i is still poorly understood.

Water Treatment Plants
Microplastics are effectively removed by coagulation, floc-
culation, sedimentation, and filtration during conventional
drinking water treatment (Naet el. 2021), and Zhanget al.
(2019) reported relatively low concentrations were detected
in tap water (<2 particles/liter). Smith et al. (2019) noted that
treatability studies are needed regarding removal tech-
niques for microplastics in drinking water treatment plants,
but it has been demonstrated that microplastics >300 pm
would be removed through conventional filtration.

Systems with high concentrations of microplastics in
their influent may require increased coagulant dosages
(Shen et al. 2020). Some coagulant and flocculant aids are

JOURNAL AWWA » MAY 2024 39



* FEATURE Microptastics and Water

WORLD HEALTH ORGANIZATION STATEMENT
ON WATER TREATMENT PRIORITIES AND
MICROPLASTICS

{n 2019, the World Health Organization (WHO) stated
as follows (2019}

Routine monitoring of microplastics in drinking-water is
not recommended at this time, as there is no evidence
to indicate 2 human health concern. Concerns over
microplastics in drinking-water should not divert
resources of water suppliers and regulators from other
important issues, including the removal of microbial
pathogens, which remains the most significant risk

to human health from drinking water. Water suppliers
should establish water safety plans and ehsure

that control measures, including water treatment
processes, are optimized for particle removal, and
microbial safety, which will incidentally improve the
removal of microplastic particles.

organic polymers, so they could increase the concentra-
tion of microplastics detected downstream (Alspach &
Spinelli 2020). Ateia et al. (2020) found that microplastics
can release dissolved organic carbon and bromide that
can then act as disinfection byproduct precursors.

Tt is believed that nanofiltration and reverse osmo-
sis should more effectively remove microplastics than
microporeus microfiltration and ultrafiltration systems.
However, these membrane barriers are also composed
of plastics, and their contribution (if any) to the effiu-
ent plastic load is not known. Various factors such as
mechanical stress, aging, and wear are potential sourc-
es of releasing microplastics from organic membranes
(Ding et al. 2021). The process of membrane backwashing
commonly uses cleaning agents (i.e., sodium hydroxide,
hydrogen peroxide) that can canse membrane embrittle-
ment and degradation.

Improving Analysis

Analytical methods are by far the most substantive area
of microplastics research and development at present,
and reliable analytical methads are essential to charac-
terize their ocenrrence, Background contamination and
non-uniform collection methodologies continue to be
major issues in studying microplastics. However, in
September 2021, Wong and Coffin (2021a, 2021b) devel-
oped and released standard operation procedures for
extraction and analysis using infrared spectroscopy and
Raman spectroscopy. ASTM International has also

40 JOURNAL AWWA » MAY 2024

developed several methods for microplastics analysis,
including sample collection for microplastics analysis
(ASTM 2020a), preparing samples for analysis (ASTM
2020b), standard test methods (ASTM 2023a), and the
development of reference samples (ASTM 2023b).

The lack of uniform analysis makes it difficult to com-
pare data, and since there is not a set definition for the
size of microplastics, the separation or extraction tech-
niques will affect the resnlts. It can also be a challenge
to determine what is and isn’t a microplastic because
many microfibers are natural and cannot easily be dis-
tinguished from plastic fibers, so some results may be
skewed high if they count all fibers as microplastics.

Smith et al. (2019) discuss sampling procedures,
including netting, bulk sampling, screening, and
in-situ filtration. Samples must then be separated,
using flotation, centrifugation, density separation,
or digestion, to remove the microplastics from the
aqueous sample. Table 1 was created from this review

and includes some of the advantages and limitations
of the various analysis techniques.

Other studies have underestimated the amount of
microplastics in waterways in that they predominantly
sample the water column itself. As particles stick together
or as they start to host bacteria, their density changes, and
microparticles can settle down the water column and end
up in the sediment itself, leaving them unidentified.

Particle separation methods may also lead to under-
estimates, and it has been reported that density flotation
is more likely to extract plastic fragments, spheres, and
pellets than plastic fibers. For example, Yuan et al. (2021
compared the performance of in-lab and in-line filtration
methods for microplastic sample collection in spike and re-
covery tests, tap samples, and water collected from a water
treatment plant. The in-line filiration method was shown
to be more effective because it was capable of processing



much larger volumes than in-lab filtration, which resulted
in more consistent results in all matrixes tested.

To develop a meaningful sampling and analysis plan,
Smith et al. (2019) proposed sampling and analytical
practices for water utilities based on our current under-
standing (Figure 2).

Ongoing research into analytical method development
includes microplastic quantification (in terms of both
enumeration and mass concentration), size character-
ization, and minimum thresholds for detection (size
and mass). There is also interestin identifying specific )
materials among the microplastics in a sample (e.g., ‘
polypropylene, polystyrene, polyethylene, polyethylene
terephthalate). -

US Legislation
At the end of 2015, the US Congress issued a law pro-

hibiting the manufacturing, packaging, and distribu-
tion of cosmetic products containing plastic

Advantages and Limitations of Analysis Techniques

Methﬂ Advantages

Microscopy simple, fast, inexpensive

ESEM-EDS Elemental composition and surface
morphology

Microscopy + FTIR/Raman Used to confirm microplastic type

FTIR spectroscopy No false positive, few false negatives,
visualization, no preparation, best method
for routine analysis

Raman spectroscopy

AFM-HR No false positives; few false negatives;
size to nanolevels; ldentifies number, size,
shape, and chemical content

As FTIR + pigment interference

Thermal (pyro-GC/MS) applied as Analyzes polymers and additives,
TGA-GC/MS, TDS-GC/MS, applicable to various water matrices
and possibly with FPA-FTIR

Source: Adapted from Smith et al. 2019

AFM-IR—atomic force microscopy-infrared spectroscopy, ESEM-EDS:
dispersive X-ray spectroscopy, FPA—focal plane array, FTI
chromatography with mass spegtrometry, TDS-GC/' MS—thermodesorpti

TGA-GC—thermogravimetry gas chromatography

Table 1

microbeads (USC 2015). The law defines a microbead
as a plastic bead less than 5mm in size with the
intended purpose to cleanse or exfoliate a part of the
body and be included in a rinse-off product. The law
gave manufacturers until July 2017 to stop manufac-
turing products containing microbeads and until July
2018 to stop delivering them (FDA 2020).

l.imltationi

Sample preparation and counting can be
slow, high false positives and negatives, no
chemical compositions determined -
Expensive, slow

Filtration required, some false positives and
negatives, only subset monitored, may miss
some types and sizes, color interferes

Expensive, slow

No morphological data

Expensive, slow

Applicable to few polymers, complex,
expensive, small particles may be missed,
weathered polymers can be problematic

—environmental scanning electron microscopy-energy
R—Fourier transform infrared spectroscopy, pyro-GC/MS—pyrolysis-gas
on gas chromatography with mass spectrometric detection,

JOURNAL AWWA = MAY 2024 41



¢ FEATURE Microplastics and Water

Sampling and Analytical Practice Flowchart

N
N
AN

N

AN

N

4

\

w

\
hEN
RN
N

R4
3 .
w 7 9~ o’ w

10

AN

» Sample surface water and groundwater under the influence (GUI) of surface water.

— e ——

» Sample raw and treated water for comparison if the water is filtered during the treatment process.

-

e ——— S “

» Use a strict sampling protocol that limits and accounts for atmospheric
contamination {e.g., trip blanks to be opened during sampling). '[

_—
« Follow a strict laboratory protocol to avoid contamination.

« Conduct analysis by dye treating and filtering a 1-L sample (Mason et al. 2018).

-

» Quantify the number of microplastics particles per liter that are
larger than 5 um and smaller than 100 um.

« Quantify the number of microplastics particles per liter that are larger than 100 pum.

+ Quantify the total number of microplastics particles per liter.

* Use a practical quantitation limit of 4.1 particles per liter for drinking water.

Y

« Optionally, conduct plastic chemical composition analysis by Fourier transform infrared spectroscopy i

(FTIR) for samples with detectable microplastics that are larger than 100 pm. .

Adapted from Smith et al. 2019 workflow

Figure 2

In 2018, the State of California enacted a law re- to the state and public regarding the occurrence of
quiring the State Water Resources Control Board microplasties in drinking water. In September 2021,
(SWRCB) to adopt a definition of microplastics on or SWRCB and Southern California Coastal Water
before July 1, 2020, and to adopt a standard method Research Project Authority released standard oper-
for analysis with four years of festing and reporting ating procedures for extraction and analysis using

42 JOURNAL AWWA « MAY 2024




infrared spectroscopy and Raman spectroscopy
(Wong & Coffin 2021a, 2021b).

Ongoing Research and Discovery

Microplastic research has determined that sources of
contamination include clothes washing, sewer systems,
wastewater facilities, biosolids, tire and road wear, and
atmospheric particles. A large portion of current research
is based on the properties of microplastics themselves
and how they can affect wildlife and humans. Micro-
plastics can adsorb and concentrate pollutants, and vari-
ous biological studies have found that marine and coastal
wildlife is regularly exposed to microplastics. Research
has also documented human exposure, but the health
effects are still unknown.

Researchers arestill formulating new methods to col-
lect, handle, and analyze rm'crop]éstics to suit their proj-
ects. While this discovery phase is leading to improved
techniques, the variety of methods can make it difficult
to compare results between studies. For example, some
studies do not identify the composition of microparticles
to confirm they are actually plastic.

Microplastic analysis methods are being standard-
ized, but research is still needed to determine human
health risks and to further quantify how well water and
wastewater treatment plant unit processes remove mi-
croplastics. As our knowledge of microplastics improves,
the water industry and public health officials can make
more informed decisions on advisories and regulations. &

About the Authors

Nikki Holloway is the laboratory super-
visor at Beaver Water District, Lowell,
Ark,; nholloway@bwdh2o.0rg.

Hunter Adams is the environmental laboratory super-
visor at Cypress Environmental Laboratory, City of
Wichita Falls, Texas.

Carlos Anthony Espindola Jr. is a graduate student at
Texas State University, San Marcos, Texas.

Keisuke Ikehata is an assistant professor at Texas State
University, San Marcos, Texas.

hﬂps#/dol.orﬂiﬂ.looz/amnm

References
Alspach B, Spinelli A. 2020. ] AWWA. 112:6:78. https://doi.org/
10.1002/awwa.1522

ASTM (ASTM International). 2020a. ASTM D8332-20, Standard
Practice for Collection of Water Samples With High, Medium, or
Low Suspended Solids for identification and Quantification of
Microplastic Particles and Fibers. ASTM International, West
Conshohocken, Pa. www.astm.org/d8332-20.htm!

ASTM. 2020b, ASTM D8333-20, Standard Practice for Preparation
of Water Samples With High, Medium, or Low Suspended Solids for
Identification and Quantification of Microplastic Particles and Fibers
Using Raman Spectroscopy, IR Spectroscopy, of Pyrolysis-GC/MS.
ASTM International, West Conshohocken, Pa, www.astm.org/
d8333-20.html

ASTM. 2023a. ASTM D8489-23el, Standard Test Method for
Determination of Microplastics Particle and Fiber Size, Distribution,
Shape, and Concentration in Waters With High to Low Suspended
Solids Using a Dynamic Image Particle Size and Shape Analyzer.
ASTM International, West Conshohocken, Pa. www.astm.org/
d8489-23e01.html

ASTM. 2023b. ASTM D8402-23, Standard Practice for Development
of Microplastic Reference Samples for Caljpration and Proficiency
Evaluation in All Types of Water Matrices With High to Low Levels of
Suspended Solids. ASTM International, West Conshohocken, Pa.
www.astm.org/d8402-23.html

Ateia M, Kanan A, Karanfil T. 2020. Chemosphere. 251:126452.
https://doi.org/lO.lOiG/j.chemosphere.2020.126452

Bayo J, Olmos S, Lépez-Castellanas J. 2020. Chemosphere. 238:
124583, https://doi.org/10.1016/J.chemosphere.2019.
124593

Ding D, Zhang J, He H, et al. 2021. Sci Total Environ. 775:2:142658.
https://doI.org/10.1016/j.scitotenv.2020.142658

GESAMP (Joint Group of Experts on the Scientific Aspects of
Marine Environmentai Protection), Sources, Fate, and Effects of
Microplastics in the Marine Environment: A Global Assessment.
2015. hitps://bit.ly/3UUIZg

Kaltfkova G, Alig B, Skalar T, et al. 2017. Chemosphere. 188:25,
https://doi.org/lo.1016/].chemosphere.2017.08.131

Lebreton L, van der Zwet J, Damsteeg IW, et al, 2017. Nat Commun.
8:15611. https://doi.org/10.1038/ncomm515611

Liu L, Wu X, Liu R, et al. 2022, Sci Total Environ. B12:152541.
https://dol.org/ 10.1016/j.scitoteny.2021.152541

Mason SA, Welch VG, Neratko J. 2018. Front Chem. 6:407. https://
doi.org/10.3389/fchem.2018.00407

Mason SA, Kammin L, Eriksen M, et al. 2016a. J Gt Lakes Res.
42:4:753. https://doi.org/lo.1016/j.jglr.2016.05.009 '

Mason SA, Garneau D, Sutton R, et al. 2016b. Environ Pollut.
218:1045. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.envpol.2016.08.056

Miller RZ, Watts AJR, Winslow BO, et al. 2017. Mar Pollut Bull.
124:1;245. https://doi.org/io.1016/j.marpolbul.2017.07.028

Mintenig SM, IntVeen I, Ldder MGJ, et al. 2017. Water Res.
108:365. https://doi.org/lO.iOiG/j.watres.2016.11.015

Na S-H, Kim M), Kim, JT, et al. 2024, Water Res. 202:117417.
https://doi.org/ 10.1016/).watres,2024.117417

Nizzetto L, Bussi G, Futter MN, et al. 2016. Environ Scei Proc-imp.
18:1050. https://doi.org/10.1039/065M00206D

Ryan PG, Moloney CL. 1990. S Afr J 8ci, 86:7:450, https://bit.ly/
3GSsvKY

Shen M, Song B, Zhu Y, et al. 2020. Chemosphere. 251:126612.
https://doi.org/lo.1016/j.chemosphere.2020.126612

Siegfried M, Koelmans AA, Besseling E, et al. 2017. Water Res.
127:249. https://doi.org/io.1016/j.watres.2017.10.011

Smith E, Dziewatkoski M, Henrie T, et al. 2019, Journal AWWA.
111-11:26. https://doi.org/10.1002/awwa.1393

Sutton R, Mason SA, Stanek SK, et al. 2016. Mar Pollut Bull,
109:1:230. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpolbul.2016.05.077

JOURNAL AWWA » MAY 2024 43



¢ FEATURE Microplastics and Water

Talvitie J, Miko!a A, Koistinen A, et al. 2017. Water Res. 123:401.
https://dot.org/10.1016/j.watres.2017.07.005

Thompsen RC, Olsen Y, Mitchell RF, et al. 2004, Science. 304:838.

hitps://doi.org/10.1126/science.1094559

USC (US Congress). 2015. Microbead-Free Waters Act of 2015,
21 U.S.C. § 331. htips://bit.ly/47eMtdx

WHO (World Health Organization), 2019. Microplastics in Drinking-
Water. 1GO. WHO, Geneva. https://bit.ly/3vhgOWO

Wong CS, Coffin S, 2021a, Standard Operating Procedures
for Extraction and Measurement by Infrared Spectroscopy of
Microplastic Particles in Drinking Water. Southern California
Coastal Water Research Project Authority, Costa Mesa, Calif,;
State Water Resources Control Board, Sacramento, Calif.
https://bit.ly/41DFSIS

Wong CS, Coffin S, 2021b. Standard Operating Procedures
for Extraction and Measurement by Raman Spectroscopy of
Microplastic Particles in Drinking Water. Southern California
Coastal Water Research Project Authority, Costa Mesa, Calif.;
State Water Resources Control Board, Sacramento, Calif.
https://bitly/3NLET|Q

Yahyanezhad N, Bardi MJ, Aminirad H. 2021. Water Practice &
Technology. 16:3:782. https://doi.org/10.2166/wpt,2021.036

Yuan C, Almuhtaram H, McKie MJ, et al. 2021. Chemosphere.
286:3:133881. https;/doi.org/10.1016/j.chemosphere.
2021.131881

Zhang M, Li J, Ding H, et al. 2019, Anal Lett. 53:8:1312. https://
doi.org/10.1080/00032718.2019.1705476

AWWA Resources

« PFAS Challenges and Novel Research: A Conversation
With the Editorial Board of the AWWA Water Science Topical
Collection on PFAS Analytics and Treatment. Crimi M,
Speth TF, Chowdhury ZK, et al. 2022. Journal AWWA.
114:7:12. https://dol.org/10.1002/awwa.1956

« Organic Contaminants, Related Issues Pose Widespread
Concerns. Cochran J, Gora S, Marfil-Vega R, et al. 2022.
Journal AWWA. 114:2:75. hitps://dol.org/10.1002/awwa.1872

o How Do Water and Wastewater Laboratorles Differ?
Adams H, Musser J, Sullivan M, et al, 2023. Opfiow. 49:5:18.
https://doi.org/10.1002/0pfi.1829

These resources have been supplied by Journal AWWA staff.
Faor information on these and other AWWA resources, visit
‘ WWW.aWWa.org.

FIRE HYDRANT SECURITY

Steps to determining
integral & Thread-on Storz:

integral Storz nozzle:

« Determine hydrant model
« Size of Storz

+ Quantity

. Specify Harrington HIHS

Thread-on Storz adapter:

- Determine hydrant thread details
+ Size of Storz

+ Quantity

« Specify Harrington HPHA

SPECIFY HARRINGTON

HYDRANT STORZ

HPHA™

Thread-On Reflective

Cable

\
§

» Metat Face Seat » No Locking Devices
- High-torque Cap Removal

INTEGRITY

ToImprove Your Emergency Response Connections,
SPECIEY HARRINGTON METAL FACE STORZ.

Al Fraducts
Mide in USA

44 JOURNAL AWWA « MAY 2024



